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PART I.

ITEM 1.

BUSINESS

A. GENERAL DESCRIPTION

Heartland Financial USA, Inc. ("Heartland"), reingorated in the state of Delaware in 1993, is airbaink holding company registered under
the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amendBtHCA"). Heartland has eight bank subsidiariethim states of lowa, lllinois,
Wisconsin, New Mexico, Arizona, and Montana, cdilely, the "Bank Subsidiaries"). All eight Bank IS&sidiaries are members of the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation ("FDIC"). The BanlbSdiaries listed below operate a total of 50 bagkocations.

* Dubuque Bank and Trust Company, Dubuque, lowahastered under the laws of the State of lowa. Dukugank and Trust

Company has two wholly-owned subsidiaries: DB&Tum@ce, Inc., a multi-line insurance agency and DEZommunity
Development Corp., a partner in low-income housing historic rehabilitation projects.

* Galena State Bank and Trust Company, Galena, iBlin® chartered under the laws of the State ofdis.

* First Community Bank, Keokuk, lowa, is charteredlenthe laws of the State of lowa.

* Riverside Community Bank, Rockford, lllinois, isastered under the laws of the State of Illinois.

* Wisconsin Community Bank, Cottage Grove, Wisconisithartered under the laws of the State of Wisiton
* New Mexico Bank & Trust, Albuguerque, New Mexics,dhartered under the laws of the State of New bte
* Rocky Mountain Bank, Billings, Montana, is chargtender the laws of the State of Montana.

* Arizona Bank & Trust, Chandler, Arizona, is chaeunder the laws of the State of Arizona.

Heartland has nine non-bank subsidiaries as |isédalv.

* Citizens Finance Co. is a consumer finance compathyoffices in lowa, lllinois and Wisconsin.

* ULTEA, Inc. is a fleet leasing company headquadeneMadison, Wisconsin.

* HTLF Capital Corp. is an investment banking firnesializing in taxable and taexempt municipal financing headquartered in Der
Colorado.

* Heartland Community Development Corp. is a ceditemmunity development entity with accountabitiylow-income communitie
in the Dubuque, lowa, service area.

* Heartland Financial Statutory Trust Il, Heartlaridancial Capital Trust Il, Heartland Financial $tary Trust Ill, Heartland Financial

Statutory Trust IV, and Rocky Mountain Statutory3trl are special purpose trust subsidiaries ofttéeal formed for the purpose of
the offering of cumulative capital securities.

All of Heartland’s subsidiaries are wholly-ownedcept for Arizona Bank & Trust, of which Heartlandned 86 % of the capital stock on
December 31, 2005 .

The Bank Subsidiaries provide full service retaihking in the communities in which they are locatedposit products offered by the Bank
Subsidiaries include checking and other demandgeaocounts, NOW accounts, savings accounts, moraket accounts, certificates of
deposit, individual retirement accounts, healthrsgsraccounts and other time deposits. The depodite Bank Subsidiaries are insured by
FDIC to the full extent permitted by law. Loanslume commercial and industrial, agricultural, resfate mortgage, consumer, home equity,
credit cards and lines of credit. Other products services include VISA debit cards, automate@tetiachines, on-line banking, safe deposit
boxes and trust services. The principal servidh®Bank Subsidiaries consists of making loansitbaccepting deposits from businesses and
individuals. These loans are made at the officah®@Bank Subsidiaries. The Bank Subsidiaries atsgage in activities that are closely related
to banking, including investment brokerage.

Operating Strategy
Heartland’s operating strategy is based upon a aamitgnbanking model with three major components:
1. Develop strong community banks:
*  Establish community bank names and images
* Encourage community involvement and leadership

* Maintain active boards of directors chosen fromltioal community
* Retain local presidents and decision-making



2. Provide resources for revenue enhancement:

* Develop and implement a wide array of financialdarcts and services for all Bank Subsidiaries

* Improve Bank Subsidiary funding costs by reducinghar-cost certificates of deposit; increasing pecentage of lowetos
transaction accounts such as checking, savingsvamegy market accounts; emphasizing relationshifkihgnand capitalizing ¢
cross-selling opportunities

* Emphasize greater use of non-traditional sourcésooine, including trust and investment servicesyuiance, consumer finance,
vehicle leasing and fleet management, and investiraarking

* Evaluate and acquire state-of-the-art technologgmthe expected return justifies the cost

3. Provide customer-transparent cost savings:

* Centralize back office support functions so Bank$diaries operate as efficiently as possible

Management believes the personal and professienagtes offered to customers provides an appealiegrative to the "megabanks” resulting
from mergers and acquisitions in the financial E&w industry. While Heartland employs a commubd#ynking philosophy, management
believes Heartland’s size, combined with its cortglme of financial products and services, is isight to effectively compete in the
respective market areas. To remain price competithanagement also believes Heartland must manxpgases and gain economies of scale
by centralizing back office support functions. Adtilgh each of Heartland’s subsidiaries operatesruhédelirection of its own board of
directors, Heartland has standard operating psliggarding asset/liability management, liquiditgmagement, investment management,
lending policies, and deposit structure management.

Another component of the operating strategy isimoerage all directors, officers and employees amntain a strong ownership interest in
Heartland. Since 1996, Heartland has provided gri@ree stock purchase plan. For the year endedrbleg®e31, 2005, employees purchased
14,268 shares under the plan. As of December 3B, 2nployees, officers, and directors owned apprately 25% of Heartland’s
outstanding common stock.

Acquisition and Expansion Strategy

Heartland’s strategy is to increase profitabilibdaliversify its market area and asset base byrelpg existing subsidiaries, by establishigy
novo banks and through acquisitions. Heartland contlpsaleks and evaluates opportunities to establishdhes, loan production offices, or
other business facilities as a means of expandngrésence in current or new market areas. Hadrdaquires established financial services
organizations, primarily commercial banks or tistifivhen suitable candidates are identified andpabke business terms can be negotiated.
Heartland has also formel# novo banking institutions in locations determined to dnavarket potential and suitable management caredidat
with banking expertise and a philosophy similaHgartland’s.

Heartland has focused on markets with growth ptkint the Midwest and Western regions of the Uthitates as it evaluates expansion and
acquisition opportunities. In August 2003, Heartlamd a group of investors opened Arizona Bank 8sf,rade novo banking operation,
followed with a second location in 2004 and a thirchtion in 2005. Additional expansion at ArizdBank & Trust includes the announcement
in January 2006 of an agreement to acquire BatkeoSouthwest, a financial institution providingaitand commercial banking services in
Phoenix and Tempe, Arizona. Heartland expects mabdoe the acquired assets and deposit accountaiigona Bank & Trust. Subject to
approvals by bank regulatory authorities and shadelns, the transaction is expected to close duhiagecond quarter of 2006. Heartland took
another step toward expanding its Western presenbgne of 2004 when it acquired Rocky Mountain &aporation, Inc., the one-bank
holding company of Rocky Mountain Bank. Headquaden Billings, Montana, Rocky Mountain Bank hadets of $385 million at Decemt
31, 2005, with nine branch locations throughoutdtate. In August of 2005, Heartland announcedhtitition of a loan production office in
Denver, Colorado and its hopes to use this off&ca apringboard to opening its ninth full-servitaes chartered bank during the second quarter
of 2006. The capital structure of this new bankyeémamed Summit Bank & Trust, is anticipated toéwy similar to that used when Arizona
Bank & Trust was formed. Heartland’s expected ahithvestment would be $12.0 million, or 80% of thegeted $15.0 million initial capital.
One of Heartland’s strategic goals is to expangri¢sence in the Western markets to 50% of Heal'ddotal assets, thereby balancing the
growth in its Western markets with the stabilitytiof Midwestern markets.

Heartland looks for opportunities outside the comityubanks and thrift categories when its boardioéctors and management determine the
opportunities will provide a desirable strategtosfithout posing undue risk. In this regard, Hesartl established HTLF Capital Corp. in April
2003. HTLF Capital is an investment banking firmttepecializes in taxable and tax-exempt munidipahcing, either by providing direct
investment on behalf of Heartland and its Bank &lidses or by acting as a financial advisor foragiety of municipal transactions.

Lending Activities

General



The Bank Subsidiaries provide a range of commeatidlretail lending services to businesses andithahls. These credit activities include
agricultural, commercial, residential real estat®sumer loans and commercial leases.

The Bank Subsidiaries aggressively market thewrises to qualified lending customers. Lending @fi& actively solicit the business of new
companies entering their market areas as wellrag$tanding members of the Bank Subsidiaries' atiseebusiness communities. Through
professional service, competitive pricing, and wetive structure, the Bank Subsidiaries have beenessful in attracting new lending
customers. Heartland also actively pursues consiending opportunities. With convenient locatioadyertising and customer
communications, the Bank Subsidiaries have beeresstul in capitalizing on the credit needs ofrtherket areas.

Commercial Loans

The Bank Subsidiaries have a strong commercial b@ese, with significant growth coming from Dubudgenk and Trust Company, New
Mexico Bank & Trust, Wisconsin Community Bank, aluwdzona Bank & Trust. Dubuque Bank and Trust Compém particular, continues to

be a premier commercial lender in the tri-stat@a afenortheast lowa, northwest lllinois and soutstiisconsin. The Bank Subsidiaries'
current portfolios include, but are not limited knans to wholesalers, hospitality industry, restate developers, manufacturers, building
contractors, business services companies andamstailne Bank Subsidiaries provide a wide randausfness loans, including lines of credit

for working capital and operational purposes amchti®ans for the acquisition of equipment and esahte. Although most loans are made on a
secured basis, loans may be made on an unsecugisdiieere warranted by the overall financial caodiof the borrower. Terms of
commercial business loans generally range fromtofige years.

Bank Subsidiaries continue to seek opportunitiesxmand the production of loans guaranteed by gb8ernment agencies. Wisconsin
Community Bank is designated as a Preferred Lelgléne U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA).sééinsin Community Bank is also
only lender in Wisconsin to be granted USDA CegtifLender status for the USDA Rural DevelopmentiBass and Industry loan program

and was one of the top ten lenders in the natidghignprogram for the past three years. Manageineigves that making these guaranteed |
helps its local communities as well as providesrt@ad with a source of income and solid futuredieg relationships as such businesses grow
and prosper.

The Bank Subsidiarie€ommercial loans and leases are primarily madedbasehe identified cash flow of the borrower aedandarily on th
underlying collateral provided by the borrower. Tdudlateral support provided by the borrower foratnof these loans and leases and the
probability of repayment is based on the liquidatid the pledged collateral and enforcement ofraqreal guarantee, if any exists. The primary
repayment risks of commercial loans and leasethatghe cash flows of the borrower may be unptatlle, and the collateral securing these
loans may fluctuate in value.

Heartland understands the roles that sound crkitlg and a common credit culture play in maintagniguality loan portfolios. As the credit
portfolios of the Bank Subsidiaries have continteedrow, several changes have been made in thedirig departments resulting in an overall
increase in these departments’ skill levels. In3266artland introduced the RMA Diagnostic Assestne assess credit skills and training
needs for over 80 of its credit personnel. After ithitial introduction of this training tool, spéiciindividualized training was established for
existing personnel. All new lending personnel aqgeeted to complete a similar diagnostic traininggoam. Heartland also assists all of the
member banks’ commercial and agricultural lendethé analysis and underwriting of credit throuigtstaff in the credit administration
department. This staff continues to expand asdta¢ lbans under management continue to grow.

Commercial lenders interact with their respectivards of directors each month. Heartland alsazeslian internal loan review function to
analyze credits of the Bank Subsidiaries and teigeoperiodic reports to the respective boardsirgfotiors. Management has attempted to
identify problem loans at an early date and to eggjrvely seek resolution of these situations.

Agricultural Loans

Agricultural loans are emphasized by Dubuque BarkErust Company, Rocky Mountain Bank, Wisconsim@uinity Bank’s Monroe
banking center and New Mexico Bank & Trust’'s Clobémnking offices.

The Bank Subsidiaries that emphasize agricultomis do so because of their location in or aroural markets. Dubuque Bank and Trust
Company maintains its status as one of the laaggrstultural lenders in the State of lowa. Agriouétl loans remain balanced in proportion to
the rest of Heartland's loan portfolio, constitgtapproximately 12% of the total loan portfolioCecember 31, 2005. Heartland’s policies
designate a primary and secondary lending areeafcn bank with the majority of outstanding agrigrat operating and real estate loans to
customers located within the primary lending afleam loans secured by real estate are allowedmiltid secondary lending area.

Agricultural loans, many of which are secured hyps; machinery and real estate, are provided &méiea capital improvements and farm
operations as well as acquisitions of livestock arathinery. The ability of the borrower to repayynbe affected by many factors outside of
the borrower’s control including adverse weatherditions, loss of livestock due to disease or ofhetors, declines in market prices for



agricultural products and the impact of governmregtilations. The ultimate repayment of agricultimahs is dependent upon the profitable
operation or management of the agricultural entity.

The agricultural loan departments work closely veilhof their customers, including companies ardhiidual farmers, and review the
preparation of budgets and cash flow projectiomgHe ensuing crop year. These budgets and casipflojections are monitored closely
during the year and reviewed with the custometsest once annually. The Bank Subsidiaries alskwimsely with governmental agencies,
including the Farmers Home Administration, to hafpicultural customers obtain credit enhancemerdyets such as loan guarantees or
interest assistance.

Residential Real Estate Mortgage Loans

Mortgage lending remains a focal point for the B&ulbsidiaries as each of them continues to budtlastate lending business. As long-term
interest rates remained at low levels during 20852004, many customers elected mortgage loansitbdixed rate with fifteen or thirty year
maturities. Heartland usually sells these loans ihé secondary market but retains servicing omthgrity of sold loans. Management
believes that mortgage servicing on sold loansigdes/the Bank Subsidiaries with a relatively stesoiyrce of fee income compared to fees
generated solely from mortgage origination operatidoreover, the retention of servicing givesBamk Subsidiaries the opportunity to
maintain regular contact with mortgage loan custeme

As with agricultural and commercial loans, Heard@amcourages the Bank Subsidiaries to participatending programs sponsored by U.S.
government agencies when justified by market camubt Beginning in 2004, Veterans Administratiomn &ederal Home Administration loans
were offered in all Bank Subsidiary markets.

Consumer Lending

The Bank Subsidiaries’' consumer lending departn@otgde all types of consumer loans including metehicle, home improvement, home
equity, credit cards and small personal creditslit@nsumer loans typically have shorter termsefdvalances, higher yields and higher risks
of default than one- to four-family residential ngage loans. Consumer loan collections are dep¢itetme borrower’s continuing financial
stability, and are therefore more likely to be eféel by adverse personal circumstances.

Citizens Finance Co. specializes in consumer lgndird currently serves the consumer credit needpmfoximately 5,800 customers in lowa,
lllinois and Wisconsin from its Dubuque, lowa; Msdin and Appleton, Wisconsin; and Loves Park andt@hyake, lllinois offices. Citizens
Finance Co. typically lends to borrowers with pasidit problems or limited credit histories. Heantll expects to incur a higher level of credit
losses on Citizens Finance Co. loans comparedrsuroer loans originated by the Bank SubsidiariesteéSpondingly, returns on these loans
are anticipated to be higher than those at the Bauisidiaries.

Trust and Investment Services

Dubuque Bank and Trust Company, Galena State Bashkd eust Company and Wisconsin Community Bank Heeen offering trust and
investment services in their respective communftesnany years. In those markets which do notweatrant a full trust department, the sales
and administration is performed by Dubuque BankBnct Company personnel. In 2005, New Mexico Barikrust began offering trust and
investment services. In 2003, Arizona Bank & Thogted the list of banks offering trust and investrhservices. On August 31, 2004,
Heartland completed its acquisition of the Wealthrfdigement Group of Colonial Trust Company, a plyblield Arizona trust company based
in Phoenix. The Wealth Management Group, ColoniasTCompany’s personal trust division, had trssiets of $154.0 million and projected
annual revenues of $1.2 million at August 31, 2004s transaction provided a unique opportunityHeartland to grow its trust business in
Southwestern marketplace. Colonial’'s seasoned neamaigt team and strong account base, combined weitintldnd’s strong support services,
depth of expertise, and long track record of inwestt performance should prove to be a winning coatimn as we seek to elevate the profile
of our newest subsidiary bank, Arizona Bank & Trést of December 31, 2005, total Heartland trusetssexceeded $1.3 hillion, the vast
majority of which are assets under managemente€lkely, the Bank Subsidiaries provide a full cdempent of trust and investment services
for individuals and corporations. All of the Banklfidiaries have targeted their trust departmentwianary areas for future growth.

Dubuque Bank and Trust Company is nationally receghas a leading provider of socially responsifi@stment services, and it manages
investment portfolios for religious and other namfit organizations located throughout the Unigtdtes. Dubuque Bank and Trust Compa
also Heartland’s lead bank in providing daily vaioa 401(k) plans and other retirement servicedpiing Heartland’s retirement plans for its
employees.

Heartland has formed a strategic alliance with pahelent Financial Marketing Group, Inc. to opematiependent securities offices at all of
Heartland’s bank subsidiaries. Through IndepenBarancial Marketing Group, Inc., Heartland offer&ih array of investment services
including mutual funds, annuities, retirement pradueducation savings products, brokerage sepwoeployer sponsored plans, and insure
products. A complete line of vehicle, property @adualty, life and disability insurance and tayefemnuities are also offered by Heartland



through DB&T Insurance.
B. MARKET AREAS
Dubuque Bank and Trust Company

Dubuque Bank and Trust Company and Heartland aetdd in Dubuque County, lowa, which encompassesith of Dubuque and a number
of surrounding rural communities. Citizens Fina@ae also operates within this market area, in &ldiio operating offices in Madison,
Wisconsin; Appleton, Wisconsin; Loves Park, llliapand Crystal Lake, lllinois.

The city of Dubuque is located in northeastern lpgrathe Mississippi River, approximately 175 miesst of Chicago, lllinois, and
approximately 200 miles northeast of Des Moinegidalt is strategically situated at the intersattd the state borders of lowa, lllinois and
Wisconsin. Based upon the results of the 2000 seniba city of Dubuque had a total population gdragimately 58,000.

The principal offices of Heartland and Dubuque Bank Trust Company’s main bank currently occupystémme building. Due to growth in
both companies, a building was acquired directlps&the street from Dubuque Bank and Trust Conipangin office to serve as an
operations center for Heartland. Renovation ofa®®00 square foot building was completed in trowsd quarter of 2004.

In addition to its main banking office, Dubuque Ramnd Trust Company operates seven branch offitlesf which are located in Dubuque
County. In 2004 Dubuque Bank and Trust Company egenbranch facility at a strategically locate@iaéction on the rapidly growing
northwest side of Dubuque. Additionally, during 20@ubuque Bank and Trust Company relocated itsdbrdacility in Farley, lowa, to a
newly constructed building that is more convenfenits customers. As a subsidiary of Dubuque Ban#t Trust Company, DB&T Insurance
has substantially the same market area as thetpaganization.

Galena State Bank and Trust Company

Galena State Bank and Trust Company is locatedhler@, Illinois, which is less than five miles frahe Mississippi River, approximately 20
miles east of Dubuque and 155 miles west of Chic&gbena operates a second office in Stocktomgili. Both offices are located in
Jo Daviess County, which has a population of agprately 22,000, according to the 2000 census.

First Community Bank

First Community Banls main office is in Keokuk, lowa, which is locatedthe southeast corner of lowa near the bordefsved, Missouri an
lllinois. Due to its location, First Community Baskrves customers in the t@unty region of Lee County, lowa; Hancock Coulhitinois; and
Clark County, Missouri. First Community Bank hagdmanch office in Keokuk and another branch indibheof Carthage in Hancock County,
lllinois. Keokuk is an industrial community withpepulation of approximately 11,000, and the popoitedf Lee County is approximately
38,000.

Riverside Community Bank

Riverside Community Bank is located on the northedge of Rockford, lllinois, which is approximatél5 miles west of Chicago in
Winnebago County. In addition to its main bankirffice, Riverside Community Bank has three brandices$, all of which are located in the
Winnebago County area. Based on the 2000 censusptinty had a population of 278,000, and thedfifgockford had a population of
150,000.

Wisconsin Community Bank

Wisconsin Community Bank’s main office is locateddottage Grove, Wisconsin, which is approximatelymiles east of Madison in Dane
County. Wisconsin Community Bank operates two binawitices in Madison suburbs. The Middleton braonpened in 1998, and an office in
Fitchburg was opened in a newly constructed bujldinMarch 2003. According to the 2000 census, Daoenty had a population of 427,000,
and the village of Cottage Grove had a populatio,®00. Wisconsin Community Bank opened threeceffiin Sheboygan, DePere and Eau
Claire, Wisconsin during 1999, operating underrtame of Wisconsin Business Bank. The Sheboygaraiére facilities are located in the
northeastern Wisconsin counties of Sheboygan andiBrThe Eau Claire office was subsequently solthénfourth quarter of 2002. In 2003,
Wisconsin Community Bank opened a loan productificedin Minneapolis, Minnesota, operating undez ttame of Wisconsin Business
Bank. This office focuses on providing governmemarmgnteed financing to businesses located in thetékferegion of the United States.
During 2004, Wisconsin Business Bank changed itsento Heartland Business Bank in conjunction witopening of a loan production off
in Rockland, Massachusetts. Wisconsin CommunitykBaso acquired the Bank One Monroe Wisconsin bankenter in July of 1999. The
city of Monroe, which is approximately 50 miles fowest of Madison, is located in Green County inteaentral Wisconsin.



New Mexico Bank & Trust

New Mexico Bank & Trust operates seven officesriamund Albuquerque, New Mexico, in Bernalillo @byt Based upon the 2000 cens
the county had a population of 557,000, and thehad a population of 449,000. New Mexico Bank &4§tralso operates five locations in the
New Mexico communities of Clovis, Portales, and idsé, all located in Curry County. Clovis is lochte east central New Mexic
approximately 220 miles from Albuquerque, 100 mitesthwest of Lubbock, Texas, and 105 miles sousttwéAmarillo, Texas. In 2003 two
branch offices were opened in Santa Fe, in Sant@duaty.

Arizona Bank & Trust

Arizona Bank & Trust currently operates three afficone in Phoenix which opened in 2005, one inaylaszona, which is located 15 miles
east of Phoenix and the main office in Chandleizdxra, which is located in the southern portioomettropolitan Phoenix. Both cities are
located in Maricopa County. Chandler’s current gapan is 218,000, as provided by the City of CHan®ffice of Economic Development,
compared to 177,000 reported in the 2000 censwese$timated population of Maricopa County in JW@Rwas 3,029,000, according to the
Arizona Department of Economic Security.

Rocky Mountain Bank

Rocky Mountain Bank operates from nine locationstighout the state of Montana. Rocky Mountain Bamkain office is in Billings which is
the state’s largest city and an agricultural, tetad business center. Billings is also the cosegt of Yellowstone County within south-central
Montana along Interstate-90. Based upon the 2008use the county had a population of 129,000 aedity had a population of 126,000. Six
of the locations are spread primarily along thetesscorridor of the state of Montana. Kalispellswwhe most recent branch addition in 2005.
Bigfork is located in Flathead County, 15 milestbeast of Kalispell along Highway 206. Bigfork isar the Big Mountain Ski Resort and
Blacktail Ski Area. Bozeman is the county seat afl&in County and is 82 miles east of Butte omristate-90. Bozeman has a population of
30,000 and is the fifth largest city in MontanaaiR$ is located in Sanders County, on Route 200theeDiscovery Ski Basin Area.
Stevensville is located in Ravalli County, 28 midesith of Missoula on Highway 93. Whitehall is ltadhin Jefferson County, off Interstate-90
between Butte and Three Forks. Two of the locatameson the eastern side of Montana. Broadus isdhaty seat of Powder River County,
and lies 77 miles south of Miles City close to Yigoming state line along Highway 212. Plentywoothis county seat for Sheridan County
and located 16 miles south of the Canadian borelevden the cities of Archer and Antelope on Highsvayand 15.

C. COMPETITION

Heartland encounters competition in all areassobitsiness pursuits. To compete effectively, dgvgtomarket base, maintain flexibility, and
keep pace with changing economic and social camdifiHeartland continuously refines and develappribducts and services. The principal
methods of competing in the financial services stduare through price, service and convenience.

The Bank Subsidiaries' market areas are highly edithge. Many financial institutions based in thenemunities surrounding the Bank
Subsidiaries actively compete for customers withgartland's market area. The Bank Subsidiariesfatsocompetition from finance
companies, insurance companies, mortgage compaeiag,ities brokerage firms, money market fundan lproduction offices and other
providers of financial services. Under the GramnadleBliley Act, effective in 2000, securities firraad insurance companies that elect to
become financial holding companies may acquire bamid other financial institutions. The Gramm-Le8&tikey Act significantly changed the
competitive environment in which Heartland and Bieank Subsidiaries conduct business. The finaneialices industry is also likely to beco
more competitive as technological advances enabte wompanies to provide financial services. Thesknological advances may diminish
the importance of depository institutions and offirencial intermediaries in the transfer of furldtween parties.

Heartland competes for loans principally through thinge and quality of the services it provideshen emphasis on building long-lasting
relationships. Our strategy is to delight our costes through excellence in customer service andsabased selling. We become their trusted
financial advisor. Heartland believes that its latgnding presence in the community and persomaicgephilosophy enhance its ability to
compete favorably in attracting and retaining indiiial and business customers. Heartland activéigitsodeposit-oriented clients and
competes for deposits by offering its customersaqeal attention, professional service and competititerest rates.

D. EMPLOYEES

At December 31, 2005, Heartland employed 909 foiktequivalent employees. Heartland places a himghify on staff development, which
involves extensive training in a variety of ara@asluding customer service training. New employaesselected based upon their technical
skills and customer service capabilities. None ediland's employees are covered by a collectivgdi@ng agreement. Heartland offers a
variety of employee benefits, and management cersits employee relations to be excellent.



E. INTERNET ACCESS

Heartland maintains an Internet site at www.htlincddeartland offers its annual report on Form 1@#arterly reports on Form 10-Q, current
reports on Form 8-K, and other reports filed onfsined pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of thehBrge Act free of charge from its web site
as soon as reasonably practical after meetingléetrenic filing requirements of the Securities d&dthange Commission.

F. SUPERVISION AND REGULATION
General

Financial institutions, their holding companies dnelir affiliates are extensively regulated undeteral and state law. As a result, the growth
and earnings performance of Heartland may be &ffiercdt only by management decisions and generabeaic conditions, but also by the
requirements of federal and state statutes antidyeigulations and policies of various bank regujaauthorities, including the lowa
Superintendent of Banking (the “lowa Superintengette lllinois Department of Financial and Prafesal Regulation (the “lllinois DFPR”),
the New Mexico Financial Institutions Division (ttdew Mexico FID”), the Montana Financial Institati Division (the “Montana Division”),
the Division of Banking of the Wisconsin DepartmehFinancial Institutions (the “Wisconsin DFI"J)& Arizona State Banking Department
(the “Arizona Department”), the Board of Governofshe Federal Reserve System (the “Federal Rejeand the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation (the “FDIC"). Furthermore, taxation ladministered by the Internal Revenue Servicestate taxing authorities and securities
laws administered by the Securities and Exchangerfiiesion (the “SEC”) and state securities authesitiave an impact on the business of
Heartland. The effect of these statutes, regulatéord regulatory policies may be significant, aadmot be predicted with a high degree of
certainty.

Federal and state laws and regulations generatlijcaple to financial institutions regulate, amastfer things, the scope of business, the kinds
and amounts of investments, reserve requiremesytiat levels relative to operations, the naturé amount of collateral for loans, the
establishment of branches, mergers and consolidaind the payment of dividends. This system oéstigion and regulation establishes a
comprehensive framework for the respective opemataf Heartland and its subsidiaries and is intdrténarily for the protection of the
FDIC-insured deposits and depositors of the Barlbsiliaries, rather than shareholders.

The following is a summary of the material elemesftthe regulatory framework that applies to Hesartl and its subsidiaries. It does not
describe all of the statutes, regulations and eggoy policies that apply, nor does it restatethe requirements of those that are describe
such, the following is qualified in its entirety bgference to applicable law. Any change in statutegulations or regulatory policies may have
a material effect on the business of Heartlandiensubsidiaries.

The Company

General. Heartland, as the sole shareholder of Dubuque BadKTrust Company, New Mexico Bank & Trust, RockguMtain Bank,
Wisconsin Community Bank, Galena State Bank andfl@ompany, Riverside Community Bank and First Camity Bank and the
controlling shareholder of Arizona Bank & Trustai®ank holding company. As a bank holding compéteartland is registered with, and is
subject to regulation by, the Federal Reserve utideBank Holding Company Act of 1956, as amendeel BHCA”). In accordance with
Federal Reserve policy, Heartland is expected tasa source of financial strength to the Banks&liaries and to commit resources to sug
the Bank Subsidiaries in circumstances where Heattinight not otherwise do so. Under the BHCA, Haad is subject to periodic
examination by the Federal Reserve. Heartlandsis r@quired to file with the Federal Reserve péciogports of Heartland’s operations and
such additional information regarding Heartland @sdubsidiaries as the Federal Reserve may equir

Acquisitions, Activities and Changein Control. The primary purpose of a bank holding company isatatrol and manage banks. The BHCA
generally requires the prior approval of the FeldReserve for any merger involving a bank holdioghpany or any acquisition by a bank
holding company of another bank or bank holding pany. Subject to certain conditions (including agrtdeposit concentration limits
established by the BHCA), the Federal Reserve riay @ bank holding company to acquire banks lotéteany state of the United States.

In approving interstate acquisitions, the FedeesdRve is required to give effect to applicabléestaw limitations on the aggregate amount of
deposits that may be held by the acquiring banklihglcompany and its insured depository instituadfiliates in the state in which the target
bank is located (provided that those limits dodistriminate against out-of-state depository instins or their holding companies) and state
laws that require that the target bank have beexistence for a minimum period of time (not to @ed five years) before being acquired by an
out-of-state bank holding company.

The BHCA generally prohibits Heartland from acquiridirect or indirect ownership or control of mdinan 5% of the voting shares of any
company that is not a bank and from engaging inkarginess other than that of banking, managingcantrolling banks or furnishing services
to banks and their subsidiaries. This general jpitbn is subject to a number of exceptions. Thiagypal exception allows bank holding
companies to engage in, and to own shares of caegpangaged in, certain businesses found by ther&eldeserve to be “so closely related to
banking ... as to be a proper incident theretois Buthority would permit Heartland to engage wadety of banking-related businesses,



including the operation of a thrift, consumer finanequipment leasing, the operation of a compmériice bureau (including software
development), and mortgage banking and brokerage BHCA generally does not place territorial restons on the domestic activities of
non-bank subsidiaries of bank holding companies.

Additionally, bank holding companies that meet aiereligibility requirements prescribed by the BH@Ad elect to operate as financial
holding companies may engage in, or own sharegritpanies engaged in, a wider range of nonbankitigitées, including securities and
insurance underwriting and sales, merchant bardany other activity that the Federal Reserveoirsultation with the Secretary of the
Treasury, determines by regulation or order isrfaial in nature, incidental to any such financietivty or complementary to any such
financial activity and does not pose a substantélto the safety or soundness of depositorytunstins or the financial system generally. As of
the date of this filing, Heartland has not appliedapproval to operate as a financial holding camp

Federal law also prohibits any person or compaomfacquiring “control” of an FDIC-insured deposjtanstitution or its holding company
without prior notice to the appropriate federal baagulator. “Control” is conclusively presumedexist upon the acquisition of 25% or more
of the outstanding voting securities of a bankamkibholding company, but may arise under certatuaistances at 10% ownership.

Capital Requirements. Bank holding companies are required to maintainimmim levels of capital in accordance with Federas&ve capital
adequacy guidelines. If capital levels fall beldw tinimum required levels, a bank holding compamyong other things, may be denied
approval to acquire or establish additional banksam-bank businesses.

The Federal Reserve’s capital guidelines estatfisiollowing minimum regulatory capital requirentefor bank holding companies: (i) a
risk-based requirement expressed as a percentagbssets weighted according to risk; anda(igverage requirement expressed as a
percentage of total assets. The risk-based reqaireaonsists of a minimum ratio of total capitatdtal risk-weighted assets of 8% and a
minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to total risk-weitgl assets of 4%. The leverage requirement corudistgninimum ratio of Tier 1 capital to
total assets of 3% for the most highly rated congmmwith a minimum requirement of 4% for all othefor purposes of these capital stand
Tier 1 capital consists primarily of permanent &toaders’ equity less intangible assets (other gentain loan servicing rights and purchased
credit card relationships). Total capital consgsisarily of Tier 1 capital plus certain other deloid equity instruments that do not qualify as
Tier 1 capital and a portion of Heartland’s allowarior loan and lease losses.

The risk-based and leverage standards describeg @ve minimum requirements. Higher capital levglsbe required if warranted by the
particular circumstances or risk profiles of indival banking organizations. For example, the FédRaaerve’s capital guidelines contemplate
that additional capital may be required to takeqadée account of, among other things, interestrisite or the risks posed by concentrations of
credit, nontraditional activities or securitiesdiray activities. Further, any banking organizatexperiencing or anticipating significant growth
would be expected to maintain capital ratios, idiig tangible capital positions (i.e., Tier 1 capless all intangible assets), well above the
minimum levels. As of December 31, 2005, Heartlaad regulatory capital in excess of the FederaéRess minimum requirements.

Dividend Payments. Heartland’s ability to pay dividends to its shareleos may be affected by both general corporateclansiderations and
policies of the Federal Reserve applicable to beoiding companies. As a Delaware corporation, Heeadtis subject to the limitations of the
Delaware General Corporation Law (the “DGCL"), whigllows Heartland to pay dividends only out ofsiteplus (as defined and computed in
accordance with the provisions of the DGCL) or dafitland has no such surplus, out of its net @ddit the fiscal year in which the dividenc
declared and/or the preceding fiscal year. Addéllyn policies of the Federal Reserve caution ¢hbhank holding company should not pay cash
dividends that exceed its net income or that cdy loa funded in ways that weaken the bank holdimggany’s financial health, such as by
borrowing. The Federal Reserve also possessesenfent powers over bank holding companies and tiogirbank subsidiaries to prevent or
remedy actions that represent unsafe or unsourndiges or violations of applicable statutes anditaiipns. Among these powers is the ability
to proscribe the payment of dividends by bankslzark holding companies.

Federal Securities Regulation. Heartland’s common stock is registered with the $ia@er the Securities Act of 1933, as amendedtland
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (tkeH&hge Act”). Consequently, Heartland is subje¢he information, proxy solicitation,
insider trading and other restrictions and requéets of the SEC under the Exchange Act.

The Bank Subsidiaries

General. Dubuque Bank and Trust Company and First CommuBdiyk are lowa-chartered banks. The deposit accadsibugue Bank and
Trust Company are insured by the FDIC’s Bank InsceaFund (“BIF”),while the deposit accounts of First Community Bank insured by tt
FDIC’s Savings Association Insurance Fund (“SAIRRY. lowachartered banks, Dubuque Bank and Trust CompanyastdCommunity Ban
are subject to the examination, supervision, répgprnd enforcement requirements of the lowa Saoperdent, the chartering authority for
lowa banks, and the FDIC, designated by federaldawhe primary federal regulator of state-chatt&®IC-insured banks that, like Dubuque
Bank and Trust Company and First Community Bang,reat members of the Federal Reserve System (“rembrar banks”).

Galena State Bank and Trust Company and Riversiten@nity Bank are lllinois-chartered banks, thead#paccounts of which are insured



by the BIF. As lllinois-chartered banks, Galena&®ank and Trust Company and Riverside CommunrétykBare subject to the examination,
supervision, reporting and enforcement requiremefitse lllinois DFPR, the chartering authority finois banks, and the FDIC, as the
primary federal regulator of state-chartered FDd€dred non-member banks.

New Mexico Bank & Trust is a New Mexi-chartered bank, the deposit accounts of whichregred by the BIF. As a New Mexico-chartered
bank, New Mexico Bank & Trust is subject to thermkaation, supervision, reporting and enforcemeqtitements of the New Mexico FID,
the chartering authority for New Mexico banks, &nel FDIC, as the primary federal regulator of stdtartered FDIC-insured non-member
banks.

Rocky Mountain Bank is a Montana-chartered bank,diposit accounts of which are insured by the B&#a Montana-chartered, FDIC-
insured non-member bank, Rocky Mountain Bank igesulto the examination, supervision, reporting antbrcement requirement of the
Montana Division, as the chartering authority foomana banks, and the FDIC, as the primary regutdtstate-chartered FDIC-insured non-
member banks.

Wisconsin Community Bank is a Wisconsin-charteradi) the deposit accounts of which are insurechbyBiF. As a Wisconsin-chartered
bank, Wisconsin Community Bank is subject to thamsixation, supervision, reporting and enforcemeqtirements of the Wisconsin DFI,
chartering authority for Wisconsin banks, and tbe8C; as the primary federal regulator of state-tdrad FDIC-insured non-member banks.

Arizona Bank & Trust is an Arizona-chartered bathie deposit accounts of which are insured by tie Bk an Arizona-chartered bank,
Arizona Bank & Trust is subject to the examinatisapervision, reporting and enforcement requiresiefthe Arizona Department, the
chartering authority for Arizona banks, and the EPas the primary federal regulator of state-chad&DIC-insured non-member banks.

Deposit I nsurance. As FDICAnsured institutions, the Bank Subsidiaries araliregl to pay deposit insurance premium assessiteetite FDIC
The FDIC has adopted a risk-based assessment syatisnwhich all insured depository institutions placed into one of nine categories and
assessed insurance premiums based upon their tigsdeuels of capital and results of supervisorgilgations. Institutions classified as well-
capitalized (as defined by the FDIC) and considéweslthy pay the lowest premium while institutidhat are less than adequately capitalized
(as defined by the FDIC) and considered of subisasuipervisory concern pay the highest premiurskRlassification of all insured
institutions is made by the FDIC for each semi-atmssessment period.

During the year ended December 31, 2005, both BFSAIF assessments ranged from 0% of deposit#®of deposits. For the semi-
annual assessment period beginning January 1, BOB&nd SAIF assessment rates will continue tgeanom 0% of deposits to 0.27% of
deposits.

FI1CO Assessments.  Since 1987, a portion of the deposit insuransessnents paid by members of the FDIC’s SAIF has hsed to cover
interest payments due on the outstanding obligatidrihe Financing Corporation (“FICO”). FICO wagated in 1987 to finance the
recapitalization of the Federal Savings and Loauidance Corporation, the SAIF’s predecessor inseraimd. As a result of federal legislation
enacted in 1996, beginning as of January 1, 198h, BAIF members and BIF members became subjessessments to cover the interest
payments on outstanding FICO obligations untilfthal maturity of such obligations in 2019. Thed€®6 assessments are in addition to
amounts assessed by the FDIC for deposit insurénaing the year ended December 31, 2005, the Fi€@ssment rate for BIF and SAIF
members was approximately 0.01% of deposits.

Supervisory Assessments. Each of the Bank Subsidiaries is required to pgestisory assessments to its respective state hgun&gulator to
fund the operations of that agency. In generalatheunt of the assessment is calculated on the basiach institutiors total assets. During t
year ended December 31, 2005, the Bank Subsidiaaieissupervisory assessments totaling $371 thaou

Capital Requirements. Banks are generally required to maintain capitatliein excess of other businesses. Under fedegalations, the Bank
Subsidiaries are subject to the following minimuapital standards: (i) a leverage requirement ctingi®f a minimum ratio of Tier 1 capital
total assets of 3% for the most highly-rated basits a minimum requirement of at least 4% for dlers; and (ii) a risk-based capital
requirement consisting of a minimum ratio of tatapital to total risk-weighted assets of 8% and@mum ratio of Tier 1 capital to total risk-
weighted assets of 4%. In general, the compondriieenl capital and total capital are the saméhase for bank holding companies discussed
above.

The capital requirements described above are mmimaguirements. Higher capital levels will be regdiif warranted by the particular
circumstances or risk profiles of individual ingtibns. For example, federal regulations provice tHdditional capital may be required to take
adequate account of, among other things, inteaégstrisk or the risks posed by concentrations editr nontraditional activities or securities
trading activities.

Further, federal law and regulations provide vasiowcentives for financial institutions to maintaggulatory capital at levels in excess of
minimum regulatory requirements. For example, arfial institution that is “well-capitalized” mawalify for exemptions from prior notice or



application requirements otherwise applicable ttade types of activities and may qualify for exjied processing of other required notices or
applications. Additionally, one of the criteria tltietermines a bank holding company’s eligibilityoperate as a financial holding company is a
requirement that all of its financial institutiontsidiaries be “well-capitalized.” Under federajjudations, in order to be “well-capitalized” a
financial institution must maintain a ratio of tbtapital to total risk-weighted assets of 10% aager, a ratio of Tier 1 capital to total risk-
weighted assets of 6% or greater and a ratio of Teapital to total assets of 5% or greater.

Federal law also provides the federal banking i#gu$ with broad power to take prompt correctivitoacto resolve the problems of
undercapitalized institutions. The extent of thgulators’ powers depends on whether the instituticguestion is “adequately capitalized,”
“undercapitalized,” “significantly undercapitalizZedr “critically undercapitalized,” in each casedefined by regulation. Depending upon the
capital category to which an institution is assijrtbe regulators’ corrective powers include: €juiring the institution to submit a capital
restoration plan; (i) limiting the institution’ssaet growth and restricting its activities; (i@quiring the institution to issue additional capita
stock (including additional voting stock) or to &equired; (iv) restricting transactions betweenitistitution and its affiliates; (v) restrictingd
interest rate the institution may pay on depo$it$;ordering a new election of directors of thetitution; (vii) requiring that senior executive
officers or directors be dismissed; (viii) prohibg the institution from accepting deposits fromrespondent banks; (ix) requiring the
institution to divest certain subsidiaries; (x) Ipilmiting the payment of principal or interest oberdinated debt; and (xi) ultimately, appointing
a receiver for the institution.

As of December 31, 2005: (i) none of the Bank Sdibsies was subject to a directive from its primBegteral regulator to increase its capital to
an amount in excess of the minimum regulatory eapéquirements; (ii) each of the Bank Subsidiagieseeded its minimum regulatory cap
requirements under applicable capital adequacyetjoies; and (iii) each of the Bank Subsidiaries {vesll-capitalized,” as defined by
applicable regulations.

Liability of Commonly Controlled I nstitutions. Under federal law, institutions insured by the FDi@y be liable for any loss incurred by, or
reasonably expected to be incurred by, the FDIG@mection with the default of commonly controllEdIC-insured depository institutions or
any assistance provided by the FDIC to commonlyrotied FDIC-insured depository institutions in dgn of default. Because Heartland
controls each of the Bank Subsidiaries, the Baridsiliaries are commonly controlled for purposethete provisions of federal law.

Dividend Payments. The primary source of funds for Heartland is divide from the Bank Subsidiaries. In general, ungetieable law, none
of the Bank Subsidiaries may pay dividends in exa#sts respective undivided profits.

The payment of dividends by any financial instibatior its holding company is affected by the reguient to maintain adequate capital
pursuant to applicable capital adequacy guidelamesregulations, and a financial institution gehgiia prohibited from paying any dividends
if, following payment thereof, the institution walbe undercapitalized. As described above, eatieoBank Subsidiaries exceeded its
minimum capital requirements under applicable dinés as of December 31, 2005. Further, First ConitpiBank may not pay dividends in
an amount that would reduce its capital below thewnt required for the liquidation account estdigisin connection with First Community
Bank’s conversion from the mutual to the stock fahownership in 1991. As of December 31, 2005 raximately $65.2 million was
available to be paid as dividends by the Bank Slidases. Notwithstanding the availability of funfds dividends, however, the FDIC may
prohibit the payment of any dividends by the Bank$diaries if the agency determines such paymentdwonstitute an unsafe or unsound
practice.

Insider Transactions. The Bank Subsidiaries are subject to certain agiris imposed by federal law on extensions ofittecHeartland and
its subsidiaries, on investments in the stock beosecurities of Heartland and its subsidiarigsthe acceptance of the stock or other secu
of Heartland or its subsidiaries as collaterallé@ns made by the Bank Subsidiaries. Certain ltita and reporting requirements are also
placed on extensions of credit by each of the B2ulsidiaries to its directors and officers, to clioes and officers of Heartland and its
subsidiaries, to principal shareholders of Headland to “related interests” of such directorsiceffs and principal shareholders. In addition,
federal law and regulations may affect the term@nughich any person who is a director or officeHgfartland or any of its subsidiaries or a
principal shareholder of Heartland may obtain drédim banks with which the Bank Subsidiaries maimcorrespondent relationships.

Safety and Soundness Standards. The federal banking agencies have adopted guidetiva establish operational and managerial stasdar
promote the safety and soundness of federally @sdepository institutions. The guidelines settfataandards for internal controls, informa
systems, internal audit systems, loan documentatiedlit underwriting, interest rate exposure, agsawth, compensation, fees and benefits,
asset quality and earnings.

In general, the safety and soundness guidelineiiipe the goals to be achieved in each area, atdipstitution is responsible for establist
its own procedures to achieve those goals. If afitition fails to comply with any of the standas#g forth in the guidelines, the institution’s
primary federal regulator may require the instdntto submit a plan for achieving and maintainiognpliance. If an institution fails to submit
an acceptable compliance plan, or fails in any nmeteespect to implement a compliance plan thatlheen accepted by its primary federal
regulator, the regulator is required to issue aeodirecting the institution to cure the deficigndntil the deficiency cited in the regulator’s
order is cured, the regulator may restrict theitudbdn’s rate of growth, require the institutiom increase its capital, restrict the rates the
institution pays on deposits or require the infittuto take any action the regulator deems apjatgunder the circumstances. Noncompliance



with the standards established by the safety anddstess guidelines may also constitute groundstfer enforcement action by the federal
banking regulators, including cease and desistreraied civil money penalty assessments.

Branching Authority. Each of the Bank Subsidiaries has the authoritgsyant to the laws under which it is chartereggtablish branches
anywhere in the state in which its main officedsdted, subject to the receipt of all required tatguy approvals.

Federal law permits state and national banks t@eneiith banks in other states subject to: (i) ratprly approval; (ii) federal and state deposit
concentration limits; and (iii) state law limitati® requiring the merging bank to have been in ergt for a minimum period of time (not to
exceed five years) prior to the merger. The esthbient of new interstate branches or the acquisitfandividual branches of a bank in
another state (rather than the acquisition of arobstate bank in its entirety) is permitted oirijthose states the laws of which expressly
authorize such expansion.

State Bank I nvestments and Activities. Each of the Bank Subsidiaries generally is permhittemake investments and engage in activities
directly or through subsidiaries as authorizedh®ylaws of the state under which it is chartereslveler, under federal law and FDIC
regulations, FDIC-insured state banks are protdbseabject to certain exceptions, from making ¢airéng equity investments of a type, or in
an amount, that are not permissible for a natibaak. Federal law and FDIC regulations also profbilC-insured state banks and their
subsidiaries, subject to certain exceptions, frogaging as principal in any activity that is notrpéted for a national bank unless the bank
meets, and continues to meet, its minimum regufatapital requirements and the FDIC determinesthiity would not pose a significant
risk to the deposit insurance fund of which thekoigra member. These restrictions have not hadaamdot currently expected to have, a
material impact on the operations of the Bank Sliases.

Federal Reserve System. Federal Reserve regulations, as presently in effeqtiire depository institutions to maintain naterest earning
reserves against their transaction accounts (pifird©W and regular checking accounts), as follofes:transaction accounts aggregating
$48.3 million or less, the reserve requiremen®4sd total transaction accounts; and for transacéiocounts aggregating in excess of $48.3
million, the reserve requirement is $1.215 millgos 10% of the aggregate amount of total transa@tcounts in excess of $48.3 million. -
first $7.8 million of otherwise reservable balanees exempted from the reserve requirements. Tiesgseve requirements are subject to annual
adjustment by the Federal Reserve. The Bank Sabsidiare in compliance with the foregoing requiats.

Recent Regulatory Developments

On February 8, 2006, President Bush signed ther&eDeposit Insurance Reform Act of 2005 (“FDIRA}o law as part of the Deficit
Reduction Act of 2005. On February 15, 2006, Pergidush signed into law the technical and confogrd@mendments designed to implerr
FDIRA. FDIRA provides for legislative reforms to ahernize the federal deposit insurance system.

Among other things, FDIRA: (i) merges the BIF ahd BAIF of the FDIC into a new Deposit Insuranced-(the “DIF"); (i) allows the FDIC
after March 31, 2010, to increase deposit insuraoeerage by an adjustment for inflation and rezgithe FDIC’s Board of Directors, not later
than April 1, 2010, and every five years thereati@iconsider whether such an increase is warrafitgdncreases the deposit insurance limit
for certain employee benefit plan deposits from@Q200 to $250,000, subject to adjustments for ititeafter March 31, 2010, and provides
for pass-through insurance coverage for such depd@si) increases the deposit insurance limitdertain retirement account deposits from
$100,000 to $250,000, subject to adjustments fitation after March 31, 2010; (v) allows the FDI@sard of Directors to set deposit
insurance premium assessments in any amount thel Bé®irectors deems necessary or appropriatet tfking into account various factors
specified in FDIRA; (vi) replaces the fixed desitgthreserve ratio of 1.25% with a reserve ratigeaof 1.15%-1.50%, with the specific
reserve ratio to be determined annually by the FBJf@egulation; (vii) permits the FDIC to reviseethisk-based assessment system by
regulation; (viii) requires the FDIC, at the endanfy year in which the reserve ratio of the DIFe®ds 1.50% of estimated insured deposits, to
declare a dividend payable to insured depositastitirtions in an amount equal to 100% of the amdwetd by the DIF in excess of the amount
necessary to maintain the DIF’s reserve ratio 2@%. of estimated insured deposits or to declargidaehd equal to 50% of the amount in
excess of the amount necessary to maintain theveesatio at 1.35% if the reserve ratio is betw&e35%-1.50% of estimated insured deposits;
and (ix) provides a one-time credit based uporaisssment base of the institution on Decembetr@®B, to each insured depository
institution that was in existence as of Decemberl®96, and paid a deposit insurance assessment@that date (or a successor to any such
institution).

The merger of the BIF and the SAIF will take effaotlater than July 1, 2006, while the remainingvisions are not effective until the FDIC
issues final regulations. FDIRA requires the FDdGssue final regulations no later than 270 dayer &nactment: (i) designating a reserve

ratio; (ii) implementing increases in deposit irewe coverage; (iii) implementing the dividend liegment; (iv) implementing the one-time

assessment credit; and (v) providing for assessnemtccordance with FDIRA.

G. GOVERNMENTAL MONETARY POLICY AND ECONOMIC CONDITION S

Heartland’s earnings are affected by the policfaggulatory authorities, including the Federal &gs System. The Federal Reserve System’s



monetary policies have significantly affected tiperating results of commercial banks in the padtaae expected to continue doing so in the
future. Changing economic and money market contitigrompted by the actions of monetary and fisai@ities may cause changes in
interest rates, credit availability, and depositls that are beyond Heartland’s control. Futurécies of the Federal Reserve System and other
authorities cannot be predicted, nor can theircefda future earnings be predicted.

ITEM 1A.
RISK FACTORS

In addition to the other information in this AnniRéport on Form 10-K, stockholders or prospectiwestors should carefully consider the
following risk factors:

Our business is concentrated in and dependent updhe continued growth and welfare of the various makets that we serve.

We operate over a wide area, including marketsival lllinois, Wisconsin, Arizona, New Mexico andktana and our financial condition,
results of operations and cash flows are subjechémges in the economic conditions in those af@assuccess depends upon the business
activity, population, income levels, deposits aedl restate activity in those areas. Although ostauers’ business and financial interests may
extend well beyond our market areas, adverse edermanditions that affect our specific market aceald reduce our growth rate, affect the
ability of our customers to repay their loans taand generally affect our financial condition ardults of operations.

We may experience difficulties in managing our growh and our growth strategy involves risks that maynegatively impact our net
income.

As part of our general growth strategy, we may aedoanks and related businesses that we beliexéder a strategic and geographic fit with
our business. To the extent that we grow througjuiaitions, we cannot assure you that we will ble &b adequately and profitably manage
this growth. Acquiring other banks and businessiéisrwolve risks commonly associated with acqusits, including:

. potential exposure to unknown or contingent ligieiti of banks and businesses we acquire;

. exposure to potential asset quality issues of tigelised bank or related business;

. difficulty and expense of integrating the operasi@md personnel of banks and businesses we acquire;
. potential disruption to our business;

. potential diversion of our management’s time anerdion; and

. the possible loss of key employees and customettedfanks and businesses we acquire.

In addition to acquisitions, we may expand intoiaddal communities or attempt to strengthen ouwsifion in our current markets by
undertaking additionale novo bank formations or branch openings. Based on goerence, we believe that it generally takes upvtbyears
for new banking facilities to first achieve opeoattil profitability, due to the impact of organizatiand overhead expenses and the start-up
phase of generating loans and deposits. To thetetktat we undertake additional branching dadiovo bank and business formations, we are
likely to continue to experience the effects offt@goperating expenses relative to operating incisome the new operations, which may have
an adverse effect on our levels of reported nedrire;, return on average equity and return on aveaagets.

Our market and growth strategy relies heavily on ou management team, and the unexpected loss of keyamagers may adversely affect
our operations.

Much of our success to date has been influenceddir by our ability to attract and to retain senitanagement experienced in banking and
financial services and familiar with the commurstia our different market areas. Because our semeas are spread over such a wide
geographical area, our management headquartef2ubinque, lowa is dependent on the effective ledde@nd capabilities of the managen
in our local markets for the continued successedrtland. Our ability to retain executive officettse current management teams and loan
officers of our operating subsidiaries will continto be important to the successful implementatfoour strategy. It is also critical, as we
grow, to be able to attract and retain qualifieditinal management and loan officers with the appate level of experience and knowledge
about our market area to implement our commubé@ged operating strategy. The unexpected losswites of any key management persor
or the inability to recruit and retain qualifiedrpennel in the future, could have an adverse effeaiur business, financial condition and res
of operations.

We face intense competition in all phases of our lsiness.

The banking and financial services business imaarkets is highly competitive. Our competitors ird# large regional banks, local commu
banks, thrifts, securities and brokerage companiestgage companies, insurance companies, finanmoganies, money market mutual funds,



credit unions and other ndrank financial service providers. Increased contipatin our markets may result in a decrease iratheunts of ot
loans and deposits, reduced spreads between Isnarad deposit rates or loan terms that are navardble to the borrower. Any of these
results could have a material adverse effect orability to grow and remain profitable.

Interest rates and other conditions impact our reslis of operations.

Our profitability is in part a function of the spigt between the interest rates earned on investrardt®ans and the interest rates paid on
deposits and other interest-bearing liabilitiekelLimost banking institutions, our net interest agrand margin will be affected by general
economic conditions and other factors, includirsgdl and monetary policies of the federal goverrirteat influence market interest rates and
our ability to respond to changes in such rateamtgiven time, our assets and liabilities willdageh that they are affected differently by a
given change in interest rates. As a result, areas®e or decrease in rates, the length of loarsterrthe mix of adjustable and fixed rate loans
in our portfolio could have a positive or negatéféect on our net income, capital and liquidity. Wieasure interest rate risk under various rate
scenarios and using specific criteria and assumgtid summary of this process, along with the tssafl our net interest income simulations is
presented at “Quantitative and Qualitative DisctesuAbout Market Risk” included under Item 7A ofrPi&of this Form 10-K. Although we
believe our current level of interest rate sensitiis reasonable and effectively managed, sigaifidluctuations in interest rates may have an
adverse effect on our business, financial conditiod results of operations.

We must effectively manage our credit risk.

There are risks inherent in making any loan, inicigdisks inherent in dealing with individual bowers, risks of nonpayment, risks resulting
from uncertainties as to the future value of cellat and risks resulting from changes in economiiadustry conditions. We attempt to
minimize our credit risk through prudent loan apation approval procedures, careful monitoringhef toncentration of our loans within
specific industries and periodic independent regiefwoutstanding loans by our credit review departmHowever, we cannot assure you that
such approval and monitoring procedures will redthese credit risks.

Commercial loans make up a significant portion of ar loan portfolio.

Commercial loans were $1.33 billion (including $96nillion of commercial real estate loans), or @pgmately 67% of our total loan
portfolio as of December 31, 2005. Our commer@ahk are primarily made based on the identifieti 6lasv of the borrower and secondarily
on the underlying collateral provided by the boreovMost often, this collateral is accounts reckigainventory, machinery or real estate. In
the case of loans secured by accounts receivéigi@viailability of funds for the repayment of thés@ns may be substantially dependent or
ability of the borrower to collect amounts due frascustomers. The other types of collateral saguhese loans may depreciate over time,
may be difficult to appraise and may fluctuate &ue based on the success of the business.

Our loan portfolio has a large concentration of commercial real estate loans, which involve risks spéic to real estate value.

Commercial real estate lending is a large portibour commercial loan portfolio. These loans we®é%7 million, or approximately 72% of
our total commercial loan portfolio as of DecemBgr 2005. The market value of real estate canuhtetsignificantly in a short period of time
as a result of market conditions in the geographéa in which the real estate is located. Althoaigignificant portion of such loans are seci
by real estate as a secondary form of collatedsiersse developments affecting real estate valueaénor more of our markets could increase
the credit risk associated with our loan portfolalditionally, real estate lending typically invels higher loan principal amounts and the
repayment of the loans generally is dependengriyel part, on sufficient income from the propersiesuring the loans to cover operating
expenses and debt service. Economic events or gmesttal regulations outside of the control of thertwer or lender could negatively imp
the future cash flow and market values of the aff@properties.

If the loans that are collateralized by real esteteome troubled during a time when market contiare declining or have declined, then we
may not be able to realize the amount of secuniy we anticipated at the time of originating tbarl, which could cause us to increase our
provision for loan losses and adversely affectaperating results and financial condition.

Our commercial real estate loans also include comialeconstruction loans, including land acquisitind development Construction, land
acquisition and development lending involve additilrisks because funds are advanced based uporatest of costs and the estimated value
of the completed project. Because of the unceitasiribherent in estimating construction costs, at as the market value of the completed
project and the effects of governmental regulatiomeal property, it is relatively difficult to elemte accurately the total funds required to
complete a project and the related loan-to-valtie.rAs a result, commercial construction loangpfinvolve the disbursement of substantial
funds with repayment dependent, in part, on theesgof the ultimate project and the ability of bloerower to sell or lease the property, rather
than the ability of the borrower or guarantor tpag principal and interest. If our appraisal of #adue of the completed project proves to be
overstated, we may have inadequate security forejpp@yment of the loan upon completion of consioncdf the project.

Our agricultural loans may involve a greater degreeof risk than other loans, and the ability of the lorrower to repay may be affected b



many factors outside of the borrower’s control.

At December 31, 2005, agricultural real estate $aataled $230.3 million, or 12%, of our total loamd lease portfolio. Payments on
agricultural real estate loans are dependent opribfgable operation or management of the farnpprty securing the loan. The success of the
farm may be affected by many factors outside thetrobof the borrower, including adverse weatherditions that prevent the planting of a
crop or limit crop yields (such as hail, droughtldimods), loss of livestock due to disease or othetors, declines in market prices for
agricultural products (both domestically and inggionally) and the impact of government regulati@insluding changes in price supports,
subsidies and environmental regulations). In adidjtmany farms are dependent on a limited numbkeyindividuals whose injury or death
may significantly affect the successful operatibthe farm. If the cash flow from a farming opeoatiis diminished, the borrower’s ability to
repay the loan may be impaired. The primary craopsurr market areas are corn, soybeans, peanutstegat. Accordingly, adverse
circumstances affecting these crops could havelaerse effect on our agricultural real estate lpartfolio.

We also originate agricultural operating loansD&tember 31, 2005, these loans totaled $75.7 milbo 4%, of our total loan and lease
portfolio. As with agricultural real estate loattse repayment of operating loans is dependent@suhcessful operation or management of the
farm property. Likewise, agricultural operatingthsanvolve a greater degree of risk than lendingesidential properties, particularly in the
case of loans that are unsecured or secured blyatgpreciating assets such as farm equipmentsata such as livestock or crops. The
primary livestock in our market areas include daioyvs, hogs and feeder cattle. In these caseseangsessed collateral for a defaulted loan
may not provide an adequate source of repaymeheddutstanding loan balance as a result of thetegrdikelihood of damage, loss or
depreciation.

Our one- to four-family residential mortgage loansmay result in lower yields and profitability.

One- to four-family residential mortgage loans coisgd $219.0 million, or 11%, of our loan and lepeefolio at December 31, 2005, and are
secured primarily by properties located in the Médtv These loans result in lower yields and lowefifability for us and are generally made
on the basis of the borrower’s ability to make sgpants from his or her employment and the valuthefproperty securing the loan.

Our consumer loans generally have a higher degred sk of default than our other loans.

At December 31, 2005, consumer loans totaled $18ili®dn, or 9%, of our total loan and lease politoConsumer loans typically have
shorter terms and lower balances with higher yiaklsompared to one- to four-family residentiahkaut generally carry higher risks of
default. Consumer loan collections are dependeth@iborrower’s continuing financial stability, atidis are more likely to be affected by
adverse personal circumstances. Furthermore, tiieation of various federal and state laws, inalgcbankruptcy and insolvency laws, may
limit the amount which can be recovered on theaado

Our allowance for loan losses may prove to be indigient to absorb probable losses in our loan portlio.

We established our allowance for loan losses irsglbation with management of our bank subsidiagied maintain it at a level considered
adequate by management to absorb probable loagsltisat are inherent in the portfolio. The amodrititure loan losses is susceptible to
changes in economic, operating and other conditioegiding changes in interest rates, which mapdyond our control, and such losses may
exceed current estimates. At December 31, 2005altawance for loan losses as a percentage oflttaak was 1.42% and as a percentage of
total non-performing loans was approximately 18%3Although management believes that the allowdoickan losses is adequate to absorb
losses on any existing loans that may become watilile, we cannot predict loan losses with cetyaiand we cannot assure you that our
allowance for loan losses will prove sufficientciover actual loan losses in the future. Loan logsescess of our reserves may adversely ¢
our business, financial condition and results adfrafions.

Our continued pace of growth may require us to raie additional capital in the future, but that capital may not be available when it is
needed.

We are required by federal and state regulatoryaities to maintain adequate levels of capitaupport our operations. We anticipate thai
existing capital resources will satisfy our capitdquirements for the foreseeable future. Howewermay at some point need to raise additi
capital to support continued growth, both inteyalhd through acquisitions. Our ability to raiseliidnal capital, if needed, will depend on
conditions in the capital markets at that time,chhare outside our control, and on our financiafgrenance. Accordingly, we cannot assure
you of our ability to raise additional capital €eded on terms acceptable to us. If we cannot aaiditional capital when needed, our ability
further expand our operations through internal dhoand acquisitions could be materially impaired.

Government regulation can result in limitations onour operations.
We operate in a highly regulated environment ardsabject to supervision and regulation by a nurobgovernmental regulatory agencies,

including the Board of Governors of the FederaldRes System, the Federal Deposit Insurance Coiiparatnd the various state agencies
where we have a bank presence. Regulations adbptéese agencies, which are generally intend@daeide protection for depositors and



customers rather than for the benefit of stockhsldgovern a comprehensive range of matters rgléirownership and control of our shares,
our acquisition of other companies and businegsasyissible activities for us to engage in, maiatere of adequate capital levels and other
aspects of our operations. These bank regulat@segs broad authority to prevent or remedy unsaiesound practices or violations of law.
The laws and regulations applicable to the bankidgstry could change at any time and we canndaligr¢he effects of these changes on our
business and profitability. Increased regulationldencrease our cost of compliance and adverdédgtaprofitability. For example, new
legislation or regulation may limit the manner ihish we may conduct our business, including oulitgtib offer new products, obtain
financing, attract deposits, make loans and aclsatisfactory interest spreads.

We have a continuing need for technological changasd we may not have the resources to effectively ptement new technology.

The financial services industry is undergoing reithnological changes with frequent introductiohaew technology-driven products and
services. In addition to better serving customthies effective use of technology increases effigyeaned enables financial institutions to reduce
costs. Our future success will depend in part uporability to address the needs of our customgrssing technology to provide products and
services that will satisfy customer demands fovemence as well as to create additional efficiemdn our operations as we continue to grow
and expand our market areas. Many of our largempetitors have substantially greater resourcesvesinin technological improvements. As a
result, they may be able to offer additional oresigr products to those that we will be able tenffvhich would put us at a competitive
disadvantage.

System failure or breaches of our network securitgould subject us to increased operating costs as las litigation and other liabilities.

The computer systems and network infrastructureisgecould be vulnerable to unforeseen problems operations are dependent upon our
ability to protect our computer equipment agaireshdge from physical theft, fire, power loss, tetanwinications failure or a similar
catastrophic event, as well as from security breactienial of service attacks, viruses, worms dheralisruptive problems caused by hackers.
Any damage or failure that causes an interruptioour operations could have a material adversetedfe our financial condition and results of
operations. Computer break-ins, phishing and alisuptions could also jeopardize the securitynédimation stored in and transmitted
through our computer systems and network infrasirec which may result in significant liability tes and may cause existing and potential
customers to refrain from doing business with uthdugh we, with the help of third-party serviceyders, intend to continue to implement
security technology and establish operational piores to prevent such damage, there can be naassuhat these security measures will be
successful. In addition, advances in computer diped, new discoveries in the field of cryptoghgpor other developments could result in a
compromise or breach of the algorithms we and loiod-party service providers use to encrypt andegmtocustomer transaction data. A failure
of such security measures could have a materiaradweffect on our financial condition and resaoftsperations.

We are subject to certain operational risks, incluéhg, but not limited to, customer or employee fraudand data processing system
failures and errors.

Employee errors and employee or customer miscormhudt! subject us to financial losses or regulatamyctions and seriously harm our
reputation. Misconduct by our employees could idelhiding unauthorized activities from us, impropeunauthorized activities on behalf of
our customers or improper use of confidential infation. It is not always possible to prevent empkgrrors and misconduct, and the
precautions we take to prevent and detect thigictnay not be effective in all cases. Employemesr could also subject us to financial claims
for negligence.

We maintain a system of internal controls and iasoe coverage to mitigate against operational risktuding data processing system failures
and errors and customer or employee fraud. Shauléhternal controls fail to prevent or detect acwrence, or if any resulting loss is not
insured or exceeds applicable insurance limitspuld have a material adverse effect on our busjriggncial condition and results of
operations.

ITEM 1B.

UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

As of December 31, 2005, Heartland had no unredadtaff comments.




ITEM 2.

PROPERTIES

The following table is a listing of Heartland’s peipal operating facilities:

Main Facility Main Facility Number of
Name and Main Facility Address Square Footage Owned or Leased Locations

Banking Subsidiaries
Dubuque Bank and Trust Company

1398 Central Avenue

Dubuque, 1A 52001 59,500 Owned 8
Galena State Bank and Trust Company

971 Gear Street

Galena, IL 61036 18,000 Owned 3
Riverside Community Bank

6855 E. Riverside Blvd.

Rockford, IL 60114 8,000 Owned 4
First Community Bank

320 Concert Street

Keokuk, IA 52632 6,000 Owned 3
Wisconsin Community Bank

580 North Main Street

Cottage Grove, WI 53527 6,000 Owned 6
New Mexico Bank & Trus

320 Gold NW Lease term

Albuquerque, NM 87102 11,400 through 2006 14
Arizona Bank & Trust

1000 N. 54" Street

Chandler, AZ 85226 8,500 Owned 3
Rocky Mountain Bank

2615 King Avenue West

Billings, MT 59102 16,600 Owned 9
Non-Bank Subsidiaries
Citizens Finance Co.

1275 Main Street Leased from

Dubuque, IA 52001 DB&T 5
ULTEA, Inc.

2976 Triverton Pike

Madison, WI 53711 Leased 1

HTLF Capital Corp.
World Trade Center
1625 Broadway



Denver, CO 80202 Leased

The principal office of Heartland is located in ugjnie Bank and Trust Company's main office.




ITEM 3.

LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

There are certain legal proceedings pending agHiieattland and its subsidiaries at December 315 2M@t are ordinary routine litigation
incidental to business. While the ultimate outcarheurrent legal proceedings cannot be predictet gertainty, it is the opinion of
management that the resolution of these legalresbould not have a material effect on Heartlacmhsolidated financial position or result:
operations.

ITEM 4.

SUBMISSION OF MATTERS TO A VOTE OF SECURITY HOLDERS

No matters were submitted during the fourth quarf&2005 to a vote of security holde




PART I
ITEM 5.

MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER PURCHASES OF
EQUITY SECURITIES

Heartland's common stock was held by approximéit@l@0 stockholders of record as of March 7, 2006, lzas been quoted on the Nasdaq
National Market System since May 2003 under thetsy“HTLF". Prior to quotation on the Nasdaq NationaaMet System, the common
stock of Heartland was traded on the over-the-aumtrket.

For the periods indicated, the following table sbdte range of reported prices per share of Heal'dacommon stock in the Nasdaq National
Market System. These quotations represent intdedpsces without retail markups, markdowns, omeaissions and do not necessarily
represent actual transactions.

Heartland Common Stock

Calendar Quarter High Low
2005:
First $21.31 $18.37
Second 21.22 19.06
Third 20.99 19.04
Fourth 21.74 18.84
2004:
First $19.81 $18.06
Second 18.95 16.75
Third 18.99 16.73
Fourth 22.07 18.26

Cash dividends have been declared by Heartlandeglyaduring the past two years ending Decembef805. The following table sets forth
the cash dividends per share paid on Heartlandsnom stock for the past two years:

Calendar Quarter 2005 2004
First $.08 $.08
Second .08 .08
Third .08 .08
Fourth .09 .08

Heartland's ability to pay dividends to stockhotdisrlargely dependent upon the dividends it rexzefrom the Bank Subsidiaries, and the b
are subject to regulatory limitations on the amafrdash dividends they may pay. See "BusinespeiSision and Regulation - Heartland -
Dividend Payments" and "Business - SupervisionRedulation - The Bank Subsidiaries - Dividend Paytsiefor a more detailed description

of these limitations.

Heartland has issued junior subordination debestiwrseveral private placements. Under the terntseoflebentures, Heartland may be
prohibited, under certain circumstances, from pgugividends on shares of its common stock. Norntbede circumstances currently exist.

The following table provides information about puases by Heartland and its affiliated purchasersgihe quarter ended December 31,
2005, of equity securities that are registered baitland pursuant to Section 12 of the Exchange Act

(@) (b) (€) (d)




Total Number of Shares Approximate Dollar Value of
Purchased as Part of PublichShares that May Yet Be Purcha:
Total Number of Shared  Average Price Paid per| Announced P(’l?ns or Programis Under the Plans or Progrars
Purchased Share

Period
10/01/05- 10,895 $19.19 10,895 $1,265,792
10/31/05
11/01/05- 16,303 $20.53 16,303 $1,405,299
11/30/05
12/01/05- 1,558 $20.40 1,558 $1,882,483
12/31/05
Total: 28,756 $20.01 28,756 N/A

(1) On October 19, 2004, Heartlasdboard of directors increased the dollar valuétoftcommon stock that management is authoriz
acquire and hold as treasury shares from $4.0amitth $5.0 million at any one time.

ITEM 6.
SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, 2002, and 2001

(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

STATEMENT OF INCOME DATA
Interest income $

Interest expense

Net interest incom
Provision for loan and lease losses

Net interest income after provision for loan ¢
lease losses

Noninterest incom

Noninterest expens

Income taxes

Income from continuing operations

Discontinued operations:

Income from operations of discontinued branch
(including gain on sale of $2,602 in 2002)

Income taxes

Income from discontinued operations

Net income $

PER COMMON SHARE DATA

Net income- diluted $

Income from continuing operatiol- diluted?®

Adjusted net incom- diluted?

Adjusted income from continuing operations -
diluted?3

Cash dividends

Dividend payout ratio

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
154,00: $ 121,39 $ 99517 $ 100,01 $ 107,60
61,13 44,26¢ 38,327 42,33: 58,62
92,867 77,13( 61,19( 57,68 48,98¢
6,56 4,84¢ 4,18¢ 3,55¢ 4,25¢
86,30: 72,28 57,007 54,12 44,73:
41,58¢ 37,84: 36,54: 30,64 28,62
95,01 81,93¢ 67,69: 60,65¢ 56,69:
10,15( 7,931 8,137 7,52: 5,53(
22,72¢ 20,25 17,71¢ 16,59( 11,12¢
- - - 3,751 46¢
- - - 1,47 184
- - - 2,27 28E
22,72¢  $ 20,25, $ 17,71¢  $ 18,867 $ 11,41
136 $ 126 $ 116 $ 126 $ 0.7¢
1.3€ 1.2€ 1.1€ 1.1z 0.7¢
1.3€ 1.2€ 1.1€ 1.2¢ 0.8t
1.3€ 1.2€ 1.1€ 1.1z 0.84
0.32 0.32 0.27 0.27 0.2t

23.8% 24.87% 23.09% 20.81% 31.1%



Book value $ 11.4¢ $ 10.6¢ $ 9.2¢ % 84C ¢ 7.37
Weighted average shares outstanding-diluted 16,702,14 16,084,55 15,258,44 14,783,55 14,558,23

BALANCE SHEET DATA

Investments and federal funds sold $ 567,00 $ 553,28 $ 451,75.  $ 42451 % 349,41
Loans held for sale 40,74¢ 32,16! 25,67¢ 23,167 26,96
Total loans and leases, net of unearned 1,953,061 1,772,95 1,322,54! 1,152,06! 1,078,23:
Allowance for loan and lease losses 27,791 24,97: 18,49( 16,09: 14,66(
Total assets 2,818,33; 2,629,05! 2,018,36I 1,785,97 1,644,06.
Total deposits 2,118,17 1,983,841 1,492,48! 1,337,98! 1,205,15!
Long-term obligations 220,87: 196,19: 173,95¢ 161,37¢ 143,78
Stockholders’ equity 187,81 175,78: 140,92: 124,04: 107,09(

EARNINGS PERFORMANCE DATA

Return on average total assets 0.84% 0.8 0.95% 1.1% 0.72%
Return on average stockholders’ equity 12.5¢ 12.8: 13.4¢ 16.4¢ 11.32
Net interest margin ratil:4 3.9¢ 3.87 3.8C 4.04 3.67
Earnings to fixed charges:
Excluding interest on deposits 2.7 3.0 3.3 3.2& 2.27x
Including interest on deposits 1.5 1.6 1.67 1.57 1.2¢

ASSET QUALITY RATIOS

Nonperforming assets to total ass 0.6(% 0.41% 0.32% 0.2¢% 0.52%
Nonperforming loans and leases to total loans

leases 0.77 0.5¢€ 42 0.3¢ 0.7t
Net loan and lease cha-offs to average loans

and leases 0.17 0.1¢ 0.14 0.1¢ 0.31
Allowance for loan and lease losses to total loans

and leases 1.4z 1.41 1.4C 1.4C 1.3¢
Allowance for loan and lease losses to

nonperforming loans and leases 185.31 251.6: 333.11 358.7% 180.4"

CAPITAL RATIOS

Average equity to average assets 6.6&% 6.71% 7.0%% 6.86% 6.471%
Total capital to risk-adjusted assets 10.61 10.8: 12.4: 11.8¢ 10,8¢
Tier 1 leverage 7.6€ 7.2¢€ 8.07 8.2¢ 7.5%

Excludes the discontinued operations of our Eair€lxanch and the related gain on sale in thetfioguarter of 2002.

2 Excludes goodwill amortization discontinued witle thdoption of FAS 142 on January 1, 2002, and dioption of FAS 147 on September
30, 2002.

3 Excludes goodwill amortization discontinued witle thdoption of FAS 142 on January 1, 2002, anddioption of FAS 147 on September
30, 2002, and the discontinued operations of our@aire branch and the related gain on sale irfidbgh quarter of 2002.

4 Tax equivalent using a 35% tax rate for all periptessented.




ITEM 7.
MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The following presents management’s discussionaanadlysis of the consolidated financial condition aesults of operations of Heartland
Financial USA, Inc. ("Heartland") as of the dates for the periods indicated. This discussion sthdng read in conjunction with the Selected
Financial Data, Heartland’s Consolidated FinanStatements and the Notes thereto and other finagtetia appearing elsewhere in this report.
The consolidated financial statements include to®ants of Heartland and its subsidiaries. All efaltland’s subsidiaries are wholly-owned
except for Arizona Bank & Trust, of which Heartlawds an 86% owner on December 31, 2005 and 2004ANM&B Mortgage, LLC, of which
Heartland was a 55% owner on December 31, 2004. \MOGBgage, LLC, ceased operations and was dissaffedtive January 1, 2005.

SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT

This document (including information incorporatedrbference) contains, and future oral and writtietements of Heartland and its
management may contain, forward-looking statemevithjn the meaning of such term in the Privateu8iies Litigation Reform Act of 1995,
with respect to the financial condition, resultopgrations, plans, objectives, future performaarae business of Heartland. Forward-looking
statements, which may be based upon beliefs, exfi@ts and assumptions of Heartland’s managemehomainformation currently available
to management, are generally identifiable by treeafavords such as "believe", "expect", "anticipatplan”, "intend", "estimate", "may",
"will", "would", "could", "should" or other similaexpressions. Additionally, all statements in ghieument, including forward-looking
statements, speak only as of the date they are,aadeHeartland undertakes no obligation to updajestatement in light of new information

or future events.

Heartland’s ability to predict results or the atteffect of future plans or strategies is inhenguthcertain. The factors which could have a
material adverse effect on the operations anddytuospects of Heartland and its subsidiaries eta@ldd in the “Risk Factorsection include
under Item 1A. of Part | of this Form 10-K. In atiloih to the risk factors described in that secttbiere are other factors that may impact any
public company, including Heartland, which could/&éa@ material adverse effect on the operationdande prospects of Heartland and its
subsidiaries. These additional factors include asatnot limited to, the following:

*  The economic impact of past and any future terratigcks, acts of war or threats thereof, andeébponse of the United States to any
such threats and attacks.

*  The costs, effects and outcomes of existing oréufitigation.

*  Changes in accounting policies and practices, gstraadopted by state and federal regulatory agenthie Financial Accounting
Standards Board, the Securities and Exchange Caiamiand the Public Company Accounting Oversighargo

*  The ability of Heartland to manage the risks asgedi with the foregoing as well as anticipated.

These risks and uncertainties should be consideredaluating forward-looking statements and uneili@nce should not be placed on such
statements.

OVERVIEW

Heartland is a diversified financial services hnfdcompany providing full-service community bankthgough eight banking subsidiaries with

a total of 50 banking locations in lowa, lllinol/isconsin, New Mexico, Arizona and Montana. In &iddi, Heartland has separate subsidiaries
in the consumer finance, vehicle leasing/fleet nganzent, insurance and investment management bessdseartland's primary strategy is to
balance its focus on increasing profitability wéthset growth and diversification through acquisgiadle novo bank formations, branch

openings and expansion into non-bank subsidiaiyites.

Heartland’s results of operations depend primanilynet interest income, which is the differenceMeetn interest income from interest earning
assets and interest expense on interest bearbilitiés. Noninterest income, which includes seevaharges, fees and gains on loans, rental
income on operating leases and trust income, #lsots Heartland’s results of operations. Heartlampdincipal operating expenses, aside from
interest expense, consist of compensation and s@@loenefits, occupancy and equipment costs, daficecon equipment under operating
leases and provision for loan and lease losses.

Net income for the year ended December 31, 2005,$23.7 million, an increase of $2.4 million or 128%er the $20.3 million recorded f
2004. Earnings per diluted share was $1.36 for 2060 pared to $1.26 for 2004, an increase of $t8Y%a Return on average equity was
12.55% and return on average assets was 0.84%®&, 2ompared to 12.82% and 0.87%, respectiveh2@04. The improved earnings were



primarily due to the $15.7 million or 20% growthriet interest income. Average earning assets inetetom $2.07 billion during 2004 to
$2.41 billion during 2005. Noninterest income imyped $3.7 million or 10%, driven primarily by sergicharges and fees, trust fees, rental
income on operating leases and other noninterestrie. Partially offsetting these increases wa$thé million or 35% additional provision
for loan and lease losses and the $13.1 milliob686 increase in noninterest expense during 200palsion efforts completed during 2005
included the opening of one banking location ahezfdhe following Bank Subsidiaries: Arizona Ba&klrust, New Mexico Bank & Trust,
Rocky Mountain Bank and Riverside Community Banlksofcontributing to the increased earnings for 2@@8npared to 2004, was a full year
of earnings at the acquired Rocky Mountain Banks Hequisition was completed on June 1, 2004, torrenly seven months of their
earnings were included in the 2004 results. RockyiMain Bank'’s contribution to net income durind2@vas $2.8 million compared to $2.3
million during 2004.

At December 31, 2005, total assets reached $2lignbian increase of $189.3 million or 7% sincaend 2004. Total loans and leases were
$1.95 billion at December 31, 2005, an increas&l®0.1 million or 10% since year-end 2004. All afdtitland’s subsidiary banks experienced
loan growth since year-end 2004, with major contiitns from Dubuque Bank and Trust Company, New igteBank & Trust, Arizona Bank
& Trust and Galena State Bank and Trust CompaniyloAh categories increased during 2005, with $242llion or 79% of the total loan
growth in the commercial and commercial real estategory. Total deposits at December 31, 2005 %2r12 billion, an increase of $134.3
million or 7% since year-end 2004. Except for Wiggia Community Bank and First Community Bank, &lHeartland’s subsidiary banks
increased deposits during 2005. Demand deposihbesaincreased by $29.7 million or 9% and time def@lances increased by $101.1
million or 11% during the year. Heartland’s two rexae novo banks, New Mexico Bank & Trust and Arizona Bank &3t, have been the
most successful at attracting demand deposits. édperiencing meaningful growth in demand depasi005 was Rocky Mountain Bank.
Over half of the growth in the time deposit catggaccurred at Heartland’s largest subsidiary bénikhuque Bank and Trust Company. All of
the other Heartland subsidiary banks, except faddisin Community and First Community Bank, experésl growth in time deposits, with
more significant growth occurring at New Mexico Ba% Trust and Rocky Mountain Bank. Of particulart@ds that substantially all of the
growth in time deposits occurred in deposits frowal markets, as total brokered deposits ended 20$545.5 million, an increase of $4.5
million or less than 4% since year-end 2004.

Total net income was $20.3 million during 2004 camgal to $17.7 million during 2003, an increase2b$nillion or 14%. Earnings per
diluted share was $1.26 during 2004 compared tb63during 2003. Return on average equity was 12.8@8areturn on average assets was
0.87% for 2004, compared to 13.46% and 0.95%, otsedy, for 2003.

Heartland completed a number of its growth inities during 2004. Effective June 1, 2004, Heartiexghnded into the Rocky Mountain reg
through the acquisition of Rocky Mountain Bank,\ading banking services in eight communities thrioogt the state of Montana. Also in
June, a majority of Heartland’s operations resauimeved into a new state-of-the-art operationsezeéntDubuque, lowa. Expansion in the
Phoenix area included Arizona Bank & Trust's opgrifiits second branch location in Chandler in May the completion of the acquisition
of Wealth Management Group of Colonial Trust Compeffective September 1, 2004. The addition of Bodlountain Bank had a positive
impact on earnings. Net income at Rocky MountainiB@taled $2.3 million for the seven months ofdperations as a Heartland subsidiary
bank. At December 31, 2004, Rocky Mountain Bank toéal assets of $373.1 million, total loans of $Z6million and total deposits of $290.4
million.

Net interest income during 2004 grew significanifgreasing $15.9 million or 26% over 2003. Noniatt income experienced growth of $
million or 4% during that same period despite auctihn in gains on sale of loans of $2.9 millionaaesult of less refinancing activity in
mortgage loans. The two noninterest income categaecording the more significant increases forythar were service charges and fees and
trust fees. Noninterest expense for 2004 incre&sdd® million or 21%, primarily due to costs assted with expansion efforts, write off of 1
unamortized issuance costs on redeemed trust prdfeecurities and costs surrounding implementationternal control provisions of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Total assets nearly reached $2.63 billion at Deeer8th, 2004, up $610.7 million or 30% since yeat-2003. Total loans and leases were
$1.77 billion at December 31, 2004, an increasi4®0.4 million or 34% since year-end 2003. DubuBask and Trust Company, Wisconsin
Community Bank, Arizona Bank & Trust and New MexBank & Trust were major contributors to the $18#iHlion or 12% growth in loans,
exclusive of the $265.9 million in loans at Rockpdtain Bank, primarily in the commercial and comeied real estate category. Total
deposits at December 31, 2004, were $1.98 bildorincrease of $491.4 million or 33% since yead-2003. Exclusive of the $290.4 million
deposits at Rocky Mountain Bank, the $201.0 millaeri3% growth in deposits came primarily from Ne\exico Bank & Trust and Arizona
Bank & Trust.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The process utilized by Heartland to estimate tlejaacy of the allowance for loan and lease lossesnsidered a critical accounting policy
for Heartland. The allowance for loan and leassdegepresents managemsmstimate of identified and unidentified lossethmexisting loa
portfolio. Thus, the accuracy of this estimate dduhve a material impact on Heartland’s earningg. ddequacy of the allowance for loan and
lease losses is determined using factors thatdediie overall composition of the loan portfoliengral economic conditions, types of loans,



loan collateral values, past loss experience, thdimquencies, and potential losses from identifiedstandard and doubtful credits.
Nonperforming loans and large r-homogeneous loans are specifically reviewed fgraimment and the allowance is allocated on a lgan b
loan basis as deemed necessary. Homogeneous lohisaas not specifically evaluated are grouped fittols to which a loss percentage,
based on historical experience, is allocated. Tegaacy of the allowance for loan and lease lasse®nitored on an ongoing basis by the
loan review staff, senior management and the bamsards of directors. Specific factors considengdnlanagement in establishing the
allowance included the following:

*  Heartland has continued to experience growth inencomplex commercial loans as compared to relgtiosler-risk residential real
estate loans.

*  During the last several years, Heartland has eshteeev markets in which it had little or no previdesding experience.

There can be no assurances that the allowancednrdnd lease losses will be adequate to covkraalllosses, but management believes that
the allowance for loan and lease losses was adegqutecember 31, 2005. While management usesblaihformation to provide for loan
and lease losses, the ultimate collectibility sdstantial portion of the loan portfolio and tled for future additions to the allowance will be
based on changes in economic conditions. Even ththege have been various signs of emerging stneénghe economy, it is not certain that
this strength will be sustainable. Should the ecdinaclimate deteriorate, borrowers may experieriffedity, and the level of nonperforming
loans, charge-offs, and delinquencies could rigeraguire further increases in the provision fa@nd lease losses. In addition, various
regulatory agencies, as an integral part of theaménation process, periodically review the alloamffor loan and lease losses carried by the
Heartland subsidiaries. Such agencies may requaegttdnd to make additional provisions to the aloee based upon their judgment about
information available to them at the time of thetaminations.

The table below estimates the theoretical rangbef2005 allowance outcomes and related changa®uision expense assuming either a
reasonably possible deterioration in loan credilityior a reasonably possible improvement in logdit quality.

THEORETICAL RANGE OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE L OSSES
(Dollars in thousands)

Allowance for loan and lease losses at Decembe?2@15 $ 27,79:
Assuming deterioration in credit quality:
Addition to provision 2,481
Resultant allowance for loan and lease losses $ 30,27
Assuming improvement in credit quality:
Reduction in provision (1,030
Resultant allowance for loan and lease losses $ 26,76.

The assumptions underlying this sensitivity analyspresent an attempt to quantify theoretical ghanhat could occur in the total allowance
for loan and lease losses given various economsignagtions that could impact inherent loss in theent loan and lease portfolio. It further
assumes that the general composition of the allowéor loans and lease losses determined throughtlBlied’s existing process and
methodology remains relatively unchanged. It dagsattempt to encompass extreme and/or prolongeoacic downturns, systemic
contractions to specific industries, or systemiacss to the financial services sector. The additioprovision was calculated based upon the
assumption that, under an economic downturn, aioepercentage of loan balances in each ratingwoald migrate from its current loan
grade to the next lower loan grade. The reductigorovision was calculated based upon the assumtitat, under an economic upturn, a
certain percentage of loan balances in each ratiogwould migrate from its current loan gradehe hext higher loan grade. The estimatio
the percentage of loan balances that would midrate its current rating pool to the next was baspdn Heartland’s experiences during
previous periods of economic movement.

RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
NET INTEREST INCOME

Net interest income is the difference between @geincome earned on earning assets and intefgshsx paid on interest bearing liabilities.
such, net interest income is affected by changéseivolume and yields on earning assets and thengand rates paid on interest bearing
liabilities. Net interest margin is the ratio oktaquivalent net interest income to average earagsgts.

Net interest margin, expressed as a percentagestd@e earning assets, was 3.99% for 2005 compai&87% for 2004. This improveme
was partially attributable to the $51.9 million8% growth in noninterest bearing deposits. Alsetigbuting to this improvement was
management’s ability to lag increases in interatds paid on the Bank Subsidiaries’ interest bgateposit accounts as the federal funds
increased throughout the year. The tax equivatgatést rate paid on earning assets increasedsid fxzints while the interest rate paid on



interest bearing liabilities increased 45 basisoi

Net interest margin, expressed as a percentageetd@e earning assets, was 3.87% for 2004 compa@80% for 2003. This improveme
resulted primarily from an increase in average soasa percentage of total assets. Heartland'esiigielding assets comprised 76% of
average earning assets during 2004 compared todedittg 2003. The potential benefit to net interaargin from rising rates during 2004 was
neutralized due to the fact that the yield cure¢téned as short-term rates rose.

Net interest incom, on a tax-equivalent basis, increased $16.3 milin20% during 2005 and $16.5 million or 26% dgr2004. Exclusive of
net interest income at Rocky Mountain Bank totalh® million since the acquisition, the increaseZ004 was $7.6 million or 12%.
Fluctuations in net interest income between yesarslated to changes in the volume of average mgassets and interest bearing liabilities,
combined with changes in average yields and rdtdeacorresponding assets and liabilities as destnated in the tables at the end of this
section.

Interest income, on a teeguivalent basis, was $157.3 million during 200Bpared to $124.1 million during 2004, an increas®33.2 million
or 27% during 2005. Rocky Mountain Bank’s portidrthas interest income was $22.0 million in 200%1&12.3 million during the seven
months of operations under the Heartland umbreltind 2004. The increase in interest income reddham the $345.5 million or 17% grow
in earning assets, as well as the steady riseh@vat occurred in the prime interest rate sincditbequarter of 2004. The national prime
interest rate escalated 300 basis points durin§,28@ding the year 7.25%. Over half of Heartlanebmmercial and commercial real estate
portfolio is comprised of variable-rate loans tbhange as the prime rate changes.

Interest income, on a tax-equivalent basis, ine@&22.4 million or 22% during 2004. Exclusive loé $12.3 million recorded at Rocky
Mountain Bank since the acquisition, interest ineagnew by $10.1 million or 10% during 2004. Thiswth in interest income was primarily
result of growth in the loan portfolio, which inased $183.3 million or 15% in average balancedusixe of $161.6 million attributable to

loan balances at Rocky Mountain Bank. Even thohgmational prime rate began to rise in July 20@ fanished the year 125 basis points
higher at 5.25% than its level at year-end 2008.00%, Heartland did not experience a corresponidicrgase in its yield on loans. During
previous periods, management was successful intiiwation of floors on its commercial loan potifoto minimize the effect downward rates
had on Heartland’s interest income. It took sevepatard movements in rates to reach the floorddnepon these loans. As rates moved above
the floors, the yield began to increase in a cpoading manner.

Interest expense during 2005 was $61.1 million caneg to $44.3 million during 2004, an increaseXd.8 million or 38%. Rocky Mountain
Bank’s portion of this interest expense was $6.aniduring 2005 and $3.4 million during 2004. Tinereases in interest expense resulted
from the growth in interest-bearing deposit acceuas well as the rising rate environment. Therfddands rate increased from 1.00% during
the first quarter of 2004 to 4.25% during the faugtiarter of 2005. Rates on Heartland’s deposit@tis do not immediately reprice as a result
of increases in the federal funds rate, but coatimcreases in the federal funds rate, as expsgteduring the last half of 2004 and throughout
2005, does place pressure on the rates paid oa pineducts to maintain existing balances.

Interest expense during 2004 was $44.3 million caneg to $38.3 million during 2003, an increase®B$nillion or 15%. Exclusive of the
$3.4 million interest expense recorded at Rocky Main Bank since acquisition, interest expense drg$2.5 million or 7%. A portion of this
growth in interest expense was a result of theaisse of $20.0 million of 8.25% cumulative trustfpreed securities on October 10, 2003, and
$25.0 million of variable-rate cumulative trust feeed securities on March 17, 2004. Also causihdjtéonal interest expense during the last
quarter of the year was the implementation of a®8&dlllion leverage strategy which included theghase of mortgage-backed and municipal
securities funded primarily by newly issued brokledeposits with an average maturity of 24 months.

Heartland manages its balance sheet to minimizeffbet a change in interest rates has on itsmetdst margin. During 2006, Heartland will
continue to work toward improving both its earnagset and funding mix through targeted organic tratrategies, which we believe will
result in additional net interest income. Our mé¢tiest income simulations reflect an asset sgagibsture leading to stronger earnings
performance in a rising rate environment. Shoudddirrent rising rate environment reverse, netéstencome would likely decline. In order
to reduce the potentially negative impact a dowrwaovement in interest rates would have on neteésténcome, Heartland entered into an
interest rate floor transaction on July 8, 2005 abst of $44 thousand. This two-year contractacagiired on prime at a strike level of 5.5%
on a notional amount of $100.0 million. Changethimfair market value of this hedge transactiowftorough Heartland’s income statement in
other noninterest income.

On September 19, 2005, Heartland entered intotereist rate collar transaction on a notional amofi$60.0 million to further reduce the
potentially negative impact a downward movemenhiarest rates would have on its net interest ireeohhis five-year contract was acquired
with Heartland as the payer on prime at a capestidke of 9.00% and the counterparty as the payerime at a floor strike rate of 6.00%. The
cost of this derivative transaction was $140 thads#anagement accounts for this derivative assh @aw hedge under SFAS No. 133 (as
amended)Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities .

The following table sets forth certain informatiaiating to Heartland’s average consolidated baaheets and reflects the yield on average



earning assets and the cost of average intereshdabilities for the years indicated. Dividingcome or expense by the average balance of
assets or liabilities derives such yields and ca@sterage balances are derived from daily balarexed,nonaccrual loans are included in each
respective loan category.




ANALYSIS OF AVERAGE BALANCES, TAX EQUIVALENT YIELDS AND RATES?
For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004, &0® 20

(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004 2003
Average Average Average
Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate Balance Interest Rate
EARNING ASSETS
Securities:
Taxable $ 400,990 $ 13,89 34™% $ 373,720 $ 13,400 359% $ 316,117 $ 9,10( 2.8&%
Nontaxablel 121,227 8,481 7.0C 98,19¢ 7,037 7.17 80,85¢ 6,07¢ 7.52
Total securities 522,22( 22,377 4.2¢ 471,92: 20,43t 4.3: 396,97! 15,17¢ 3.8
Interest bearing deposits 6,99¢ 277  3.9¢ 6,65 227 3.41 7,462 174 2.3
Federal funds sold 13,78¢ 475 3.4t 10,41 175  1.6€ 34,15¢ 35k 1.04
Loans and leases:
Commercial and
commercial real estate
1 1,236,32 81,41. 6.5¢ 1,039,05! 61,09( 5.8¢ 793,18° 48,637 6.1z
Residential mortgage 233,71 14,227 6.0¢ 196,26° 11,64: 5.9: 157,00! 9,907 6.31
Agricultural and
agricultural real estate
1 228,94¢ 15,89 6.9¢ 199,59: 13,087 6.5E 164,80¢ 10,81¢ 6.5€
Consumer 178,14 15,71¢ 8.8z 150,84: 12,32 8.17 124,13¢ 11,34 9.14
Direct financing leases,
net 18,31: 1,38¢ 7.5¢ 13,71 81¢ 5.97 10,54( 78C 7.4C
Fees on loans - 5,57¢ - - 4,352 - - 4,60 -
Less: allowance for loan
and lease losses (26,679 - - (22,227 - - (17,390 - -
Net loans and leases 1,868,77! 134,20t 7.1¢ 1,577,24 103,31( 6.5t 1,232,28i 86,08¢ 6.9¢
Total earning assets 2,411,76! 157,33° 6.52 2,066,23 124,15( 6.01 1,670,88: 101,79° 6.0¢
NONEARNING ASSETS
296,72 - - 266,88! - - 202,43: - -
TOTAL ASSETS $2,708,49¢ $ 157,337 5.81% $2,333,11' $ 124,15( 5.32% $1,873,31! $ 101,79 5.42%
INTEREST BEARING
LIABILITIES
Interest bearing deposits:
Savings $ 754,08¢ $ 10,99. 1.4¢% $ 670,75¢ $ 589C 0.8¢% $ 532,020 % 4,79¢ 0.9(%
Time, $100,000 and ov 201,37° 6,50t 3.27 152,78’ 3,957 2.5¢ 140,83« 3,72( 2.64
Other time deposits 758,44¢ 25,887 3.41 651,61: 21,001 3.2z 527,62 19,24¢ 3.6t
Short-term borrowings 233,27¢ 6,98t 2.9¢ 185,04 3,09t 1.67 152,42¢ 2,35( 1.54
Other borrowings 214,32¢ 10,767 5.0z 198,38¢ 10,327 5.2C 148,55: 8,21« 5.5z
Total interest bearing
liabilities 2,161,51 61,13t 2.8: 1,858,59! 44,26¢ 2.3t 1,501,46. 38,327 2.5k
NONINTEREST
BEARING
LIABILITIES
Noninterest bearin
deposits 330,37¢ - - 278,43: - - 204,81 - -
Accrued interest and other
liabilities 35,56¢ - - 38,18¢ - - 35,41¢ - -
Total noninterest bearing
liabilities 365,94: - - 316,61¢ - - 240,22¢ - -
STOCKHOLDERS’
EQUITY 181,03¢ - - 157,91 - - 131,62 - -
TOTAL LIABILITIES &
STOCKHOLDERS’
$2,708,490 $ 61,13 2.2¢% $2,333,11' $ 44,26¢ 19(% $1,873,31! $ 38,321 2.05%

EQUITY




Net interest incom? $ 96,20 $ 79,88¢ $ 63,47
Net interest income to tot

earning asser

Interest bearing liabilities
to earning assets 89.62% 89.95% 89.86%

3.9¢% 3.87% 3.8(%

1Tax equivalent basis is calculated using an effedtx rate of 35%

T he following table allocates the changes in n&rest income to differences in either averaganuas or average rates for earning assets anc
interest bearing liabilities. The changes have ladlecated proportionately to the change due towa and change due to rate. Interest income
is measured on a tax equivalent basis using a ax%ate.




ANALYSIS OF CHANGES IN NET INTEREST INCOME
(Dollars in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,

2005 Compared to 2004 2004 Compared to 2003 2003 Compared to 2002
Change Due to Change Due to Change Due to
Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net Volume Rate Net
EARNING ASSETS /
INTEREST INCOME
Investment securities:
Taxable $ 97¢ $ (483 $ 495 $ 165¢ $ 264: $ 4301 $ 465 $ (4497) $ (4,03)
Tax-exempt 1,651 (207) 1,444 1,30z (345) 95¢ 2,26( (423 1,83
Interest bearing deposits 12 38 50 (29 72 53 (72) 2 (74
Federal funds sold 57 242 30C (247) 67 (180) 20¢€ 173 33
Loans and leases 19,09t 11,80: 30,89¢ 24,09¢ (6,87¢) 17,22 12,047 (9,679 2,37¢
TOTAL EARNING
ASSETS 21,79: 11,39 33,187 26,79 (4,447) 22,35 14,90¢ (14,76¢) 14C
LIABILITIES /
INTEREST EXPENSE
Interest bearing deposits:
Savings 73z 4,36¢ 5,101 1,251 (159) 1,092 74€ (2,479 (1,739
Time, $100,000 and
over 1,25¢ 1,29( 2,54¢ 31€ (79) 237 60¢ (1,399 (78E)
Other time deposits 3,44: 1,44: 4,88¢ 4,52; (2,76€) 1,75¢ 3,012 (4,129 (1,115
Short-term borrowings 807 3,08: 3,89( 503 242 74E 34z (63%) (2939)
Other borrowings 82¢ (38%) 44€ 2,75¢€ (649) 2,107 80¢ (88¢) (80)
TOTAL INTEREST
BEARING
LIABILITIES 7,06¢ 9,80: 16,87 9,34¢ (3,41)) 5,937 5,617 (9,522 (4,005
NET INTEREST
INCOME $ 14,72« $ 159 $ 16,31¢ $ 17,44¢ $ (1,030) $16,41¢ $ 9,38¢ $ (5,249 $ 4,14f

PROVISION FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES

The allowance for loan and lease losses is estealithrough a provision charged to expense to gepwi Heartland’s opinion, an adequate
allowance for loan and lease losses. The provigipfoan losses during 2005 was $6.6 million corepao $4.8 million in 2004, an increase of
$1.8 million or 35%. The provision for loan losskging 2004 was $4.8 million compared to $4.2 miilin 2003, an increase of $663 thous
or 16%. These increases resulted primarily fromdhe growth experienced during those periods aleitiy an increase in nonperforming
loans. Additionally, during 2005, the provision foan losses was higher due to the downgradingfefvdarge credits and the higher than
historical charge-offs at Citizens Finance Co. assalt of the change in bankruptcy laws. T he adey of the allowance for loan and lease
losses is determined by management using factatsritlude the overall composition of the loan fmit, general economic conditions, types
of loans, loan collateral values, past loss expegeloan delinquencies, substandard credits, andtfll credits. For additional details on the
specific factors considered, refer to the critmetounting policies and allowance for loan andddasses sections of this report.

NONINTEREST INCOME
(Dollars in thousands)

For the years ended December 31, % Change

2005/ 2004/

2005 2004 2003 2004 2003
Service charges and fees, net $ 11,33: $ 9,91¢ $ 6,207 14 60
Trust fees 6,53( 4,96¢ 3,81« 31 30
Brokerage commissions 85€ 1,10¢ 863 (22 27
Insurance commissions 54k 757 703 (28) 8
Securities gains, net 19¢ 1,861 1,82: (89) 2

Gain (loss) on trading account securities (12) 54 457 12C 88



Impairment loss on equity securities - - (317 10C

Rental income on operating leases 15,46 13,78( 13,80" 12 0
Gains on sale of loans 3,52¢ 3,41(C 6,33¢ 3 (46)
Valuation adjustment on mortgage servicing rights 39 92 33¢ 58 78
Other noninterest income 3,10¢ 1,90( 2,511 63 (24)

Total noninterest income $ 41,58t $ 37,84 $ 36,54 1C 4

The table shows Heartlarsdhoninterest income for the years indicated. Tiobalinterest income increased $3.7 million or 1Q%6rdy 2005 an
$1.3 million or 4% during 2004. Rocky Mountain Bamgcorded noninterest income of $2.5 million dur2@5 and $1.5 million during its
seven months of operations under the Heartland eltatf community banks during 2004. The noninteiresome categories reflecting
significant improvement during 2005 were servicarges and fees, trust fees, rental income on dpgrigases and other noninterest income,
while securities gains were significantly redudedring 2004, the noninterest income categoriegctifig significant improvement were
service charges and fees and trust fees, which efftset by a reduction in the gains on sale of foan




Services charges and fees increased $1.4 millidd%r during 2005 and $3.7 million or 60% during 20Bocky Mountain Bank recorded
services charges and fees of $1.3 million durin@s2€ompared to $683 thousand during the seven mafitt004 of operations under the
Heartland umbrella. Included in this category aeise fees collected on the mortgage loans Heatttald into the secondary market, while
retaining servicing. Heartland’s mortgage loan méng portfolio grew from $539.1 million at Decemtfl, 2003, to $575.2 million at
December 31, 2004, and $582.7 million at DecemtePB05, generating additional mortgage loan sewgitees of $101 thousand for 2005
and $260 thousand for 2004, increases of 7% and g3%pectively. The most significant impact to gg\charges and fees during 2004 was
the $1.1 million or 52% reduction in the amortipation the mortgage servicing rights associated thighmortgage loan servicing portfolio.
During 2004, prepayment activity in the portfoliaused by refinancing activity slowed, resultingiitower amortization rate. Also included in
this category are service charges on deposit ptedwbich increased $179 thousand or 3% during 20@5$1.1 million or 25% during 2004.
Exclusive of Rocky Mountain Bank’s contribution thg 2004 of $654 thousand, the increase in sechegges on deposit products was $479
thousand or 10%. The 2005 increase was affecteddyced service charges on commercial checkinguats@s the earnings credit rate
continually increased during the year and manyefltalances in the accounts began to cover thetpatharges. Also contributing to the
improvement in service charges on deposit prodiuting 2004 was an overdraft privilege feature anahecking account product line that
resulted in the generation of additional servicargk revenue of approximately $563 thousand, arease of 19%. Heartland has continued to
grow its ATM network and, correspondingly, the fgemerated by activity on these ATMs increased $8d4@sand or 20% during 2005 and
$220 thousand or 22% during 2004.

Trust fees increased $1.6 million or 31% during®2@ad $1.2 million or 30% during 2004. The trustamts acquired from the Colonial Trust
Company on August 31, 2004, accounted for $479s#od or 40% of the 2004 change. The remaining ase®in both years were a result of
focused calling efforts. Trust assets increasenh f6d.2 billion at December 31, 2004, to nearly $ildon at December 31, 2005.

Brokerage commissions declined $244 thousand or @2%g 2005 as Dubuque Bank and Trust Companyresqueed the loss of one sales
representative and a reduction in the hours dewvotsdles by another sales representative. Corlyedsging 2004, brokerage commissions
increased $237 thousand or 27% as a new salesegpative was hired at Dubuque Bank and Trust Cagnpad many of Heartland’s other
Bank Subsidiaries began to promote brokerage svic

Insurance commissions declined $212 thousand ord@@%g 2005. The contingency bonus received du2b@b on the property and casualty
policies issued through our insurance agency wasi&usand less than it historically had been, arilpas a result of a fire claim on a policy

issued through our agency. This area also expeiktihe loss of one sales representative, whoseprifacus was on the sale of life and long-
term care policies.

Securities gains were $198 thousand, $1.9 millizeh 1.8 million during 2005, 2004 and 2003, respebt. Nearly $1.0 million of the gains
during 2004 were recorded during the first quaditeg to the active management of our bond portféigthe yield curve steepened, agency
securities nearing maturity were sold at a gainrapticed with a combination of like-term and lontggrm agency securities that provided
enhanced yields. Additionally, t he partial liguida of the available for sale equity securitiestfmdio resulted in $542 thousand of securities
gains during the first quarter of 2004. Managensetted to liquidate a majority of this portfolindaredirect those funds to its expansion
efforts. Heartland's interest rate forecast changedrising rate bias on the long end of the y@&ldre during the first quarter of 2003, and
therefore, longer-term agency securities were abllgain to shorten the portfolio. The proceedsewevested in mortgage-backed securities
that were projected to outperform the agency sgesiin a rising rate environment. Because of teepness of the yield curve during the
remaining quarters of 2003 and the protection dédr longer-term bullet agency securities were lpased with the proceeds on the sale of
shorter-term agency securities.

The equity securities trading portfolio recordesisles of $11 thousand during 2005 compared to gai®s4 thousand and $453 thousand
during 2004 and 2003, respectively. The gains assds recorded on this portfolio were generalligcéfe of the overall activity in the stock
market and the smaller trading portfolio in 2004 &005.

Impairment losses on equity securities deemed tthoer than temporary totaled $317 thousand d@0a. A majority of these losses were
related to the decline in market value on the comstiock held in Heartland’s available for sale ggsecurities portfolio. All of those stocks
were subsequently sold during 2004 and 2005. Aaldifly, during the first quarter of 2003, an impaént loss on equity securities totaling ¢
thousand was recorded on Heartland’s investmeatimited partnership. The fair value of the rennagnportion of Heartland’s investment in
this partnership at year-end 2005 was $80 thousand.

Rental income on operating leases increased $1lidmor 12% during 2005 as a result of activit HITEA, Inc., Heartland’s fleet
management subsidiary. Vehicles under operatirgelaa ULTEA, Inc. were 3,045, 2,187 and 2,367 atdbeber 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

Gains on sale of loans were slightly higher in 2008 experienced a reduction of $2.9 million o¥#@uring 2004, as refinancing activity on
residential mortgage loans decreased from histibribggh levels during 2003. The volume of mortgdgans sold into the secondary market
during 2003 resulted from the historically low ratevironment. During low rate environments, custanieequently elect to take fifteen- and



thirty-year, fixed-rate mortgage loans, which Hksard usually elects to sell into the secondary retark

The total valuation adjustment on mortgage sergicights resulted in net impairment recoveriesreipusly recorded impairment provision
totaling $39 thousand during 2005, $92 thousanthdu004 and $338 thousand during 2003. Heartlditidas the services of an independent
third-party to perform a valuation analysis ofservicing portfolio each quarter. At December 3102, there was no remaining valuation
allowance.

Total other noninterest income was $3.1 million9illion and $2.5 million during the years 20@904 and 2003, respectively. The increase
in other noninterest income during 2005 relatechprily to the forgiveness of $500 thousand in debHeartland fulfilled the job creation
requirements of its Community Development Blocki@izoan Agreement with the City of Dubuque. Dur@P4, Dubuque Bank and Trust
Company acquired a 99.9% ownership interest imadd liability company that owned certified higtostructures for which historic
rehabilitation tax credits applied. Amortizationtb& investment in this limited liability companyasrecorded in the amount of $978 thousand.

NONINTEREST EXPENSE
(Dollars in thousands)

For the years ended December 31, % Change

2005/ 2004/

2005 2004 2003 2004 2003

Salaries and employee benefits $ 46,32¢ $ 39,44: $ 33,11 17 19
Occupancy 6,017 4,97¢ 3,88( 21 28
Furniture and equipment 6,18 5,322 4,11¢ 16 29

Depreciation expense on equipment under operating
leases 12,59° 11,36( 11,35: 11 0
Outside services 8,17¢ 6,99¢ 4,69¢ 17 49
FDIC deposit insurance assessment 272 241 21¢ 13 11
Advertising 3,26t 2,65¢ 2,35¢ 23 13
Other intangibles amortization 1,01« 764 404 33 89
Other noninterest expenses 11,15¢ 10,17¢ 7,56( 10 35
Total noninterest expense $  950L $ 81,93 $ 67,69 16 21
69.0€% 70.72% 68.9%

Efficiency ratiol

1 Noninterest expense divided by the sum of netéstencome and noninterest income less securitysg

The table shows Heartland’s noninterest expensthéoyears indicated Noninterest expense increased $13.1 million or 162005 and $14
million or 21% in 2004. Noninterest expense at Bolglountain Bank totaled $11.7 million during theetwe months of 2005 and $6.7 million
during its seven months of operations under thetléea umbrella in 2004. Exclusive of the noningrexpense at Rocky Mountain Bank,
growth in this category during 2004 was $7.5 millar 11%. During 2004, the recognition of the remrag unamortized issuance costs on the
trust preferred securities redeemed also affeadaihterest expense. Contributing to the increaséisase costs during both years were
expenses associated with expansion efforts.

Salaries and employee benefits, the largest conmparfi@oninterest expense, increased $6.9 millioh786 for 2005 and $6.3 million or 19%
for 2004. At Rocky Mountain Bank, salaries and evgpk benefits totaled $5.8 million during the tweelmonths of 2005 and $3.5 million
during its first seven months as a subsidiary cditland. A majority of the growth in salaries amdptoyee benefits expense was a result of
additional staffing at the holding company to pde/support services to the growing number of Bauihs®liaries, the addition of branches at
New Mexico Bank & Trust, Arizona Bank & Trust andvBrside Community Bank, and the new bank subsjdi@ing formed in Denve
Colorado, which began operations as a loan prooludtifice under the Rocky Mountain umbrella in Getp2005. Total full-time equivalent
employees increased to 909 at year-end 2005 fr@raBgear-end 2004 and 674 at December 31, 20G81dition to staffing increases at the
holding company to provide support services togitmaving number of Bank Subsidiaries, these increasere also attributable to the opening
of the new locations previously mentioned and ttgussition of the Wealth Management Group of Caddilirust Company in August 2004.
the 179 increase in full-time equivalent employegesng 2004, 127 were at Rocky Mountain Bank andvéBe at the trust operations acquired
from Colonial Trust Company.

Occupancy and furniture and equipment expensaygregate, increased $1.9 million or 18% during 2808 $2.3 million or 29% during 20C
These increases were primarily the result of thgaagion efforts and the completion of Heartlantésesof-the-art operations center in
Dubuque, lowa. Rocky Mountain Bank recorded $1.8iani of occupancy and furniture and equipment exgeeduring 2005 compared to $1.0
million during 2004.



Fees for outside services increased $1.2 milliob786 during 2005 and $2.3 million or 49% during 20Beartland will continue to experien
increases in fees for outside services as it expasgresence in new and existing markets. Aduiiy, Heartland periodically elects to utilize
outside vendors to provide new or enhanced featarthee products and services provided to its ecnsts. As an example, during 2004,
enhancements were made to the on-line banking é&ednansfer service areas. Other significant fectmntributing to the increase in fees for
outside services during 2004 were the following:

*  Additional professional fees of $600 thousand viecerred in 2004 for services related to the immatation and compliance with
internal control provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxle&y éf 2002.

*  Rocky Mountain Bank recorded fees for outside sewiof $803 thousand during its first seven moagha subsidiary of Heartland.

*  Early in 2004, Heartland embarked upon the implaatém of Citrix technology across all its bank siglaries. Fees for services
related to this implementation were approximatel@%thousand.

Advertising expense, which includes public relasi@xpense, increased $607 thousand or 23% durig &@d $304 thousand or 13% during
2004. Rocky Mountain Bank recorded advertising espeof $524 thousand during 2005 and $232 thoudaridg 2004. Other increases in-
category are partially the result of Heartland’panxsion efforts.

Depreciation on equipment under operating leaspsreenced an increase of $1.2 million or 11% du@0@5, primarily as a result of an
increase in the number of vehicles under lease.

Other intangibles amortization increased $250 thndor 33% during 2005 and $360 thousand or 89%@@004, primarily as a result of the
acquisition of Rocky Mountain Bank.

Other noninterest expenses increased $980 thowsdr@o during 2005 and $2.6 million or 35% duririP2. Remaining unamortized issua
cost on the $25.0 million 9.60% trust preferredusities redeemed on September 30, 2004, totalefl 8f#fusand and were fully expensed
during the third quarter of 2004. Rocky MountaimBdnad other noninterest expenses of $1.4 millioring the twelve months of 2005 and
$671 thousand during the seven months of operatismsHeartland subsidiary. The following typesxgienses classified in the other
noninterest expenses category that contributeldetdncreases were supplies, telephone, softwanetemaince, software amortization, schools,
seminars and other staff expense. These expermspgmarily as a result of Heartland’s expansitiores.

INCOME TAXES

Income tax expense during 2005 increased $2.2amitir 28% when compared to 2004, resulting in &rcéfe tax rate of 30.9% for 2005
compared to 28.2% for 2004. The lower effective diring 2004 was the result of federal historlatslitation tax credits of $675 thousand
and state historic rehabilitation tax credits of$&housand. No historic rehabilitation tax credreye earned by Heartland during 2005.
Additionally, low-income housing credits totaledl®4thousand during 2005 compared to $485 thousandgl2004. The tax-equivalent
adjustment for tax-exempt interest income was #8lon during 2005 compared to $2.8 million duriga§04. Taxexempt interest income a:
percentage of pre-tax income was 19% of pre-taarimeduring 2005 compared to 18% during 2004. Tdesiase in tax-exempt interest
income partially mitigated the impact reduced teedits had on income taxes recorded during 2005.

Income tax expense during 2004 decreased $200&hdwus 2%. Heartland's effective tax rate was 28{@82004 compared to 31.5% for
2003. The reduced effective rate was the resth@previously mentioned federal historic rehadiiiin tax credits and state historic
rehabilitation tax credits. Additionally, tax-exetripterest income went from 16% of pre-tax incomegy 2003 to 18% during 2004.

FINANCIAL CONDITION
LENDING ACTIVITIES

Heartland’s major source of income is interestaank and leases. The table below presents the sitiopmf Heartland’s loan portfolio at the
end of the years indicated.




LOAN PORTFOLIO
December 31, 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001
(Dollars in thousands)
2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount % Amount %

Commercial and

commercial real

estate $1,304,08¢ 66.6%% $1,162,10. 65.42% $ 860,55. 64.99% $ 733,32 63.4%% $ 648,46( 59.91%
Residential mortgage  219,67:  11.2:% 212,84. 11.9¢ 148,37¢  11.1¢ 133,43 11.5¢ 145,380  13.4:
Agricultural and

agricultural real

estate 230,35 11.77% 217,86( 12.27 166,18: 12.5¢ 155,38 13.4¢ 145,37¢ 13.4:
Consumer 181,01¢ 9.2t 167,10¢ 9.41 136,60: 10.31 120,59: 10.4¢ 127,53¢ 11.7¢
Lease financing, net 21,58¢ 1.1C 16,28¢ 0.92 13,62 1.0¢ 12,30¢ 1.07 15,57( 1.44
Gross loans and leas  1,956,71: 100.0% 1 776 19; 100.000 7 37533 100.0% 135504 100.0% 1 0gp32; 100.00%
Unearned discount (1,870 (1,920 (1,83¢6) (2,167 (3,457
Deferred loan fees (1,777 (1,329 (947) (811) (639)

Total loans and leases 1,953,06! 1,772,95 1,322,54! 1,152,06! 1,078,23:
Allowance for loan

and lease losses (27,79) (24,979 (18,490() (16,09 (14,660

Loans and leases, net$1.925,27! $1,747,98 $1,304,05! $1,135,97; $1,063,57:

The table below sets forth the remaining maturitigoan and lease category, including loans helcéle.

MATURITY AND RATE SENSITIVITY OF LOANS AND LEASES !
As of December 31, 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

Over 1 Year
Through 5 Years Over 5 Years
One Year Fixed Floating Fixed Floating
or Less Rate Rate Rate Rate Total
Commercial and commercial real estate $ 549,32¢ $ 358,53 $ 264,69 $ 64,62t $ 97,87: $ 1,335,06:
Residential mortgage 95,68( 26,047 28,81¢ 27,50¢ 50,22¢ 228,27
Agricultural and agricultural real estate 109,28! 48,50: 31,77¢ 10,92« 29,87( 230,35’
Consumer 36,32« 59,66: 13,03¢ 14,06 59,08¢ 182,17
Lease financing, net 7,144 14,367 0 75 0 21,58¢

Total $ 797,76 $ 507,11° $ 33832" $ 117,19 $ 237,05¢ $ 1,997,445

1 Maturities based upon contractual de

Heartland experienced growth in total loans anddsaluring both 2005 and 2004. This growth was $18@llion or 10% in 2005 and $450.4
million or 34% in 2004Rocky Mountain Bank had total loans and lease266%® million as of December 31, 2004. Internakghy defined a
total loans and leases exclusive of Rocky MounBaink, was $184.5 million or 14% during 2004. Allldéartland’s subsidiary banks
experienced loan growth during year 2005, with ma@mtributions from Dubuque Bank and Trust Compagw Mexico Bank & Trust,
Arizona Bank & Trust and Galena State Bank and fl@esnpany. During 2004, all of the Bank Subsidisrexcept for First Community Bank,
experienced loan growth. Major contributors dur2@®4 were Arizona Bank & Trust, Wisconsin Commuiignk, New Mexico Bank & Tru
and Dubuque Bank and Trust Company. All of the loaiegories increased during 2005, with $142.0ianilbr 79% of the total loan growth in
the commercial and commercial real estate catediring 2004, all of the loan categories exceptapricultural and agricultural real estate
and lease financing experienced growth.

The largest growth occurred in commercial and consiakreal estate loans, which increased 12% du2b@b and $301.6 million or 35%
during 2004. Exclusive of the $154.0 million in corrcial and commercial real estate loans at Rockyrithin Bank, this category of the loan
portfolio grew $147.5 million or 17% in 2004. Asesult of continued calling efforts, all of the BaBubsidiaries experienced growth in this
loan category during both years.



Agricultural and agricultural real estate loansstaniding experienced an increase of $12.5 millio8% during 2005 and $51.7 million or 31%
during 2004. Nearly all of the growth during 200 orred at Dubuque Bank and Trust Company. Exatughthe $57.7 million agricultural
loans at Rocky Mountain Bank, this loan categomiided $6.0 million or 4% during 2004, primarily asesult of payoffs on a few large
credits at the New Mexico Bank & Trust office ino®is, New Mexico.

Residential mortgage loans experienced an increfe&.8 million or 3% during 2005 and $64.5 million43% during 2004. Exclusive of
Rocky Mountain Bank’s residential mortgage loartaling $39.6 million, this loan category experieth@ increase of $24.9 million or 17%
during 2004. A majority of the growth in 2004 oc®d in adjustable-rate mortgage and residentiadtcoction loans at Arizona Bank & Trust,
Wisconsin Community Bank, Riverside Community Bamki New Mexico Bank & Trust as they expanded thirtgage lending capabilities.
As evidenced by the smaller growth during 2005 deeot anticipate continued growth in our residantiortgage loan portfolio, as many of
the loans made, especially the 15- and 30-yead{igaée mortgage loans, are usually sold into tlcersgary market. Servicing is retained on a
portion of these loans so that the Heartland babkidiaries have an opportunity to continue prawgdiheir customers the excellent service
they expect.

Consumer loans increased $13.9 million or 8% du?id@5 and $30.5 million or 22% during 2004. Exchesof the $11.4 million consumer
loan portfolio at Rocky Mountain Bank, growth innsumer loans during 2004 was $19.0 million or 1®4xing both years, a majority of the
growth was in home equity lines of credit. Durir@)8, Arizona Bank & Trust, Wisconsin Community Baarkd Rocky Mountain Bank were
most successful at growing this product line. Altlee Heartland bank subsidiaries, with the exaeptf First Community Bank, grew
consumer loan balances during 2004. Also contrilguttd the growth in both years was Citizens Finadog which experienced an increase of
$5.8 million or 21% during 2005 and $4.8 million21% during 2004. Heartland has begun to pursuertymties to expand its Citizens
Finance Co. subsidiary, as evidenced by the Decefil§# opening of an office in Crystal Lake, llliao

Loans held for sale increased $8.6 million or 274%irdy 2005 and $6.5 million or 25% during 2004. Rodountain Bank was responsible for
$2.4 million of the 2004 growth in loans held fales Activity in 15- and 30-year fixed-rate mortgdgans, which are usually sold into the
secondary market, made up a portion of the changaglboth years. The remainder of the growth amkheld for sale was commercial and
commercial real estate loans at Wisconsin CommuBuatyk that were structured to meet the USDA and 8@ guaranty program
requirements.

Although the risk of nonpayment for any reasontsxigith respect to all loans, specific risks areoagated with each type of loan. The primary
risks associated with commercial and agricultuwahk are the quality of the borrower’'s managemedtlae impact of national and regional
economic factors. Additionally, risks associatethveiommercial and agricultural real estate loackiohe fluctuating property values and
concentrations of loans in a specific type of esthte. Repayment on loans to individuals, inclgdimse on residential real estate, are
dependent on the borrower’s continuing financiab8gity, and thus are more likely to be affecteddolyverse personal circumstances and
deteriorating economic conditions. Heartland masiits loan concentrations and does not beliekiastadverse concentrations in any specific
industry.

Heartland’s strategy with respect to the managemietitese types of risks, whether loan demand kveg strong, is to encourage the
Heartland banks to follow tested and prudent loglities and underwriting practices which includggfanting loans on a sound and
collectible basis; (ii) ensuring that primary amtendary sources of repayment are adequate ioretatthe amount of the loan; (iii)
administering loan policies through a board of clives; (iv) developing and maintaining adequatediification of the loan portfolio as a
whole and of the loans within each loan categong; @) ensuring that each loan is properly docueiaind, if appropriate, guaranteed by
government agencies and that insurance coveragiemuate.

NONPERFORMING LOANS AND LEASES AND
OTHER NONPERFORMING ASSETS

The table below sets forth the amounts of nonperifog loans and leases and other nonperformingsaesehe dates indicated.
NONPERFORMING ASSETS

December 31, 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001
(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Nonaccrual loans and leas $ 14,87 $ 9,837 $ 5,092 $ 3,94¢ $ 7,26¢
Loans and leases contractually past due 90 days or
more 11¢E 88 45¢ 541 50C
Restructured loans and leases - - - - 354
Total nonperforming loans and leases 14,99: 9,92t 5,55( 4,48¢ 8,12:

Other real estate 1,58¢ 42k 59¢ 452 13C



Other repossessed assets 471 31s 28t 27¢ 343

Total nonperforming assets $ 17,04¢ $ 10,66: $ 6,434 $ 5,21¢ $ 8,59¢
Nonperforming loans and leases to total loans

leases 0.77% 0.5€¢% 0.41% 0.3%% 0.75%
Nonperforming assets to total loans and leases

repossessed property 0.87% 0.6(% 0.48% 0.45% 0.8(%
Nonperforming assets to total ass 0.6(% 0.41% 0.32% 0.2¢% 0.52%

Under Heartland’s internal loan review programpanl review officer is responsible for reviewingsixig loans and leases, testing loan ratings
assigned by loan officers, identifying potentiabiplem loans and leases and monitoring the adeqfabye allowance for loan and lease losses
at the Heartland banks.

Heartland constantly monitors and continues to lbgveystems to oversee the quality of its loanfpbiot One integral part is a loan rating
system, under which a rating is assigned to ez émd lease within the portfolio based on thedweer’s financial position, repayment abili
collateral position and repayment history. This bagis on quality is reflected in Heartland’s cregliglity figures. Heartland’s nonperforming
assets to total assets was 0.60% and 0.41% at ec&th, 2005 and 2004, respectively. Peer dateeiank Holding Company
Performance Reports published by the Federal Resward for bank holding companies with total essé$1 to $3 billion reported
nonperforming assets to total assets of 0.47% &0 for September 30, 2005, and December 31, 286g¢ectively.

Nonperforming loans, defined as nonaccrual loasructured loans and loans past due ninety daysog, were $15.0 million or .77%

total loans and leases at December 31, 2005, ceupau$9.9 million or .56% of total loans and lemaeDecember 31, 2004. Contributing to
the increase during 2005 was a $3.4 million loaR@tky Mountain Bank and two $1.2 million loand\e#w Mexico Bank & Trust. Exclusive
of $3.0 million in total nonperforming loans at RgdMountain Bank at year-end 2004, total nonperfagroans increased $1.4 million during
2004, due primarily to one large credit in the Dgibet market. In both years, management felt theeasers were not an indication of a trend.
The nonperforming loans at Rocky Mountain Bank westunexpected as nearly all of these loans veenetified as potential problem loans
during due diligence. Because of the net realizahlee of collateral, guarantees and other facamtcipated losses on Heartland’s
nonperforming loans, including those at Rocky MaimBank, are not expected to be significant anetleen specifically provided for in the
allowance for loan and lease losses. The allowfordean and lease losses related to total nonpaify loans and leases was $1.2 million
$2.3 million at December 31, 2005 and 2004, re$peygt

Other real estate owned increased from $425 thausabecember 31, 2004, to $1.6 million at Decen®3ier2005. This increase primarily
resulted from the repossession of one propertyest Mexico Bank & Trust.

ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES

The process utilized by Heartland to determineaiifiequacy of the allowance for loan and lease ldssemsidered a critical accounting
practice for Heartland. The allowance for loan leabe losses represents management’s estimatendified and unidentified probable losses
in the existing loan portfolio. For additional diégaon the specific factors considered, refer ®¢htical accounting policies section of this
report.

The allowance for loan and lease losses increas&@ 88 million or 11% during 2005 and $6.5 million35% during 2004. The acquisition of
Rocky Mountain Bank accounted for $4.2 million @26 of the 2004 increase. The allowance for loanlaaske losses at December 31, 2005,
was 1.42% of loans and 185% of nonperforming loaosipared to 1.41% of loans and 252% of nonperfogrtoans at year-end 2004. A
portion of the growth in the allowance for loan dedse losses occurred as a result of the expaatibe loan portfolio during both years,
particularly in the more complex commercial loategary and in the new markets Heartland enterechich Heartland had little or no
previous lending experience.

The amount of net charge-offs recorded by Heartlaasl $3.4 million during 2005 and $2.6 million dgi2004. As a percentage of average
loans and leases, net charge-offs were .18% d@fio§ and .16% during 2004. Citizens Finance Coarttind's consumer finance subsidiary,
experienced net charge-offs of $1.2 million or 36Rtotal net charge-offs during 2005 compared t83thousand or 30% of total net charge-
offs during 2004The change in bankruptcy laws adversely impactéide®is Finance Co. as more customers elected tarddzankruptcy pric

to year-end 2005. Net losses as a percentage age/gross loans at Citizens was 3.94% for 2005eoed to 3.44% for 2004 and 3.69% for
2003. Loans with payments past due for more thiaty thiays at Citizens was 5.32% of gross loanseatriend 2005 compared to 4.09% at year-
end 2004 and 4.82% at year-end 2003.




ANALYSIS OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES
December 31, 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001
(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001

Allowance at beginning of year $ 24,97 $ 18,49 $ 16,09 $  14,66( $ 13,59
Charge-offs:

Commercial and commercial real estate 2,20z 1,73¢ 49¢ 79t 1,477

Residential mortgage 75 104 10¢ 38 32

Agricultural and agricultural real estate 16C 78 6 27¢ 462

Consumer 2,141 1,69¢ 1,77¢ 2,08t 1,78t

Lease financing - - - 6 -

Total charge-offs 4,57¢ 3,617 2,392 3,20¢ 3,757

Recoveries:

Commercial and commercial real estate 544 34t 112 83¢ 79

Residential mortgage 1 35 2 8 -

Agricultural and agricultural real estate 141 18¢ 29 177 10¢

Consumer 46€ 437 46& 38¢ 35k

Lease financing - - - - -

Total recoveries 1,152 1,00t 60€& 1,41( 54z

Net charg-offs 3,427 2,61: 1,78¢ 1,79¢ 3,21t
Provision for loan and lease losses from continuing

operations 6,56¢ 4,84¢ 4,18: 3,55¢ 4,25¢
Provision for loan and lease losses from discoetinu

operations - - - (329 25
Additions related to acquisitions - 4,24¢ - - -
Adjustment for transfer to other liabilities for

unfunded commitments (319 - - - -
A||Owance at end of year $ 27,79: $ 24,97: $ 18,49( $ 16,09: $ 14,66(
Net charg-offs to average loans and leases 0.18% 0.16% 0.14% 0.16% 0.31%

1 Includes net charge-offs at Citizens Finance, Headts consumer finance company, of $1,185 for 28789 for 2004; $808 for 2003;
$1,182 for 2002 and $1,043 for 2001.

The table above summarizes activity in the allovedfioc loan and lease losses for the years indicatelliding amounts of loans and leases
charged off, amounts of recoveries, additions éoaltowance charged to income, additions relatexttpisitions and the ratio of net charge-
offs to average loans and leases outstanding.




The table below shows Heartland’s allocation ofahewance for loan and lease losses by typesarfd@nd leases and the amount of
unallocated reserves.

ALLOCATION OF ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES
December 31, 2005, 2004, 2003, 2002 and 2001
(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004 2003 2002 2001
Loan / Loan / Loan / Loan / Loan /
Lease Lease Lease Lease Lease
Category Category Category Category Category
to Gross to Gross to Gross to Gross to Gross
Loans & Loans & Loans & Loans & Loans &

Amount Leases Amount Leases Amount Leases Amount Leases Amount Leases

Commercial and
commercial real estate $ 17,47¢ 66.65% $ 15,467 65.42% $ 9,77¢ 64.9% $ 8,40¢ 63.4% $ 7,53¢ 59.91%

Residential mortgage 1,59: 11.2¢ 1,357 11.9¢ 1,22¢  11.1¢ 1,32¢ 11.5¢ 1,192 13.4
Agricultural and

agricultural real estate 2,52¢ 11.7i 2,851 12.2i 2,92¢ 12.5¢ 2,23¢  13.4¢ 2,21¢  13.4:
Consumer 2,89: 9.2t 2,19( 9.41 2,351 10.31 2,087 10.4¢ 2,00¢ 11.7¢
Lease financing 14¢ 1.1C 10z 0.92 121 1.0¢ 14C 1.07 162 1.44
Unallocated 3,152 3,00¢ 2,092 1,89: 1,54¢
Total allowance for loan

and lease losses $ 27,79: $ 24,97: $ 18,49( $ 16,09: $ 14,66(
SECURITIES

The composition of Heartland's securities portfidionanaged to maximize the return on the portfatidle considering the impact it has on
Heartland’s asset/liability position and liquiditgeds. Securities represented 19% and 21% ofassgaks at December 31, 2005 and 2004,
respectively. During 2005, a portion of the procefdm securities paydowns, maturities and salesretained in short-term investments in
anticipation of loan growth.

As the yield curve flattened during 2005 and tovpde protection in a downward interest rate envinent, a portion of the securities portfolio
was shifted into longer-term agency securities liiger-yielding and longer-term municipal secustiBuring the first quarter of 2004, the
yield curve steepened and management decided ta gettion of the U.S. government agency securitiearing maturity at a gain and repl
them with a combination of like-term and longemtesigency securities that provided enhanced yidlid®. during the first quarter of 2004, a
partial liquidation of the available for sale egqustcurities portfolio was initiated as managenaatted to use the proceeds to fund acquisi
and its internal expansion efforts. Rocky Mountaank’s securities portfolio at December 31, 2004aled $61.8 million, of which $16.6
million was in U.S. government agency securitie32.6 million in mortgage-backed securities and $8ilion in municipal securities.
Exclusive of these securities, there was a shiftiénportfolio from mortgage-backed securities imonicipal securities during 2004,
particularly during the third quarter when a leygratrategy was implemented that included the mselof $30.0 million in securities.

Unrealized losses in the debt securities portfatethe result of changes in interest rates andareelated to credit downgrades of the
securities. Therefore, Heartland has deemed thaiimpnt as temporary.

The tables below present the composition and niegsiof the securities portfolio by major categokll.of our U.S. government corporations
and agencies securities and a majority of our nagegbacked securities are issuances of governrpenssred enterprises.




SECURITIES PORTFOLIO COMPOSITION
December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003
(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004 2003
% of % of % of

Amount Portfolio Amount Portfolio Amount Portfolio
U.S. government corporations and agencies $ 234,02: 4430% $ 21967( 39.7% $ 182,93: 40.5%
Mortgage-backed securities 130,33: 24.7: 164,58( 29.7¢ 151,23¢ 33.5¢
States and political subdivisions 132,95¢ 25.21 123,62 22.3¢ 93,21( 20.6¢
Other securities 29,93¢ 5.6¢ 44,88¢ 8.12 23,30: 5.17
Total $ 527,25. 100.006 $ 552,76 100.0%0 $ 450,68( 100.0%
SECURITIES PORTFOLIO MATURITIES
December 31, 2005
(Dollars in thousands)

After One But After Five But
Within One Year Within Five Years  Within Ten Years After Ten Years Total

Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield Amount Yield

U.S. government
corporations and

agencies $ 38,39¢ 3.3¢% $189,68: 352% $ 5,947 461% $ - 0.0(% $234,02: 3.52%
Mortgagebacked securitie 44,85 3.92 84,99¢ 4.21 47 9.2C 437 8.6¢ 130,33¢ 4.2¢
States and political

subdivisions! 2,064 5.6C 28,91 5.92 58,90¢ 6.3 43,07 7.0t 132,95¢ 6.47
Other securities 2,132 3.6€ - - - - - - 2,132 3.6€
Total $ 87,44¢ 3.71% $ 303,59 3.95% $ 64,897 6.2(% $ 43,51 7.06% $499,44! 4.51%

1 Rates on obligations of states and political subkiins have been adjusted to tax equivalent yiasilsg a 34% tax.
DEPOSITS AND BORROWED FUNDS

Total average deposits experienced an increasgafr.$ million or 17% during 2005 and $348.3 million25% during 2004. Exclusive of
$170.5 million attributable to deposits at RockyWitain Bank, growth in average deposits during 2084 $177.8 million or 13%. Increases
in total average deposits occurred at all of thekBaubsidiaries during 2005 and 2004, except fde@aState Bank and Trust Company, wi
experienced a slight decrease during 2005. Theiaddif new banking locations in both the West Midwest have contributed to the growth
in deposits, as well as, an increased focus oactitty new deposit customers in all of the marketsed by the Bank Subsidiaries.

The deposit category to experience the biggesepéaige increase during both 2005 and 2004 was dkdeposits. Heartland’s two newss
novo banks, New Mexico Bank & Trust and Arizona Bank &3t have been the most successful at attractimgdé deposits. Also
experiencing meaningful growth in demand depositsesyear-end 2004 was Rocky Mountain Bank. Exekisif the $27.8 million attributable
to demand deposits at Rocky Mountain Bank, integnavth was $45.6 million or 22% during 2004. ThenR Subsidiaries experiencing the
most significant growth in demand deposits durif§fLwere New Mexico Bank & Trust, Dubuque Bank @ngst Company, Wisconsin
Community Bank and Arizona Bank & Trust.

The savings deposit category increased by $83I1&mibr 12% during 2005 with significant growth ardng at Wisconsin Community Bank,
New Mexico Bank & Trust, Arizona Bank & Trust an@éky Mountain Bank. During 2004, tilsavings deposit category experienced the
biggest dollar growth internally at $76.4 million 4% when excluding the $62.4 million attributatdesavings deposits at Rocky Mountain
Bank. In addition to Dubuque Bank and Trust Compamg Galena State Bank and Trust Company, Healsléaaks in Wisconsin, New
Mexico and Arizona were responsible for the mayooit the growth in savings deposits during 2004.

As interest rates rose during 2005, customers becaate interested in certificate of deposit acceunhe time deposit category grew by
$155.4 million or 19% during 2005. An increase mkered deposits was responsible for $44.8 miltio29% of this growth. Exclusive of
brokered deposits, the banks experiencing the sagyewth in time deposits were Rocky Mountain Babibuque Bank and Trust Company
and New Mexico Bank & Trust. Total brokered deposititstanding at Heartland’s bank subsidiaries @tiie year 2005 at $145.5 million, an
increase of $4.5 million or less than 4% since yarat 2004. The time deposit category increaseds$Blilion or 8% during 2004 when
excluding the $80.3 million attributable to timepdsits at Rocky Mountain Bank. The issuance of ére# deposits comprised $46.3 millior
83% of this increase. At year-end 2004, total breleleposits were $141.1 million, an increase 0% million since year-end 2003.



The table below sets forth the distribution of Hieend’s average deposit account balances and #rag® interest rates paid on each category

of deposits for the years indicated. Brokered ditfpagances are included in time deposits less $#i20,000.

AVERAGE DEPOSITS
For the years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 arl 200
(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004 2003
Percent Average Percent Average Percent Average
Average of Interest Average of Interest Average of Interest
Deposits  Deposits  Rate Deposits  Deposits  Rate Deposits  Deposits  Rate
Demand deposits $ 330,37¢ 16.1¢% 0.0(% $ 278,43 158&% 0.0(% $ 204,81: 145% 0.0%
Savings 754,08t 36.8¢ 1.4¢ 670,75¢ 38.2F 0.8¢ 532,020 37.8¢ 0.9C
Time deposits less than
$100,000 758,44¢ 37.1C 3.41 651,61: 37.1¢ 3.2z 527,62° 37.5t 3.65
Time deposits of $100,000
or more 201,37 9.8t 3.2z 152,78 8.71 2.5¢ 140,83« 10.0: 2.64
Total deposits $ 2,044,291 100.0% $ 1,753,58! 100.0% $ 1,405,291 100.0%

The following table sets forth the amount and mtas of time deposits of $100,000 or more at Deloen81, 2005.

TIME DEPOSITS $100,000 AND OVER
(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2005

3 months or less $ 36,63(
Over 3 months through 6 months 47,09¢
Over 6 months through 12 months 61,67"
Over 12 months 72,27(

$ 217,67

Short-term borrowings generally include federaldsipurchased, treasury tax and loan note optieasirisies sold under agreement to
repurchase and shagrm FHLB advances. These funding alternativesutiliged in varying degrees depending on theiripgand availability
At year-end 2005, short-term borrowings had inaeda24.1 million or 10%. At year-end 2004, shortidorrowings had increased $54.6
million or 31%, of which $29.5 million or 54% ofdtchange was borrowings at Rocky Mountain Bank.

All of the Bank Subsidiaries provide repurchasesagrents to their customer as a cash managemenswesping excess funds from demand
deposit accounts into these agreements. This sofifcading does not increase the bank’s resergeirements, nor does it create an expense
relating to FDIC premiums on deposits. Although @élggregate balance of repurchase agreements ecstijvariation, the account
relationships represented by these balances areigally local. During 2005, these balances hadeiased $12.5 million or 7%. Exclusive of
$9.9 million at Rocky Mountain Bank, r epurchasesggnent balances increased $46.8 million or 41%g@004. A majority of the increase
in 2004 was the result of one large municipal aotati New Mexico Bank & Trust of which a large pont of the balance was dispersed dui
the first six months of 2005. Additionally, as shtarm interest rates rose during the year, soiperohase agreement customers returned a
portion of their deposit balances to this moreitiquroduct from longer-term higher-yielding prodsict

Also included in short-term borrowings are the drédes Heartland entered into with two unaffigdtbanks. On January 31, 2004, Heartland
entered into a credit agreement with the two uliaffid banks with which we already had an existing of credit, and an additional
unaffiliated bank, to replace the existing revotyredit lines as well as to increase availabilitgler a revolving credit line. Under the new
revolving credit line, Heartland may borrow up @0$0 million. The previous credit line provided gp$50.0 million. The additional $20.0
million credit line was established primarily toopide working capital to the nonbanking subsidigiaad replace similasized lines currently
place at those subsidiaries. At December 31, 280&tal of $60.8 million was outstanding on theslit lines compared to $43.0 million at
December 31, 2004, and $25.0 million at DecembeRB@3. Additional borrowings were needed durin@2@ provide funding for the grow
at Citizens Finance Co., the purchase of additiasséts for operating leases at ULTEA and treastogk purchases. During 2004, additional
borrowings were needed during the third quartdadtilitate the redemption of $25.0 million in tryseferred securities.

The following table reflects short-term borrowinggjich in the aggregate have average balancesgitivinperiod greater than 30% of
stockholders' equity at the end of the period.

SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS



(Dollars in thousands)
As of or for the years ended
December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Balance at end of period $ 255,62 $ 231,47! $ 176,83
Maximum month-end amount outstanding 266,19: 231,47! 176,83!
Average month-end amount outstanding 233,05: 187,04¢ 151,03
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 3.68% 1.88% 1.36%
Weighted average interest rate for the year 2.99% 1.67% 1.54%

Other borrowings include all debt arrangements Hbaat and its subsidiaries have entered into withireal maturities that extend beyond one
year. These borrowings were $220.9 million at Ddeen81, 2005, compared to $196.2 million at Decar3tie 2004. Balances outstanding
trust preferred capital securities issued by Haadlare included in total other borrowings. On 8etiter 30, 2004, $25.0 million 9.60% trust
preferred capital securities, originally issued 899, were redeemed. On March 17, 2004, Heartlanmpteted an additional issuance of $25.0
million in variable rate cumulative capital seciast This variable rate issuance matures on Marcl2@34, and bears interest at the rate of
2.75% per annum over the three-month LIBOR rateaésulated each quarter. As a result of the Rddkyntain Bancorporation acquisition,
Heartland assumed the outstanding obligation od #tilion of trust preferred capital securities onétg on September 7, 2030. A schedule of
the Heartland’s trust preferred offerings outstagdas of December 31, 2005, is as follows:

Amount Issuance Interest Maturity Callable
Issued Date Rate Date Date
$ 5,000,001 08/07/00 10.60% 09/07/30 09/07/10
8,000,001 12/18/01 Variable 12/18/31 12/18/06
5,000,001 06/27/02 Variable 06/30/32 06/30/07
20,000,00 10/10/03 8.25% 10/10/33 10/10/08
25,000,00 03/17/04 Variable 03/17/34 03/17/09
$ 63,000,00

Also in other borrowings are the Bank Subsidiarkesrowings from the FHLB. All of the Heartland banown stock in the FHLB of Chicago,
Dallas, Des Moines, Seattle or San Francisco, @matiiem to borrow funds from their respective FHioB short- or long-term purposes under
a variety of programs. Total FHLB borrowings at Bexber 31, 2005, totaled $151.0 million, an increzsk27.6 million or 22% over the
December 31, 2004, total FHLB borrowings of $128iion. These advances, the majority of which fixed-rate advances with original
terms between three and five years, were usedchtbdiportion of the fixed-rate commercial and restéhl loan growth experienced. During
2004, these borrowings had increased $22.0 miio22% from $101.5 million at year-end 2003. Ottinicrease, $19.1 million was
attributable to Rocky Mountain Bank.




The following table summarizes significant conttedtobligations and other commitments as of Decerhe2005:

(Dollars in thousands)
Payments Due By Period

Less than One Oneto Three Three to Five More than Five

Total Year Years Years Years
Contractual obligations:
Long-term debt obligations $ 220,87 % 83,301 % 24,34¢ $ 23,95 $ 89,27:
Operating lease obligations 4,13¢ 901 1,25¢ 80C 1,18
Purchase obligations 33,74 32,51( 1,23 - -
Other long-term liabilities 3,67¢ 1,26¢ 21¢ 21¢ 1,96¢
Total contractual obligations $ 262,42: $ 117,98: $ 27,05( $ 2497( $ 92,42
Other commitments:
Lines of credit $ 556,93t $ 440,49 $ 67,60: $ 18,96¢ $ 29,87
Standby letters of credit 25,67 21,28¢ 2,17¢ 23¢ 1,96¢
Total other commitments $ 582,60 $ 461,78: $ 69,78, $ 19,207 $ 31,83¢

CAPITAL RESOURCES

Heartland’s risk-based capital ratios, which take account the different credit risks among bamlssets, met all capital adequacy
requirements over the past three years. Tier t@atrisk-based capital ratios were 9.28% and 1%.6respectively, on December 31, 2005,
compared to 9.23% and 10.82%, respectively, on Dbee 31, 2004, and 10.29% and 12.42%, respectigalfpecember 31, 2003. At
December 31, 2005, Heartland’s leverage ratiordtie of Tier 1 capital to total average assetss W&6% compared to 7.26% and 8.07% at
December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively. Heartdaadts bank subsidiaries have been, and willinaatto be, managed so they meet the
well-capitalized requirements under the regulafomynework for prompt corrective action. To be catgzed as well capitalized under the
regulatory framework, bank holding companies antkbanust maintain minimum total risk-based, Tieisk-based and Tier 1 leverage ratios
of 10%, 6% and 5%, respectively. The most recetification from the FDIC categorized Heartland aath of its bank subsidiaries as well
capitalized under the regulatory framework for ppprmorrective action. There are no conditions amas since that notification that
management believes have changed each institutategory.

Heartland’s capital ratios are detailed in theedi#low.

RISK-BASED CAPITAL RATIOS 1
(Dollars in thousands)
December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Capital Ratios:

Tier 1 capital $ 209,96¢ 9.28%  $ 187,42 92% $ 158,34t 10.2%
Tier 1 capital minimum requirement 90,51« 4.0(% 81,25 4.0(% 61,53¢ 4.0(%
Excess $ 119,45 528  $ 106,17: 52% $ 96,81( 6.25%
Total capital $ 240,15 10.61% $ 219,83¢ 10.8% $ 191,06( 12.42%
Total capital minimum requirement 181,02¢ 8.0(% 162,50: 8.0(% 123,07: 8.0(%
Excess $ 59,12« 261% $ 57,33¢ 28% $ 67,98t¢ 4.42%
Total risk-adjusted assets m - m - m -

1 Based on the risk-based capital guidelines of ¢éderfal Reserve, a bank holding company is requiredaintain a Tier 1 to risk-adjusted
assets ratio of 4.00% and total capital to riskiatdjd assets ratio of 8.00%




LEVERAGE RATIOS 1
(Dollars in thousands)
December 31,

2005 2004 2003
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Capital Ratios:
Tier 1 capital $ 209,96¢ 766 % 187,42: 72¢% % 158,34t 8.07%
Tier 1 capital minimum requiremeft 109,63 4.0(% 103,16 4.0(% 78,46¢ 4.0(%
Excess $ 100,33: 3.66% $ 84,26( 32% $ 79,88: 4.01%
Average adjusted assets $ 2,740,92 $ 2,580,62 $ 1,961,58

1 The leverage ratio is defined as the ratio of Tieapital to average total assets.
2 Management of Heartland has established a mininamget leverage ratio of 4.00%. Based on Federa¢iReguidelines, a bank holding
company generally is required to maintain a levenagio of 3.00% plus an additional cushion ofeaist 100 basis points.

Commitments for capital expenditures are an impfiactor in evaluating capital adequacy. On Jan@ar 2006,

Heartland completed an offering of $20.0 millionvafiable rate cumulative trust preferred secugitepresenting undivided beneficial interests
in Heartland Statutory Trust V. The proceeds from dffering were used by the trust to purchasejustibordinated debentures from
Heartland. The proceeds will be used as a permaoemte of funding for Heartland’s nonbanking sdiasies and for general corporate
purposes, including future acquisitions. Interegiayable quarterly on April 30, July 31, Octob&raBd January 31 of each year. The
debentures will mature and the trust preferred riesi must be redeemed on January 31, 2036. ldedrtias the option to shorten the maturity
date to a date not earlier than January 31, 20drlrdgulatory purposes, all $20.0 million shoulclify as Tier 2 capital.

On January 12, 2006, Heartland announced thatislgmed a definitive agreement to acquire BantkhefSouthwest, a financial institution
providing retail and commercial banking service®Phoenix and Tempe, Arizona. Heartland expect®mobine the acquired assets and deposit
accounts into Arizona Bank & Trust. The total pursé price is $18 million payable in cash. Subjeepprovals by bank regulatory authorities
and shareholders, the transaction is expectea$e curing the second quarter of 2006.

In December of 2005, Heartland and Wisconsin ConitpBank were parties to a trial in which it wategled that the contract relating to the
2002 sale of Wisconsin Community Bank’s Eau Clam@nch was breached. The plaintiff alleged dama§&&.4 million, while Heartland and
Wisconsin Community Bank alleged damages of $6@i@@ counterclaim. The judge requested writtguarents from both parties by
January 27, 2006, and has indicated that he intendscide the case shortly thereafter. Heartlaig\es the claims against it and Wisconsin
Community Bank are without merit and continuesefedd their positions vigorously.

In August of 2005, Heartland announced the addibioa loan production office in Denver, Coloradal ais hopes to use this office as a
springboard to opening a full-service state chaddrank in this market during the second quart@066. The capital structure of this new
bank, to be named Summit Bank & Trust, is anti@dab be very similar to that used when ArizonalB&rTrust was formed. Heartland’s
initial investment would be $12.0 million, or 80%the targeted $15.0 million initial capital. Allinority stockholders will enter into a stock
transfer agreement that imposes certain restrigtiomthe investor's sale, transfer or other disiposof their shares in Summit Bank & Trust
and requires Heartland to repurchase the shamesifreestors five years from the date of opening.

In February of 2003, Heartland entered into anemgent with a group of Arizona business leaderstaldish a new bank in Mesa. The new
bank began operations on August 18, 2003. Hearfanitial investment in Arizona Bank & Trust wag&Z&0 million, which currently reflects
an ownership percentage of 86%. All minority stanklers have entered into a stock transfer agreethahimposes certain restrictions on the
investor's sale, transfer or other dispositiorhefrt shares and requires Heartland to repurchasghidwes from the investor in 2008.

Heartland had an incentive compensation agreemigmicertain employees of one of the Bank Subsidgmone of whom is an executive
officer of Heartland, that required a total paymein$3.5 million to be made no later than Febru2®y2004, to those who remained employed
with the subsidiary on December 31, 2003. On Janisy 2004, one-third of the payment was made & @nd the remaining two-thirds in
stock options on Heartland’s common stock exerégsabJanuary 2005 and January 2006. The obligat@s accrued over the performance
period from January 1, 2000, to December 31, 2003.

During 2006, we plan to continue the expansionufexisting banks. New Mexico Bank & Trust opene@ @ew location in Albuquerque in
January and construction is under way on an additisite in Albuquerque with opening targeted fod+karch. Plans are also being develc
for one new location in Santa Fe with completiagéted for the fourth quarter. Construction on @& sie in Chandler, Arizona for Arizona
Bank & Trust is underway with completion targeted April 2006 and plans are being developed foadditional site in Gilbert, Arizona for
completion during the third quarter. Expansionhie West is consistent with our long-range goalaeehat least 50 percent of our assets in this



fast growing region of the United States. Additily, in the Midwest, we plan to add one branatat®n in Madison, Wisconsin under the
Wisconsin Community Bank. Costs related to the tanton of these facilities are anticipated todpproximately $18 million in the
aggregate.

Heartland continues to explore opportunities toaexpits umbrella of independent community banksugh mergers and acquisitions as well
as de novo and branching opportunities. Futurerakipges relating to expansion efforts, in additiorthose identified above, are not estim:
at this time

LIQUIDITY

Liquidity refers to Heartland’s ability to maintaincash flow, which is adequate to meet matuririggations and existing commitments, to
withstand fluctuations in deposit levels, to fungkmations and to provide for customers’ credit sedthe liquidity of Heartland principally
depends on cash flows from operating activitiegegtment in and maturity of assets, changes imbatof deposits and borrowings and its
ability to borrow funds in the money or capital fets.

Net cash outflows from investing activities werd$2 million during 2005, $263.0 million during 20@nd $276.1 million during 2003. T
decrease in the cash outflows during 2005 fromstimg activities was primarily a result of actieii within the securities portfolio. A s the
yield curve steepened during the first quarter@¥4£ agency securities nearing maturity were sotiraplaced with a combination of I-term
and longer-term agency securities that providedeoéd yields. Additionally, management purchasedesionger-term municipal securities to
take advantage of the unusually steep slope igithé curve and the spread of the tax-equivalealdydn municipal securities over the yield on
agency securities with the same maturities. DUZiD@5, a portion of the proceeds from securitiesssglaydowns and maturities was used to
fund loan growth.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $07jillion during 2005, $225.0 million during 2004d2$206.9 million during 2003. Durir
2005, there was a net increase in deposit accofifts34.3 million compared to $205.4 million durigg04. Like many banks, Heartland has
had difficulty maintaining a consistent level ofpdsit growth from year to year as the competitmndeposit balances grows. The increase in
net cash provided by financing activities durin@2Q@vas primarily the result of growth in time dep®and short-term borrowings, which was
partially offset by repayments of other borrowingsuding the $25.0 million redemption of trust faeed securities.

Management of investing and financing activities] anarket conditions, determine the level and thbikty of net interest cash flows.
Management attempts to mitigate the impact of chamg market interest rates to the extent possibl¢hat balance sheet growth is the
principal determinant of growth in net interesttcélsws.

Heartland’s shorterm borrowing balances are dependent on commerasdl management and smaller correspondent batlorships and, ¢
such, will normally fluctuate. Heartland believeede balances, on average, to be stable sourf@sdsf however, it intends to rely on deposit
growth and additional FHLB borrowings in the future

In the event of short-term liquidity needs, the B&ubsidiaries may purchase federal funds from e#wér or from correspondent banks and
may also borrow from the Federal Reserve Bank. #althlly, the subsidiary banks' FHLB membershipseghem the ability to borrow funds
for short- and long-term purposes under a variéyrograms.

At December 31, 2005, Heartland’s revolving crediteement with third-party banks provided a maxinfnorrowing capacity of $70.0
million, of which $60.8 million had been borrowed portion of these lines provide funding for theeogtions of Citizens and ULTEA. At
December 31, 2005, the borrowings on these line€itizens and ULTEA were $25.0 million and $10.0lion, respectively. The revolving
credit agreement contains specific covenants wiaiotgng other things, limit dividend payments arsdriet the sale of assets by Heartland
under certain circumstances. Also contained withéhnagreement are certain financial covenantsydhiat) the maintenance by Heartland of a
maximum nonperforming assets to total loans ratimjmum return on average assets ratio and maxifomeied debt to total equity capital
ratio. In addition, Heartland and each of its banksidiaries must remain well capitalized, as @efifrom time to time by the federal banking
regulators. At December 31, 2005, Heartland wampliance with the covenants contained in theiteggteement.

The ability of Heartland to pay dividends to itsckholders is partially dependent upon dividendd pg its subsidiaries. The Heartland banks
are subject to certain statutory and regulatorfrict®ns on the amount they may pay in dividentts maintain acceptable capital ratios in the
Heartland banks, certain portions of their retaiaacthings are not available for the payment ofddinids. Additionally, as described above,
Heartland’s revolving credit agreement requiresBamk Subsidiaries to remain well capitalized. Retd earnings that could be available for
the payment of dividends to Heartland totaled agpiprately $20.8 million as of December 31, 2005, emithe capital requirements to remain
well capitalized.

EFFECTS OF INFLATION



Consolidated financial data included in this refa$ been prepared in accordance with accountingiples generally accepted in the United
States of America. Presently, these principlesireqeporting of financial position and operatirgults in terms of historical dollars, except
available for sale securities, trading securitied derivative instruments, which require reportitdair value. Changes in the relative value of
money due to inflation or recession are generaillyconsidered.

In management’s opinion, changes in interest rafflest the financial condition of a financial irtstion to a far greater degree than changes in
the inflation rate. While interest rates are gseatfluenced by changes in the inflation rate, tdeynot change at the same rate or in the same
magnitude as the inflation rate. Rather, interat volatility is based on changes in the expexdeiof inflation, as well as on changes in
monetary and fiscal policies. A financial institutis ability to be relatively unaffected by changeterest rates is a good indicator of its
capability to perform in today’s volatile econoneiasvironment. Heartland seeks to insulate itselihfinterest rate volatility by ensuring that
rate-sensitive assets and rate-sensitive lialslitéspond to changes in interest rates in a sitiifer frame and to a similar degree.

ITEM 7A.
QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adwvechanges in market prices and rates. Heartlanafkenrisk is comprised primarily of interest
rate risk resulting from its core banking acti\stief lending and deposit gathering. Interest ristemeasures the impact on earnings from
changes in interest rates and the effect on cufagmmarket values of Heartland’s assets, liak#itand off-balance sheet contracts. The
objective is to measure this risk and manage thanba sheet to avoid unacceptable potential fon@eic loss.

Heartland management continually develops and epplrategies to mitigate market risk. Exposumaoket risk is reviewed on a regular b

by the asset/liability committees at the banks amnda consolidated basis, by the Heartland managete®m and board of directors. Darling
Consulting Group, Inc. has been engaged to prasdet/liability management position assessmenstategy formulation services to
Heartland and its bank subsidiaries. At least guiyrta detailed review of Heartland's and eacthefBank Subsidiaries’ balance sheet risk
profile is performed. Included in these reviewsiaterest rate sensitivity analyses, which simutdtenges in net interest income in response to
various interest rate scenarios. This analysisiders current portfolio rates, existing maturitiesppricing opportunities and market interest
rates, in addition to prepayments and growth udiférent interest rate assumptions. Selectedegjias are modeled prior to implementatio
determine their effect on Heartland’s interest régk profile and net interest income. Through tise of these tools, Heartland has determined
that the balance sheet is structured such thahglthve first year of an upward shift in interestes, the positive change in net interest margin
were be minimal; whereas, in a downward shift eriest rates, the negative change in net interaggimwould be more significant. In a two
year horizon, the positive impact an upward shdtigd have on net interest margin increases to & msignificant level as does the nega
impact a downward shift would have on the net edgemargin, all other factors being held constathough management has entered into
derivative financial instruments to mitigate thepesure Heartland’s net interest margin has in ameavd rate environment, it does not believe
that Heartland’s primary market risk exposures lan those exposures were managed in 2005 haveialigtehanged when compared to
2004.

Derivative financial instruments include futuresnfards, interest rate swaps, option contractsodimer financial instruments with similar
characteristics. Heartland’s use of derivativeritial instruments relates to the management ofiskethat changes in interest rates will affect
its future interest payments. Heartland has amésteate swap contract to effectively convert 828illion of its variable rate interest rate debt
to fixed interest rate debt. Under the interest satap contract, Heartland agrees to pay an aneguat to a fixed rate of interest times a
notional principal amount of $25.0 million, andrexeive in return an amount equal to a specifiethiake rate of interest times the same
notional principal amount. The notional amountsraseexchanged and payments under the interesswetp contract are made monthly. This
contract expires on November 1, 2006. The fair miavklue of the interest rate swap contract wasrdstl as an asset in the amount of $55
thousand as of December 31, 2005. In July of 2B@3tland entered into a two-year interest raterfteansaction on prime at a strike level of
5.50% on a notional amount of $100.0 million. Aflamges in the fair market value of this hedge @etisn of $43 thousand flowed through
Heartland’s income statement under the other nerést income category since it is accounted far fage-standing derivative. The fair market
value of this floor contract was recorded as aetass$1 thousand as of December 31, 2005. In Sdmeof 2005, Heartland entered into a
five-year interest rate collar transaction on daratl amount of $50.0 million to further reduce titentially negative impact a downward
movement in interest rates would have on its ner@st income. This collar transaction is desighatea cash flow hedge of the overall
changes in the cash flows above and below thercsilifke rates associated with interest paymentseotain Heartland prime-based loans that
reset whenever prime changes. Heartland is ther payprime at a cap strike rate of 9.00% and thentarparty is the payer on prime at a floor
strike rate of 6.00%. As of December 31, 2005 féiremarket value of this collar transaction wasorgled as a liability of $143 thousand and
was accounted for as a cash flow hedge. By usingalives, Heartland is exposed to credit riskdfinterparties to derivative instruments do
not perform as expected. Heartland minimizes iblslyy entering into derivative contracts with leygtable financial institutions and Heartl:
has not experienced any losses from counterpartgerformance on derivative instruments.

Heartland does enter into financial instrumentwitf balance sheet risk in the normal course airrss to meet the financing needs of its
customers. These financial instruments include citments to extend credit and standby letters oficr&hese instruments involve, to varyi



degrees, elements of credit and interest rataénmisikcess of the amount recognized in the congelilhalance sheets. Commitments to extend
credit are agreements to lend to a customer asdsrtigere is no violation of any condition estdi#i in the contract. Commitments generally
have fixed expiration dates and may require caidtieom the borrower. Standby letters of credd eonditional commitments issued by
Heartland to guarantee the performance of a custtmeethird party up to a stated amount and wiic#fied terms and conditions. These
commitments to extend credit and standby lettexsedit are not recorded on the balance sheetthetinstrument is exercised.




The table below summarizes the scheduled matunfiezarket risk sensitive assets and liabilitie®BBecember 31, 2005.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Marlet Risk
Table of Market Risk Sensitive Instruments

December 31, 2005 (Dollars in thousands)

Average
Interest Estimated
MATURING IN: 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 Thereafter TOTAL Rate  Fair Value
ASSETS
Fed funds sold and other short-term
investments $ 40,59¢ $ -3 -$ -$ -$ -$ 40,59¢ 40(% $ 40,59¢
Time deposits in other financial
institutions - - - - - - - - -
Trading - - - - - 51k 51k - 51t
Securities 87,44 105,06. 134,08¢ 51,50 12,94: 136,21 527,25. 4.51 527,25.
Loans and leasé®:
Fixed rate loans 278,71 152,87° 163,53( 91,69¢ 99,01° 117,19: 903,02! 7.0: 902,14
Variable rate loans 515,40: 128,01° 96,93¢  46,81: 66,56 237,05¢ 1,090,781 7.3t 1,090,78I
Loans and leases 794,11 280,89: 260,46: 138,50t 165,58 354,25. 1,993,811 1,992,93
Total Market Risk Sensitive Assets $ 922,15¢ $385,95! $394,55! $190,00" $178,52: $ 490,98. $2,562,17 $2,561,29!
LIABILITIES
Savings $ 754,36( $ -$ -$ -$ -$ -$ 754,36( 1.8:2% $ 754,36(
Time deposits:
Fixed rate time certificates less
than $100,000 367,72¢ 210,08 98,39¢ 60,00( 37,52¢ 222 773,96( 3.6C 773,96(
Variable rate time certificates less
than $100,000 4,66: 9,81¢ 5,00¢ - - - 19,48( 3.2¢ 19,48(
Time deposits less than $100,000 372,39. 219,90 103,40: 60,00 37,52¢ 222 793,44( 793,44(
Time deposits of $100,000 or more  145,40: 32,84¢  25,30( 6,69¢ 7,42 - 217,67: 3.64 217,67:

Federal funds purchases, securities
sold under repurchase agreements



and other short-term borrowings
Other borrowings:
Fixed rate borrowings
Variable rate borrowings
Other borrowings

Total Market Risk Sensitive
Liabilities

(1) Includes loans held for sale

255,62 - - - - - 255,62
83,30 10,17¢ 14,16, 497  23,45¢ 50,09¢ 181,69

- - - - - 39,171 39,17:
83,30 10,17¢ 14,16, 497  23,45! 89,27: 220,87:

$1,611,07 $262,92¢ $142,86¢ $ 67,19:

$ 68,40¢ $ 89,49: $2,241,96!

3.6¢

3.9¢

5.57

255,62

181,40°
39,171

220,58

$2,241,67




ITEM 8.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks

Federal funds sold and other short-term investments

Cash and cash equivalents
Time deposits in other financial institutions
Securities:

Trading, at fair value

Available for sale, at fair value (cost of $528,647 2005 and

$547,585 for 2004)

Loans held for sale
Gross loans and leases:

Loans and leases

Allowance for loan and lease losses
Loans and leases, net
Assets under operating leases
Premises, furniture and equipment, net
Other real estate, net
Goodwiill
Intangible assets, net
Other assets

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
LIABILITIES:
Deposits:
Demand
Savings
Time
Total deposits
Short-term borrowings
Other borrowings
Accrued expenses and other liabilities
TOTAL LIABILITIES

Commitments and contingencies

STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY:

Preferred stock (par value $1 per share; authoriZ@4,000 shares,

none issued or outstanding)

Series A Junior Participating preferred stock (due $1 per share;
authorized, 16,000 shares, none issued or outsighdi

Common stock (par value $1 per share; authoriz@®0D,000
shares at December 31, 2005 and at December 34; 880ed
16,547,482 shares at December 31, 2005 and at e,

2004)
Capital surplus
Retained earnings

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss)

Notes

10
11

15

16, 17,18

December 31,

December 31,

2005 2004
$ 40,42: $ 68,91¢
40,59 4,83

81,02 73,74¢

- 1,17¢

51F 521

527,25: 552,76:

40,74 32,16

1,953,061 1,772,95.
(27,79) (24,979
1,925,27! 1,747,98.

40,64 35,18¢

92,76¢ 79,35:

1,58¢ 42F

35,39¢ 35,37«

9,15¢ 10,16:

63,96¢ 60,20(

$ 2,818,33; $ 2,629,05!
$ 352,70 $ 323,01
754,36 750,87
1,011,11. 909,96:
2,118,17: 1,983,84
255,62: 231,47

220,87 196,19

35,84¢ 41,75¢

2,630,521 2,453,27:

16,54° 16,54’

40,25¢ 40,44¢

135,11: 117,80

(1,01) 2,88¢



Treasury stock at cost (157,067 shares at Dece®ihe€2005 and
106,424 shares at December 31, 2004, respectively)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financiaé®ients.

(3,097) (1,900
187,81 175,78:
$ 2,818,33; $ 2,629,05!




HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

INTEREST INCOME:
Interest and fees on loans and leases
Interest on securities:
Taxable
Nontaxable
Interest on federal funds sold
Interest on interest bearing deposits in othemfiel institutions
TOTAL INTEREST INCOME
INTEREST EXPENSE:
Interest on deposits
Interest on short-term borrowings
Interest on other borrowings
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSE
NET INTEREST INCOME
Provision for loan and lease losses
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR LOAN
AND LEASE LOSSES
NONINTEREST INCOME:
Service charges and fees, net
Trust fees
Brokerage commissions
Insurance commissions
Securities gains, net
Gain (loss) on trading account securities
Impairment loss on equity securities
Rental income on operating leases
Gains on sale of loans
Valuation adjustment on mortgage servicing rights
Other noninterest income
TOTAL NONINTEREST INCOME
NONINTEREST EXPENSES:
Salaries and employee benefits
Occupancy
Furniture and equipment
Depreciation on assets under operating leases
Outside services
FDIC deposit insurance assessment
Advertising
Intangible assets amortization
Other noninterest expenses
TOTAL NONINTEREST EXPENSES
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES
Income taxes

NET INCOME

EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE - BASIC
EARNINGS PER COMMON SHARE - DILUTED
CASH DIVIDENDS DECLARED PER COMMON SHARE

Notes

10
11

14
15

13

For the Years Ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
$ 13384 $ 103,01t $ 85,93¢
13,89¢ 13,40( 9,10¢

5,512 4,57 3,95:

47" 17t 35¢

277 227 174

154,00: 121,39 99,51
43,38: 30,84 27,76

6,98t 3,00t 2,35(

10,76 10,32 8,21

61,13 44.26: 38,32]

92,86 77,13( 61,19(

6,564 4,84¢ 4,18:

86,30: 72,28 57,00

11,33 9,91¢ 6,207

6,53( 4,96¢ 3,81¢

85¢ 1,10 862

54E 757 70z

19¢ 1,861 1,821

(11) 54 45°

- - (317)

15,46 13,78( 13,80’

3,52¢ 3,41( 6,33¢

39 92 33¢

3,10( 1,90( 2,511

41,58¢ 37,84 36,54

46,32¢ 39,44 33,11

6,017 4,97¢ 3,88(

6,187 5,32 4,11¢

12,59 11,36( 11,35:

8,17¢ 6,99¢ 4,69¢

272 241 21¢

3,26¢ 2,65¢ 2,35¢

1,01¢ 764 404

11,15¢ 10,17t 7,56(

95,01 81,93¢ 67,60:

32,87¢ 28,18¢ 25,85

10,15( 7,93 8,13

$ 22,72¢ $ 20,25  $ 17,71
$ 1.3t $ 126 $ 1.1¢
$ 1.3¢ $ 126 $ 1.1€
$ 03: $ 03: $ 0.27



See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.




HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands)

For the Years Ended
December 31,

Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Net income $
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cashigea by
operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization
Provision for loan and lease losses
Provision for deferred taxes
Net amortization of premium on securities
Securities gains, net
(Increase) decrease in trading account securities
Loss on impairment of equity securities
Loans originated for sale
Proceeds on sales of loans
Net gain on sales of loans
Increase in accrued interest receivable
Increase in accrued interest payable

Other, net

Net cash provided by operating activities

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Purchase of time deposits

Proceeds on maturities of time deposits

Proceeds from the sale of securities availablesdte

Proceeds from the maturity of and principal paydswn

securities available for sale

Purchase of securities available for sale

Net increase in loans and leases

Purchase of bank-owned life insurance policies

Increase in assets under operating leases

Capital expenditures

Net cash and cash equivalents received in acopngit
subsidiaries, net of cash paid

Net cash and cash equivalents paid in acquisitidrust
assets

Proceeds on sale of OREO and other repossessés asse

Net cash used by investing activities

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:
Net increase in demand deposits and savings account
Net increase in time deposit accounts
Net increase in short-term borrowings
Proceeds from other borrowings
Repayments of other borrowings
Purchase of treasury stock
Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Dividends paid

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR $

2005 2004 2003
22,72¢ 20,25. $ 17,71¢
20,02 17,36: 15,54:

6,561 4,84¢ 4,18¢
(327) (781) 2,46¢
2,95( 3,211 7,58(
(19€) (1,867) (1,829)
6 552 (158)
- 317
(273,75)  (243,99)  (434,85)
268,69 240,91¢ 438,67
(3,526) (3,410) (6,339)
(2,507) (716) (104)
1,47¢ 1,172 46¢
(7,176) 2,36¢ (3,55¢)
34,94¢ 39,92 40,12¢
- - (95)
1,17¢ - 70C
25,66: 116,06¢ 81,54
130,52 92,39¢ 188,52
(139,79)  (265,19) (334,949
(183,57)  (173,10) (171,799
- - (10,000)
(18,052) (14,919 (12,629
(19,726 (18,889  (18,67))
- 2,17¢ -
- (2,125) -
2,141 57¢ 1,24¢
(201,64) (263,000 (276,110
33,18: 110,84 106,07
101,14¢ 94,52 48,43(
24,14¢ 37,17: 15,45¢
59,97« 47,99 52,75(
(35,29¢) (57,08%) (5,097)
(5,782 (5,25¢) (7,999
2,007 1,814 1,33¢
(5,414 (5,036) (4,096)
173,96° 224,968 206,86
7,27: 1,88( (29,129
73,74¢ 71,86¢  100,99:
81,02 $ $

73,74¢

71,86¢



Supplemental disclosure:

Cash paid for income/franchise taxes $ 11,29¢ $ 2,26 $ 7,79t
Cash paid for interest $ 59,66 $ 40,33t $ 38,69
Acquisitions:
Net assets acquired $ - $ 19,961 $ -
Cash paid for purchase of stock $ - $ 1041 $ -
Cash acquired $ - $ 1259 $% -
Net cash received for acquisition $ - 9 2,17¢ % -
Common stock issued for acquisition $ - $ 24,08 % -

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ients.




HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

Accumulated

Other
Capital Retained Comprehensive Treasury
Common Stock Surplus Earnings Income (Loss) Stock Total
Balance at January 1, 2003 $ 9,90¢ $ 16,72t $ 94,04¢ $ 423 $ (868) $ 124,04:
Net Income 17,71¢ 17,71¢
Unrealized gain (loss) on
securities available for sale 2,03( 2,03(

Reclassification adjustment for t

security gains realized in net

income (1,50¢6) (1,50¢6)
Unrealized gain (loss) on

derivatives arising during the

period, net of realized losses of

$819 331 331
Income taxes (299 (291
Comprehensive income 18,28:
Cash dividends declared:

Common, $.27 per share (4,09¢) (4,09¢)
Three-for-two stock split 5,087 (5,08%) -
Purchase of 427,344 shares of

common stock (7,999 (7,999
Issuance of 821,226 shares of

common stock 26¢ 3,34( 7,08t 10,69
Balance at December 31, 2003 $ 1526: ¢_ 20,06 ¢ 10258 g 479 g 1.78) s 140,92
Net Income 20,25: 20,25:
Unrealized gain (loss) on

securities available for sale (2,03%) (2,03%)

Reclassification adjustment for t

security gains realized in net

income (1,867 (1,867
Unrealized gain (loss) on

derivatives arising during the

period net of realized losses of

$773 852 852
Income taxes 1,13¢ 1,13¢
Comprehensive income 18,34%
Cash dividends declared:

Common, $.32 per share (5,03¢6) (5,03¢)
Purchase of 290,994 shares of

common stock (5,259 (5,254
Issuance of 1,568,549 shares of

common stock 1,28¢ 20,38! 5,13¢ 26,80:
Balance at December 31, 2004 $ 16,547 $ 40,44¢ $ 117,80 $ 2,88¢ $ (1,900 $ 175,78
Net Income 22,72¢ 22,72¢
Unrealized gain (loss) on

securities available for sale (6,379 (6,379

Reclassification adjustment for t

security gains realized in net

income (19¢) (19¢€)
Unrealized gain (loss) on

derivatives arising during the

period, net of realized losses of

$289 337 337



Income taxes 2,33t 2,33¢

Comprehensive income 18,82¢
Cash dividends declared:

Common, $.33 per share (5,419 (5,414
Purchase of 290,651 shares of

common stock (5,789 (5,789
Issuance of 240,009 shares of

common stock (683) 4,59 3,90¢
Commitments to issue common

stock for restricted stock awar 49: 49:
Balance at December 31, 2005 $ 16,54, ¢__ 40.25¢ g 13511 ¢ (1,01} g (38.09 s 18781

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financié®ents.




NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
ONE
SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations - Heartland Financial USA, Inc. ("Heartland") is altitbank holding company primarily operating fultwice retail
banking offices serving communities in and aroundbijue and Lee Counties in lowa; Jo Daviess, Hdnand Winnebago Counties in
lllinois; Dane, Green, Sheboygan and Brown Couritiédisconsin; Bernalillo, Curry and Santa Fe Coestn New Mexico; Maricopa County
in Arizona; and Flathead, Gallatin, Jefferson, PemRiver, Ravalli, Sanders, Sheridan and YellowstGounties in Montana. The principal
services of Heartland, through its subsidiaries,RDIC-insured deposit accounts and related sesyvared loans to businesses and individuals.
The loans consist primarily of commercial and conuiaé real estate, agricultural and agriculturall restate and residential real estate.

Principles of Presentation - The consolidated financial statements include ttw®ants of Heartland and its subsidiaries: Dubuggek and
Trust Company; Galena State Bank and Trust Comg@mst, Community Bank; Riverside Community Bank;3a6nsin Community Bank;
New Mexico Bank & Trust; Arizona Bank & Trust; Rocklountain Bank; Citizens Finance Co.; ULTEA, IndTLF Capital Corp.; DB&T
Insurance, Inc.; DB&T Community Development Cotppearttand Community Development, Inc.; Heartlandaicial Capital Trust II;
Heartland Financial Statutory Trust Il; Heartlariddncial Statutory Trust Ill; Heartland Financiagatitory Trust IV; and Rocky Mountain
Statutory Trust I. All of Heartland’s subsidiariase wholly-owned except for Arizona Bank & Trustwhich Heartland was an 86% owner on
December 31, 2005. All significant intercompanyapales and transactions have been eliminated irobdation. The minority interest in the
majority-owned subsidiaries is immaterial and idied in other liabilities.

The consolidated financial statements have begraped in accordance with U.S. generally accepteduatting principles and prevailing
practices within the banking industry. In preparsugh financial statements, management is reqtorethke estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and ligsligind disclosure of contingent assets and li@silés of the date of the balance sheet and
revenues and expenses for the period. Actual sesaitld differ significantly from those estimat@smaterial estimate that is particularly
susceptible to significant change relates to thierdgnation of the allowance for loan and leassdss

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For purposes of reporting cash flows, cash and egalvalents include cash on hand, amounts due Ifiemks,
federal funds sold and other short-term investmébéserally, federal funds are purchased and soldrfe-day periods.

Trading Securities - Trading securities represent those securitiestidaa intends to actively trade and are statddiatalue with changes in
fair value reflected in noninterest income.

Securities Available for Sale - Available for sale securities consist of thoseusities not classified as held to maturity or tragl which
management intends to hold for indefinite periofisnoe or that may be sold in response to changéstérest rates, prepayments or other
similar factors. Such securities are stated atMaine with any unrealized gain or loss, net ofl@gple income tax, reported as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity. Security prensuand discounts are amortized/accreted using theest method over the period from the
purchase date to the expected maturity or call oftiee related security. Gains or losses fromstile of available for sale securities are
determined based upon the adjusted cost of théfispsecurity sold. Unrealized losses determinetigmther than temporary are charged to
operations.

Loans and Leases - Interest on loans is accrued and credited to incoased primarily on the principal balance outstagdincome from leas:

is recorded in decreasing amounts over the tertheofontract resulting in a level rate of returntlom lease investment. The policy of Heartl

is to discontinue the accrual of interest incomeoy loan or lease when, in the opinion of managenteere is a reasonable doubt as to the
timely collection of the interest and principal rmally when a loan is 90 days past due. When istexecruals are deemed uncollectible,
interest credited to income in the current yeaei@rsed and interest accrued in prior years isgeltbto the allowance for loan and lease losses
Nonaccrual loans and leases are returned to ana&tatus when, in the opinion of managementfittaancial position of the borrowe

indicates that there is no longer any reasonahblbtdas to the timely payment of interest and ppati

Under Heartland credit policies, all nonaccrual and restructuoeahs are defined as impaired loans. Loan impaitrisemeasured based on
present value of expected future cash flows distamliat the loan’s effective interest rate, excelpern® more practical, at the observable market
price of the loan or the fair value of the collaldf the loan is collateral dependent.

Net nonrefundable loan and lease origination feelscartain direct costs associated with the lengdiogess are deferred and recognized
yield adjustment over the life of the related l@arease

Loansheld for Sale - Loans held for sale are stated at the lower ef oomarket on an aggregate basis. Gains or lagssales are recorded
in noninterest income. Direct loan origination soshd fees are deferred at origination of the ld&iese deferred costs and fees are recognizec
in noninterest income as part of the gain on safiésans upon sale of the loan.



Mortgage Servicing and Transfers of Financial Assets - Heartland regularly sells residential mortgagen®to others on a non-recourse basis.
Sold loans are not included in the accompanyingalitated financial statements. Heartland genereligins the right to service the sold loans
for a fee. At December 31, 2005 and 2004, Heartlaasl servicing loans for others with aggregate ichpancipal balances of $582.7 million
and $575.2 million, respectively .

Allowance for Loan and Lease Losses - The allowance for loan and lease losses is maigdizén a level estimated by management to provide
for known and inherent risks in the loan and lgas#folios. The allowance is based upon a contiguéview of past loan and lease loss
experience, current economic conditions, volumevgiipthe underlying collateral value of the loansl eases and other relevant factors. L
and leases which are deemed uncollectible are etiarfj and deducted from the allowance. Provisiongoan and lease losses and recoveries
on previously charged-off loans and leases aredattdthe allowance. See the Critical Accountingd®®s$ section within management’s
discussion and analysis for more details.

Reserve for Unfunded Commitments —This reserve is maintained at a level that, indhmion of management, is adequate to absorb pteba
losses associated with Heartland’s commitmentrid fends under existing agreements such as lettdiises of credit. Management
determines the adequacy of the reserve for unfundednitments based upon reviews of individual darédiilities, current economic
conditions, the risk characteristics of the varioategories of commitments and other relevant facithe reserve is based on estimates, and
ultimate losses may vary from the current estimategse estimates are evaluated on a regular &rdjsas adjustments become necessary
are reported in earnings in the periods in whigythecome known. Draws on unfunded commitmentsatteatonsidered uncollectible at the
time funds are advanced are charged to the allosvaovisions for unfunded commitment losses, @cedveries on loans previously charged
off, are added to the reserve for unfunded commitsjevhich is included in th®ther Liabilities section of the consolidated balance sheets.

Prior to June 30, 2005, the reserve for unfundednositments was included in the allowance for loassé&s. During the second quarter of 2005,
approximately $319 thousand of the allowance wekassified to establish the reserve for unfundedrodments. Prior to January 1, 2005,
there was not any specific component of the allmgdor loan losses ascribed to unfunded commitmémtsefore this reclassification was not
applied to periods prior to 2005.

Premises, Furniture and Equipment - Premises, furniture and equipment are stated alessaccumulated depreciation. The provision for
depreciation of premises, furniture and equipmeitetermined by straight-line and accelerated nustibeer the estimated useful lives of 18 to
39 years for buildings, 15 years for land improvateend 3 to 7 years for furniture and equipment.

Other Real Estate - Other real estate represents property acquiredghréoreclosures and settlements of loans. Propedyired is carried at
the lower of the principal amount of the loan carsling at the time of acquisition, plus any acdigisicosts, or the estimated fair value of the
property, less disposal costs. The excess, if @stich costs at the time acquired over the fdirevés charged against the allowance for loan
and lease losses. Subsequent write downs estiroatiéte basis of later valuations, gains or lossesates and net expenses incurred in
maintaining such properties are charged to otheinterest expense.

Assets under Operating Leases - Assets under operating leases, generally autdemlare provided through ULTEA, Inc. These asaets
stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. fidwésion for depreciation of assets under operdtiages is recorded on a straight-line basis
over the life of the lease taking into accountébBmated residual value. These leases are calealaptime after the first twelve months.
Rental income on these operating leases is recegoiz a straight-line basis with a reset everywaehonths. At December 31, 2005, gross
balances of assets under operating leases wer@ $fllion and accumulated depreciation on thesetassas $21.3 million At December 31,
2004, gross balances of assets under operatingslease $52.5 million and accumulated depreciaiimthese assets was $17.3 million.

Intangible Assets - Intangible assets consist of goodwill, core dégmemiums, customer relationship intangibles amattgage servicing

rights. Goodwill represents the excess of the msetprice of acquired subsidiaries’ net assetstbedrfair value. Heartland assesses goodwill
for impairment annually, and more frequently in gresence of certain circumstances. Impairmentewben the carrying amount of the
goodwill exceeds its implied fair value. No impaemn was recorded for the years ended Decembei085, 2004 or 2003.

Core deposit premiums are amortized over ten yaaen accelerated basis. Customer relationshipgitiies are amortized over 22 years o
accelerated basis. Periodically, Heartland revigngsntangible assets for events or circumstartasmay indicate a change in the
recoverability of the underlying basis, except mgage servicing rights which are reviewed quarterly.

Mortgage servicing rights associated with loangindted and sold, where servicing is retainedcapstalized. The values of these capitalized
servicing rights are amortized in relation to teevicing revenue expected to be earned. The carmatues of these rights are reviewed
quarterly for impairment based on the calculatibtheir fair value as performed by an outside thgedty. For purposes of measuring
impairment, the rights are stratified into certagk characteristics including loan type, note rarepayment trends and external market factors.
No valuation allowance was required as of Decem3the2005, and a valuation allowance of $39 thousessirequired as of December

2004.



The following table summarizes the changes in aedipéd mortgage servicing rights:
(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004
Balance, beginning of year $ 3,252 $ 3,031
Originations 95¢€ 1,22¢
Amortization (9849) (1,102
Valuation adjustment 3¢ 92
Balance, end of year $ 3,261 $ 3,25z

Mortgage loans serviced for others were $582.7onilhnd $575.2 million as of December 31, 2005 204, respectively. Custodial escrow
balances maintained in connection with the mortdage servicing portfolio were approximately $2.8lion and $2.3 million as of December
31, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

Income Taxes - Heartland and its subsidiaries file a consoliddésttral income tax return. Heartland and its sulsis file separate income
or franchise tax returns as required by the vargtates.

Heartland has a tax allocation agreement whichigesvthat each subsidiary of the consolidated gpaypa tax liability to, or receive a tax
refund from Heartland, computed as if the subsyjdiead filed a separate return.

Heartland recognizes certain income and expensdiffénent time periods for financial reporting aimdome tax purposes. The provision for
deferred income taxes is based on an asset aiilityiapproach and represents the change in defén@ome tax accounts during the year,
including the effect of enacted tax rate changegalfation allowance is provided to reduce defeteadassets if their expected realization is
deemed not to be more likely than not.

Derivative Financial I nstruments - On occasion, Heartland uses derivative financistrimments as part of its interest rate risk managem
including interest rate swaps, caps, floors anthclHeartland records all derivatives on the ihedasheet at fair value. The accounting for
changes in the fair value of derivatives dependtherintended use of the derivative and the regyltiiesignation. Under Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards No. 138¢counting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities, as amended and interpreted, derivatives used to
hedge the exposure to variability in expected fitash flows are considered cash flow hedges.

For derivatives designated as cash flow hedgesfthetive portion of changes in the fair valugloé derivative is initially reported in other
comprehensive income and subsequently reclassdiedrnings when the hedged transaction affectsregs, while the ineffective portion of
changes in the fair value of the derivative, if aisyrecognized immediately in earnings. Heartlassesses the effectiveness of each hedging
relationship by comparing the changes in cash floftte derivative hedging instrument with the apesin cash flows of the designated
hedged item or transaction.

Heartland has no fair value hedging relationshiEsivatives not qualifying for hedge accountingsdified as free-standing derivatives, have
all changes in the fair value recorded on the ineastatement through noninterest income.

Heartland does not use derivatives for tradingoecslative purposes. Derivatives not designatdtedges are not speculative and are used to
manage Heartland’'s exposure to interest rate montenaad other identified risks, but do not meetdtniet hedge accounting requirements of
Statement 133 or are immaterial.

Treasury Stock - Treasury stock is accounted for by the cost metivbedreby shares of common stock reacquired arededat their
purchase price. When treasury stock is reissugddiierence between the sales proceeds, or faievwahen issued for business combinations,

and the cost is recognized as a charge or credapial surplus.

Trust Department Assets - Property held for customers in fiduciary or agenapacities is not included in the accompanying clidated
balance sheets, as such items are not assetsldédrdand banks.

Earnings Per Share - Amounts used in the determination of basic ahateti earnings per share for the years ended Dezredih 2005, 2004
and 2003 are shown in the table below:

(Dollars and number of shares in thousands)

2005 2004 2003
Net income $ 22,72¢ $ 20,25: $ 17,71¢
Weighted average common shares outstanding foc basnings per share 16,41t 15,86¢ 14,98«

Assumed incremental common shares issued uponigs@fcstock options 287 21¢ 274




Weighted average common shares for diluted earmiegshare 16,70: 16,08¢ 15,25¢

Earnings per common share-basic $ 1.3¢ $ 1.2¢ $ 1.1¢
Earnings per common share-diluted 1.3¢ 1.2¢ 1.1¢

Stock-Based Compensation - Heartland applies APB Opinion No. 25 in accougfior its stock options and, accordingly, no congagion cost
for its stock options has been recognized in tharftial statements. Had Heartland determined cosapiem cost based on the fair value at the
grant date for its stock options under FAS No. H&artland’s net income would have been reducdldegro forma amounts indicated below:

(Dollars in thousands, except earnings per shass da

2005 2004 2003
Net income as reporte $ 22,72¢ $ 20,25 $ 17,71¢
Additional compensation expense 21C 20C 21¢€
Pro forma $ 22,51¢ $ 20,05: $ 17,50:
Earnings per share-basic as reported $ 1.3¢ $ 1.2¢ $ 1.1¢
Pro forma 1.37 1.2¢ 1.17
Earnings per share-diluted as reported 1.3¢€ 1.2¢ 1.1¢
Pro forma 1.3¢ 1.2¢8 1.1¢

Pro forma net income only reflects options granitetthe years from 1996 through 2005. Therefore fatHémpact of calculating compensation
cost for stock options under FAS 123 is not reflddh the pro forma net income amounts presentedeabecause compensation is reflected
over the options’ vesting period, and compensatimst for options granted prior to January 1, 19960t considered.

Effect of New Financial Accounting Standards - In December 2004, the Financial Accounting Statsi®@oard (FASB) issued Statement of
Financial Accounting Standards No. 123 (revised42(8hare-Based Payment (FAS 123R), which replaces FAS 128;counting for Stock-

Based Compensation , and supersedes Accounting Principles Board OpiNio. 25 ,Accounting for Stock Issued to Employees . Heartland
adopted FAS 123R on January 1, 2006, using the iffraddorospective” transition method. The scop&afs 123R includes a wide range of
stock-based compensation arrangements includimy sfations, restricted stock plans, performabhased awards, stock appreciation rights
employee stock purchase plans. FAS 123R will requérto measure the cost of employee services/egtai exchange for an award of equity
instruments based upon the fair value of the awarthe grant date. That cost must be recognizétkeiincome statement over the vesting
period of the award. Under the “modified prospestitransition method, awards that are granted, fieztlor settled beginning at the date of
adoption will be measured and accounted for in @tzowce with FAS 123R. In addition, expense musebegnized in the income statement
unvested awards that were granted prior to theafedoption. The expense will be based on theviine determined at the grant date. Taking
into account our 2006 option grant, we anticiphte total stock option expense will reduce 200&iegs by approximately $.02 per share.

In May 2005, the FASB issued Statement No. B&¢punting Changes and Error Corrections (FAS 154), replacing APB Opinion No. 20,
Accounting for Changes, and FAS 3Reporting Accounting Changesin Interim Financial Satements . Unless specified in an accounting
standard, FAS 154 requires retrospective applindtqrior periods’ financial statements for chasmgeaccounting principle and correction of
errors. APB Opinion No. 20 previously provided thaist changes in accounting principle be recognimeiticluding in net income the
cumulative effect of changing to the new principlehe period of adoption. FAS 154 is effective fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2005. Heartland will adopt the provisions of FASIXH January 1, 2006.

On December 12, 2003, the Accounting StandardsEixecCommittee of the American Institute of Ceetif Public Accountants issued
Statement of Position 03-B¢counting for Certain Loans or Debt Securities Acquired ina transfer (“SOP 03-3"). SOP 03-3 addresses
accounting for differences between contractual ¢asts and cash flows expected to be collected faoninvestor’s initial investment in loans
or debt securities (“loans”) acquired in a tranféinose differences are attributable, at legtant, to credit quality. It includes such loans
acquired in purchase business combinations andesagpl all nongovernmental entities. SOP 03-3 dm¢spply to loans originated by the
entity. SOP 03-3 limits the yield that may be ateg“acceptable yield”) to the excess of the iheEs estimate of undiscounted expected
principal, interest and other cash flows (cash #@xpected at acquisition to be collected) oveiriestor’s initial investment in the loan SOP
03-3 requires that the excess of contractual dasisfover cash flows expected to be collected (qomnetable differencem)ot be recognized
an adjustment of yield, loss accrual or valuatiboveance. SOP 03-3 prohibits investors from dispigyaccretable yield and nonaccretable
difference in the balance sheet. Subsequent ineseaasash flows expected to be collected genesalbyld be recognized prospectively
through adjustment of the loan’s yield over its aémng life. Decreases in cash flows expected todliected should be recognized as
impairment. SOP 03-3 prohibits “carrying over” oeation of valuation allowances in the initial agoting of all loans acquired in a transfer
that are within the scope of SOP 03-3. This prdiuibiof the valuation allowance carryover appliestte purchase of an individual loan, a pool
of loans, a group of loans and loans acquiredgarahase business combination. SOP 03-3 was eféefcti loans acquired in fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2004. Heartland’s idof SOP 03-3 on January 1, 2005, did not haneterial effect on the consolidated
financial statements.



Reclassifications - Certain reclassifications have been made to jpeéoiods’ consolidated financial statements to @ldem on a basis
comparable with the current period’s consolidatedricial statements.

TWO
ACQUISITIONS

Heartland regularly explores opportunities for d@sijions of financial institutions and related messes. Generally, management does not
a public announcement about an acquisition oppitytumntil a definitive agreement has been signed.

On January 12, 2006, Heartland announced the gjgrfia definitive agreement to acquire Bank of Slmaithwest, a financial institution with
offices in Phoenix and Tempe, Arizona. Heartlangegts to combine the acquired assets and depesitiais into the existing Arizona Bank
Trust. The total purchase price is $18.0 millioggdae in cash. Subject to approvals by bank regolaauthorities and stockholders, the
transaction is expected to close in the secondeuai 2006. Bank of the Southwest had assets @0$nillion at December 31, 2005.

On August 31, 2004, Heartland completed its actioisbf the Wealth Management Group of ColonialsirGompany, a publicly held trust
company based in Phoenix, Arizona. The Wealth Mamamnt Group, Colonial Trust Company’s personak tdission, had trust assets of
$154.0 million and projected annual revenues o2 $dillion at August 31, 2004. The purchase prics %2.1 million, all in cash. The resultant
acquired customer relationship intangible of $8@8usand is being amortized over a period of 22s/éfdre remaining excess purchase price
over the fair value of tangible and identifiablégingible assets acquired of $1.3 million was reedrals goodwill on Heartland’s consolidated
financial statements.

On June 1, 2004, Heartland consummated its acquigif 100% of the outstanding common stock ofReeky Mountain Bancorporation, the
one-bank holding company of Rocky Mountain Bankweight locations in the Montana communities off8il, Billings, Bozeman, Broadus,
Plains, Plentywood, Stevensville and Whitehall. Roklountain Bank had total assets of $353.5 millimtal loans of $278.1 million and total
deposits of $285.7 million immediately prior to ttlesing on May 31, 2004. The purchase price fatkigdMountain Bancorporation of $34.5
million consisted of $10.4 million cash and 1,3&7,Zhares of Heartland common stock valued at #1838 share. The results of operation
Rocky Mountain Bank are included in the consoliddteancial statements from the acquisition datee Fesultant acquired core deposit
intangible of $4.7 million is being amortized oweperiod of ten years. The remaining excess puecpase over the fair value of tangible and
identifiable intangible assets acquired of $13.8iom was recorded as goodwill on Heartland’s cdiasded financial statements.

THREE
CASH AND DUE FROM BANKS

The Heartland banks are required to maintain aeg@érage cash reserve balances as a non-memtkeofitae Federal Reserve System. The
reserve balance requirements at December 31, 20304 were $5.5 and $10.1 million, respectively.

FOUR
SECURITIES

The amortized cost, gross unrealized gains anésomsd estimated fair values of available for satirities as of December 31, 2005 and :
are summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

Amortized Gross Unrealizec Gross Unrealizec Estimated Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

2005
Securities available for sale:
U.S. government corporations and agencies $ 239,48t $ - % (5,465 $ 234,02:
Mortgage-backed securities 131,80¢ 134 (1,609 130,33«
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 127,57t 5,78¢ (402) 132,95¢
Corporate debt securities 2,15¢ - (27) 2,132
Total debt securities 501,03( 5,91¢ (7,509 499,44!
Equity securities 27,61% 371 (181) 27,80%

Total $ 528,64 $ 6,28¢ $ (7,689 $ 527,25




(Dollars in thousands)

Amortized Gross Unrealizec Gross Unrealizec Estimated Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value

2004
Securities available for sale:
U.S. government corporations and agencies $ 220,85t $ 41 $ (1,600 $ 219,67(
Mortgage-backed securities 164,99: 39¢ (812) 164,58(
Obligations of states and political subdivisions 117,02¢ 6,77 (181 123,62:
Corporate debt securities 18,24: - (27) 18,21«
Total debt securities 521,11¢ 7,591 (2,627) 526,08t
Equity securities 26,46 22¢ (20) 26,67¢
Total $ 547,58! $ 7,81¢ $ (2,64) $ 552,76:

All of our U.S. government corporations and agesisiecurities and a majority of our mortgage-badesdirities are issuances of government-
sponsored enterprises.

Included in the equity securities at December 8D52and 2004, were shares of stock in the FedemadeH_oan Bank of Des Moines, Chicago,
Dallas, San Francisco and Seattle at an amortiastdot $17.2 million and $22.2 million, respectiweThere were no unrealized gains or losses
recorded on these securities as they are not yeaditketable.

The amortized cost and estimated fair value of deburrities available for sale at December 31, 2b9®stimated maturity, are as follows.

Expected maturities will differ from contractual tuaties because issuers may have the right toocgdrepay obligations with or without
penalties.

(Dollars in thousands)

Amortized Cost Estimated Fair Value

Securities available for sale:
Due in 1 year or less $ 88,02¢ $ 87,44!
Due in 1to 5 years 309,44 303,59¢
Due in 5 to 10 years 63,157 64,897
Due after 10 years 40,40¢ 43,51(
Total $ 501,03( $ 499,44!

As of December 31, 2005, securities with a faiueadf $340.1 million were pledged to secure puatid trust deposits, short-term borrowings
and for other purposes as required by law.

Gross gains and losses related to sales of sesufdti the years ended December 31, 2005, 2002@0®| are summarized as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004 2003
Securities sold:
Proceeds from sales $ 25,66 $ 116,06¢ $ 81,54¢
Gross security gains 37¢€ 2,11t 1,99(
Gross security losses 17¢ 254 167

During the years ended December 31, 2005, 2002808 Heartland incurred other than temporary impeirt losses of $0, $0 and $317
thousand, respectively, on equity securities alkelfor sale.

The following table summarizes the amount of urizedllosses, defined as the amount by which coatmartized cost exceeds fair value, and
the related fair value of investments with unreaditosses in Heartland’s securities portfolio aBetember 31, 2005. The investments were
segregated into two categories: those that have ibege continuous unrealized loss position for i 12 months and those that have been in
a continuous unrealized loss position for 12 orermaonths. The reference point for determining homglan investment was in an unrealized
loss position was December 31, 2005. No secultit@@ksan unrealized loss of greater than 12 monttes uUhrealized losses in the debt security
portfolio are the result of changes in interestsaind are not related to credit downgrades aéeharities. Therefore, Heartland has deeme
impairment as temporary. The fair market valueataltdebt securities temporarily impaired as of @aber 31, 2005, was no less than 98% of



Heartland’s cost to acquire these securities. énctise of the equity securities temporarily imghfor a period of less than twelve months, the
fair market value of the equity securities wasesslthan 96% of Heartland’s cost to acquire thesargies.

Unrealized Losses on Securities

December 31, 2005

Less than 12 months 12 months or longer Total
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized
Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses Fair Value Losses

U.S. government corporations and

agencies $ 234,02. % (5,46%) $ -$ - $ 234,02 % (5,46¢)
Mortgage-backed securities 114,12: (1,609 - - 114,12: (1,60¢)
Obligations of states and political

subdivisions 32,31: (402) - - 32,31: (402)
Other debt securities 2,13 (27) - - 2,13z 27)
Total debt securities 382,58t (7,507%) - - 382,58t (7,50%)
Equity securities 5,032 (181) - - 5,03: (181)

Total temporarily impaired securites $__ 387,61¢ $ (7,68 $ - $ - $ 3876L$  (7,684)




FIVE
LOANS AND LEASES

Loans and leases as of December 31, 2005 and 2@0d as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004

Commercial and commercial real estate 1,304,08! $ 1,162,10:
Residential mortgage 219,67: 212,84
Agricultural and agricultural real estate 230,35 217,86(
Consumer 181,01¢ 167,10¢
Loans, gross 1,935,12 1,759,91.
Unearned discount (1,870 (1,920
Deferred loan fees (,777) (1,329
Loans, net 1,931,48I 1,756,67!
Direct financing leases:

Gross rents receivable 20,41¢ 13,07¢

Estimated residual value 3,99¢ 4,497

Unearned income (2,828) (1,297

Direct financing leases, net 21,58¢ 16,28¢
Allowance for loan and lease losses (27,79)) (24,979
Loans and leases, net $ 1,925,227 $ 1,747,98

Direct financing leases receivable are generaltytsterm equipment leases. Future minimum leasenpays as of December 31, 2005, were as
follows: $8.0 million for 2006, $6.9 million for 27, $6.3 million for 2008, $2.1 million for 20099&3 thousand for 2010 and $140 thousand
thereafter.

Nearly 65% of the loan portfolio is concentratedhia Midwest States of lowa, Illinois and Wiscondgihe remaining portion of the loi
portfolio is concentrated in the Western StateN@fv Mexico, Arizona and Montana.

Loans and leases on a nonaccrual status amoun$dd & million and $9.8 million at December 31, 2@hd 2004, respectively. The
allowance for loan and lease losses related tethesaccrual loans was $1.2 million and $2.3 nilliespectively. The average balances of
nonaccrual loans for the years ended December0®B, 2004 and 2003 were $13.8 million, $7.3 millaord $4.3 million, respectively. For the
years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003g$tiecome which would have been recorded undeorilgenal terms of these loans a
leases amounted to approximately $1.1 million, $#®fisand and $475 thousand respectively, ancesttercome actually recorded amounted
to approximately $68 thousand, $88 thousand andl$iésand, respectively.

There were no loans and leases on a restructuaeg st December 31, 2005 and 2004.
Loans are made in the normal course of businedseotors, officers and principal holders of equagcurities of Heartland. The terms of these
loans, including interest rates and collateral,sam@lar to those prevailing for comparable tranigars and do not involve more than a normal

risk of collectibility. Changes in such loans dgrithe year ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, wdodl@aws:

(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004
Balance at beginning of year 35,46 30,93:
Advances 11,93¢ 16,21¢
Repayments (19,029 (11,687
28,37¢ 35,46"

Balance, end of year

SIX
ALLOWANCE FOR
LOAN AND LEASE LOSSES

Changes in the allowance for loan and lease |dssélke years ended December 31, 2005, 2004 angl, 20€re as follows:




(Dollars in thousands)

Balance at beginning of year

Provision for loan and lease losses from continaipgrations
Recoveries on loans and leases previously charffjed o

Loans and leases charged off

Adjustment for transfer to other liabilities forfunded commitments

Additions related to acquisition
Balance at end of year

2005

2003

24,97:
6,56
1,15¢

(4,579)

(319

16,09
4,18:
60¢
(2,39)

27,79:

18,49(




SEVEN
PREMISES, FURNITURE AND EQUIPMENT

Premises, furniture and equipment as of Decembe2(®15 and 2004, were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2005

Land and land improvements $
Buildings and building improvements

Furniture and equipment

20,05¢
70,77:
36,81:

Total
Less accumulated depreciation

127,64«

(34,879

Premises, furniture and equipment, net $

92,76¢

2004

14,71¢
62,44,
32,15:

109,31
(29,965

$

79,35!

Depreciation expense on premises, furniture angpetgnt was $5.8 million, $4.8 million and $3.5 naifi for 2005, 2004, and 2003,

respectively.

EIGHT
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The gross carrying amount of intangible assetsta@@ssociated accumulated amortization at DeceBIhe¥005 and 2004, are presented ir

tables below.

(Dollars in thousands)
December 31, 2005

December 31, 2004

Gross Carrying Accumulated Gross Carrying Accumulated
Amount Amortization Amount Amortization

Amortized intangible assets

Core deposit intangibles $ 9,217 % 4,16 $ 9,217 $ 3,20¢

Mortgage servicing rights 4,68 1,42z 4,25 1,00¢

Customer relationship intangible 917 75 917 18

Total $ 14,81¢  $ 5,66( $ 14,39: $ 4,22¢
Unamortized intangible assets $ 9,15¢ $ 10,16:
The following table shows the estimated future aimed intangible assets:

Core Customer
Deposit Mortgage Servicing Relationship
Intangibles Rights Intangible Total

Year ended:
2006 $ 85€ $ 982 $ 54 $ 1,89
2007 787 652 53 1,49
2008 787 542 51 1,381
2009 704 43t 50 1,18¢
2010 43t 32€ 49 81C
Thereafter 1,48t 32t 58t 2,39t
NINE
DEPOSITS

The aggregate amount of time certificates of deposienominations of $100,000 or more as of Decm3i, 2005 and 2004, were $217.7
million and $162.6 million, respectively. At Deceent81, 2005, the scheduled maturities of time fieates of deposit were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)



2006 $ 517,79.

2007 252,74¢
2008 128,70:
2009 66,69¢
2010 44,95(
Thereafter 222

$ 1,011,11.

Interest expense on deposits for the years endedrlger 31, 2005, 2004 and 2003, was as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004 2003
Savings and money market accounts $ 10,99 $ 5,89( $ 4,79¢
Time certificates of deposit in denominations 0,000 or more 6,50¢ 3,957 3,72(
Other time deposits 25,88 21,00: 19,24
Interest expense on deposits $ 43,38! $ 30,84¢ $ 27,76:




TEN
SHORT-TERM BORROWINGS

Short-term borrowings as of December 31, 2005 &t 2were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004
Securities sold under agreement to repurchase $ 181,98 $ 169,46°
Federal funds purchased 7,725 11,52t
U.S. Treasury demand note 5,16¢ 6,98
Citizens short-term notes - 50C
Notes payable to unaffiliated ban 60,75( 43,00(
Total $ 255,62 $ 231,47"

On January 31, 2004, Heartland entered into atcagdeéement with three unaffiliated banks to replac existing term credit line, as well as to
increase availability under a revolving credit lilnder the new unsecured revolving credit linesatdand may borrow up to $70.0 million at
any one time. The previous credit line provideda$50.0 million. The additional $20.0 million citline was established primarily to provide
working capital to the nonbanking subsidiaries eamlace similar sized lines currently in placehaise subsidiaries. At December 31, 2005 and
December 31, 2004, $60.8 million and $43.0 millwes outstanding on the revolving credit lines resipely.

All repurchase agreements as of December 31, 2002@04, were due within twelve months.

Average and maximum balances and rates on aggrelgateerm borrowings outstanding during the years eridecember 31, 2005, 2004 ¢
2003, were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004 2003
Maximum month-end balance $ 266,19: $ 231,47 $ 176,83¢
Average month-end balance 233,05: 187,04t 151,03
Weighted average interest rate for the year 2.99% 1.67% 1.54%
Weighted average interest rate at year-end 3.68% 1.88% 1.36%

Dubuque Bank and Trust Company is a participattiénBorrower-In-Custody of Collateral Program a Bederal Reserve Bank of Chicago,
which provides the capability to borrow short-tefmds under the Discount Window Program. Advancegteu this program were
collateralized by a portion of the commercial Igamtfolio of Dubuque Bank and Trust Company in éineount of $263.3 million at December
31, 2005, and $164.3 million at December 31, 20@%borrowings were utilized under the Discount WindProgram during either year.

ELEVEN
OTHER BORROWINGS

Other borrowings at December 31, 2005 and 2004 asgifollows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004

Advances from the FHLB; weighted average maturéied at December 31, 2005 and 2004 were

October 2008 and March 2007, respectively; and kte@javerage interest rates were 3.96% and

3.99%, respectively $ 151,04¢ $ 123,45(
Notes payable on leased assets with interestvatgsg from 2.36% to 6.49¢ 1,23( 4,59¢
Trust preferred securities 64,95 64,95!
Obligations to repurchase minority interest shafe&rizona Bank & Trust 2,23¢ 2,13
Community Development Block Grant Loan Program wihith City of Dubuque at 3.00% January

2014 30C 80C
Contracts payable for purchase of real estate 1,11C 264
Total $ 220,87 % 196,19:

The Heartland banks are members of the Federal Haae Bank ("FHLB") of Des Moines, Chicago, Dall&an Francisco and Seattle. The
advances from the FHLB are collateralized by thekisainvestment in FHLB stock of $9.0 and $8.8 millat December 31, 2005 and 2004,



respectively. Additional collateral is provided the banks’ one-to-four unit residential mortgagesnmercial and agricultural mortgages and
securities pledged totaling $715.7 million at Debem31, 2005 and $527.8 million at December 314200

On September 30, 2004, Heartland Financial Capitadt |, a trust subsidiary of Heartland, redeemliédf its $25.0 million 9.60% trust
preferred securities and its 9.60% common secariie redemption price equal to the $25.00 ligiodeamount of each security plus all
accrued and unpaid interest per security. The radddrust preferred securities were originally &bin 1999 and were listed on the American
Stock Exchange under the symbol “HFT”. Remainingmartized issuance costs associated with theseitiesof $959 thousand were
expensed under the noninterest expense categonyragemption.

Prior to the redemption of the 9.60% trust prefésecurities, Heartland had five whollyvned trust subsidiaries that were formed to isgust
preferred securities. At March 31, 2004, as a texfuthe adoption of FIN 46R, Heartland deconsdédathe trust subsidiaries. As a result of
deconsolidation, an additional $2.5 million of jaonsubordinated debentures previously issued bytlded to the trust subsidiaries was
included in other borrowings on the consolidateldtee sheet at March 31, 2004. The acquisitionamfii Mountain Bancorporation increas
the amount of junior subordinated debentures ireduid other borrowings on the consolidated balahet at June 30, 2004, to $2.7 million.
At December 31, 2004, this had decreased to $dl@mdue to the aforementioned redemption. The mmm stock issued by the trust
subsidiaries was recorded in securities availadnisdle in the consolidated balance sheet effebiaech 31, 2004. Prior to March 31, 2004,
trust subsidiaries were consolidated subsidiamekthe trust preferred securities were includedtier borrowings. The common securities and
debentures, along with the related income effeetseveliminated in the consolidated financial stagpts.

As a result of the Rocky Mountain Bancorporatiogusition, Heartland assumed the outstanding otitigaon $5.0 million of trust preferred
capital securities. Interest is payable semi-aripwal March 7 and September 7 of each year. Themtebes will mature and the trust preferred
securities must be redeemed on September 7, 2@20tl&hd has the option to shorten the maturitg ttat date not earlier than September 7,
2020. Heartland may not shorten the maturity datieout prior approval of the Board of Governordlod Federal Reserve System, if required.
Prior redemption is permitted under certain circtamees, such as changes in tax or regulatory ¢apiés. In connection with this offering, t
balance of deferred issuance costs included irr atbsets was $111 thousand as of December 31, PA65e deferred costs are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the life of the debentures

On March 17, 2004, Heartland completed an offeah§25.0 million of variable rate cumulative tryseferred securities representing
undivided beneficial interests in Heartland FinahStatutory Trust IV. The proceeds from the ofigrivere used by the trust to purchase ju
subordinated debentures from Heartland. The praceede used for general corporate purposes, imgyuditure acquisitions or the retirement
of debt. Interest is payable quarterly on MarchJdlife 17, September 17 and December 17 of eachTjreadebentures will mature and the
trust preferred securities must be redeemed oniMbr¢2034. Heartland has the option to shortemtétirity date to a date not earlier than
March 17, 2009. Heartland may not shorten the nitgtdate without prior approval of the Board of @onors of the Federal Reserve Syste
required. Prior redemption is permitted under é¢ertacumstances, such as changes in tax or regylagpital rules. In connection with this
offering, the balance of deferred issuance cosisidted in other assets was $14 thousand as of Degedd, 2005. These deferred costs are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the lifé¢hef debentures.

Heartland has an irrevocable obligation to repuseltae common shares of Arizona Bank & Trust owmecthinority shareholders on August
18, 2008. The minority shareholders are obligatesktl their shares to Heartland on that same d&ge minimum amount payable is the
amount originally paid by the minority shareholdphss a compounded annual return of 6%. The maxirmaomaunt payable will be based on
the greater of the fair value of those shares baped an appraisal performed by an independert fairty or a predetermined range of
multiples of the bank’s trailing twelve month eaxgé. Through December 31, 2005, Heartland accheedrmount due to the minority
shareholders at 6%. The obligation to repay thgimal investment is payable in cash or Heartlandlsbr a combination of cash and stock at
the option of the minority shareholder. The remamaf the obligation to the minority shareholderpayable in cash or Heartland stock or a
combination of cash and stock at the option of Haad. Additionally, the minority shareholders mayt their shares to Heartland at any time
through August 18, 2008, at an amount equal t@theunt originally paid plus 6% compounded annudlhe amount of the obligation as of
December 31, 2005, included in other borrowingd2i2 million.

On October 10, 2003, Heartland completed an offesin$20.0 million of 8.25% fixed rate cumulativepital securities representing undivided
beneficial interests in Heartland Statutory TruistThe proceeds from the offering were used byrtiaad Statutory Trust Il to purchase jun
subordinated debentures from Heartland. The pracedtbe used for general corporate purposes diolyfuture acquisitions or the retirem

of debt. Interest is payable quarterly on MarchRhe 30, September 30 and December 31 of eachTfreadebentures will mature and the
capital securities must be redeemed on Octobe2d®B. Heartland has the option to shorten the ritatdate to a date not earlier than October
10, 2008. Heartland may not shorten the maturitg @athout prior approval of the Board of Governofgshe Federal Reserve System, if
required. Prior redemption is permitted under éert&dcumstances, such as changes in tax or regylaapital rules. In connection with this
offering, the balance of deferred issuance cosisidied in other assets was $208 thousand as ohilege31, 2005. These deferred costs are
amortized on a straight-line basis over the lifé¢hef debentures.

On June 27, 2002, Heartland completed an offerfr&pd® million of variable rate cumulative capisacurities representing undivided



beneficial interests in Heartland Financial Captalst II. The proceeds from the offering were ubgdhe trust to purchase junior subordin:
debentures from Heartland. The proceeds are beiad for general corporate purposes. Interest islgayguarterly on March 30, June 30,
September 30 and December 30 of each year. Thetebs will mature and the capital securities nogstedeemed on June 30, 2032.
Heartland has the option to shorten the maturitg ttaa date not earlier than June 30, 2007. Heattinay not shorten the maturity date
without prior approval of the Board of Governorsloé Federal Reserve System, if required. Prioemgation is permitted under certain
circumstances, such as changes in tax or regulaggiyal rules. In connection with this offeringetbalance of deferred issuance costs incl
in other assets was $146 thousand as of Decemb@08%. These deferred costs are amortized omigistrine basis over the life of the
debentures.

On December 18, 2001, Heartland completed an afjesf $8.0 million of variable rate cumulative dapsecurities representing undivided
beneficial interests in Heartland Statutory TruisThe proceeds from the offering were used by Heaad Statutory Trust Il to purchase junior
subordinated debentures from Heartland. The pracastlbeing used for general corporate purposesgding the repayment of $8.0 million
indebtedness on the revolving credit lines. Inteiepayable quarterly on March 18, June 18, Sepérhi8 and December 18 of each year. The
debentures will mature and the capital securitiastrbe redeemed on December 18, 2031. Heartlandh&aption to shorten the maturity date
to a date not earlier than December 18, 2006. kearimay not shorten the maturity date without pajpproval of the Board of Governors of
the Federal Reserve System, if required. Priormgdi®n is permitted under certain circumstanceshss changes in tax or regulatory capital
rules. In connection with this offering, the balaraf deferred issuance costs included in othertsgsrs $212 thousand as of December 31,
2005. These deferred costs are amortized on glstiie basis over the life of the debentures.

For regulatory purposes, $62.9 and $57.5 milliothefcapital securities qualified as Tier 1 cafdibalregulatory purposes as of December 31,
2005 and 2004, respectively.

Future payments at December 31, 2005, for all diberowings were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2006 $ 83,30:
2007 10,17¢
2008 14,167
2009 497
2010 23,45¢
Thereafter 89,27

$ 220,87:
TWELVE

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

On occasion, Heartland uses derivative financistftiiments as part of its interest rate risk managenncluding interest rate swaps, caps,
floors and collars. On September 19, 2005, Healttariered into a five-year interest rate collansection on a notional amount of $50.0
million to further reduce the potentially negativgpact a downward movement in interest rates wbake on its net interest income. The c«
has an effective date of September 21, 2005, andtarity date of September 21, 2010. This collangaction is designated as a cash flow
hedge of the overall changes in the cash flows alamd below the collar strike rates associated widrest payments on certain Heartland
prime-based loans that reset whenever prime chahigestland is the payer on prime at a cap stike of 9.00% and the counterparty is the
payer on prime at a floor strike rate of 6.00%.0A®ecember 31, 2005, the fair market value of tiokar transaction was recorded as a
liability of $143 thousand and was accounted foa aash flow hedge.

Heartland also has an interest rate swap contaftectively convert $25.0 million of its variablgerest rate debt to fixed interest rate debt.
As of December 31, 2005, Heartland had an inteatstswap contract with a notional amount of $2billon to pay a fixed interest rate of
4.35% and receive a variable interest rate of 4.68%ed on $25.0 million of indebtedness. Paymamigiuthe interest rate swap contract are
made monthly. This contract expires on Novemb@0D6. The fair market value of the interest rataswontract was recorded as an asset of
$55 thousand as of December 31, 2005 and is acztbdmt as a cash flow hedge.

There was no ineffectiveness recognized on thegeash flow hedge transactions for the years endemember 31, 2005, 2004 or 2003. All
components of the derivative instrument’s gainosslwere included in the assessment of hedge igffaets.

As of December 31, 2005, $55 thousand of the nefalized gain on derivative instruments includedtimer comprehensive income was
expected to be reclassified as a realized reduofiamerest expense during 2006.

On July 8, 2005, Heartland entered into a two-ye@rest rate floor transaction on prime at a sttédvel of 5.5% on a notional amount of



$100.0 million. All changes in the fair market valof this hedge transaction of $43 thousand flothedugh Heartland’s income statement
under the other noninterest income category siniseaiccounted for as a free-standing derivative fair market value of this floor contract
was recorded as an asset of $1 thousand as of Dec&t, 2005.

By using derivatives, Heartland is exposed to ¢nesk if counterparties to derivative instrumedtsnot perform as expected. Heartland
minimizes this risk by entering into derivative t@tts with large, stable financial institutiongateartland has not experienced any losses
from counterparty nonperformance on derivativerursents.




THIRTEEN
INCOME TAXES

Income taxes for the years ended December 31, 2008, and 2003, were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

Current Deferred Total

2005

Federal $ 9,39¢ $ (2,490 $ 7,90¢
State 1,081 1,162 2,24¢
Total $ 10,47: $ (327) $ 10,15(
2004:

Federal $ 7,691 $ (802) $ 6,88¢
State 1,027 21 1,04¢
Total $ 8,71¢ $ (787) $ 7,93
2003:

Federal $ 4,20( $ 2,46 $ 6,66
State 1,472 2 1,47(C
Total $ 5,672 $ 2,46¢ $ 8,13

The income tax provisions above do not includeetffiects of income tax deductions resulting fromredees of stock options in the amounts of
$476 thousand, $463 thousand and $119 thousar@DB 2004 and 2003, respectively, which were remb@k increases to stockholder’s
equity. Additionally, the income tax provisions dot include federal rehabilitation tax credits 8fl8 thousand in 2005 and $1.1 million in
2004, state rehabilitation tax credits of $392 #and in 2005 and $1.4 million in 2004 and a statestment tax credit of $400 thousand in
2004, all of which were recorded as a reductiothendepreciable basis of the capitalized asseeférted tax asset had been recorded for the
$1.4 million ($915 thousand, net of federal tagtstrehabilitation tax credits as they initiallyreeot available until tax years 2011 and 2013.
During 2005, state legislation provided for earlgailability of these credits with $489 thousarditable in tax year 2005 and the remaining
$1.3 million available in tax year 2006. Additiolyalduring 2004, $222 thousand of the $400 thousawnelstment tax credit was recorded as a
deferred tax asset as the amount of estimatedhtdpeiapplicable state did not allow for full wdkion of this credit. For tax year 2005, it is
estimated that the amount of tax in the applicatdée will provide for utilization of $222 thousaafithe investment tax credits and $253
thousand of the state rehabilitation credits. Terapodifferences between the amounts reporteddditfancial statements and the tax basis of
assets and liabilities result in deferred taxesvhloation allowance was required for deferredassets at December 31, 2005 and 2004. Base
upon Heartland’s level of historical taxable incoamel anticipated future taxable income over thépgsrin which the deferred tax assets are
deductible, management believes it is more likegntnot that Heartland will realize the benefitshafse deductible differences. Deferred tax
assets and liabilities at December 31, 2005 and 206re as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004

Deferred tax assets:
Tax effect of net unrealized loss on derivativeteoted in stockholders’ equity $ 86 $ 211
Tax effect of net unrealized loss on securitieslabbe for sales reflected in

stockholders’ equity 52¢ -
Allowance for loan and lease losses 10,15} 8,87t
Deferred compensation 1,33¢ 2,112
Organization and acquisitions costs 52¢ 63E
Net operating loss carryforwar 59¢ 49¢
State rehabilitation tax credits 1,577 99¢
Other 33 191
Gross deferred tax assets $ 14,83¢ $ 13,51¢
Deferred tax liabilities:
Tax effect of net unrealized gain on securitieslabe for sale reflected in

stockholders’ equity $ - $ (1,939
Securities (965) (2,007
Premises, furniture and equipment (9,255 (8,02%)

Lease financing (2,495 (2,907



Tax bad debt reserves (517) (509)

Purchase accounting (3,429 (3,539
Prepaid expenses (651) 473)
Mortgage servicing rights (1,21¢) (1,187
Other (14%) (129)
Gross deferred tax liabilities $ (18,66¢) $ (19,69¢)
Net deferred tax liability $ (3,830 $ (6,177)

The deferred tax liabilities related to net unraadi gains on securities available for sale andi¢ffierred tax assets related to net unrealized
losses on derivatives had no effect on income xaerese as these gains and losses, net of taxesyegarded in other comprehensive income.

The actual income tax expense differs from the etqueamounts (computed by applying the U.S. fedmglorate tax rate of 35% for 2005,
2004 and 2003, to income before income taxes)|bsvs:

(Dollars in thousands)

2005 2004 2003

Computed “expected” amount $ 11,507 $ 9,86¢ $ 9,05(
Increase (decrease) resulting from:

Nontaxable interest income (1,929 (1,689 (1,360

State income taxes, net of federal tax benefit 1,45¢ 681 954

Nondeductible goodwill and other intangibles 57 77 64

Tax credits (419 (525) (442)

Other (530 (479 (129)
Income taxes $ 10,15( $ 7,93 $ 8,131
Effective tax rates 30.£% 28.2% 31.5%

Heartland had investments in certain low-incomesimy projects totaling $5.4 million as of DecemBgr 2005, $5.8 million as of December
31, 2004, and $4.5 million as of December 31, 28@3 majority of which have been fully consolidatedhe consolidated financial stateme
These investments are expected to generate fadeoamhe tax credits of approximately $225 thousamceich year through 2014. A 99.9%
ownership in a limited liability company was acauarin 2004 that provided a federal historic rehtgtibn credit totaling $675 thousand for 1
tax year 2004 and state historic rehabilitatiorditsetotaling $843 thousand for the tax years 2@0805 and 2007. In 2002, Heartland had
acquired a 99.9% ownership in a similarly struatduimited liability company that provided a fedehétoric rehabilitation credit totaling $389
thousand for the 2002 tax year and state histehalilitation credits totaling $450 thousand fa thx years 2002 and 2006.

FOURTEEN
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLANS

Heartland sponsors a defined contribution retirernpéan covering substantially all employees. Cdmittions to this plan are subject to apprc
by the Heartland Board of Directors. The Heartlanbsidiaries fund and record as an expense albapgrcontributions. Costs charged to
operating expenses were $2.4 million, $2.1 milliand $1.9 million for 2005, 2004, and 2003, respebt. This plan includes an employee
savings program, under which the Heartland subsédianake matching contributions of up to 2% ofplaeticipants’ wages. Costs charged to
operating expenses with respect to the matchingribations were $547 thousand, $410 thousand, 828 $housand for 2005, 2004, and 2(
respectively. Rocky Mountain Bank had a definedtgbuation employee savings program, under whichkyddountain Bank made matching
contributions of up to 6% of the participants’ wag€osts charged to operating expenses with regpéue matching contributions were $122
thousand for 2004. The plan assets were mergedhatbleartland employee savings plan in 2005.

FIFTEEN
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Heartland leases certain land and facilities umgerating leases. Minimum future rental commitment®ecember 31, 2005, for all non-
cancelable leases were as follows:

(Dollars in thousands)

2006 $ 901
2007 667
2008 587



2009 51C

2010 29C
Thereafter 1,18:
$ 4,13¢

Rental expense for premises and equipment leasiet operating leases was $1.6 million, $1.3 milliand $1.1 million for 2005, 2004, and
2003, respectively. Occupancy expense is presewtedf rental income of $1.0 million, $829 thousamdi $178 thousand for 2005, 2004 and
2003, respectively.

In the normal course of business, the Heartlandt$arake various commitments and incur certain ogetit liabilities that are not presente:
the accompanying consolidated financial statemditts.commitments and contingent liabilities inclvdeious guarantees, commitments to
extend credit and standby letters of credit.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements totleadcustomer as long as there is no violatioanyf condition established in the contract.
Commitments generally have fixed expiration datestber termination clauses and may require paymeatfee. Since many of the
commitments are expected to expire without beirgvdrupon, the total commitment amounts do not reecéyg represent future cash
requirements. The Heartland banks evaluate eatbroes's creditworthiness on a case-by-case bakis.amount of collateral obtained, if
deemed necessary by the Heartland banks upon edesfxredit, is based upon managemewotedit evaluation of the counterparty. Collat
held varies but may include accounts receivablentory, property, plant and equipment and incomuehpcing commercial properties.
Standby letters of credit and financial guaranteeden are conditional commitments issued by tleailand banks to guarantee the
performance of a customer to a third party. Thasggntees are primarily issued to support public@ivate borrowing arrangements. The
credit risk involved in issuing letters of creditéssentially the same as that involved in extenldian facilities to customers. At December 31,
2005 and 2004, commitments to extend credit agteedkb56.9 and $513.5 million, and standby letbéiredit aggregated $25.7 and $19.2
million, respectively. Heartland enters into comments to sell mortgage loans to reduce interestrisk on certain mortgage loans held for
sale and loan commitments. At December 31, 20032804, Heartland had commitments to sell residergal estate loans totaling $6.5 and
$6.3 million, respectively. Heartland does not eiptite any material loss as a result of the comsnitsiand contingent liabilities.

Heartland established a loss reserve for unfundetdrdtments, including loan commitments and lettdrsredit, during 2005 by reclassifying
$319 thousand of the allowance for loan losseDddember 31, 2005, the reserve for unfunded comanitsn which is included in other
liabilities on the consolidated balance sheet, agmoximately $340 thousand. The adequacy of therve for unfunded commitments is
reviewed on a quarterly basis, based upon changég iamounts of commitments, loss experience aodanic conditions.

In December 2005, Heartland and Wisconsin CommuBstyk were parties to a trial in which it was aidghat the contract relating to the
2002 sale of Wisconsin Community Bank’s Eau Clair@nch was breached. The plaintiff alleged dama§&8.4 million, while Heartland and
Wisconsin Community Bank alleged damages of $600gsand in a counterclaim. The judge requestedemratguments from both parties by
January 27, 2006, and has indicated that he intiendscide the case shortly thereafter. Heartlaliéves the claims against it and Wisconsin
Community Bank are without merit and continuesefedd their positions vigorously.

There are other certain legal proceedings pendjainat Heartland and its subsidiaries at Decembg2@05, that are ordinary routine litigat
incidental to business. While the ultimate outcarheurrent legal proceedings cannot be predictet gertainty, it is the opinion of
management that the resolution of these legalresbould not have a material effect on Heartlacmhsolidated financial position or result:
operations.

SIXTEEN
STOCK PLANS

On May 18, 2005, the Heartland 2005 Long-Term ItigerPlan was adopted, replacing the 2003 Stocko@flan. Under the 2005 Long-
Term Incentive Plan, 1,000,000 shares have beenvess for issuance. The 2005 Long-Term Incentian B administered by the Nominating
and Compensation Committee (“Compensation Commijttdfehe Board of Directors. All employees andatitors of, and service providers to,
Heartland or its subsidiaries are eligible to beegrarticipants in the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Pept that non-employees may not be
granted incentive stock options. The 2005 Long-Tereentive Plan provides for the grant of non-diedi and incentive stock options, stock
appreciation rights (“SARS”), stock awards and caskentive awards. The Compensation Committee aters the specific employees who
will be granted awards under the 2005 Long-Terneitive Plan and the type and amount of any suchdsv®ptions may be granted that are
either intended to be "incentive stock optionstlaned under Section 422 of the Internal Reveno@e®r not intended to be incentive stock
options ("non-qualified stock options"). The exsecprice of stock options granted will be estalelishy the Compensation Committee, but the
exercise price for the stock options may not be tean the fair market value of the shares on #te that the option is granted or, if greater,
par value of a share of stock. Each option graistedercisable in full at any time or from timetime, subject to vesting provisions, as
determined by the Compensation Committee and agded in the option agreement, but such time mayeRroeed ten years from the grant
date. At December 31, 2005, there were 865,71Gstarailable for issuance under the 2005 Ldagn Incentive Plan. At December 31, 2(



there were 804,250 shares available for issuanderthe 2003 Stock Option Plan. Shares availalslegtons forfeited under the 2003 Option
Plan are transferable to shares available unde2@BB Long-Term Incentive Plan. Shares availablefions forfeited under the 1993 Stock
Option Plan are not transferable to shares availabtier the 2003 Stock Option Plan or the 2005 Lbergn Incentive Plan.

Under the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan, SARS sy be granted. A SAR entitles the participantetteive stock equal in value to the

amount by which the fair market value of a spedifimber of shares on the exercise date exceedsxé¢heise price as established by the

Compensation Committee. SARS may be exercisablegfdo ten years after the date of grant. No SAR&been granted under the 2005
Long-Term Incentive Plan, the 2003 Stock OptiomRiathe 1993 Stock Option Plan.

Under the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan, stock awanay be granted as determined by the Compengatiommittee. In 2005, stock awards
totaling 136,500 were granted to key policy-makémgployees. These stock awards were granted atstaccthe employees, and $493
thousand of compensation expense was recordedm r2lated to these awards. These awards are gentinpon the achievement of
performance objectives through December 31, 2044 aaditional compensation expense will be recotbealigh 2010. In addition, 1,390
shares of stock were awarded to Heartland dire@taneturn for services performed, and $30 thousaasl recorded as compensation expense
in 2005.

As of December 31, 2005, no options have been adardder the 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan. A sumo&the status of the 2003 and
1993 Stock Option Plans as of December 31, 20034 20d 2003, and changes during the years ended$ol

2005 2004 2003
Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average Average
Shares Exercise Shares Exercise Shares Exercise
(000) Price (000) Price (000) Price
Outstanding at beginning of year 80¢ $ 11 83z $ 10 91¢ $ 9
Granted 10€ 21 97 19 11C 12
Exercised (113) 8 (11¢ 9 (18¢) 6
Forfeited (3 20 (2 18 (8) 9
Outstanding at end of year _ /¢ ¢ 13 8¢ $ 11 8%z $  1IC
Options exercisable at end of year 431 $ 10 47¢ $ 10 49¢ $ 10
Weighted-average fair value of options granted
during the year $6.1: $5.6¢ $4.0¢

As of December 31, 2005 and 2004, options outstendnder the 2003 and 1993 Stock Option Plans kextise prices ranging from $6 to ¢
per share and a weighted-average remaining conaidde of 5.04 and 5.13 years, respectively.

The fair value of stock options granted was deteeabiutilizing the Black Scholes valuation modegrificant assumptions include:

2005 2004 2003
Risk-free interest rate 4.00% 4.13% 4.01%
Expected option life 10 year 10 year 10 year
Expected volatility 19.75Y% 20.67% 17.69%
Expected dividends 1.52% 1.66% 2.25%

At Heartland’s annual meeting of stockholders oryNi&, 2005, the 2006 Employee Stock Purchase Fiar'2006 ESPP”), was adopted,
effective January 1, 2006. The 2006 ESPP repldeed296 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “1996°B3®ntinuing to permit all eligible
employees to purchase shares of Heartland comrook at a price of not less than 85% of the fairketwalue on the determination date (as
determined by the Committee). A maximum of 500,608res is available for sale under the 2006 ES®RhE years ended December 31,
2005 and 2004, Heartland approved a price of 10Dfdiomarket value as determined by averagingethsing price of the last five trading
days in 2004 and 2003, respectively. At DecembefB@5, 14,268 shares were purchased under the2BBP at no charge to Heartland’s
earnings. At December 31, 2004, 23,308 shares prehased under the 1996 ESPP at no charge tol&febstearnings.

During each of the years ended December 31, 2@} and 2003, Heartland acquired shares for ugei2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan,
2003 Stock Option Plan, the 2006 ESPP and the ES¥8°. Shares acquired totaled 290,651, 290,9942h844 for 2005, 2004 and 2003,
respectively.

SEVENTEEN
STOCKHOLDER RIGHTS PLAN



On June 7, 2002, Heartland adopted a stockholdghgs plan (the "Rights Plan"). Under the termshaf Rights Plan, on June 26, 2002, the
Board of Directors distributed one purchase rigitefach share of common stock outstanding as & 24n2002. Upon becoming exercisable,
each right entitles the registered holder theneofler certain limited circumstances, to purchagetbhnusandth of a share of Series A Junior
Participating preferred stock at an exercise pofc®35.00. Rights do not become exercisable uerildusiness days after any person or group
has acquired, commenced, or announced its intetdionmmence a tender or exchange offer to acq5¥¢ or more of Heartland’s common
stock. If the rights become exercisable, holdersawh right, other than the acquirer, upon payrogtite exercise price, will have the right to
purchase Heartland’s common stock (in lieu of preft shares) having a value equal to two timeexegecise price. If Heartland is acquired in
a merger, share exchange or other business conanmat50% or more of its consolidated assets anieg power are sold, rights holders, o
than the acquiring or adverse person or group,heilentitled to purchase the acquirer’'s sharesehigar discount. If the rights become
exercisable, Heartland may also exchange rightgrabhan those held by the acquiring or adversgopeor group, in whole or in part, at an
exchange ratio of one share of Heartland’s comntmeckger right held. Rights are redeemable by Hadtat any time until they are
exercisable at the exchange rate of $.01 per rigance of the rights has no immediate dilutiect does not currently affect reported
earnings per share, is not taxable to Heartlants @hareholders, and will not change the way iictvideartland’s shares are traded. The rights
expire on June 7, 2012.

In connection with the Rights Plan, Heartland deatgd 16,000 shares, par value $1.00 per sha8zrafs A Junior Participating preferred
stock. These shares, if issued, will be entitlecet®ive quarterly dividends and a liquidation prefice. There are no shares issued and
outstanding and Heartland does not anticipaterigsainy shares of Series A Junior Participatingepretl stock except as may be required L
the Rights Plan.

EIGHTEEN
REGULATORY CAPITAL REQUIREMENTS AND RESTRICTIONS ON SUBSIDIARY DIVIDENDS

The Heartland banks are subject to various regylaiapital requirements administered by the fedeaalking agencies. Failure to meet
minimum capital requirements can initiate certasmntatory, and possibly additional discretionaryioas by regulators that, if undertaken,
could have a direct material effect on the Headlbanks’ financial statements. The regulationsgiles specific capital adequacy guidelines
that involve guantitative measures of a bank’stasiabilities and certain off balance sheet itemagalculated under regulatory accounting
practices. Capital classification is also subjedualitative judgments by the regulators aboutponents, risk weightings and other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulatiemsure capital adequacy require the Heartland banksintain minimum amounts and rat
(set forth in the table below) of total and Tiecdpital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-gieed assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital
(as defined) to average assets (as defined). Mamagebelieves, as of December 31, 2005 and 2084ttth Heartland banks met all capital
adequacy requirements to which they were subject.

As of December 31, 2005, the most recent notificatiom the FDIC categorized each of the Heartlaautks as well capitalized under the
regulatory framework for prompt corrective actidio. be categorized as well capitalized, the Headtlaanks must maintain minimum total
risk-based, Tier 1 riskased and Tier 1 leverage ratios as set fortharidiowing table. There are no conditions or egesihce that notificatic
that management believes have changed each iistitutategory.




The Heartland banks’ actual capital amounts aridgatre also presented in the table below.
(Dollars in thousands)
To Be Well Capitalized

For Capital Adequacy  Under Prompt Corrective

Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2005
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated $ 240,15: 10.61% 181,02¢ 8.C% N/A
Dubuque Bank and Trust Company 71,471 10.8( 52,96¢ 8.C 66,21: 10.(%
Galena State Bank and Trust Company 19,73¢ 10.6¢ 14,78 8.C 18,48 10.C
First Community Bank 10,37: 11.41 7,271 8.C 9,08¢ 10.C
Riverside Community Bank 16,45 11.0: 11,93} 8.C 14,92 10.C
Wisconsin Community Bank 33,89t 11.17 24.,40( 8.C 30,50( 10.C
New Mexico Bank & Trust 41,74¢ 10.41 32,09¢ 8.C 40,12( 10.C
Arizona Bank & Trust 13,64% 11.97 9,12: 8.C 11,40 10.C
Rocky Mountain Bank 35,56« 11.3¢ 25,06: 8.C 31,32¢ 10.C
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated $  209,96¢ 9.2&% 90,51« 4.C% N/A
Dubuque Bank and Trust Company 63,981 9.6¢€ 26,48¢ 4.C 39,721 6.C%
Galena State Bank and Trust Company 17,53¢ 9.4¢ 7,39¢ 4.C 11,09! 6.C
First Community Bank 9,23t 10.1¢ 3,63t 4.C 5,45: 6.C
Riverside Community Bank 14,75t 9.8¢ 5,96¢ 4.0 8,95: 6.C
Wisconsin Community Bank 30,04: 9.8t 12,20( 4.0 18,30( 6.C
New Mexico Bank & Trust 37,17¢ 9.2 16,04¢ 4.C 24,07: 6.C
Arizona Bank & Trust 12,44 10.97 4,561 4.C 6,84: 6.C
Rocky Mountain Bank 31,641 10.1¢( 12,53! 4.C 18,797 6.C
Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)
Consolidated $  209,96¢ 766 $ 109,63 4.C% N/A
Dubuque Bank and Trust Company 63,98’ 7.8C 32,79t 4.0 40,99: 5.C%
Galena State Bank and Trust Company 17,53t 7.3¢4 9,56% 4.0 11,95: 5.C
First Community Bank 9,23t 7.6¢ 4,80¢ 4.C 6,007 5.C
Riverside Community Bank 14,75¢ 7.52 7,85(C 4.C 9,81: 5.C
Wisconsin Community Bank 30,04: 7.8E 15,31« 4.C 19,14: 5.C
New Mexico Bank & Trust 37,17¢ 7.1z 20,90( 4.C 26,12¢ 5.C
Arizona Bank & Trust 12,44¢ 9.7¢ 5,11z 4.C 6,39 5.C
Rocky Mountain Bank 31,64% 8.3¢ 15,18¢ 4.C 18,98! 5.C
(Dollars in thousands)
To Be Well Capitalized
For Capital Adequacy  Under Prompt Corrective
Actual Purposes Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2004
Total Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated $ 219,83¢ 108% $ 162,50 8.C% N/A
Dubuque Bank and Trust Company 64,37 10.6: 48,44¢ 8.C 60,55¢ 10.(%
Galena State Bank and Trust Company 19,28¢ 12.31 12,53( 8.C 15,66: 10.C
First Community Bank 10,68’ 13.3¢ 6,41( 8.C 8,01z 10.C
Riverside Community Bank 14,99¢ 10.4¢ 11,441 8.C 14,30: 10.C
Wisconsin Community Bank 31,09t 10.67 23,311 8.C 29,14¢ 10.C
New Mexico Bank & Trust 37,71¢ 10.5¢ 28,60" 8.C 35,75¢ 10.C
Arizona Bank & Trust 13,01% 17.9( 5,817 8.C 7,271 10.C
Rocky Mountain Bank 33,29¢ 11.97 22,25( 8.C 27,811 10.C
Tier 1 Capital (to Risk-Weighted Assets)
Consolidated $ 187,42 92% % 81,25! 4.C% N/A



Dubuque Bank and Trust Company 57,781 9.5¢ 24,22: 4.C 36,33t 6.C%

Galena State Bank and Trust Company 17,53¢ 11.2( 6,26¢ 4.C 9,397 6.C
First Community Bank 9,68¢ 12.0¢ 3,20t 4.C 4,807 6.C
Riverside Community Bank 13,447 9.4( 5,721 4.0 8,581 6.C
Wisconsin Community Bank 27,44¢ 9.4z 11,65¢ 4.0 17,48¢ 6.C
New Mexico Bank & Trust 33,48¢ 9.3¢ 14,304 4.C 21,45¢ 6.C
Arizona Bank & Trust 12,24¢ 16.8¢ 2,90¢ 4.C 4,36: 6.C
Rocky Mountain Bank 29,81 10.72 11,12¢ 4.C 16,68¢ 6.C

Tier 1 Capital (to Average Assets)

Consolidated $ 187,42 7.2¢% $ 103,21: 4.C% N/A
Dubuque Bank and Trust Company 57,78: 7.4 30,93¢ 4.0 38,66¢ 5.C%
Galena State Bank and Trust Company 17,53¢ 7.7C 9,11¢ 4.0 11,39t 5.C
First Community Bank 9,68¢ 8.3¢ 4,62 4.C 5,77¢ 5.C
Riverside Community Bank 13,44" 7.0z 7,661 4.C 9,57¢ 5.C
Wisconsin Community Bank 27,44t 7.2¢ 15,06: 4.C 18,82¢ 5.C
New Mexico Bank & Trust 33,48¢ 7.51 17,84( 4.C 22,30( 5.C
Arizona Bank & Trust 12,24¢ 13.9¢ 3,50z 4.C 4,37¢ 5.C
Rocky Mountain Bank 29,81: 8.1¢ 14,56° 4.C 18,20¢ 5.C

The ability of Heartland to pay dividends to itsdtholders is dependent upon dividends paid bsubsidiaries. The Heartland banks are
subject to certain statutory and regulatory restms on the amount they may pay in dividends. Bontain acceptable capital ratios in the
Heartland banks, certain portions of their retaieathings are not available for the payment ofddiads. Retained earnings that could be
available for the payment of dividends to Heartléotdled approximately $65.2 million as of Decem®gy 2005, under the most restrictive
minimum capital requirements. Heartland's revolvamngdit agreement requires our bank subsidiariesrtain well capitalized. Retained
earnings that could be available for the paymemtivitiends to Heartland totaled approximately $2@ilion as of December 31, 2005, under
the capital requirements to remain well capitalized

NINETEEN
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Following are disclosures of the estimated faiueadf Heartland’s financial instruments. The esteddair value amounts have been
determined using available market information apgrapriate valuation methodologies. However, cossitdle judgment is necessarily
required to interpret market data to develop thienedes of fair value. Accordingly, the estimatesgented herein are not necessarily indicative
of the amounts Heartland could realize in a curneaitket exchange. The use of different market apons and/or estimation methodologies
may have a material effect on the estimated fdirevamounts.

(Dollars in thousands)

December 31, 2005 December 31, 2004
Carrying Carrying
Amount Fair Value Amount Fair Value
Financial Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 81,02 $ 81,02 $ 73,74¢ $ 73,74¢
Time deposits in other financial institutions - - 1,17¢ 1,17¢
Trading securities 51k 51k 521 521
Securities available for sale 527,25: 527,25. 552,76 552,76
Loans and leases, net of unearned 1,993,81. 1,992,93: 1,805,11! 1,805,16!
Derivatives 56 56 - -
Financial Liabilities:
Demand deposits $ 352,700 $ 352,70° $ 323,01: $ 323,01
Savings deposits 754,36( 754,36( 750,87( 750,87(
Time deposits 1,011,111 1,011,11. 909,96 911,67.
Short-term borrowings 255,62 255,62: 231,47 231,47
Other borrowings 220,87: 220,58 196,19: 204,23:
Derivatives 143 14z 56€ 56€

Cash and Cash Equivalents and Time Deposits inr®fhancial Institutions The carrying amount is a reasonable estimate pi/é&ie.

Securities For securities either available for sale or tradfiag value equals quoted market price if avagaltl a quoted market price is not



available, fair value is estimated using quotedkeiaprices for similar securities.

Loans and LeasesThe fair value of loans is estimated by discounthmyfuture cash flows using the current ratestatkvsimilar loans would
be made to borrowers with similar credit ratingd & the same remaining maturities. The fair valtibans held for sale is estimated using
guoted market prices.

Deposits - The fair value of demand deposits, ggvaccounts and certain money market depositg iarttount payable on demand at the
reporting date. The fair value of fixed maturitytffecates of deposit is estimated using the ratasently offered for deposits of similar
remaining maturities.

Short-term and Other Borrowing®Rates currently available to Heartland for debtwgimilar terms and remaining maturities are used t
estimate fair value of existing debt.

Commitments to Extend Credit, Unused Lines of Qradd Standby Letters of Credit - Based upon mamagés analysis of the off balance
sheet financial instruments, there are no significenrealized gains or losses associated with tfiegecial instruments based upon our review
of the fees currently charged to enter into simalgreements, taking into account the remaininggerhthe agreements and the present
creditworthiness of the counterparties.

Derivatives - The fair value of all derivatives westimated based on the amount that Heartland wzaydr would be paid to terminate the
contract or agreement, using current rates andnwaperopriate, the current creditworthiness ofdbenter-party.




TWENTY

PARENT COMPANY ONLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Condensed financial information for Heartland FiciahUSA, Inc. is as follows:

BALANCE SHEETS
(Dollars in thousands)

Assets:

Cash and interest bearing deposits
Trading securities

Securities available for sale
Investment in subsidiaries

Other assets

Due from subsidiaries
Total assets

Liabilities and stockholders’ equity:
Short-term borrowings

Other borrowings

Accrued expenses and other liabilities
Total liabilities

Stockholders’ equity:
Common stock
Capital surplus
Retained earnings

Accumulated and other comprehensive income (loss)

Treasury stock
Total stockholders’ equity

Total liabilities & stockholders equity

INCOME STATEMENTS
(Dollars in thousands)

Operating revenues:

Dividends from subsidiaries
Securities gains (losses), net

Gain (loss) on trading account securities
Impairment loss on equity securities
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:

Interest

Salaries and benefits

Outside services

Other operating expenses

Minority interest expense

Total operating expenses

Equity in undistributed earnings
Income before income tax benefit
Income tax benefit

Net income

December 31,

2005

50¢

51¢
2,16
267,75!
13,51¢
35,00(

319,45t

60,75(
67,48¢
3,40¢

131,64

16,54’
40,25¢

135,11
(1,011)
(3,097)

187,81:

319,45t

2004

1,311
521
1,15¢
256,44(
7,831
24,40(

291,66

43,00(
67,88
4,99¢

115,88:

16,54"
40,44¢
117,80
2,88¢
(1,900

175,78:

291,66

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
12,25( $ 11,91 $ 13,31(
(5) 711 99
(11) 54 452
- - (317)
2,197 86E 852
14,431 13,54 14,39¢
7,50t 7,15: 4,99¢
79€ 48 617
80€ 667 427
662 1,53 544
11¢ 12¢ 30
9,891 9,52: 6,61¢
15,66 13,81 8,551
20,207 17,831 16,33:
2,51¢ 2,421 1,38¢
22,72 $ 20,25 $ 17,74¢







STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(Dollars in thousands)

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigea (used) by
operating activities:
Undistributed earnings of subsidiaries
(Increase) decrease in due from subsidiaries
Decrease in other liabilities
(Increase) decrease in other assets
(Increase) decrease in trading account securities
Other, net

Net cash provided (used) by operating activi

Cash flows from investing activities:

Capital contributions to subsidiaries

Purchases of available for sale securities

Proceeds from sales of available for sale secsritie

Net cash used by investing activit

Cash flows from financing activities:

Net change in shc-term borrowings

Proceeds from other borrowings

Payments on other borrowings

Cash dividends paid

Purchase of treasury stock

Proceeds from sale of treasury stock

Net cash provided by financing activiti

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

For the years ended December 31,

2005 2004 2003
22,72t $ 20,25: $ 17,71¢
(15,66 (13,817 (8,551)
(10,600) (11,400 4,25
(1,589) (386) ()
(5,681) 97¢ (3,619)

6 552 (15€)
2,33¢ 1,00: g2t
(8,469) (2,72)) 10,46:
- (12,707) (13,119
(1,099 (30) (2,537)
20C 3,451 2,00z
(892) (9,280) (13,569)
17,75( 18,00( -
- 26,07+ 21,11¢

- (30,907 (627)
(5,414 (5,036) (4,096)
(5,78¢) (5,25¢) (7,999)
2,007 1,81¢ 1,33¢
8,55¢ 4,691 9,73¢
(802) (7,310) 6,63¢
1,311 8,621 1,98¢
50€ $ 1,311 $ 8,621




TWENTY-ONE
SUMMARY OF QUARTERLY FINANCIAL INFORMATION (UNAUDIT  ED)
(Dollars in thousands, except per share data)

2005 Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31
Net interest incom $ 24,08: $ 23,677 $ 23,10. $ 22,00°
Provision for loan and lease losses 2,16¢ 1,39¢ 1,63¢ 1,36«
Net interest income after provision for loan araske losse 21,91 22,28: 21,46" 20,64:
Noninterest incom 10,68’ 11,14 10,04( 9,71t
Noninterest expens 24,610 24,19( 23,45¢ 22,75:
Income taxes 2,22¢ 2,94: 2,64( 2,34:
Net income $ 576¢ % 6,292 $ 5,40¢ $ 5,26¢
Per share:
Earnings per share-basic $ 03t % 0.3t $ 03 $ 0.3Z
Earnings per share-diluted 0.3t 0.3¢ 0.32 0.32
Cash dividends declared on common stock 0.0¢ 0.0¢ 0.0¢ 0.0¢
Book value per common share 11.4¢ 11.31 11.11 10.6¢
Market price - high 21.7¢ 20.9¢ 21.22 21.31
Market price - low 18.8¢ 19.0¢ 19.0¢ 18.3i
Weighted average common shares outstanding 16,367,21 16,398,74 16,420,07 16,479,24
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding 16,659,99 16,693,66 16,722,38 16,704,80
Ratios:
Return on average assets 0.82% 0.91% 0.81% 0.81%
Return on average equity 12.3¢ 13.6¢ 12.12 12.0¢
Net interest margin 3.97 3.9¢ 4.0¢ 3.91
Efficiency ratio 69.22 67.9¢ 69.0: 70.12
2004 Dec. 31 Sept. 30 June 30 March 31
Net interest incom 22,53: $ 20,467 $ 17,287 $ 16,84
Provision for loan and lease losses 1,44¢ 1,05z 991 1,35¢
Net interest income after provision for loan araske losse 21,081 19,41« 16,29¢ 15,48’
Noninterest incom 9,851 8,681 9,58¢ 9,721
Noninterest expens 22,01t 22,69: 19,21 18,01¢
Income taxes 2,33( 1,38¢ 2,09i 2,12¢
Net income 6,59 $ 4,01¢ $ 457t $ 5,06¢
Per share:
Earnings per share-basic 04C $ 02 % 0.2¢ $ 0.3¢
Earnings per share-diluted 0.4C 0.2¢ 0.2¢ 0.3t
Cash dividends declared on common stock 0.0¢ 0.0¢ 0.0¢ 0.0¢
Book value per common share 10.6¢ 10.4¢ 9.9¢ 9.6:
Market price - high 22.0i 18.9¢ 18.9¢ 20.1:
Market price - low 18.2¢ 16.7: 16.7¢ 18.0¢
Weighted average common shares outstanding 16,339,34 16,420,19 15,597,58 15,167,21
Weighted average diluted common shares outstanding 16,579,60 16,663,05 15,836,34 15,425,80
Ratios:
Return on average assets 1.00% 0.64% 0.84% 1.02%
Return on average equity 15.1¢ 9.6t 12.2¢ 14.2¢
Net interest margin 3.9¢ 3.81 3.71 3.9
Efficiency ratio 66.4¢ 75.81 71.1¢ 71.0Z




KPMG
KPMG LLP
2500 Ruan Center
666 Grand Avenue
Des Moines, IA 50309

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders Heartlaimauficial USA,
Inc.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Heartland Financial, USA Inc. and idido#es (the Company) as of

December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the related cdasetl statements of income, changes. in stocki®ldguity and comprehensive
income, and cash flows for each of the years intlihee-year period ended December 31, 2005. Thassotidated financial statements
are the responsibility of the Company's managent@ut.responsibility is to express an opinion orstheonsolidated financial statements
based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with thedstats of the Public Company Accounting OversightaBlo(United States). Those

standards require that we plan and perform thetdadbbtain reasonable assurance about whethefirthecial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examinioig,a test basis, evidence supporting the amoundsdisclosures in the financial

statements. An audit also includes assessing tbeuating principles used and significant estimategle by management, as well as
evaluating the overall financial statement preg@raWe believe that our audits provide a reastmbhsis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaereferred to above present fairly, in all materespects, the financial position of
Heartland Financial USA, Inc. and subsidiaries faBecember 31, 2005 and 2004, and the resultseif tperations and their cash flows
for each of the years in the three-year period @éf@kcember 31, 2005, in conformity with U.S, getigraccepted accounting principles.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stdsdz the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@nited States), the
effectiveness of the Company's internal controlrdivencial reporting as of December 31, 2005, Hase criteria established innternal
Control---Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatifrice Treadway Commission (COSO), and our
report dated March 8, 2006 expressed an unquabfition on management's assessment of, and thetigé operation of, internal
control over financial reporting.

KPMG LLP

Des Moines, lowa
March 8, 2006

KPMG LLP, a U.S. limited liability partnership, ike U.S.
member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss coopieeat




ITEM 9.

CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None

ITEM 9A.

CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

EVALUATION OF DISCLOSURE CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the direction of our Chief Executive Offi@rd Chief Financial Officer, Heartland has evaldate effectiveness of the design and
operation of Heartland’s disclosure controls armtpdures (as defined in Rule 13a-15(e) and 15dyps¢enulgated under the Securities and
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended) as of Decemh&0Bb. Based on that evaluation, Heartlamdanagement, including the Chief ExecL
Officer and Chief Financial Officer, concluded tlivgartland’s disclosure controls and procedure®\eéfective in providing reasonable
assurances that material information required tdibelosed is included on a timely basis in theorepwe file with the Securities and Exchal
Commission.

MANAGEMENT’'S ANNUAL REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING

Heartland’s management is responsible for estabtisind maintaining adequate internal control direncial reporting. Heartland'’s internal
control system was designed to provide reasonaisierance to Heartland’s management, board of dirend stockholders regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the prepacat and fair presentation of financial statementsefkternal purposes in accordance with U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles. All intrcontrol systems, no matter how well designadhaherent limitations. Therefore, even
those systems determined to be effective can peomidy reasonable assurance with respect to finhatEtement preparation and presentation.
Heartland’s management, under the supervision atidtiae participation of Heartland's Chief Execeti@fficer and Chief Financial Officer,
has evaluated the effectiveness of Heartland’snatecontrol over financial reporting based upom fitamework set forth by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway CommisgDSO) ininternal Control -Integrated Framework . Based on our assessment,
Heartland’s internal control over financial repogiwas effective as of December 31, 2005.

KPMG LLP, the independent registered public accimgnfirm that audited Heartland’s consolidated fioil statements as of and for the year
ended December 31, 2005, included herein, hasdssuattestation report on management’s assessihieartland’s internal control over
financial reporting. This report follows managenmgmneport.

CHANGES IN INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTIN G

There were no changes to Heartland’s internal obotrer financial reporting during the quarter ethddeecember 31, 2005, that materially
affected, or are reasonably likely, to affect Hiead's internal control over financial reporting.




KPMG

KPMG LLP
2500 Ruan Center
666 Grand Avenue
Des Moines, IA 50309

Report of Independent Registered Public Accountindrirm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders Heartlamadficial USA,
Inc.:

We have audited management's assessment, incladéte iaccompanying Management's Report on Inte@uailtrol over Financii
Reporting, that Heartland Financial USA, Inc, antssdiaries (th&€€Company) maintained effective internal control ofreancial reportin
as of December 31, 2005, based on criteria estedlign Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOg Thmpany's management is responsiblerfaintaining effective internal cont
over financial reporting and for its assessmenthef effectiveness ahternal control over financial reporting. Our resgibility is tc
express an opinion on management's assessmentnaopiraon on the effectiveness of the Company'srivel control over financi
reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the stededof the Public Company Accounting Oversight lBo@Jnited States). Those
standards require that we plan and perform thet anidibtain reasonable assurance about whethestigffenternal control over financial
reporting was maintained in all material respe©ist audit included obtaining an understanding térimal control over financial reporting,
evaluating management's assessment, testing ahang the design and operating effectivenesstefrnal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary airthenstances. We believe that our audit providesagaonable basis for our opinion.

A company's internal control over financial repogtiis a process designed to provide reasonableasssuregarding the reliability of
financial reporting and the preparation of finahatatements for external purposes in accordantle génerally accepted accounting
principles. A company's internal control over fio& reporting includes those policies and proceduhat (1) pertain to the maintenance
of records that, in reasonable detail, accuratetyfairly reflect the transactions and dispositiofishe assets of the company; (2) provide
reasonable assurance that transactions are recasdeecessary to permit preparation of financeatkestents in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipdsexpenditures of the company are being made iardgcordance with authorizations
of management and directors of the company; andp(8yide reasonable assurance regarding prevemtiotimely detection of
unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition eftbmpany's assets that could have a materiak effethe financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohwver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢tmisstatements. Also, projections of
any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods subject to the risk that controls may becomelégaate because of changes in
conditions, or that the degree of compliance whith policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management's assessment that ldedrffinancial USA, Inc. and subsidiaries maintaia#fdctive internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2005, islfastated, in all material respects, based oregatestablished in Internal Control
Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatadrte Treadway Commission (COSO). Also, in ouin@m,
Heartland Financial USA, Inc, maintained, in allteréal respects, effective internal control overaficial reporting as of December 31,
20005, based on criteria established Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatains
the Treadway Commission (COSO).

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasdaf the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo&United States), the
consolidated balance sheets of Heartland Finang#h, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2808 2004, and the related
consolidated statements of income, changes in stdd&rs' equity and comprehensive income, and flagis for each of the years in the
three-year period ended December 31, 2005, andepoart dated March 8, 2006 expressed an unqualifsaion on those consolidated
financial statements,

KPMG LLP

Des Moines, lowa

March 8, 2006
KPMG LLP, a U.S. limited liability partnership, ike U.S.
member firm of KPMG International, a Swiss coopieeat






ITEM 9B.

OTHER INFORMATION

None

PART Il

ITEM 10.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The information in the Heartland Proxy Statementiie 2006 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to baltei May 17, 2006 (the "2006 Proxy
Statement") under the caption "Election of Direstand under the caption, "Security Ownership a&Btiors and Executive Officers and
Certain Beneficial Owners" is incorporated by refere. The information regarding executive offigermcluded pursuant to Instruction 3 to
Item 401 (b) and (c) of Regulation S-K and is ndtetbw.

EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The term of office for the executive officers of&tdand is from the date of election until the namhual organizational meeting of the board of
directors. The names and ages of the executiveeoffiof Heartland as of December 31, 2005, offiedd by these officers on that date and
other positions held with Heartland and its sulasids are set forth below.

Name Age Position with Heartland and Subsidiaries and Pringpal Occupation

Lynn B. Fuller 56 Chairman, President and Chief Executive OfficeHe#rtland; Vice Chairman of
Dubuque Bank and Trust Company, Wisconsin CommuBeilyk, New Mexico Bank «
Trust, Arizona Bank & Trust, and Rocky Mountain Ra@hairman of Citizens Finan
Co., ULTEA, Inc. and HTLF Capital Corp.

John K. Schmidt 46 Director, Executive Vice President, Chief Operat®ificer and Chief Financial Office
of Heartland; Vice Chairman of Dubuque Bank andsT@ompany, Galena State Bank
and Trust Company, First Community Bank and RivkrsLommunity Bank; Director
and Treasurer of Citizens Finance Co.; TreasureidfEA, Inc.

Kenneth J. Erickson 54 Executive Vice President, Chief Credit Officer ofaitland; Executive Vice President,
Lending, of Dubuque Bank and Trust Company; Vicai@han of Citizens Finance
and ULTEA, Inc.

Edward H. Everts 54 Senior Vice President, Operations and Retail Bapkifi Heartland; Senior Vice
President, Operations and Retail Banking of Dubugaiek and Trust Company

Douglas J. Horstmann 52 Senior Vice President, Lending, of Heartland; DioecPresident and Chief Executive
Officer of Dubuque Bank and Trust Company

Paul J. Peckosh 60 Senior Vice President, Trust, of Heartland; Exe@tice President, Trust, of Dubuc
Bank and Trust Company

Mr. Lynn B. Fuller is the brother-in-law of Mr. Ja® F. Conlan, who is a director of Heartland. Tlaeeno other family relationships among
any of the directors or executive officers of Hizandl.

Lynn B. Fuller has been a Director of Heartland ah®ubuque Bank and Trust Company since 1984 asdken President of Heartland si
1987. Until 2004, Mr. Fuller had been a DirectoiGaflena State Bank and Trust Company since itsisitiqn by Heartland in 1992, First
Community Bank since the merger in 1994 and Rider€ilommunity Bank since the opening of tfesiovo operation in 1995. He has been a
Director of Wisconsin Community Bank since the fase of Cottage Grove State Bank in 1997, New MeRi&Enk & Trust since the opening
of thisde novo bank in 1998 and Arizona Bank & Trust since theropg of thisde novo bank in 2003. Mr. Fuller joined Dubuque Bank and



Trust Company in 1971 as a consumer loan officdnaas named Dubuque Bank and Trust Company's Exedvice President and Chief
Executive Officer in 1985. Mr. Fuller was PresidehDubugue Bank and Trust Company from 1987 &9 at which time he was named
Chief Executive Officer of Heartland.

John K. Schmidt has been a Director of HeartlandesR001. Mr. Schmidt has been Heartland's ExezMige President and Chief Financial
Officer since 1991. He has been employed by Dub®&garg and Trust Company since 1984 and became MighBgnk and Trust Company's
Vice President, Finance in 1986, Senior Vice Pergidind Chief Financial Officer in January 199 dRtent and Chief Executive Officer in
1999 and Vice Chairman in 2004. Mr. Schmidt alse wamed Vice Chairman of Galena State Bank and Toispany, First Community
Bank and Riverside Community Bank in 2004. He égdified public accountant and worked at KPMG LihADes Moines, lowa, from 1982
until joining Dubuque Bank and Trust Company.

Kenneth J. Erickson was named Executive Vice PeasjcChief Credit Officer, of Heartland in 1999. Nfrickson has been employed by
Dubuque Bank and Trust Company since 1975, andappsinted Vice President, Commercial Loans in 1$&Hior Vice President, Lending
in 1989 and Executive Vice President in 2000. He mamed Vice Chairman of Citizens Finance Co. an@RA, Inc. in 2004. Prior to 2004,
Mr. Erickson was Senior Vice President at CitizEmance Co. and ULTEA, Inc.

Edward H. Everts was appointed as Senior Vice &eesiof Heartland in 1996. Mr. Everts has been eygul by Dubuque Bank and Trust
Company as Senior Vice President, Operations atailmanking since 1992. Prior to his service withbuque Bank and Trust Company, Mr.
Everts was Vice President and Lead Retail Bankirmgager of First Bank, Duluth, Minnesota.

Douglas J. Horstmann was named Senior Vice Presadéteartland in 1999. Mr. Horstmann has been eygal by Dubuque Bank and Trust
Company since 1980, was appointed Vice Presidemh@ercial Loans in 1985, Senior Vice Presidentdiregin 1989, Executive Vice
President, Lending in 2000 and Director, Presi@gwt Chief Executive Officer in 2004. Prior to jaigiDubuque Bank and Trust Company,
Mr. Horstmann was an examiner for the lowa DivisidrBanking.

Paul J. Peckosh was appointed Senior Vice Presidéfeartland in 1999. Mr. Peckosh has been empliyeDubuque Bank and Trust
Company since 1975, was appointed Assistant Viesi@ent, Trust, in 1975, Vice President, Trustd80, Senior Vice President, Trust in
1991 and Executive Vice President, Trust in 2000.Ré&ckosh is an attorney and graduated from thejiddte University of Law School in
1970.

ITEM 11.

EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information in our 2006 Proxy Statement, urilercaption "Executive Compensation" is incorpatdtg reference.

ITEM 12.
SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The information in our 2006 Proxy Statement, urtlercaption "Security Ownership of Certain Benefi€@)wners and Management" is
incorporated by reference.

The table below sets forth the following informatias of December 31, 2005 for (i) all compensapiams previously approved by Heartland's
shareholders and (ii) all compensation plans nexipusly approved by Heartland's shareholders:

(a) the number of securities to be issued uperexercise of outstanding options, warrants arfitsijg
(b) the weighted-average exercise price of suthtanding options, warrants and rights;
(c) other than securities to be issued upon the exeafisuch outstanding options, warrants and righesnumber of securitit

remaining available for future issuance under fhag

EQUITY COMPENSATION PLAN INFORMATION

Number of securities to be issiWeightedaverage exercise pri Number of securities
upon exercise of outstanding of outstanding options available for future issuance
options

Equity compensation plans approved by 797,650 $12.82 1,365,710



security holders

Equity compensation plans not approved by - - -
security
holders

Total 797,650 $12.82 1,365,71C

LIncludes 865,710 shares available for use underézetland Long-Term Incentive Plan and 500,000eshavailable for use under the
Heartland Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

ITEM 13.
CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS
The information in the 2006 Proxy Statement underdaption "Transactions with Management" is inooaed by reference.
ITEM 14.
PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information in the 2006 Proxy Statement unterdaption “Relationship with Independent Auditoissincorporated by reference.
PART IV
ITEM 15.
EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(@) The documents filed as a part of this report ated below:
3. Exhibits

The exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation %+ included along with this Form 10-K and artetison the “Index of
Exhibits” immediately following the signature page.




SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 of #rrufities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrantchdg caused this report to be signed on its
behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authdrae March 10, 2006.

Heartland Financial USA, Inc.

By: /sl Lynn B. Fuller /sl John K. Schmidt
Lynn B. Fuller John K. Schmidt
Principal Executive Officer ExecutiVice President and Principal Financial and ActimgnOfficer
Date: March 10, 2006

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgéa Act of 1934, this report has been signed bbélpthe following persons on behalf of 1
Registrant and in the capacities indicated on Maf;2006.

/s/ Lynn B. Fuller /shioK. Schmidt

Lynn B. Fuller JoKn Schmidt

President, CEO, Chairman Executive \Reesident, CFO
and Director and Director

/s/ James F. Conlan /s/ Marlalb

James F. Conlan MarlEalb

Director ir€ctor

/sl Thomas L. Flynn /s! John®éx, Jr.

Thomas L. Flynn John W. Caix

Director Bator

/s/ Ronald A. Larson

Ronald A. Larson
Director
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10.1:

INDEX OF EXHIBITS

Certificate of Incorporation of Heartland Finandi#$A, Inc. (Filed as Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrarfform 10K filed on March 15,
2004, and incorporated by reference herein.)

Bylaws of Heartland Financial USA, Inc. (Filed aghibit 3.2 to the Registrant’s Form 10K filed on Mh 15, 2004, and incorporated
by reference herein.)

Specimen Stock Certificate of Heartland Financi8lWJInc. (Filed as Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrat®tatement on Form S-4 filed with
the Commission May 4, 1994, as amended (SEC File8BY6228) and incorporated by reference herein.)

Form of Split-Dollar Life Insurance Plan effectidovember 13, 2001, between the Heartland subsédiamd their selected officers
who have met the three years of service requireni¢mrgse plans are in place at Dubuque Bank and Tarmpany, Galena State Bank
and Trust Company, First Community Bank, Riversidenmunity Bank, Wisconsin Community Bank, New Mexigank & Trust an
ULTEA, Inc. (Filed as Exhibit 10.4 to the RegistrarForm 10K for the year ended December 31, 2@608,incorporated by reference
herein.)

Indenture between Heartland Financial USA, Inc. &tate Street Bank and Trust Company of Connectitational Association, dat
as of December 18, 2001. (Filed as Exhibit 10.1Registrant’s Form 10K for the year ended Decen3tie2001, and incorporated by
reference herein.)

Indenture between Heartland Financial USA, Inc. Wfells Fargo Bank, National Association, dated faluoe 27, 2002. (Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10Q for tileraonths ended June 30, 2002, and incorporataéfeyence herein.)

Dividend Reinvestment Plan dated as of Januarg@@2. (Filed as Form S-3D on January 25, 2002 jmewporated by reference
herein.)

Stockholder Rights Agreement between Heartlandrigigh USA, Inc., and Dubuque Bank and Trust CompasyRights Agent, dated
as of June 7, 2002. (Filed as Form 8-K on Jun2QQ2, and incorporated by reference herein.)

Agreement to Organize and Stockholder Agreementdest Heartland Financial USA, Inc. and InvestorthanProposed Arizona
Bank dated February 1, 2003. (Filed as Exhibit 4@2Registrans Form 10K for the year ended December 31, 2002 jresorporate
by reference herein.)

Supplemental Initial Investor Agreement betweenrHigad Financial USA, Inc. and Initial Investorsthre Proposed Arizona Bank
dated February 1, 2003. (Filed as Exhibit 10.2R¢gistrant’s Form 10K for the year ended Decemltie?B802, and incorporated by
reference herein.)

Indenture by and between Heartland Financial UBA, &nd U.S. Bank National Association, dated aSaibber 10, 2003. (Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrant’s Form 10Q for ttieenmonths ended September 30, 2003, and incogubbat reference herein.)

Form of Executive Supplemental Life Insurance Riffactive January 20, 2004, between the Heartlabdidiaries and their selected
officers. These plans are in place at Dubuque BexkTrust Company, Galena State Bank and Trust @oym-irst Community
Bank, Riverside Community Bank, Wisconsin Commuiiank, New Mexico Bank & Trust and ULTEA, Inc. (&d as Exhibit 10.16
to the Registrant’s Form 10K filed on March 15, 208nd incorporated by reference herein.)

Credit Agreement among Heartland Financial USA,,Ilibe Northern Trust Company, Harris Trust andiigg/Bank and U.S. Bank
National Association, dated as of January 31, 2(eied as Exhibit 10.17 to the Registr's Form 10K filed on March 15, 2004, and

incorporated by reference herein.)

First Amendment to Credit Agreement among Heartlinéncial USA, Inc., The Northern Trust Compangriis Trust and Savings
Bank and U.S. Bank National Association, datedfadarch 9, 2004.

Second Amendment to Credit Agreement among Heartfamancial USA, Inc., The Northern Trust Compadgyris Trust and
Savings Bank and U.S. Bank National Associatiotedlas of July 1, 2004.

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement among Heartlaimdncial USA, Inc., The Northern Trust Compangyiib Trust and Savings
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Bank and U.S. Bank National Association, datedfalnuary 30, 2005.

Heartland Financial USA, Inc. Policy on DirectoreSeand Policy on Expense Reimbursement For DirectBiled as Exhibit 10.14 to
Registrant’s Form 10K filed on March 15, 2005, amzbrporated by reference herein.)

Fourth Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement@gnideartland Financial USA, Inc., Harris Trust &al/ings Bank and U.S.
Bank National Association, dated as of March 1,2@PBiled as Exhibit 10.15 to Registrant’s Form 1fi&d on March 15, 2005, and

incorporated by reference herein.)

Heartland Financial USA, Inc. 2005 Long-Term IncemtPlan. (Filed as Exhibit 10.01 to Registranttsri 8K filed on May 19, 2005,
and incorporated by reference herein.)

Heartland Financial USA, Inc. 2006 Employee StouakcRase Plan effective January 1, 2006. (Filedxdsbi 10.02 to Registrant’s
Form 8K filed on May 19, 2005, and incorporated&ference herein.)

Fifth Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement agnbleartland Financial USA, Inc., Harris Trust araViigs Bank and U.S.
Bank National Association, dated as of July 18,5200

Indenture by and between Heartland Financial U84, &nd Wells Fargo Bank, National Associationedads of January 31, 2006.

Form of Agreement for Heartland Financial USA, 18605 Long-Term Incentive Plan Non-Qualified Staytion Awards. (Filed as
Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Form 8K filed on Feliry 10, 2006, and incorporated by reference hgrein.

Form of Agreement for Heartland Financial USA, 12605 Long-Term Incentive Plan Performance Restli&tock Agreement.

Sixth Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement agnideartland Financial USA, Inc., Harris Trust araviigs Bank and U.S.
Bank National Association, dated as of February?286.

Seventh Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreememtrenteartland Financial USA, Inc., Harris Trust &alings Bank and U.S.
Bank National Association, dated as of March 1@&20

Statement re Computation of Per Share Earnings

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

Consent of KPMG LLP

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a).
Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a).

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdtioBe906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as adopted pursuantdiiocBe906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002.



FIRST AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (thiAmendment")dated as of March 9, 2004 is among HEARTLAND
FINANCIAL USA, INC., a corporation formed under tkewvs of the State of Delaware (the "Borroweédch of the banks party hereto
(individually, a "Bank"and collectively, the "Banksgnd THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY, as agent for theBa(in such capacity,
together with its successors in such capacity;Algent™).

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Bamge entered into a Credit Agreement dated aarafaly 31, 2004 (the "Credit
Agreement"):and

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Banlsh to amend the Credit Agreement to allow foiirammease in the permitted
Indebtedness in connection with an offering of TRieferred Securities by one of the Borrower'ss&liaries (which is a Trust Issuer) and the
incurrence of the Trust Indebtedness and Trust &uee by the Borrower relating to such Trust PreteBecurities, all as provided herein;

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, theeipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledgthe parties hereto ag
as follows:

1. DefinitionsTerms defined in the Credit Agreement and not etisr defined herein shall have the respective nmgani
given to them in the Credit Agreement and terméeefin the introductory paragraphs or other priovis of this Amendment shall have the
respective meanings attributed to them thereimaditition, the following terms shall have the foliogg meanings (terms defined in the singular
having a correlative meaning when used in the phmd vice versa):

"Effective Date"shall mean March 9, 2004, if (i) this Amendmentlshave been executed and delivered by the Borrpther
Agent and the Banks and (ii) the Borrower shallehpgrformed its obligations under Sectiohe3eof,

2. Amendment to Section 7.5(a) of thed@rAgreement. Section 7.5(adf the Credit Agreement is hereby amended as of the
Effective Date by deleting the dollar amount "$&®M00" appearing in clause (Wijereof and inserting in its place the dollar antoun
"$88,000,000".

3. Conditions to Effective Dat€he occurrence of the Effective Da&gball be subject to the satisfaction, on and as of the
Effective Date, of the following conditions precette

(a) The Borrower, the Agent and thajdflity Banks shall have executed and deliveresl Amendment,

(b) No Default shdthve occurred and be continuing under the Credit Agregnand the representations and
warranties of the Borrower in Section 6 of the @ragireement and in Sectionhéreof shall be true and correct on and as of ffective Date
and the Borrower shall have provided to the Agecerdificate of a senior officer of the Borrowerttat effect.

(c)  Each Guarantor shall acknowéedgd consent to this Amendment for purposes @utsranty Agreement as
evidenced by its signed acknowledgment of this Admeent on the signature page hereof.

(d) The Borrower shall have delivkte the Agent, on behalf of the Banks, such ottemuments as the Agent may
reasonably request.

4. Effective Date Notic®romptly following the occurrence of the Effectidate, the Agent shall give notice to the parties of
the occurrence of the Effective Date, which noghall be conclusive, and the parties may rely therprovided, that such notice shall not
waive or otherwise limit any right or remedy of thgent or the Banks arising out of any failure oy @ondition precedent set forth @ection :
to be satisfied.

5. Terminationlf the Effective Date shall not have occurred obefore March 19, 2004, the Agent on instructiomhef
Majority Banks may terminate this Amendment by oefin writing to the Borrower at any time before ticcurrence of the Effective Date;

provided, that the Borrower's obligations underti®ecll shall survive any such termination,

6. RatificationThe parties agree that the Credit Agreement, anidetehereby, and the Notes have not lapsed orriated,
are in full force and effect, and are and from afidr the Effective Date shall remain binding ic@gciance with their terms.

7. Representations and Warranfld® Borrower represents and warrants to the Agashtlae Banks that:




(a) No Breacfihe execution, delivery and performance of this Adraent will not conflict with or result in a bree
of, or cause the creation of a Lien or require emysent under, the articles of incorporation oaid of the Borrower, or any applicable law or
regulation, or any order, injunction or decreemyf aourt or governmental authority or agency, or agreement or instrument to which the
Borrower is a party or by which it or its propeitybound,

(b) Power and Action, Binding Effe€he Borrower has been duly incorporated and isllyaéxisting as a
corporation under the laws of the State of Delavesue has all necessary power and authority to egedeliver and perform its obligations
under this Amendment and the Credit Agreementpanded by this Amendment; the execution, delivewy gerformance by the Borrower of
this Amendment and the Credit Agreement, as amehygélis Amendment, have been duly authorized byedessary action on its part; and
this Amendment and the Credit Agreement, as amehgékis Amendment, have been duly and validly exsd and delivered by the Borrov
and constitute legal, valid and binding obligatioeisforceable in accordance with their respectvens,

(c) Approvald\o authorizations, approvals or consents of, anfilings or registrations with, any governmental
or regulatory authority or agency or any other perare necessary for the execution, delivery ciop@ance by the Borrower of this
Amendment or the Credit Agreement, as amendedibyAthendment, or for the validity or enforceabilthereof,

8. Successors and Assighsis Amendment shall be binding upon and inurdlienefit of the Borrower, the Agent and the
Banks and their respective successors and assigrept that the Borrower may not transfer or asaignof its rights or interest hereunder.

9. Governing Lawlhis Amendment shall be governed by, and constanedinterpreted in accordance with, the internatlaf
the State of lllinois.

10. Counterpart$his Amendment may be executed in any number ofitesparts and each party hereto may execute any on
or more of such counterparts, all of which shafistdute one and the same instrument. Deliverynagxecuted counterpart of a signature page
to this Amendment by telecopy shall be as effectivelelivery of a manually executed counterpathisfAmendment.

11. Expense®/hether or not the Effective Date shall occur, withlimiting the obligations of the Borrower undbe Credit
Agreement, the Borrower agrees to pay, or to remswon demand, all reasonable costs and exper@esed by the Agent in connection with
the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivempdification, amendment or enforcement of this Adreent, the Credit Agreement and the
other agreements, documents and instruments réferréerein, including the reasonable fees anémsgs of Gardner Carton & Douglas LLP,
special counsel to the Agent, and any other cowsrsgdged by the Agent.

[Signature Page Follows]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been execaseof the date first above written.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
By: /s/ John K. Schmidt

Name: John K. Schmidt

Title: EVP, CFO, COO

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY,
As Agent

By: /s/ Thomas E. Bernhardt
Name: Thomas E. Bernhardt
Title: Vice President

BANKS:

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY
By: /s/ Thomas E. Bernhardt

Name: Thomas E. Bernhardt

Title: Vice President

HARRIS TRUST AND SAVINGS BANK
By: /s/ Michael S. Cameli

Name: Michael S. Cameli

Title: Vice President

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
By: /s/ Jason R. Hall

Name: Jason R. Hall

Title: Assistant Vice President




GUARANTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Each of the undersigned Guarantors hereby ackngetednd consents to the Borrower’s execution efAnnendment.

CITIZENS FINANCE CO. ULTEA, INC.

By: /s/ John K. Schmidt By: /s/ John K. Butit
Title: Treasurer Title: Treasurer




CERTIFICATE

The undersigned as Executive Vice President, Ghirefncial Officer and Chief Operating Officer of &tdand Financial
USA, Inc., hereby certifies as follows:

1. No Default, as defined in the Credit Agreetreanong Heartland Financial USA, Inc. (the "BorroWecertain banks and The
Northern Trust Company as agent, as amended ("{Ckgdeement") has occurred and is continu

2. The representations and warranties of thedda@r in Section 6 of the Credit Agreement andect®n 7 of the Fourth
Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement dated &aoch 1, 2005, are true and correct on and dseotiate hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executsdQGhbrtificate as of March 1, 2005.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
By: /s/ John K. Schmidt

Name: John K. Schmi

Title: EVP, CFO, COO



SECOND AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this "Aendment")datedas of July 1, 2004 is among HEARTLA!
FINANCIAL USA, INC., a corporation formed under thaws of the State of Delaware (the "Borrowergch of the banks party her
(individually, a "Bank"and collectively, the "Banks'and THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY, as agent for thenBa(in such capacit
together with its successors in such capacity;Algent™).

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Banks Fentered into a Credit Agreement dated as of Jgrgr2004, as amended
that First Amendment to Credit Agreement datedfddarch 9, 2004 (as so amended, the "Credit Agreeme and

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Banks vigslamend the Credit Agreement in order to perhgt Borrower to incur
$300,000 low interest loan from the City of Dubugoédund certain building;

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, theeigtand sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledigthe parties hereto agree
as follows:

1. Definitions.Terms defined in the Credit Agreement and not etier defined herein shall have the respective nmegni
given to them in the Credit Agreement and term#eefin the introductory paragraphs or other priovis of this Amendment shall have the
respective meanings attributed to them thereiradiition, the following terms shall have flolowing meanings (terms defined in the singt
having a. correlative meaning when used in thegplamd vice versa):

"Effective Date"shall mean July 1, 2004, if (i) this Amendment shalve been executed and delivered by the BorrotiverAgent an
the Banks and (ii) the Borrower shall have perfairite obligations under Section Bereof.

2. Amendment to Section 7.5(a) of the Credjte®ement. Section 7. 5(a)of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended as of the
Effective Date by the addition of the following newb-section (viii) thereto:

(viii) in the case of the Borrower, indebtednesthi City of Dubuque, lowa, in an amount not toeed $300,000, to be u
for the purpose of funding building improvements,

3. Conditions to Effective Dat&he occurrence of the .Effective Date shall be esttifo the satisfaction, on and as of the
Effective Date, of the following conditions precette

(@) The Borrower, the Agent and the Majority Bashall have executed and
delivered this Amendment.

(b) No Default shall have occurred and be catig under the Credit Agreement,
and the representations and warranties of the Bemran Section 6 of the Credit Agreement and inti®ec7 hereof shall be
true and correct on and as of the Effective Datktha Borrower shall have provided to the Agenedificate of a senior
officer of the Borrower to that effect,

(c) Each Guarantor shall acknowledge and consethis Amendment for purposes
of its Guaranty Agreement as evidenced by its slgreknowledgment of this Amendment on the signgpage hereof.

(d) The Borrower shall have delivered to the wigen behalf of the Banks, such
other documents as the Agent may reasonably request

4, Effective Date Noticé2romptly following the occurrence of the Effectidate, the Agent shall give notice to the parties of
the occurrence of the Effective Date, which nosiball be conclusive, and the parties may rely therprovided, that such notice shall not
waive or otherwise limit any right or remedy of thgent or the Banks arising out of any failure nf@ondition precedent set forth $®ction <
to be satisfied.

5. Terminationlf the Effective Date shall not have occurred on or before Auguse8@4, the Agent on instruction of the
Majority Banks may terminate this Amendment by oetin writing to the Borrower at any time, befone bccurrence of the Effective Date;
provided, that the Borrower's obligations undert®ecl 1shall survive any such termination.

6. Ratification;The parties agree that the Credit Agreement, andetehereby, and the Notes have not lapsed orriated,
are in full force and effect, and are and from afidr the Effective Date shall remain binding ic@cance with their terms. .



7. Representations and Warrantieise Borrower represents and warrants to the Agahtlze Banks that:

(@) No BreachThe execution, delivery and performance of this Adraent will no
conflict with or result in a breach of, or cause tieation. of a Lien or require any consent uritherarticles of incorporation
or bylaws of the Borrower, or any applicable lawr@gulation, or any order, injunction or decre@ny court or government
authority or agency, or any agreement or instrurt@mthich the Borrower is a party or by which ititsr property is bound.

(b) Power and Action, Binding Effedthe Borrower has been duly incorporated
is validly existing as a corporation under the lafthe State of Delaware and has all necessargpand authority to
execute, deliver and perform its obligations urttier Amendment. and the Credit Agreement, as amiehyehis
Amendment; the execution, delivery and performadncehe Borrower of this Amendment and the Creditefgnent, as
amended by this Amendment, have been duly authbkiyeall necessary action on its part; and this Admeent and the
Credit Agreement, as amended by this Amendmeng baen duly and validly executed and deliverecheyBorrower and
constitute legal, valid and binding obligationsfagneable in accordance with their respective terms

(c) Approvals.No authorizations, approvals or consents of, anfilings or registrations
with, any governmental or regulatory authority geacy or any other person are necessary for theuéra, delivery or
performance by the Borrower of this Amendment er@redit Agreement, as amended by this Amendmeffoy ehe validity
or enforceability thereof.

8. Successors and Assigiikis Amendment shall be binding upon and inurétolienefit of the Borrower, the Agent and the
Banks and their respective successors and assigrept that the Borrower may not transfer or asaignof its rights or interest hereunder.

9. Governing Law. This Amendment shall be governed by, and construeaind interpreted in accordance with, the interna
laws of the State of lllinois.

10. Counterpart3his Amendment may be executed in any number ofitesparts and each party hereto may execute any one
or more of such counterparts, all of which shafistdute one and the same instrument. Deliverynagxecuted counterpart of a signature page
to this Amendment by telecopy shall be as effeciselelivery of a manually executed counterpathisf Amendment.

11. Expense®Vhether or not the Effective Date shall occur, withlimiting the obligations of the Borrower undbe Credit
Agreement, the Borrower agrees to pay, or to remsdon demand, all reasonable costs and experagsesid by the Agent in connection with
the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivempdification, amendment or enforcement of this Adreent, the Credit Agreement and the
other agreements, documents and instruments réferfgerein, including the reasonable fees andresgseof Gardner Carton & Douglas LLP,
special counsel to the Agent, and any other cowsraghged by the Agent.

[Signature Page Follows]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been execaseof the date first above written.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
By: /s/ John K. Schmidt

Name: John K. Schmidt

Title: EVP, CFO, COO

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY,
As Agent

By: /s/ Thomas E. Bernhardt
Name: Thomas E. Bernhardt
Title: Vice President

BANKS:

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY
By: /s/ Thomas E. Bernhardt

Name: Thomas E. Bernhardt

Title: Vice President

HARRIS TRUST AND SAVINGS BANK
By: /s/ Michael S. Cameli

Name: Michael S. Cameli

Title: Vice President

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
By: /s/ Jay Strunk

Name: Jay Strunk

Title: Assistant Vice President




GUARANTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Each of the undersigned Guarantors hereby ackngetednd consents to the Borrower’s execution efAnnendment.

CITIZENS FINANCE CO. ULTEA, INC.

By: /s/ John K. Schmidt By: /s/ John K. Butit
Title: Treasurer Title: Treasurer




CERTIFICATE

The undersigned as Executive Vice President, Ghirefncial Officer and Chief Operating Officer of &tdand Financial
USA, Inc., hereby certifies as follows:

1. No Default, as defined in the Credit Agreetreanong Heartland Financial USA, Inc. (the "BorroWecertain banks and The
Northern Trust Company as agent, as amended ("{Ckgdeement") has occurred and is continu

2. The representations and warranties of thedda@r in Section 6 of the Credit Agreement andect®n 7 of the Fourth
Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement dated &aoch 1, 2005, are true and correct on and dseotiate hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executsdQGhbrtificate as of March 1, 2005.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
By: /s/ John K. Schmidt

Name: John K. Schmi

Title: EVP, CFO, COO



THIRD AMENDMENT AND WAIVER TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS THIRD AMENDMENT AND WAIVER TO CREDIT AGREMENT (this "Amendment")Ydated as of January 30, 200!
among HEARTLAND FINANCIAL, USA, INC., a corporatioformed under the laws of the State of Delaware (Borrower"),each of th
banks party hereto (individually, a "Bank™" and ectively, the _"Banks"and THE NORTHERNIRUST COMPANY, as agent for the Bal
(in such capacity, together with its successomith capacity, the "Agent").

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Banksehentered into a Credit Agreement dated as of Jgrlg 2004 (as here
amended, the "Credit Agreementdjd

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Banlsh to extend the maturity of the Credit Agreeinen

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideratiorg thceipt and sufficiency of whichliereby acknowledged, the parties hereto ¢
as follows:

1. Definitions.Terms defined in the Credit Agreement and not etisr defined herein shall have the respective nmeg
given to them in the Credit Agreement and termsneefin the introductory paragraphs or other priovis of this Amendment shall have
respective meanings attributed to them thereinaddition, the following terms shall have :the..ldaling meanings (terms defined in
singular having a correlative meaning when usedtérplural and vice versa):

"Effective Date" shall mean January 3002, if (1) this Amendment shall have beesxecuted and delivered by
Borrower, the Agent and the Banks and (ii) the Baer shall have performed its obligations underti8e@ hereof.

2. Amendment to Section 9 of the Credit @ggnent.The definition of "Revolving Credit Commitment Temation Date" i
hereby amended Hjne deletion of the date "January 30, 2005" and thetitulion of the date "March 1, 2005" thereof.

3. WaiverThe Banks hereby waives any right to take actioa essult of any breach of Secti@rb(a) of the Credit Agreeme
arising from the incurrence of Indebtedness urter Agreement to Organize and Stockholder Agreerdateéd February 1, 2003 and
Supplemental Initial Investor Agreement dated Fahyrd, 2003.. This waiver shall he limited to tksms and shall not constitute a waive
any other rights the Agent or the Banks may hasmftime to time.

4. Conditions to Effective DateThe occurrence of the Effective Date shallshibject to the satisfaction of the follow
conditions precedent:

(a) The Borrower, the Agent and thel&ashall have executed and delivered this Amendment

(b) No Default shall have occurred and be continuindeurthe Credit Agreement, and the representatiod
warranties of the Borrower in Section 6 of the @rédreement and in Sectionhéreof shall be true and correct on and as of ffextive Datt
and the Borrower shall have provided to the Ageeerdificate of a senior officer of the Borrowerttat effect.

(c) Each Guarantor shall acknowledge @onsent to thismendment for purposes of its Guaranty Agreeme
evidenced by its signed acknowledgment of this Adneént on the signature page hereof.

(d) The Borrower shall have delivered to the Agentpehalf of the Banks, such other documents as thex
may reasonably request.

5. Effective Date Noticé&romptly following the occurrence of the Effectibate, the Agent shall give notice to the partie
the occurrence of the Effective Date, which nosball be conclusive, and the parties may rely ther@rovided, that such notice shall
waive or otherwise limit any right or remedy of thgent or the Banks arising out of any failure of @ondition precedent set forth 8ection -
to be satisfied.

6. RatificationThe parties agree that the Credit Agreement, asdeteherebyand the notes have not lapsed or termin
are in full force and effect, and are and from aftdr., the Effective Date shall remain bindingagtordance with their terms.

7. Representations and Warranfidee Borrower represents and warrants to the Agadhttze Banks that:

(a) No Breacihe execution, delivery and performance of this Adrmeent will not conflict with or result in
breach of, or cause the creation of a Lien or regamy consent under, the articles of incorporatiohylaws of the Borrower, or any applice



law or regulation, or any order, injunction or dseiof any court ogovernmental authority or agency, or any agreemeimstrument to whic
the Borrower is a party or by which it or its projyds bound.

(b) Power and Action, Binding Effedthe Borrower has been duly incorporated and isdiyakexisting as
corporation under the laws of the State of Delaveare has all necessary power and authority to égedeliver and perform its obligatic
under this Amendment and the Credit Agreementnaended by this Amendment; the execution, delivexy performance by the Borrowet
this Amendment and the Credit Agreement, as amehgebis Amendment, have been duly authorized bpedessary action on its part;
this Amendment and the Credit Agreement, as ametgethis Amendment, have been. duly and validlycexed anddelivered by th
Borrower and constitute. legal, valid and binditdigations, enforceable in accordance with thespestive terms.

(c) ApprovaldNo authorizations, approvals or consents of, anéllimgs or registrations with, any governmel
or regulatory authority or agency or any other perare necessary for the execution, deliveryperformance by the Borrower of t
Amendment or the Credit Agreement, as amendedibyAthendment, or for the validity or enforceabilityereof.

8. Successors and Assigiikis Amendment shall be binding upon and inurehtobienefit of the Borrower, the Agent and
Banks and their respective successors and assigrept that the Borrower may not transfer or asaignof its rights or interest hereunder.

9. Governing Law. This Amendment shall be governed by, and construednd interpreted in accordance with, the
internal laws of the State of Illinois.

10. Counterpart¥his Amendment may be executed in any number oftespartsand each party hereto may execute any
or more of such counterparts, all of which siealhstitute one and the same instrument. Delivergnoéxecuted counterpart of a signature
to this Amendment by telecopy shall be as effectivelelivery of a manually executed counterpathisfamendment.

11. Expense®Vhether or not the effective date shall occur, withlimiting the obligations of the Borrower undée Credi
Agreement, the Borrower agrees to pay, or to rensgon demand, all reasonable costs and expersesed by the Agent in connectigvith
the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivenpdification, amendment or enforcememif this Amendment, the Credit Agreement anc
other agreements, documents and instrumeiésred to herein, including the reasonable fees expenses of Mayer, Brown, Rowe & V
LLP, special counsel to the Agent, and any othensel engaged by the Agent.

[Signature Page Follows]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been execaseof the date first above written.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
By: /s/ John K. Schmidt

Name: John K. Schmidt

Title: EVP, CFO, COO

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY,
As Agent

By: /s/ Thomas E. Bernhardt
Name: Thomas E. Bernhardt
Title: Vice President

BANKS:

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY
By: /s/ Thomas E. Bernhardt

Name: Thomas E. Bernhardt

Title: Vice President

HARRIS TRUST AND SAVINGS BANK
By: /s/ Michael S. Cameli

Name: Michael S. Cameli

Title: Vice President

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
By: /s/ Jay Strunk

Name: Jay Strunk

Title: Assistant Vice President




GUARANTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Each of the undersigned Guarantors hereby ackngetednd consents to the Borrower’s execution efAnnendment.

CITIZENS FINANCE CO. ULTEA, INC.

By: /s/ John K. Schmidt By: /s/ John K. Butit
Title: Treasurer Title: Treasurer




CERTIFICATE

The undersigned as Executive Vice President, Ghirefncial Officer and Chief Operating Officer of &tdand Financial
USA, Inc., hereby certifies as follows:

1. No Default, as defined in the Credit Agreetreanong Heartland Financial USA, Inc. (the "BorroWecertain banks and The
Northern Trust Company as agent, as amended ("{Ckgdeement") has occurred and is continu

2. The representations and warranties of thedda@r in Section 6 of the Credit Agreement andect®n 7 of the Fourth
Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement dated &aoch 1, 2005, are true and correct on and dseotiate hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executsdQGhbrtificate as of March 1, 2005.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
By: /s/ John K. Schmidt

Name: John K. Schmi

Title: EVP, CFO, COO



FOURTH AMENDMENT AND WAIVER TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS FOURTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (thi"Amendment"dated as of March 1, 2005 is among
HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC., a corporation formednder the laws of the State of Delaware (the "8w@81"), each of the banks
party hereto (individually, a "Bank" and collectiyethe "Banks™and THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY, as agent for thenBa(in such
capacity, together with its successors in suchagpahe "Agent").

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Bamge entered into a Credit Agreement dated aarofaly 31, 2004 (as hereto
amended, the "Credit Agreementdjd

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Banmlsh to extend the maturity of the Credit Agreetreamd make certain other
amendments to the Credit Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, theeipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledgthe parties hereto ag
as follows:

1. DefinitionsTerms defined in the Credit Agreement and not etiser defined herein shall have the respective nmesni
given to them in the Credit Agreement and terméeefin the introductory paragraphs or other priovis of this Amendment shall have the
respective meanings attributed to them thereimaditition, the following terms shall have the foliogg meanings (terms defined in the singular
having a correlative meaning when used in the phmd vice versa):

"Effective Date" shall mean March 1, 2005j)fthis Amendment shall have been executed angated by the Borrower, the Agent
and the Banks and (ii) the Borrower shall havegrengd its obligations under Sectiotdreof.

2. Return on Assets. Section 7.4(the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to #tdte entirety as follows:

"(e)_Return on Average AsseBorrower.The Borrower's consolidated income shall be at lea9% of its average assets, calculated
as at the last day of each fiscal quarter for the fiscal quarter period ending on that date."

3. IndebtednessSection 7.%f the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to #tate entirety as follows:

"7.5 Indebtedness, Liens And Taxdse Borrower and each Subsidiary shall:

(a)_IndebtednessNot incur, permit to remain outstanding, assumisany way become committed for Indebtedness (8patty
including but not limited to Indebtedness in regmdanoney borrowed from financial institutions xcluding deposits), except: (i) in the case
of the Borrower, Indebtedness incurred hereundet,jrmthe case of the Guarantors, under their rseGuaranty Agreement; (ii)
Indebtedness existing on the date of this Agreeraedtdescribed on Schedl&(a) hereof; (iii) Indebtedness of any Subsidiary agsimthe
ordinary course of the business of such Subsid{aryin the case of ULTEA, the US Bank Indebtedneststanding on the date hereof in the
principal amount of $11,418,871.69, less the aggregmount of all repayments thereunder after #te of this Agreement; (v) in the case of
CFC, Indebtedness under commercial paper issu€&Fywhich, together with any other commercial pagentified on Schedule 7,5(a)
hereto, shall not exceed an aggregate principabatmaf $20,000,000; (vu) in the case of the Bormweust Indebtedness and Trust
Guarantees, and in the case of any Trust Issuest Preferred Securities, providéldat the aggregate of such Trust Indebtednesst(end
related Trust Guarantees and Trust Preferred Sies)rshall not exceed $88,000,000 at any timetandtng; (vii) in the event any transfer or
contribution of accounts receivable of ULTEA topeesial purpose vehicle in accordance with Sectidfdis deemed to constitute a secured
financing, Indebtedness of ULTEA to such speciappse vehicle, secured by the account receivablésedated rights transferred to such
special purpose vehicle only (the "Factored Red#ést), providedithat such Indebtedness shall not exceed an amquat ® $30,000,000
the aggregate during the term of this Agreemetiit) (m the case of the Borrower, Indebtednessh ity of Dubuque, lowa, in an amount not
to exceed $300,000 to be used for the purposenglifig building improvements; (ix) in the case & Borrower, Indebtedness in an aggregate
amount not in excess of $2,750,000 under the Ageaeno Organize and Stockholder Agreement datedulgep 1, 2003 and the Supplemental
Initial Investor Agreement dated February |, 2008 &) additional Indebtedness not to exceed $10m0at any time outstanding.

4. Revolving Credit Termination Daldne definition of "Revolving Credit Commitment Teimation Date" is hereby
amended by the deletion of the date "March 1, 2@0f'the substitution of the date "February 2862@0ereof.

5. Conditions to Effective Dafehe occurrence of the Effective Date shall be sthifethe satisfaction of the following
conditions precedent:

(a) The Borrower, the Agent and. Bamks shall have . executed and delivered, thisdment.



(b) No Default shall have occurred &e continuing under the Credit Agreement, and¢peesentations and
warranties of the Borrower in Section 6 of the @rddreement and in Sectionhéreof shall be true and correct on and as of ffexfive Date
and the Borrower shall have provided to the Agereréificate of a senior officer of the Borrowerttat effect.

(e) Each Guarantor shall acknowleaigg consent to this Amendment for purposes of itar@énty Agreement as
evidenced by its signed acknowledgment of this Admeent on the signature page hereof,

(d) The Borrower shall have deliveredhe Agent, on behalf of the Banks, such other dociisnas the Agent may reasonably
request.

6. Effective Date NoticPromptly following the occurrence of the Effectiate, the Agent shall give notice to the parties
of the occurrence of' the Effective Date, whichiceshall be conclusive, and the parties may ledydon; provided, that such notice shall not
waive or otherwise limit any right or remedy of thgent or the Banks arising out of any failure nf@ondition precedent set forth $ection !
to be satisfied.

7. RatificationThe parties agree that the Credit Agreement, andeaehereby, and the notes have not lapsed or
terminated, are in full force and effect, and ard tom and after the Effective Date shall remamding in accordance with their terms.

8. Representations and Warranfibe Borrower represents and warrants to the Agaahtlze Banks that:

(a) No BreaciThe execution, delivery and performance of this Admaent will not conflict with or result in a
breach of, or cause the creation of a Lien or regamy consent under, the articles of incorporadiobylaws of the Borrower, or any applicable
law or regulation, or any order, injunction or dseiof any court or governmental authority or ageneyany agreement or instrument to which
the Borrower is a party or by which it or its prayes bound.

(b) Power and Action, Binding Effe€he Borrower has been duly incorporated and isliyaéxisting as a
corporation under the laws of the State of Delavesue has all necessary power and authority to egedeliver and perform its obligations
under this Amendment and the Credit Agreementpanded by this Amendment; the execution, delivewy gerformance by the Borrower of
this Amendment and the Credit Agreement, as amehygelis Amendment, have been duly authorized byedessary action on its part; and
this Amendment and the Credit Agreement, as amehygelis Amendment, have been duly and validly exed and delivered by the Borrov
and constitute legal, valid and binding obligatiomsforceable in accordance with their respectvms.

(c) ApprovaldNo authorizations, approvals or consents of, anfilings or registrations with, any governmental
or regulatory authority or agency or any other perare necessary for the execution, delivery ciop@ance by the Borrower of this
Amendment or the Credit Agreement, as amendedibyAthendment, or for the validity or enforceabilthereof.

9. Successors and Assigiisis Amendment shall be binding upon and inurénéolienefit of the Borrower, the Agent and
the Banks and their respective successors andhassigcept that the Borrower may not transfer sigasany of its rights or interest hereunder.

10. Governing Law.This Amendment shall be governed by, and construeahd interpreted in accordance with, the
internal laws of the State of Illinois.

11. CounterpartsThis Amendment may be executed in any number ofiteoparts and each party hereto may executt
one or more of such. counterparts, all of whicHIsglunstitute one and the same instrument. Delivdrgn executed counterpart of a signature
page to this Amendment by telecopy shall be agtfeas delivery of a manually executed counterpfthis amendment.

12. Expense¥/hether or not the effective date shall occur, aithimiting the obligations of the Borrower undbe
Credit Agreement, the Borrower agrees to pay, oeitmburse on demand, all reasonable costs andsgpéncurred by the Agent in
connection with the negotiation, preparation, exea delivery, modi e Lion, amendment or enforcetre this Amendment, the Credit
Agreement and the other agreements, documentsatrdrments referred to herein, including the reablnfees and expenses of Mayer,
Brown, Rowe & Maw LLP, special counsel to the Agertd any other counsel engaged by the Agent,

[Signature Page Follows]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been execaseof the date first above written.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
By: /s/ John K. Schmidt

Name: John K. Schmidt

Title: EVP, CFO, COO

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY
As Agent

By: /s/ Thomas E. Bernhardt
Name: Thomas E. Bernhardt
Title: Vice President

BANKS:

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY
By: /s/ Thomas E. Bernhardt

Name: Thomas E. Bernhardt

Title: Vice President

HARRIS TRUST AND SAVINGS BANK
By: /s/ Michael S. Cameli

Name: Michael S. Cameli

Title: Vice President

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
By: /s/ Jay Strunk

Name: Jay Strunk

Title: Assistant Vice President




GUARANTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Each of the undersigned Guarantors hereby ackngetednd consents to the Borrower’s execution efAnnendment.

CITIZENS FINANCE CO. ULTEA,INC.

By: /s/ John K. Schmidt By: /s/ John K. Schmidt
Title: Treasurer Title: Treasurer




CERTIFICATE

The undersigned as Executive Vice President, Ghirefncial Officer and Chief Operating Officer of &tdand Financial
USA, Inc., hereby certifies as follows:

1. No Default, as defined in the Credit Agreetreanong Heartland Financial USA, Inc. (the "BorroWecertain banks and The
Northern Trust Company as agent, as amended ("{Ckgdeement") has occurred and is continu

2. The representations and warranties of thedda@r in Section 6 of the Credit Agreement andect®n 7 of the Fourth
Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement dated &aoch 1, 2005, are true and correct on and dseotiate hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executsdQGhbrtificate as of March 1, 2005.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
By: /s/ John K. Schmidt

Name: John K. Schmi

Title: EVP, CFO, COO



FIFTH AMENDMENT AND WAIVER TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS FIFTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (thiSAmendment")dated as of July 18, 2005 is among HEARTLAND
FINANCIAL USA, INC., a corporation formed under tkewvs of the State of Delaware (the "Borroweedch of the banks party hereto
(individually, a "Bank" and collectively, the "Bagk and THE NORTHERN TRUST OMPANY, as agent for the Bain such capacity,
together with its successors in such capacity,Algent").

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Bamge entered into a Credit Agreement dated aarofaty 31, 2004 (as hereto
amended, the "Credit Agreementdjd

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Banlsh to make certain amendments to the Credit &memnt;

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, theeipt and sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledgthe parties hereto ag
as follows:

1. Definitions.Terms defined in the Credit Agreement and not etfser defined herein shall have the respective nmgargiven
to them in the Credit Agreement and terms defimetthé introductory paragraphs or other provisidnthis Amendment shall have the
respective meanings attributed to them thereiadutition, the following terms shall have the foliagg meanings (terms defined in the singular
having a correlative meaning when used in the plurd vice versa):

"Effective Date" shall mean July 18, 2005, if fijg Amendment shall have been executed and detiviarehe Borrowers the
Agent and the Banks and (ii) the Borrower shallehperformed its obligations under Sectioheseof.

2. Indebtedness, Section 7.%f the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to #tate entirety as follows:

"7,5 Indebtedness, Liens And Tax&be Borrower and each Subsidiary shall:

(a) Indebtednes$ot incur, permit to remain outstanding, assumim @any way become committed for Indebtedness
(specifically including but not limited to Indebteekss in respect of money borrowed from financisfiintions but
excluding deposits), except: (i) in the case ofBloerower, Indebtedness incurred hereunder, atideitase of the
Guarantors, under their respective Guaranty Agre¢n(i® Indebtedness existing on the date of fkgseement and
described on Schedule 7.5f@reof; (iii) Indebtedness of any Subsidiary adsimthe ordinary course of the business of
such Subsidiary; (iv) Indebtedness of any Subsidiathe Borrower or any other Subsidiary; .(vihe case of ULTEA,
the US Bank Indebtedness outstanding on the datehia the principal amount of $11,418,871.69sl#w® aggregate
amount of all repayments thereunder after the oftieis Agreement; (vi). in. the case of CFC, Ingelmess under
commercial paper issued by CFC which, together wiith other commercial paper identified on Schedui¢a) hereto,
shall not exceed an aggregate principal amoun20fa®0,000; (vii) in the case of the Borrower, Trinslebtedness and
Trust Guarantees, and in the ease of any Trustis$wust Preferred Securities, providétit the aggregate of such Trust
Indebtedness (and the related Trust Guarantee$rast Preferred Securities) shall not exceed $8800D at any time
outstanding; (viii) in the event any transfer ontrbution of accounts receivable of ULTEA to a cjpépurpose vehicle in
accordance with Section 7.1(d)deemed to constitute a secured financing, Iretitgss of ULTEA to such special
purpose vehicle, secured by the account receivalnléselated rights transferred to such specigdgae vehicle only (the
"Factored Receivables")provided that such Indebtedness shall not exceed an amquat ® $30,000,000 in the
aggregate during the term of this Agreement; (@dhie case of the Borrower, Indebtedness to@iy of Dubuque, lowa,
in an amount not to exceed $300,000 to be useithéopurpose of funding building improvements; ¢x}he case of the
Borrower, Indebtedness in an aggregate amountrstdess of $2,750,000 under the Agreement to Grgamd
Stockholder Agreement dated February 1, 2003 am&tipplemental Initial Investor Agreement datedréaty 1, 2003
and (xi) additional Indebtedness not to exceed®1,@DO0 at any time outstanding."

3. Investments and LoarSection 7.6 of the Credit Agreement is hereby arednd state in its entirety as follows:

"7.6 Investments and Loareither the Borrower naany Subsidiary shall make any loan, advance, extersfieredit or
capital contribution to, or purchase or otherwisguare for a consideration, evidences of Indebtedneapital stock or
other securities of any Person, except that theddar and any Subsidiary may:

€) purchase or otherwise acquire and own ghom-money market items (specifically including bot
limited to preferred. stock mutual funds);

(b) invest, by way of purchase of securitiesapital contributions, in the Subsidiary Banks oy ather bank



or banks, and upon the Borrower's purchase or aitegrisition of fifty percent (50%) or more of theack of any
bank, such bank shall thereupon become a "SubgiBemk" for all purposes under this Agreement;

(c) invest, by way of loan, advance, extensiboredit (whether in the form of lease, conditiorales
agreement, or otherwise), purchase of securitegsfal contributions, or otherwise, in Subsidiagiser than banks or Subsidiary
Banks, except that in no event shall the Borrowagtgregate equity investment in CFC and ULTEA edcE# of its Tangible Net
Worth;

(d) invest, by way of purchase of securitiesaypital contributions, in other Persons so lonpefsre and
giving effect thereto no Default shall have occdramd be continuing and the investment is in coamglé with the Bank Holding
Company Act of 1956, as amended, and the exiséigglations of the Board of Governors of the Fed@ederve System relating to
bank holding companies;

(e) make any investment permitted by applicgloleernmental laws and regulations;

® with respect to DBT, issue a letter of ctddr the benefit of the city of Dubuque for therposes permitted
in Section 7.5(dphereof; and

(9) in the case of any Trust Issuer, purchageTanst Indebtedness and, in the case of the Barppurchase
any common securities of any Trust Issuer and iasyelrust Guarantees (in each case, in accordaiticehe other applicable
provisions of this Agreement). .

Nothing in this Section 7.8hall prohibit the Borrower or any Subsidiary Bdrdm making loans, advances, or

other extensions of credit in the ordinary courskamking upon substantially the same terms agdfere extended by
them in such business or upon such terms as nthg &tme be customary in the banking business."

4. Waiver,The Banks hereby waive any rights they may hateke action arising from any breach by the Borrqweior tO the

effectiveness of this Amendment, of its obligatiemsler_Sections .7.&nd 7,6 of the Credit Agreement, so long as suehdir shall not be
continuing aftegiving effect to this Amendment. This. waiver shall beitéd to its terms and shall not constitute a wafesiny other. rights
the Banks may have from time to time.

5. Conditions to Effective Dat&éhe occurrence of the Effective Date shall be suthifethe satisfaction of the following

conditions precedent:

(@) The Borrower, the Agent and the Majority Bashall have executed and
delivered this Amendment,

(b) After giving effect to the waiver in Sectidrabove, no Default shall have
occurred and be continuing under the Credit Agregpand the representations and warranties of treoBrer in Section 6 «
the Credit Agreement and in Sectiohéteof shall be true and correct on and as of ffeeve Date and the Borrowshall
have provided to the Agent a certificate of a seafticer of the Borrower to that effect.

(c) Each Guarantor shall acknowledge and cortsgthis Amendment. for purposes
of its Guaranty Agreement as evidenced by its siggmeknowledgment of this Amendment on the signgbage hereof.

(d) The Borrower shall have delivered to thgeAt, on behalf of the Banks, such
other documents as the Agent may reasonably request

6. Effective Date Notic&2romptly following the occurrence of the Effectidate,
the Agent shall give notice to the parties of thewrence of the Effective Date, which notice shallconclusive, and the parties may

rely thereon; provided, that such notice shallwaive or otherwise limit any right or remedy of thgent or the Banks arising out of any fail
of any condition precedent set forth_in Sectido be satisfied.

7. Ratification.The parties agree that the Credit Agreement, amndetkhereby, and the notes have not lapsed or

terminated, are in full force and effect, and ard tom and after the Effective. Date shall rentaiimding in accordance with their terms.

8. Representations and Warranfigee Borrower represents and warrants to the Agestize Banksthat:

€) No BreachThe execution, delivery and performance of this Adraent



will not conflict with or result in a breach of, oause the creation of a Lien or require
any consent under, the articles of incorporatiohydaws of the Borrower, or any applicable law egulation, or any order,
injunction or decree of any court or governmentdharity or agency, or any agreement or instruntenthich the
Borrower is a party or by which it or its propeisybound.

(b) Power and Action, Binding Effedthe Borrower has been duly incorpor:
and is validly existing as a corporation underltives of the State of Delaware and has all necegsamgr and authority to
execute, deliver. and perform its obligations urties Amendment and the Credit Agreement, as antehyehis
Amendment; the execution, delivery and performancthe Borrower of this Amendment. and the Credjtéement, as
amended by this Amendment, have been duly authbkiyeall necessary action on its part; and this Admeent and the
Credit Agreement, as amended by this Amendmeng haen duly and validly executed and deliverechkeyBorrower and
constitute legal, valid and binding. obligationsfaceable in accordance with their respective serm

(c) ApprovalsNo authorizations, approvals or consents of, anfilings or
registrations with, any governmental or regulatauyhority or agency or any other person are necgfsathe execution,
delivery or performance by the Borrower of this Ardment or the Credit Agreement, as amended byAtimendment, or for
the validity or enforceability thereof.

9. Successors and Assighkis Amendment shall be binding upon and inurénelienefit of the Borrower, the Agent and
the Banks and their respective successors andhassigcept that the Borrower may not transfer sigaisany of its rights or interest
hereunder.

10. Governing Law.This Amendment shall be governed by, and construegind interpreted in accordance with, the
internal laws of the State of Illinois.

11. Counterpart§ his Amendment may be executed in any number ofitesparts and each party hereto may execute ar
or more of such counterparts, all of which shalistdute one and the same instrument. Deliverynofxecuted counterpart of a signature page
to this Amendment by telecopy shall be as effectivelelivery of a manually executed counterpathisfamendment.

12. ExpensedVhether or not the effective date shall occur, aithimiting the obligations of the Borrower undbe Credit
Agreement, the Borrower agrees to pay, or to remsion demand, all reasonable costs and exper@esed by the Agent in connection with
the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivemgdification, amendment or enforcement of this Adraent, the Credit Agreement and the
other agreements, documents and instruments referigerein, including the reasonable fees andresgeeof Mayer, Brown, Rowe & Maw
LLP, special counsel to the Agent, and any othensel engaged by the Agent.

[Signature Page Follows]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been execaseof the date first above written.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
By: /s/ John K. Schmidt

Name: John K. Schmidt

Title: EVP, CFO, COO

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY,
As Agent

By: /s/ Lisa McDermott
Name: Lisa McDermott
Title: Vice President

BANKS:

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY
By: /s/ Lisa McDermott

Name: Lisa McDermott

Title: Vice President

HARRIS N.A. (successor by merger with Harris Trust and
Savings Bank)

By: /s/ Thomas J. Wilson

Name: Thomas J. Wilson

Title: Vice President

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
By: /s/ Neil J. Havlik

Name: Neil J. Havlik

Title: Correspondent Officer




GUARANTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
Each of the undersigned Guarantors hereby ackngetednd consents to the Borrower’s execution efAnnendment.
CITIZENS FINANCE CO. ULTEA, INC.

By: /s/ John K. Schmidt By: /ehd K. Schmidt
Title: Treasurer TitlereBsurer




CERTIFICATE

The undersigned as Executive Vice President, Ghirefncial Officer and Chief Operating Officer of &tdand Financial
USA, Inc., hereby certifies as follows:

1. No Default, as defined in the Credit Agreetreanong Heartland Financial USA, Inc. (the "BorroWecertain banks and The
Northern Trust Company as agent, as amended ("{Ckgdeement") has occurred and is continu

2. The representations and warranties of thedda@r in Section 6 of the Credit Agreement andect®n 7 of the Fourth
Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement dated &aoch 1, 2005, are true and correct on and dseotiate hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executsdQGhbrtificate as of March 1, 2005.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
By: /s/ John K. Schmidt

Name: John K. Schmi

Title: EVP, CFO, COO



HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC .

as Issuer

INDENTURE

Dated as of January 31, 2006

WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

As Trustee

JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBT SECURITIES

Due April 7, 2036




SECTION 1.01.

SECTION 2.01.

SECTION 2.02.

SECTION 2.03.

SECTION 2.04.

SECTION 2.05.

SECTION 2.06.

SECTION 2.07.

SECTION 2.08.

SECTION 2.09.

SECTION 2.10.

SECTION 2.11.

SECTION 2.12.

SECTION 2.13.

SECTION 3.01.

SECTION 3.02.

SECTION 3.03.

SECTION 3.04.

SECTION 3.05.

SECTION 3.06.

SECTION 3.07.

ARTICLE |
DEFINITIONS

Definitions

ARTICLE Il
DEBT SECURITIES

Authentication and Dating

Form of Trustee's Cagdife of Authentication

Form and Denominatioebt Securities

Execution of Debt Sedesit

Exchange and Registratibfiransfer of Debt Securities

Mutilated, Destroyed, tosStolen Debt Securities

Temporary Debt Securities

Payment of Interest

Cancellation of Debt Séwms Paid, etc
Computation of Interest

Extension of Interest fant Period
CUSIP Numbers

Global Debentures
ARTICLE 1l

PARTICULAR COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY
Payment of Principal,rRitem and Interest; Agreed Treatment of the DebuBtes
Offices for Notices arayments, etc
Appointments to Fill Vac&s in Trustee's Office
Provision as to PayingeAg
Certificate to Trustee
Additional Interest

Compliance with Consdiida Provisions



SECTION 3.08.

SECTION 3.09.

SECTION 4.01.

SECTION 4.02.

SECTION 5.01.

SECTION 5.02.

SECTION 5.03.

SECTION 5.04.

SECTION 5.05.

SECTION 5.06.

SECTION 5.07.

SECTION 5.08.

SECTION 5.09.

SECTION 6.01.

SECTION 6.02.

SECTION 6.03.

SECTION 6.04.

SECTION 6.05.

SECTION 6.06.

SECTION 6.07.

SECTION 6.08.

SECTION 6.09.

SECTION 6.10.

Limitation on Dividends

Covenants as to the Trust

ARTICLE IV

LISTS AND REPORTS BY THE COMPANY AND THE TRUSTEE

REMEDIES OF THE TRUSTEE AND SECURITYHOLDERS UPON ARWVENT OF DEFAULT

Securities

Securityholders' Lists
Preservation and Disalesaf Lists

ARTICLE V

Events of Default
Payment of Debt Secugitia Default; Suit Therefor
Application of Moneys (&aked by Trustee
Proceedings by Securilyéis
Proceedings by Trustee
Remedies Cumulative andtbuing
Direction of Proceediagsl Waiver of Defaults by Majority of Securityhotde
Notice of Defaults
Undertaking to Pay Costs
ARTICLE VI

CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE
Duties and Responsik#itdf Trustee
Reliance on Documentsnops, etc

No Responsibility for Ratls, etc

Trustee, Authenticatingefit, Paying Agents, Transfer Agents or Registray Kdwn Debt

Moneys to be Held in Trus
Compensation and Expengdsustee
Officers' CertificateE@dence

Eligibility of Trustee

Resignation or Removarafstee, Calculation Agent, Paying Agent or DedxtBity Registrar

Acceptance by Successor



SECTION 6.11.

SECTION 6.12.

SECTION 7.01.

SECTION 7.02.

SECTION 7.03.

SECTION 7.04.

SECTION 7.05.

SECTION 8.01.

SECTION 8.02.

SECTION 8.03.

SECTION 8.04.

SECTION 8.05.

SECTION 8.06.

SECTION 8.07.

SECTION 8.08.

SECTION 9.01.

SECTION 9.02.

SECTION 9.

SECTION 9.04.

SECTION 9.05.

SECTION 10.01.

Succession by Merger, etc
Authenticating Agents

ARTICLE VII

CONCERNING THE SECURITYHOLDERS

Action by Securityholders
Proof of Execution by Ségholders
Who Are Deemed Absoluten®rs
Debt Securities Owneddmympany Deemed Not Outstanding
Revocation of ConsentguFe Securityholders Bound

ARTICLE VIII

SECURITYHOLDERS' MEETINGS

Purposes of Meetings
Call of Meetings by Tesst
Call of Meetings by Compar Securityholders
Qualifications for Voting
Regulations
Voting
Quorum; Actions
Written Consent Withoutlaeting

ARTICLE IX

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES

Supplemental Indenturébout Consent of Securityholders
Supplemental Indenturéh Wonsent of Securityholders
Effect of Supplementadéntures
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THIS INDENTURE, dated as of January 31, 2006, betwéleartland Financial USA, Inc., a bank holdingnpany
incorporated in Delaware (hereinafter sometimesedathe "Company"), and Wells Fargo Bank, NatioAakociation, a national banki
association with its principal place of businesthim State of Delaware, as trustee (hereinafteetiomas called the "Trustee”).

WITNESSETH:
WHEREAS, for its lawful corporate purposes, the @amy has duly authorized the issuance of its JuBidrordinated De
Securities due April 7, 2036 (the "Debt Securifjesthder this Indenture and to provide, among ottiéngs, for the execution a
authentication, delivery and administration theyéloé Company has duly authorized the executidhisfindenture.
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises] the purchase of the Debt Securities by the hsltleereof, th
Company covenants and agrees with the Trustednéoedqual and proportionate benefit of the respedinders from time to time of the D

Securities as follows:

ARTICLE |

DEFINITIONS
SECTION 1.01. Definitions
The terms defined in this Section 1.01 (excepteasih otherwise expressly provided or unless thmect otherwise require
for all purposes of this Indenture and of any irtdes supplemental hereto shall have the respente@nings specified in this Section 1.01.
accounting terms used herein and not expressiyetkfhall have the meanings assigned to such feraxcordance with generally accey
accounting principles and the term "generally ategaccounting principles" means such accountiimgiples as are generally accepted ir
United States at the time of any computation. Theds "herein,” "hereof' and "hereunder" and otherds of similar import refer to tt
Indenture as a whole and not to any particularchatiSection or other subdivision.
"Acceleration Event" shall have the meaningfegh in Section 5.01.
"Additional Interest" shall have the meaningfeeth in Section 3.06.
"Additional Provisions" shall have the meanimg frth in Section 15.01.
"Applicable Depository Procedures" means, with eespto any transfer or transaction involving a Gllobebenture «
beneficial interest therein, the rules and proceslwf the Depositary for such Global Debenturegdnh case to the extent applicable to

transaction and as in effect from time to time.

"Authenticating Agent" means any agent or agehtbe Trustee which at the time shall be appdirated acting
pursuant to Section 6.12.

"Bankruptcy Law" means Title 11, U.S. Code, oy aimilar federal or state law for the relief afldors.

"Board of Directors” means the board of direstor the executive committee or any other duly auttled designated
officers of the Company.

"Board Resolution" means a copy of a resolutieriified by the Secretary or an Assistant Secyaththe Company to
have been duly adopted by the Board of Directodstarbe in full force and effect on the date offsuaertification and delivered to the Trustee.

"Business Day" means any day other than a Safu®lunday or any other day on which banking ustits in
Wilmington, Delaware or New York City are permittedrequired by any applicable law or executiveeort close.

"Calculation Agent" means the Person identiisd Trustee" in the first paragraph hereof witlpees to the Debt
Securities and the Institutional Trustee with respe the Trust Securities.



"Capital Securities" means undivided benefigitdrests in the assets of the Trust which aregdeséd as "Capital
Securities" and rank pari passu with Common Seearnissued by the Trust; provided, however, thahiEvent of Default has occurred and is
continuing, the rights of holders of such Commonuiéies to payment in respect of distributions gagiments upon liquidation, redemption
and otherwise are subordinated to the rights afdrsl of such Capital Securities.

"Capital Securities Guarantee" means the guaessngreement that the Company will enter into Wigils Fargo Bank,
National Association or other Persons that operditestly or indirectly for the benefit of holdeo$ Capital Securities of the Tru:

"Capital Treatment Event" means the receiptigy@ompany and the Trust of an Opinion of Counsgégenced in
such matters to the effect that, as a result ofeamgndment to, or change in, the laws, rules arlagigns of the United States or any political
subdivision thereof or therein, or as the resultrof official or administrative pronouncement oti@t or decision interpreting or applying such
laws, rules or regulations, which amendment or ghds effective or which pronouncement, actionexision is announced on or after the date
of original issuance of the Debt Securities, themmore than an insubstantial risk that, withind@gs of the receipt of such opinion, the
aggregate Liquidation Amount of the Capital Sedesitvill not be eligible to be treated by the Compas "Tier 1 Capital” (or the then
equivalent thereof) for purposes of the capitaljaeey guidelines of the Federal Reserve or OT&pplcable (or any successor regulatory
authority with jurisdiction over bank, savings &ato or financial holding companies), as then inaféand applicable to the Company;
provided, however, that the inability of the Company to treat allaory portion of the Liquidation Amount of the CapiSecurities as Tier 1
Capital shall not constitute the basis for a Cafitaatment Event, if such inability results frohetCompany having cumulative preferred
stock, minority interests in consolidated subsiégror any other class of security or interestolvlihe Federal Reserve or OTS, as applicable,
may now or hereafter accord Tier 1 Capital treatnmeexcess of the amount which may now or hereajtialify for treatment as Tier 1 Capital
under applicable capital adequacy guidelines; plei further, however, that the distribution of the Debt Securities amoection with the
liguidation of the Trust by the Company shall motind of itself constitute a Capital Treatment Everless such liquidation shall have occu
in connection with a Tax Event or an Investment @any Event.

"Certificate" means a certificate signed by any ohthe principal executive officer, the princigedancial officer or th:
principal accounting officer of the Company.

"Common Securities" means undivided beneficitdriests in the assets of the Trust which are datg as "Common
Securities" and rank pari passu with Capital S¢éiesrissued by the Trust; provided, however, thahiEvent of Default has occurred and is
continuing, the rights of holders of such Commonusiéies to payment in respect of distributions gagiments upon liquidation, redemption
and otherwise are subordinated to the rights afdrsl of such Capital Securities.

"Company" means Heartland Financial USA, Indbaak holding company incorporated in Delaware, anfject to
the provisions of Article Xl, shall include its stgssors and assigns.

"Debt Security” or "Debt Securities" has the niag stated in the first recital of this Indenture.
"Debt Security Register” has the meaning spetiiin Section 2.05.

"Declaration” means the Amended and RestatedhbEation of Trust of the Trust dated as of Jani&ry2006, as
amended or supplemented from time to time.

"Default” means any event, act or condition thih notice or lapse of time, or both, would catugé an Event of
Default.

"Defaulted Interest" has the meaning set fartBeéction 2.08.
"Deferred Interest” has the meaning set fort8ection 2.11.

"Depositary” means an organization registered adearing agency under the Securities Exchange Act984 that i
designated as Depositary by the Company or anyessoc thereto. DTC will be the initial Depositary.

"Depositary Participant” means a broker, dealemkbather financial institution or other Person fanom from time to tim
the Depositary effects book-entry transfers andges of securities deposited with the Depositary.

"DTC" means The Depository Trust Company, a NewkYarporation.

"Event of Default” means any event specifie@éttion 5.01, which has continued for the periotog, if any, and



after the giving of the notice, if any, therein idesited.
"Extension Period" has the meaning set fort8eotion 2.11.
"Federal Reserve" means the Board of GovernfditseoFederal Reserve System.

"Global Debenture" means a security that evidsradl or part of the Debt Securities, the owngrsinid transfers of
which shall be made through book entries by a Diggnys

"Indenture” means this instrument as originakgcuted or, if amended or supplemented as hereiided, as so
amended or supplemented, or both.

"Initial Purchaser" means the initial purchasethaf Capital Securities.
"Institutional Trustee" has the meaning setfantthe Declaration.

"Interest Payment Date" means January 7, Apdul 7 and October 7 of each year, commencingpii 7, 2006,
during the term of this Indenture.

"Interest Payment Period" means the period fromianlliding an Interest Payment Date, or in the a#sthe first Intere:
Payment Period, the original date of issuance ®kbt Securities, to, but excluding, the next eading Interest Payment Date or, in the
of the last Interest Payment Period, the Redemiimtie, Special Redemption Date or Maturity Datehascase may be.

"Interest Rate” means a per annum rate of istereset quarterly, equal to LIBOR, as determioredhe LIBOR
Determination Date immediately preceding each ggePayment Date, plus 1.33%; provided, howevat,ttte Interest Rate for any Interest
Payment Period may not exceed the highest rateifpediby New York law, as the same may be modifigdJnited States law of general
application.

"Investment Company Event" means the receighbyCompany and the Trust of an Opinion of Couagpkrienced in
such matters to the effect that, as a result dfaage in law or regulation or written change iriptetation or application of law or regulation
by any legislative body, court, governmental agemrcsegulatory authority, there is more than amirstantial risk that the Trust is or, within
days of the date of such opinion will be, consideaa "investment company" that is required to lggstered under the Investment Company
Act of 1940, as amended, which change or prospectiange becomes effective or would become effectis the case may be, on or after the
date of the original issuance of the Debt Secuwritie

"LIBOR" means the London Interbank Offered Rateldo. Dollar deposits in Europe as determined kyQhlculatior
Agent according to Section 2.10(b).

"LIBOR Banking Day" has the meaning set forttSiection 2.10(b)(1).

"LIBOR Business Day" has the meaning set fant&éction 2.10(b)(1).

"LIBOR Determination Date" has the meaning sethfin Section 2.10(b).

"Liquidation Amount" means the liquidation amowfi $1,000 per Trust Security.

"Maturity Date" means April 7, 2036.

"Notice" has the meaning set forth in Sectiatl2.

"Officers' Certificate” means a certificate sgrby the Chairman of the Board, the Vice Chairntlae President or any
Vice President, and by the Chief Financial Offideg Treasurer, an Assistant Treasurer, the Coffigrtran Assistant Comptroller, the
Secretary or an Assistant Secretary of the Compemy delivered to the Trustee. Each such certdishgll include the statements provided for
in Section 14.06 if and to the extent requiredhmy pprovisions of such Section.

"Opinion of Counsel" means an opinion in writsigned by legal counsel, who may be an employee cbunsel to

the Company, or may be other counsel reasonalifaszibry to the Trustee. Each such opinion simaluide the statements provided for in
Section 14.06 if and to the extent required byptfevisions of such Section.



"OTS" means the Office of Thrift Supervision aantly successor federal agency that is primarilgarsible for
regulating the activities of savings and loan hajdtompanies.

"Outstanding" means when used with referend@efot Securities, subject to the provisions of $&c#.04, means, as
of any particular time, all Debt Securities autlheated and delivered by the Trustee or the Autlatitig Agent under this Indenture, except

(@) Debt Securities theretofore canceled byTitustee or the Authenticating Agent or deliveredh® Trustee for
cancellation;

(b) Debt Securities, or portions thereof, fag rayment or redemption of which moneys in the s&amgy amount shall
have been deposited in trust with the Trustee tr miy Paying Agent (other than the Company) oll flaae been set aside and segregated in
trust by the Company (if the Company shall actaswn Paying Agent); providedhat, if such Debt Securities, or portions thérace to be
redeemed prior to maturity thereof, notice of stedtemption shall have been given as provided iicieg X and XIV or provision satisfactory
to the Trustee shall have been made for giving sutice; and

(c) Debt Securities paid pursuant to Sectio® 2:0in lieu of or in substitution for which othBebt Securities shall
have been authenticated and delivered pursuahettetms of Section 2.06 unless proof satisfadimthhe Company and the Trustee is
presented that any such Debt Securities are helbg fide holders in due course.

"Paying Agent" has the meaning set forth in ®eacB.04(e).

"Person” means any individual, corporation, tediliability company, partnership, joint ventuassociation, joinstock
company, trust, unincorporated organization or goweent or any agency or political subdivision ttodre

"Predecessor Security" of any particular Debt Sgcuareans every previous Debt Security evidencihgraa portion o
the same debt as that evidenced by such partibelar Security; and, for the purposes of this dééini any Debt Security authenticated and
delivered under Section 2.06 in lieu of a lost tagsed or stolen Debt Security shall be deemedridesice the same debt as the lost, destroyed
or stolen Debt Security.

"Principal Office of the Trustee" means the aéfof the Trustee, at which at any particular titeeorporate trust
business shall be principally administered, whichlktimes shall be located within the United 8&and at the time of the execution of this
Indenture shall be 919 Market Street, Suite 700miigton, DE 19801.

"Redemption Date" has the meaning set fortheictisn 10.01.

"Redemption Price" means 100% of the principabant of the Debt Securities being redeemed plosiad and
unpaid interest on such Debt Securities to the Retien Date or, in the case of a redemption dubécccurrence of a Special Event to the
Special Redemption Date if such Special Redem@ate is on or after April 7, 2011.

"Responsible Officer" means, with respect toThestee, any officer within the Principal Officétbe Trustee with
direct responsibility for the administration of thlenture, including any vice-president, any dasisvice-president, any secretary, any
assistant secretary, the treasurer, any assistastirer, any trust officer or other officer of Pxncipal Office of the Trustee customarily
performing functions similar to those performedany of the above designated officers and also medtisrespect to a particular corporate
trust matter, any other officer to whom such mateeferred because of that officer's knowledgaraf familiarity with the particular subject.

"Securityholder," "holder of Debt Securities"ather similar terms, means any Person in whoseeradrthe time a
particular Debt Security is registered on the Ddturity Register.

"Senior Indebtedness"” means, with respect t&€thrapany, (i) the principal, premium, if any, anterest in respect of
(A) indebtedness of the Company for money borroamd (B) indebtedness evidenced by securities, detss notes, bonds or other similar
instruments issued by the Company; (ii) all cap&ake obligations of the Company; (iii) all obligas of the Company issued or assumed as
the deferred purchase price of property, all coowl#tl sale obligations of the Company and all adtiions of the Company under any title
retention agreement (but excluding trade accowyalple arising in the ordinary course of busing®g);all obligations of the Company for the
reimbursement of any letter of credit, any bankatseptance, any security purchase facility, apynehase agreement or similar arrangement,
any interest rate swap, any other hedging arrangerary obligation under options or any similardit@r other transaction; (v) all obligations
of the type referred to in clauses (i) through épve of other Persons for the payment of whiehGbmpany is responsible or liable as
obligor, guarantor or otherwise; and (vi) all olalipns of the type referred to in clauses (i) tigto(v) above of other Persons secured by any
lien on any property or asset of the Company (wdreth not such obligation is assumed by the Compavtyether incurred on or prior to the
date of this Indenture or thereafter incurred, s®ll) with the prior approval of the Federal Res@r OTS, as applicable, if not otherwise



generally approved, in the instrument creatingwidencing the same or pursuant to which the samatistanding, it is
provided that such obligations are not supericarepari passu in right of payment to the Debt Securities; or ) Federal Reserve or OTS,
applicable, shall hereafter classify or otherwiseognize any such obligation pari passu or subordinate to the Debt Securities.

"Special Event" means any of a Tax Event, ae$thwment Company Event or a Capital Treatment Event.
"Special Redemption Date" has the meaning s#t fo Section 10.02.

"Special Redemption Price" means (1) if the $dtedemption Date is before April 7, 2011, Onentied Five
Percent (105%) of the principal amount of the D&dturities to be redeemed plus any accrued anddumperest thereon to the date of such
redemption or (2) if the Special Redemption Daterior after April 7, 2011, the Redemption Pricedach Special Redemption Date.

"Subsidiary” means, with respect to any Persorgn(y) corporation, at least a majority of the outdiag voting stock c
which is owned, directly or indirectly, by such Bem or by one or more of its Subsidiaries, or lghsd®erson and one or more of its
Subsidiaries, (ii) any general partnership, joiahture or similar entity, at least a majority of thutstanding partnership or similar interests of
which shall at the time be owned by such Persobyane or more of its Subsidiaries, or by sucts®@mand one or more of its Subsidiaries,
and (iii) any limited partnership of which such @t or any of its Subsidiaries is a general parfper the purposes of this definition, "voting
stock" means shares, interests, participationshar@quivalents in the equity interest (howevesigigated) in such Person having ordinary
voting power for the election of a majority of thigectors (or the equivalent) of such Person, oth&n shares, interests, participations or other
equivalents having such power only by reason obtteirrence of a contingency.

"Tax Event" means the receipt by the Companythadrust of an Opinion of Counsel experienceslich matters to
the effect that, as a result of any amendment tthange (including any announced prospective chjandgbe laws or any regulations
thereunder of the United States or any politicidsuision or taxing authority thereof or thereim,as a result of any official administrative
pronouncement (including any private letter ruliteghnical advice memorandum, regulatory procecwtice or announcement (an
"Administrative Action")) or judicial decision intpreting or applying such laws or regulations, rdess of whether such Administrative
Action or judicial decision is issued to or in ceation with a proceeding involving the Companyha Trust and whether or not subject to
review or appeal, which amendment, clarificatidmmrge, Administrative Action or decision is enactmmulgated or announced, in each |
on or after the date of original issuance of thétC®ecurities, there is more than an insubstangiklthat: (i) the Trust is, or will be within 90
days of the date of such opinion, subject to Unfiates federal income tax with respect to incomeeived or accrued on the Debt Securities;
(i) interest payable by the Company on the Delztu@iges is not, or within 90 days of the date o€ls opinion, will not be, deductible by the
Company, in whole or in part, for United Statessied income tax purposes; or (iii) the Trust iswili be within 90 days of the date of such
opinion, subject to or otherwise required to payseguired to withhold from distributions to holdesf Trust Securities, more than a de minimis
amount of other taxes (including withholding taxehjties, assessments or other governmental charges

"Trust" means Heartland Statutory Trust V, treddWvare statutory trust, or any other similar tarstated for the
purpose of issuing Capital Securities in connectiith the issuance of Debt Securities under thiteiure, of which the Company is the

sponsaor.

"Trust Indenture Act" means the Trust Indentiice of 1939, as amended from time-to-time, or angcessor
legislation.

"Trust Securities" means Common Securities agpit&l Securities of Heartland Statutory Trust V.

"Trustee" means the Person identified as "Tridtethe first paragraph hereof, and, subjech&orovisions of Article
VI hereof, shall also include its successors asias as Trustee hereunder.

"United States" means the United States of Acaeand the District of Columbia.

"U.S. Person" has the meaning given to UnitedeStPerson as set forth in Section 7701(a)(30)eonternal Revenue
Code of 1986, as amended.

ARTICLE Il

DEBT SECURITIES

SECTION 2.01. Authentication and Dating




Upon the execution and delivery of this Indentunefrom time to time thereafter, Debt Securitiesam aggregate princif
amount not in excess of $20,619,000 may be exeandddelivered by the Company to the Trustee fohentication, and the Trustee s
thereupon authenticate and make available for eélslisaid Debt Securities to or upon the writtereoraf the Company, signed by its Chair
of the Board of Directors, Vice Chairman, PresidenChief Financial Officer or one of its Vice Pidents, without any further action by
Company hereunder. In authenticating such Debt8&®) and accepting the additional responsik#itunder this Indenture in relation to <
Debt Securities, the Trustee shall be entitlecet@ive, and (subject to Section 6.01) shall b foiibtected in relying upon a copy of any Bc
Resolution or Board Resolutions relating theretd, dnapplicable, an appropriate record of anyattaken pursuant to such resolution, in
case certified by the Secretary or an Assistante$ay or other officers with appropriate delegageithority of the Company as the case
be.

The Trustee shall have the right to decline to enitiicate and deliver any Debt Securities under Sastion if the Truste
being advised by counsel, determines that sucbraatiay not lawfully be taken or if a Responsibldicaf of the Trustee in good faith st

determine that such action would expose the Trustpersonal liability to existing Securityholders.

The definitive Debt Securities shall be typed, t&ih lithographed or engraved on steel engravedesror may be produc
in any other manner, all as determined by the effi@xecuting such Debt Securities, as evidenceldiyexecution of such Debt Securities.

SECTION 2.02. Form of Trustee's Certificate aoftentication

The Trustee's certificate of authentication orDebt Securities shall be in substantially the foileg form:
This is one of the Debt Securities referred tdhim within-mentioned Indenture.
WELLS FARGO BANK, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, not in itsndividual capacity but solely as trustee

By
Authorized Officer

SECTION 2.03. Form and Denomination of Debt Sities .

The Debt Securities shall be substantially in tbemf of Exhibit A hereto. The Debt Securities sHadl in registere:
certificated form without coupons and in minimummdminations of $100,000 and any multiple of $1,006xcess thereof. The Debt Secur
shall be numbered, lettered, or otherwise distisiged in such manner or in accordance with suctsarthe officers executing the same
determine with the approval of the Trustee as enddd by the execution and authentication thereof.

SECTION 2.04. Execution of Debt Securities

The Debt Securities shall be signed in the nameambehalf of the Company by the manual or facgmsignature of i
Chairman of the Board of Directors, Vice ChairmBresident or Chief Financial Officer or one ofHsgecutive Vice Presidents, Senior
Presidents or Vice Presidents, by facsimile or mtiee, and which need not be attested. Only sudbt Becurities as shall bear therec
certificate of authentication substantially in fioem herein before recited, executed by the Trustethe Authenticating Agent by the mar
signature of an authorized officer, shall be emditto the benefits of this Indenture or be validbligatory for any purpose. Such certificate
the Trustee or the Authenticating Agent upon anptCBecurity executed by the Company shall be ceiauevidence that the Debt Securit'
authenticated has been duly authenticated andedetihereunder and that the holder is entitletiedenefits of this Indenture.

In case any officer of the Company who shall hdgaexd any of the Debt Securities shall cease tsuoh officer before tt
Debt Securities so signed shall have been autlxeaticand delivered by the Trustee or the AuthetitigaAgent, or disposed of by 1
Company, such Debt Securities nevertheless mayutheergticated and delivered or disposed of as thdhghPerson who signed such L
Securities had not ceased to be such officer o€rapany; and any Debt Security may be signed balbef the Company by such Person:
at the actual date of the execution of such Debtufg, shall be the proper officers of the Compaaithough at the date of the execution of
Indenture any such person was not such an officer.

Every Debt Security shall be dated the date dithentication.

SECTION 2.05. Exchange and Registration of Tiemnsf Debt Securities

The Company shall cause to be kept, at the officagency maintained for the purpose of registratibtransfer and fc
exchange as provided in Section 3.02, a regigter'{Pebt Security Register") for the Debt SecuwsiiEsued hereunder in which, subject to



reasonable regulations as it may prescribe, thepaagnshall provide for the registration and transfeall Debt Securities .
provided in this Article 1. Such register shall bewritten form or in any other form capable ofif@e converted into written form within
reasonable time.

Debt Securities to be exchanged may be surrendsréte Principal Office of the Trustee or at anficef or agency to
maintained by the Company for such purpose as gedvin Section 3.02, and the Company shall exetateCompany or the Trustee s
register and the Trustee or the Authenticating Aghall authenticate and make available for dejiverexchange therefor the Debt Securit
Debt Securities which the Securityholder making éRehange shall be entitled to receive. Upon desgittment for registration of transfe
any Debt Security at the Principal Office of thei§tee or at any office or agency of the Companyntaaied for such purpose as provide
Section 3.02, the Company shall execute, the Coynmanthe Trustee shall register and the Trusteeher Authenticating Agent sh
authenticate and make available for delivery in lame of the transferee or transferees a new DedurBy for a like aggregate princi|
amount. Registration or registration of transferaafy Debt Security by the Trustee or by any agérthe Company appointed pursuan
Section 3.02, and delivery of such Debt Securttglishe deemed to complete the registration orstegfion of transfer of such Debt Security.

All Debt Securities presented for registration mafnsfer or for exchange or payment shall (if saumegl by the Company
the Trustee or the Authenticating Agent) be dulgased by, or be accompanied by, a written instntnoe instruments of transfer in fo
satisfactory to the Company and either the Trustethe Authenticating Agent duly executed by, ttwddRr or such holder's attorney d
authorized in writing.

No service charge shall be made for any exchangegstration of transfer of Debt Securities, b tCompany or tt
Trustee may require payment of a sum sufficientdeer any tax, fee or other governmental chargé sy be imposed in connect
therewith.

The Company or the Trustee shall not be requireeikthhange or register a transfer of any Debt Sgctor a period of 1
days immediately preceding the date of selectioDeift Securities for redemption.

Notwithstanding the foregoing, Debt Securities nmy be transferred except in compliance with thetrigted securitie
legend set forth below, unless otherwise determimethe Company in accordance with applicable lahich legend shall be placed on €
Debt Security:

THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SBRITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (TH
"SECURITIES ACT"), OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS ORNY OTHER APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS. NEITHER TH]
SECURITY NOR ANY INTEREST OR PARTICIPATION HEREIN MY BE REOFFERED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRE
PLEDGED, ENCUMBERED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF IN THMBSENCE OF SUCH REGISTRATION OR UNLESS SU
TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM, OR NOT SUBJECT TO, THEEGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT. E
HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF REES TO OFFER, SELL OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER SU
SECURITY ONLY (A) TO THE COMPANY, (B) PURSUANT TO BLE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT ("RULE 144A"), T@
PERSON THE HOLDER REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A "QUALIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A THA
PURCHASES FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT @FRQUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER TO WHOM NOTICE
IS GIVEN THAT THE TRANSFER IS BEING MADE IN RELIANE ON RULE 144A, (C) PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FRONMHE
REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT TAN "ACCREDITED INVESTOR" WITHIN THE MEANING Of
SUBPARAGRAPH (a) (1), (2), (3) OR (7) OF RULE 50NDER THE SECURITIES ACT THAT IS ACQUIRING THE SECURY FOR
ITS OWN ACCOUNT, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF AN "ACCREDED INVESTOR," FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES AND N!
WITH A VIEW TO, OR FOR OFFER OR SALE IN CONNECTIOWITH, ANY DISTRIBUTION IN VIOLATION OF THE SECURITES
ACT, OR (D) PURSUANT TO ANOTHER AVAILABLE EXEMPTIONFROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF Tt
SECURITIES ACT, SUBJECT TO THE COMPANY'S RIGHT PRROTO ANY SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER PURSUANT
CLAUSES (C) OR (D) TO REQUIRE THE DELIVERY OF AN @RON OF COUNSEL, CERTIFICATION AND/OR OTHE
INFORMATION SATISFACTORY TO IT IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE INDENTURE, A COPY OF WHICH MAY BE OBTAINEI
FROM THE COMPANY. THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY BY B ACCEPTANCE HEREOF AGREES THAT IT WILL COMPL
WITH THE FOREGOING RESTRICTIONS.

THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOAGREES, REPRESENTS AND WARRAN
THAT IT WILL NOT ENGAGE IN HEDGING TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING THIS SECURITY UNLESS SUCH TRANSACTIONS AF
IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT.

THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOALSO AGREES, REPRESENTS Al
WARRANTS THAT IT IS NOT AN EMPLOYEE BENEFIT, INDIVDUAL RETIREMENT ACCOUNT OR OTHER PLAN O
ARRANGEMENT SUBJECT TO TITLE | OF THE EMPLOYEE REREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT OF 1974, AS AMENDE
("ERISA™), OR SECTION 4975 OF THE INTERNAL REVENUEODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED (THE "CODE"), (EACH A "PL\), OR



AN ENTITY WHOSE UNDERLYING ASSETS INCLUDE "PLAN ASEBETS" BY REASON OF ANY PLAN
INVESTMENT IN THE ENTITY AND NO PERSON INVESTING "PAN ASSETS" OF ANY PLAN MAY ACQUIRE OR HOLD THL
SECURITY OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN, UNLESS SUCH PURBHER OR HOLDER IS ELIGIBLE FOR THE EXEMPTIVE RELIE
AVAILABLE UNDER U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR PROHIBITEDTRANSACTION CLASS EXEMPTION 96-23,95-60,91-38,900F
84-14 OR ANOTHER APPLICABLE EXEMPTION OR ITS PURCHASEND HOLDING OF THIS SECURITY IS NOT PROHIBITED B
SECTION 406 OF ERISA OR SECTION 4975 OF THE CODETWIRESPECT TO SUCH PURCHASE OR HOLDING. Al
PURCHASER OR HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY OR ANY INTERESHEREIN WILL BE DEEMED TO HAVE REPRESENTED E
ITS PURCHASE AND HOLDING THEREOF THAT EITHER (i) ITS NOT AN EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN WITHIN THE MEANIN(
OF SECTION 3(3) OF ERISA, OR A PLAN TO WHICH SECMNO4975 OF THE CODE IS APPLICABLE, A TRUSTEE OR OTR
PERSON ACTING ON BEHALF OF AN EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLARR PLAN, OR ANY OTHER PERSON OR ENTITY USING TI
ASSETS OF ANY EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN OR PLAN TO FINMCE SUCH PURCHASE, OR (ii) SUCH PURCHASE WILL N
RESULT IN A PROHIBITED TRANSACTION UNDER SECTION 400F ERISA OR SECTION 4975 OF THE CODE FOR WHI
THERE IS NO APPLICABLE STATUTORY OR ADMINISTRATIVEEXEMPTION.

IN CONNECTION WITH ANY TRANSFER, THE HOLDER OF THISECURITY WILL DELIVER TO THE COMPAN\
AND TRUSTEE SUCH CERTIFICATES AND OTHER INFORMATIONRS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE INDENTURE TO CONFIRI
THAT THE TRANSFER COMPLIES WITH THE FOREGOING RESTERIIONS.

THIS SECURITY WILL BE ISSUED AND MAY BE TRANSFERREDDNLY IN BLOCKS HAVING A PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT OF NOT LESS THAN $100,000 AND MULTIPLES OFL®00 IN EXCESS THEREOF. ANY ATTEMPTED TRANSFER
THIS SECURITY IN A BLOCK HAVING A PRINCIPAL AMOUNTOF LESS THAN $100,000 SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE VOID A?
OF NO LEGAL EFFECT WHATSOEVER. ANY SUCH PURPORTEIRANSFEREE SHALL BE DEEMED NOT TO BE THE HOLDE
OF THIS SECURITY FOR ANY PURPOSE, INCLUDING, BUT NOLIMITED TO, THE RECEIPT OF DISTRIBUTIONS ON TH
SECURITY, AND SUCH PURPORTED TRANSFEREE SHALL BE EMED TO HAVE NO INTEREST WHATSOEVER IN THI
SECURITY.

THIS OBLIGATION IS NOT A DEPOSIT AND IS NOT INSUREBY THE UNITED STATES OR ANY AGENCY Ol
FUND OF THE UNITED STATES, INCLUDING THE FEDERAL DEOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION (THE "FDIC"). TH
OBLIGATION IS SUBORDINATED TO THE CLAIMS OF DEPOSIORS AND THE CLAIMS OF GENERAL AND SECURE
CREDITORS OF THE COMPANY, IS INELIGIBLE AS COLLATERL FOR A LOAN BY THE COMPANY OR ANY OF IT¢
SUBSIDIARIES AND IS NOT SECURED.

SECTION 2.06. Mutilated, Destroyed, Lost or 8toDebt Securities

In case any Debt Security shall become mutilatebeodestroyed, lost or stolen, the Company shatete, and upon
written request the Trustee shall authenticate d@ldzer, a new Debt Security bearing a number rmttemporaneously outstanding,
exchange and substitution for the mutilated Delnu8ty, or in lieu of and in substitution for theebBt Security so destroyed, lost or stolel
every case the applicant for a substituted Debu@gcshall furnish to the Company and the Trusteeh security or indemnity as may
required by them to save each of them harmless,iar@ery case of destruction, loss or theft,applicant shall also furnish to the Comp
and the Trustee evidence to their satisfactiomefdestruction, loss or theft of such Debt Secunitgf of the ownership thereof.

The Trustee may authenticate any such substitutedt [3ecurity and deliver the same upon the writtequest c
authorization of any officer of the Company. Upbe issuance of any substituted Debt Security, the@&ny may require the payment
sum sufficient to cover any tax or other governrakrharge that may be imposed in relation theretd any other expenses conne
therewith. In case any Debt Security which has negtwr is about to mature or has been called femgotion in full shall become mutilatec
be destroyed, lost or stolen, the Company mayeausof issuing a substitute Debt Security, payuth@rize the payment of the same (witt
surrender thereof except in the case of a mutilBtelot Security) if the applicant for such paymemdlkfurnish to the Company and the Tru:
such security or indemnity as may be required mtho save each of them harmless and, in case stfudéon, loss or theft, evider
satisfactory to the Company and to the Truste@®flestruction, loss or theft of such Security afthe ownership thereof.

Every substituted Debt Security issued pursuathéoprovisions of this Section 2.06 by virtue of flact that any such De
Security is destroyed, lost or stolen shall contitan additional contractual obligation of the @amy, whether or not the destroyed, los
stolen Debt Security shall be found at any time], simall be entitled to all the benefits of thiséntlre equally and proportionately with any
all other Debt Securities duly issued hereundel.Dbt Securities shall be held and owned uponetkgress condition that, to the ex
permitted by applicable law, the foregoing provisicare exclusive with respect to the replacemeipagment of mutilated, destroyed, los
stolen Debt Securities and shall preclude any drnatlger rights or remedies notwithstanding any lamstatute existing or hereafter enacte
the contrary with respect to the replacement onpayt of negotiable instruments or other securitigout their surrender.

SECTION 2.07. Temporary Debt Securities




Pending the preparation of definitive Debt Secesitthe Company may execute and the Trustee slithirticate and ma
available for delivery temporary Debt Securitieatthre typed, printed or lithographed. TemporarptD®ecurities shall be issuable in
authorized denomination, and substantially in thvenfof the definitive Debt Securities but with suwarhissions, insertions and variations as
be appropriate for temporary Debt Securities, slireay be determined by the Company. Every suchdeamp Debt Security shall be exect
by the Company and be authenticated by the Trugters the same conditions and in substantially #meesmanner, and with the same effec
the definitive Debt Securities. Without unreasopati¢lay, the Company will execute and deliver ® Thustee or the Authenticating Ag
definitive Debt Securities and thereupon any otetiporary Debt Securities may be surrenderedchange therefor, at the Principal Office
the Trustee or at any office or agency maintaingdhe Company for such purpose as provided in &ec3.02, and the Trustee or
Authenticating Agent shall authenticate and makailalble for delivery in exchange for such tempor@rgbt Securities a like aggreg
principal amount of such definitive Debt Securiti8sich exchange shall be made by the Company atvitsexpense and without any che
therefor except that in case of any such exchamgahiing a registration of transfer the Company meguire payment of a sum sufficien
cover any tax, fee or other governmental chargentay be imposed in relation thereto. Until so exaded, the temporary Debt Securities ¢
in all respects be entitled to the same benefiteuthis Indenture as definitive Debt Securitiethanticated and delivered hereunder.

SECTION 2.08. Payment of Interest

Each Debt Security will bear interest at the thppliaable Interest Rate from and including eaclerest Payment Date or,
the case of the first Interest Payment Period otfiginal date of issuance of such Debt Securitybtd, excluding, the next succeeding Inte
Payment Date or, in the case of the last Interagiiént Period, the Redemption Date, Special Redempiate or Maturity Date, as applical
on the principal thereof, on any overdue principatl (to the extent that payment of such interesni®rceable under applicable law)
Deferred Interest and on any overdue installmentteirest (including Defaulted Interest), payaldalject to the provisions of Article XV)
each Interest Payment Date commencing on April0D62 Interest and any Deferred Interest on any [Bsuturity that is payable, anc
punctually paid or duly provided for by the Compaoy any Interest Payment Date shall be paid toP#eson in whose name said L
Security (or one or more Predecessor Securitieggistered at the close of business on the regetard date for such interest installm
except that interest and any Deferred Interest lpayan the Maturity Date, the Redemption Date er $pecial Redemption Date, as the
may be, shall be paid to the Person to whom pratdgppaid. In (i) case the Maturity Date of anybD&ecurity or (ii) the event that any D
Security or portion thereof is called for redemptiand the redemption date is subsequent to a mregadard date with respect to any Inte
Payment Date and either on or prior to such Intdfagment Date, interest on such Debt Security vélpaid upon presentation and surre
of such Debt Security.

Any interest on any Debt Security, other than Defeéinterest, that is payable, but is not puncyuadlid or duly provided f
by the Company, on any Interest Payment Date (headled "Defaulted Interest”) shall forthwith ceds be payable to the registered holde
the relevant regular record date by virtue of hgween such holder, and such Defaulted Interedittsh@aid by the Company to the Persor
whose names such Debt Securities (or their resePtiedecessor Securities) are registered at ¢ise of business on a special record dal
the payment of such Defaulted Interest, which sbelfixed in the following manner: the Company &inattify the Trustee in writing of tt
amount of Defaulted Interest proposed to be pai@ach such Debt Security and the date of the peappayment, and at the same time
Company shall deposit with the Trustee an amoumhafiey equal to the aggregate amount proposed fmidein respect of such Defaul
Interest or shall make arrangements reasonabhlfaetidry to the Trustee for such deposit prioh date of the proposed payment, such m
when deposited to be held in trust for the beraffithe Persons entitled to such Defaulted Inteassin this clause provided. Thereupon
Trustee shall fix a special record date for thenpayt of such Defaulted Interest which shall notimre than fifteen nor less than ten days |
to the date of the proposed payment and not lesstdn days after the receipt by the Trustee ohthiiee of the proposed payment. The Tru
shall promptly notify the Company of such spece&dard date and, in the name and at the expense ddmpany, shall cause notice of
proposed payment of such Defaulted Interest andpbeial record date therefor to be mailed, fila$€ postage prepaid, to each Securityh
at his or her address as it appears in the DehtriBe®egister, not less than ten days prior tohssjgecial record date. Notice of the propt
payment of such Defaulted Interest and the speetard date therefor having been mailed as afatesach Defaulted Interest shall be pai
the Persons in whose names such Debt Securitieth€orrespective Predecessor Securities) aretezgis on such special record date
thereafter the Company shall have no further paymkligation in respect of the Defaulted Interest.

Any interest scheduled to become payable on anmdsitd>ayment Date occurring during an ExtensionoBeshall not b
Defaulted Interest and shall be payable on sucérathte as may be specified in the terms of sudit Becurities.

The term "regular record date" as used in thisi@ecthall mean the fifteenth day prior to the apglile Interest Payme
Date, whether or not such date is a Business Day.

Subject to the foregoing provisions of this Sectieach Debt Security delivered under this Indentysen registration
transfer of or in exchange for or in lieu of anhert Debt Security shall carry the rights to intesescrued and unpaid, and to accrue, that
carried by such other Debt Security.



SECTION 2.09. Cancellation of Debt SecuritiegiPatc.

All Debt Securities surrendered for the purposepayment, redemption, exchange or registration afngsfer, shall,
surrendered to the Company or any Paying Agensubeendered to the Trustee and promptly canceldad by, if surrendered to the Trustee
any Authenticating Agent, shall be promptly canddbg it, and no Debt Securities shall be issuelicin thereof except as expressly perm
by any of the provisions of this Indenture. All Dedecurities canceled by any Authenticating Agdralisbe delivered to the Trustee. *
Trustee shall destroy all canceled Debt Securitidess the Company otherwise directs the Trusteeritimg, in which case the Trustee s
dispose of such Debt Securities as directed bytmapany. If the Company shall acquire any of thétf®ecurities, however, such acquisi
shall not operate as a redemption or satisfactiothe indebtedness represented by such Debt Sesurihless and until the same
surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation.

SECTION 2.10. Computation of Interest

(@) The amount of interest payable for any kgePayment Period will be computed on the basis3§0-day year and
the actual number of days elapsed in the relevaatdst period; providedhowever, that upon the occurrence of a Special Event Rptiem
pursuant to Section 10.02 the amounts payable potsa this Indenture shall be calculated as gét fo the definition of Special Redemption
Price.

(b) LIBOR, for any Interest Payment Period, Ebaldetermined by the Calculation Agent in accoogawith the
following provisions:

(1) On the second LIBOR Business Day (providedt on such day commercial banks are
open for business (including dealings in foreigrrency deposits) in London (a "LIBOR Banking Daydhd otherwise the
next preceding LIBOR Business Day that is alsoBQR Banking Day) prior to the January 15, April I8y 15 and Octob
15 immediately succeeding the commencement of Buehest Payment Period (or, with respect to thst finterest Payment
Period, on January 27, 2006) (each such day, aORBetermination Date" for such Interest Paymenmio the
Calculation Agent shall obtain the rate for threeath U.S. Dollar deposits in Europe, which appearJelerate Page 3750
(as defined in the International Swaps and DenreatiAssociation, Inc. 2000 Interest Rate and Cayr&xchange
Definitions) or such other page as may replace Jatbrate Page 3750 on the Moneyline Telerate,dexxice (or such other
service or services as may be nominated by thesBiganker's Association as the information verfdothe purpose of
displaying London interbank offered rates for W8llar deposits), as of 11:00 a.m. (London timeyooh LIBOR
Determination Date, and the rate so obtained slealllBOR for such Interest Payment Period. "LIBO&BsBiess Day" means
any day that is not a Saturday, Sunday or othelodayhich commercial banking institutions in TheyGif New York or
Wilmington, Delaware are authorized or obligateddw or executive order to be closed. If such mt®uperseded on
Telerate Page 3750 by a corrected rate before 1160 (London time) on the same LIBOR Determinafiaie, the
corrected rate as so substituted will be LIBORtfat Interest Payment Period.

2) If, on any LIBOR Determination Date, such rate doesappear on Telerate Page 37t
such other page as may replace such Telerate F&e0B the Moneyline Telerate, Inc. service (ohsoiher service or
services as may be nominated by the British Baskes5ociation as the information vendor for theppse of displaying
London interbank offered rates for U.S. dollar d&f®), the Calculation Agent shall determine ththaretic mean of the
offered quotations of the Reference Banks (as ddfirelow) to leading banks in the London Interbanaiket for threamontt
U.S. Dollar deposits in Europe (in an amount deieech by the Calculation Agent) by reference to esisi for quotations as
of approximately 11:00 a.m. (London time) on th80QR Determination Date made by the Calculation Agerthe
Reference Banks. If, on any LIBOR Determinationé)at least two of the Reference Banks provide suicitations, LIBOR
shall equal the arithmetic mean of such quotatitinen any LIBOR Determination Date, only one @ane of the Reference
Banks provide such a quotation, LIBOR shall be degtio be the arithmetic mean of the offered quotatihat at least two
leading banks in the City of New York (as seledigdhe Calculation Agent) are quoting on the reféddBOR
Determination Date for three-month U.S. Dollar d&fmin Europe at approximately 11:00 a.m. (Lontiow) (in an amount
determined by the Calculation Agent). As used meré&eference Banks" means four major banks in_tirelon Interbank
market selected by the Calculation Agent.

3) If the Calculation Agent is required but is unatdeletermine a rate in accordance wit
least one of the procedures provided above, LIB@RHe applicable Interest Payment Period shalllBOR in effect for the
immediately preceding Interest Payment Period.

(c) All percentages resulting from any calcuaati on the Debt Securities will be rounded, if i3seey, to the nearest
one hundred-thousandth of a percentage point,fiviehone-millionths of a percentage point roundewvard (e.g., 9.876545% (or .09876545)
being rounded to 9.87655% (or .0987655)), andaladamounts used in or resulting from such calttah will be rounded to the nearest cent



(with one-half cent being rounded upward).

(d) On each LIBOR Determination Date, the Catioh Agent shall notify, in writing, the Compangcathe Paying
Agent of the applicable Interest Rate in effecttfar related Interest Payment Period. The Calaratigent shall, upon the request of the hc
of any Debt Securities, provide the Interest Ragmtin effect. All calculations made by the Caltiola Agent in the absence of manifest error
shall be conclusive for all purposes and bindinghenCompany and the holders of the Debt Securifiee Paying Agent shall be entitled to
rely on information received from the Calculatiogeht or the Company as to the Interest Rate. Tmep@ay shall, from time to time, provide
any necessary information to the Paying Agentirgab any original issue discount and interesttenDebt Securities that is included in any
payment and reportable for taxable income calauigpurposes.

SECTION 2.11. Extension of Interest Paymentdekri

So long as no Event of Default has occurred ancbiginuing, the Company shall have the right, frome to time an
without causing an Event of Default, to defer pagptaeof interest on the Debt Securities by extendhgginterest distribution period on
Debt Securities at any time and from time to tinueirty the term of the Debt Securities, for up t@my consecutive quarterly periods (e
such extended interest distribution period, an éBgion Period"), during which Extension Period miest shall be due and payable (ex
any Additional Interest that may be due and payaie Extension Period may end on a date other #minterest Payment Date or ext
beyond the Maturity Date, any Redemption Date gr@pecial Redemption Date, as the case may ben@ariy Extension Period, interest
continue to accrue on the Debt Securities, anddnteon such accrued interest (such accrued intengsinterest thereon referred to herei
"Deferred Interest") will accrue at an annual regeial to the Interest Rate applicable during sudkrsion Period, compounded quarterly f
the date such Deferred Interest would have beealpayvere it not for the Extension Period, to tkeeet permitted by law. No interest
Deferred Interest shall be due and payable dunm@xension Period, except at the end thereofhateand of any such Extension Period
Company shall pay all Deferred Interest then aatraied unpaid on the Debt Securities; providdmwever, that no Extension Period nr
extend beyond the Maturity Date; and providddrther, however, that during any such Extension Period, the Comsuall be subject to t
restrictions set forth in Section 3.08 of this Intlge. Prior to the termination of any Extensiomié® the Company may further extend s
period, provided that such period together with all such previand further consecutive extensions thereof shaleroeed twenty consecut
quarterly periods, or extend beyond the MaturitgteD&Jpon the termination of any Extension Period apon the payment of all Defer
Interest, the Company may commence a new ExterB@iod, subject to the foregoing requirements. Toepany must give the Trus
notice of its election to begin such Extension &&(I'Notice") at least five Business Days priothie next succeeding Interest Payment Da
which interest on the Debt Securities would havenbeayable except for the election to begin sudierision Period. The Notice shall desci
in reasonable detail, why the Company has eleaeblegin an Extension Period. The Notice shall askedge and affirm the Compan
understanding that it is prohibited from issuingidiénds and other distributions during the Extemdieriod. Upon receipt of the Notice,
Initial Purchaser shall have the right, at its stikeretion, to disclose the name of the Compamg fact that the Company has elected to t
an Extension Period and other information that dodfal Purchaser, at its sole discretion, deealevant to the Company's election to begi
Extension Period. The Trustee shall give notickhefCompany's election to begin a new ExtensioioB¢o the Securityholders.

SECTION 2.12. CUSIP Numbers

The Company in issuing the Debt Securities mayau88USIP" number (if then generally in use), afidoi, the Trustee sh
use a "CUSIP" number in notices of redemption asomavenience to Securityholders; providedhat any such notice may state tha
representation is made as to the correctness bfraumber either as printed on the Debt Securitiesaontained in any notice of a redemg
and that reliance may be placed only on the otthentification numbers printed on the Debt Secugjtend any such redemption shall nc
affected by any defect in or omission of such numb&he Company will promptly notify the Trusteevimiting of any change in the CUS
number.

SECTION 2.13. Global Debentures

(@) Upon the election of the holder of Outstagddebt Securities, which election need not beritinvg, the Debt
Securities owned by such holder shall be issugldarform of one or more Global Debentures registérgdhe name of the Depositary or its
nominee. Each Global Debenture issued under thisniture shall be registered in the name of the Biggry designated by the Company for
such Global Debenture or a nominee thereof andeteld to such Depositary or a nominee thereof stoclian therefor, and each such Global
Debenture shall constitute a single Debt Secuaityafl purposes of this Indenture.

(b) Notwithstanding any other provision in thiglenture, no Global Debenture may be exchangadaie or in part
for Debt Securities registered, and no transfex Global Debenture in whole or in part may be ttegesi, in the name of any Person other than
the Depositary for such Global Debenture or a nemithereof unless (i) such Depositary advises thet@e and the Company in writing that
such Depositary is no longer willing or able toedy discharge its responsibilities as Depositgith respect to such Global Debenture, and
no qualified successor is appointed by the Compeéthin ninety (90) days of receipt by the Compaffiguch notice, (ii) such Depositary
ceases to be a clearing agency registered undéxtttaenge Act and no successor is appointed bgdmepany within ninety (90) days after



obtaining knowledge of such event, (iii) the Comparecutes and delivers to the Trustee a CompadgrGtating that the
Company elects to terminate the book-entry systeough the Depositary or (iv) an Event of Defahlalshave occurred and be continuing.
Upon the occurrence of any event specified in @dis (ii), (iii) or (iv) above, the Trustee shalbtify the Depositary and instruct the
Depositary to notify all owners of beneficial irgsts in such Global Debenture of the occurrenseiah event and of the availability of Debt
Securities to such owners of beneficial interestgiesting the same. Upon the issuance of such$shtrities and the registration in the Debt
Security Register of such Debt Securities in th@es of the holders of the beneficial interestsaimetthe Trustee shall recognize such holders
of beneficial interests as holders thereof.

(c) If any Global Debenture is to be exchangedther Debt Securities or canceled in part, anibther Debt Security
is to be exchanged in whole or in part for a benafinterest in any Global Debenture, then eiflifesuch Global Debenture shall be so
surrendered for exchange or cancellation as praviit¢his Article Ilor (i) the principal amount thereof shall be regdor increased by an
amount equal to the portion thereof to be so exgbdror canceled, or equal to the principal amotistioh other Debt Security to be so
exchanged for a beneficial interest therein, as#se may be, by means of an appropriate adjustmexaié¢ on the records of the Debt Security
registrar, whereupon the Trustee, in accordande tvé Applicable Depository Procedures, shall ingtthe Depositary or its authorized
representative to make a corresponding adjustrogtd tecords. Upon any such surrender or adjudtofesn Global Debenture by the
Depositary, accompanied by registration instructjaghe Company shall execute and the Trustee althlenticate and deliver any Debt
Securities issuable in exchange for such Globakbtlye (or any portion thereof) in accordance withinstructions of the Depositary. The
Trustee shall not be liable for any delay in deljvef such instructions and may conclusively rety and shall be fully protected in relying on,
such instructions.

(d) Every Debt Security authenticated and dedideupon registration of transfer of, or in exchafay or in lieu of, a
Global Debenture or any portion thereof shall binenticated and delivered in the form of, and shajla Global Debenture, unless such Debt
Security is registered in the name of a Persorrdttaa the Depositary for such Global Debentura nominee thereof.

(e) Debt Securities distributed to holders obBdntry Capital Securities (as defined in the TAgreement) upon the
dissolution of the Trust shall be distributed ie form of one or more Global Debentures registarebe name of a Depositary or its nominee,
and deposited with the Debt Securities registmgustodian for such Depositary, or with such Dépog for credit by the Depositary to the
respective accounts of the beneficial owners ofibbt Securities represented thereby (or such aiteunts as they may direct). Debt
Securities distributed to holders of Capital Se@siother than Book-Entry Capital Securities uffandissolution of the Trust shall not be
issued in the form of a Global Debenture or angofbrm intended to facilitate book-entry tradimgaeneficial interests in such Debt
Securities.

® The Depositary or its nominee, as the reged owner of a Global Debenture, shall be thedradfl such Global
Debenture for all purposes under this Indenturethadebt Securities, and owners of beneficialrggts in a Global Debenture shall hold such
interests pursuant to the Applicable DepositorycBdures. Accordingly, any such owner's beneficitdrest in a Global Debenture shall be
shown only on, and the transfer of such intereall fte effected only through, records maintainedhgyDepositary or its nominee or its
Depositary Participants. The Debt Securities regiisind the Trustee shall be entitled to deal WieéhDepositary for all purposes of this
Indenture relating to a Global Debenture (including payment of principal and interest thereontaedyiving of instructions or directions by
owners of beneficial interests therein and thengj\wf notices) as the sole holder of the Debt Sgcand shall have no obligations to the
owners of beneficial interests therein. NeitherThestee nor the Debt Securities registrar shalehany liability in respect of any transfers
affected by the Depositary.

(9) The rights of owners of beneficial interests inlalfal Debenture shall be exercised only throughxepositary ani
shall be limited to those established by law ang@gents between such owners and the DepositafgratsdiDepositary Participants.

(h) No holder of any beneficial interest in @lpbal Debenture held on its behalf by a Depositdgll have any rights
under this Indenture with respect to such Globdidmure, and such Depositary may be treated bgtmepany, the Trustee and any agent of
the Company or the Trustee as the owner of suchab@ebenture for all purposes whatsoever. Note@efCompany, the Trustee nor any
agent of the Company or the Trustee will have asponsibility or liability for any aspect of thecogds relating to or payments made on
account of beneficial ownership interests of a @ldbebenture or maintaining, supervising or revigyéany records relating to such beneficial
ownership interests. Notwithstanding the foregomathing herein shall prevent the Company, the fErisr any agent of the Company or the
Trustee from giving effect to any written certifin, proxy or other authorization furnished by edasitary or impair, as between a Deposi
and such holders of beneficial interests, the dfmeraf customary practices governing the exeroisthe rights of the Depositary (or its
nominee) as holder of any Debt Security.

ARTICLE 1lI



PART ICULAR COVENANTS OF THE COMPANY

SECTION 3.01. Payment of Principal, Premium hrdrest; Agreed Treatment of the Debt Securities

(@) The Company covenants and agrees thatliduly and punctually pay or cause to be paid ajiments due on the
Debt Securities at the place, at the respectivediamd in the manner provided in this Indenturetaadebt Securities. At the option of the
Company, each installment of interest on the Delou8ities may be paid (i) by mailing checks fortsinterest payable to the order of the
holders of Debt Securities entitled thereto as tygyear on the Debt Security Register or (ii) bgeviiansfer to any account with a banking
institution located in the United States designdgduch Person to the Paying Agent no later thandlated record date.

(b) The Company will treat the Debt Securitissralebtedness, and the interest payable in respsach Debt
Securities as interest, for all U.S. federal incdmepurposes. All payments in respect of such B&aurities will be made free and clear of
U.S. withholding tax to any beneficial owner thdrdtmt has provided an Internal Revenue ServicenR8 BEN (or any substitute or
successor form) establishing its non-U.S. statudf8. federal income tax purposes.

(c) As of the date of this Indenture, the Conypapresents that it has no intention to exer¢sedht under Section
2.11 to defer payments of interest on the Debt BigEsiby commencing an Extension Period.

(d) As of the date of this Indenture, the Conypapresents that the likelihood that it would its right under
Section 2.11 to defer payments of interest on tébt[Securities by commencing an Extension Peri@hwtime during which the Debt
Securities are outstanding is remote because ot#tigctions that would be imposed on the Compaalllity to declare or pay dividends or
distributions on, or to redeem, purchase or maiguaation payment with respect to, any of itsstahding equity and on the Company's
ability to make any payments of principal of oreirgst on, or repurchase or redeem, any of its sihtrities that rangari passu in all respects
with (or junior in interest to) the Debt Securities

SECTION 3.02. Offices for Notices and Paymeets,

So long as any of the Debt Securities remain outtitg, the Company will maintain in Wilmington, Belare an office «
agency where the Debt Securities may be preseatgzhf/ment, an office or agency where the Debt Bz may be presented for registra
of transfer and for exchange as provided in thiteinure and an office or agency where notices anthdds to or upon the Company in res
of the Debt Securities or of this Indenture maysbeved. The Company will give to the Trustee wnittetice of the location of any such off
or agency and of any change of location thereotil Wtherwise designated from time to time by thentpany in a notice to the Trustee
specified as contemplated by Section 2.05, sudgbeoéfr agency for all of the above purposes shathle Principal Office of the Trustee. In ¢
the Company shall fail to maintain any such officeagency in Wilmington, Delaware or shall failgive such notice of the location or of :
change in the location thereof, presentations @miashds may be made and notices may be servedRititiegpal Office of the Trustee.

In addition to any such office or agency, the Comypanay from time to time designate one or morecefi or agenci
outside Wilmington, Delaware or where the Debt $¢ies may be presented for registration of transfed for exchange in the man
provided in this Indenture, and the Company magnftone to time rescind such designation, as the oy may deem desirable or exped
provided, however, that no such designation or rescission shalhinraanner relieve the Company of its obligatiomtaintain any such offic
or agency in Wilmington, Delaware for the purpoabeve mentioned. The Company will give to the Teagirompt written notice of any st
designation or rescission thereof.

SECTION 3.03. Appointments to Fill VacancieSrmustee's Office

The Company, whenever necessary to avoid or fith@ancy in the office of Trustee, will appoint,tire manner provided
Section 6.09, a Trustee, so that there shall dinadls be a Trustee hereunder.

SECTION 3.04. Provision as to Paying Agent

(@) If the Company shall appoint a Paying Agether than the Trustee, it will cause such Payiggmk to execute and
deliver to the Trustee an instrument in which saglnt shall agree with the Trustee, subject tgptbeision of this Section 3.04:

(1) that it will hold all sums held by it as suagent for the payment of all payments due on
the Debt Securities (whether such sums have badrig# by the Company or by any other obligortbe Debt Securities) in
trust for the benefit of the holders of the Debt(Béies;

(2) that it will give the Trustee prompt writt@otice of any failure by the Company (or by
any other obligor on the Debt Securities) to make ayment on the Debt Securities when the samelshdue and payabl



and

3) that it will, at any time during the contemce of any Event of Default, upon the written
request of the Trustee, forthwith pay to the Trestk sums so held in trust by such Paying Agent.

(b) If the Company shall act as its own Paying Agenili, on or before each due date of the paymentson the Del
Securities, set aside, segregate and hold infousite benefit of the holders of the Debt Secesith sum sufficient to pay such payments so
becoming due and will notify the Trustee in writiafany failure to take such action and of anyufi@lby the Company (or by any other obli
under the Debt Securities) to make any paymenheiDebt Securities when the same shall becomerduipayable.

Whenever the Company shall have one or more PaAgramts for the Debt Securities, it will, on or prio each due date
the payments on the Debt Securities, deposit wRaying Agent a sum sufficient to pay all paymestsbecoming due, such sum to be he
trust for the benefit of the Persons entitled tteeend (unless such Paying Agent is the TrusteelCtbhmpany shall promptly notify the Trus
in writing of its action or failure to act.

(c) Anything in this Section 3.04 to the congraptwithstanding, the Company may, at any timetlie purpose of
obtaining a satisfaction and discharge with respetite Debt Securities, or for any other reasaw, pr direct any Paying Agent to pay to the
Trustee all sums held in trust by the Company grauch Paying Agent, such sums to be held by thst&e upon the same terms and
conditions herein contained.

(d) Anything in this Section 3.04 to the congraptwithstanding, the agreement to hold sumstlsttas provided in this
Section 3.04 is subject to Sections 12.03 and 12.04

(e) The Company hereby initially appoints theskee to act as Paying Agent (the "Paying Agent").

SECTION 3.05. Certificate to Trustee

The Company will deliver to the Trustee on or bef&R0 days after the end of each fiscal year, 89 &5 Debt Securities
outstanding hereunder, a Certificate stating thahe course of the performance by the signerdaif tluties as officers of the Company t
would normally have knowledge of any default by @@mpany in the performance of any covenants ofdbmpany contained herein, sta
whether or not they have knowledge of any suchudeéand, if so, specifying each such default of atthihe signers have knowledge anc
nature thereof.

SECTION 3.06. Additional Interest

If and for so long as the Trust is the holder dbDadbt Securities and is subject to or otherwigpiined to pay, or is required
withhold from distributions to holders of Trust $Seties, any additional taxes (including withholditaxes), duties, assessments or 1
governmental charges as a result of a Tax Evest,Gbmpany will pay such additional amounts (the di#idnal Interest") on the De
Securities as shall be required so that the netuatsaeceived and retained by the Trust for distiim to holders of Trust Securities a
paying all taxes (including withholding taxes ostdbutions to holders of Trust Securities), dut@ssessments or other governmental ch
will be equal to the amounts the Trust would haseeived and retained for distribution to holdersTafist Securities after paying all ta
(including withholding taxes on distributions tolthers of Trust Securities), duties, assessmentstioer governmental charges if no s
additional taxes, duties, assessments or othergamantal charges had been imposed. Whenever ifnithésiture or the Debt Securities thel
a reference in any context to the payment of ppaicof or premium, if any, or interest on the D8letcurities, such mention shall be deem:
include mention of payments of the Additional letstrprovided for in this paragraph to the exteat,tin such context, Additional Interest
was or would be payable in respect thereof purst@rihe provisions of this paragraph and expresstioe of the payment of Additior
Interest (if applicable) in any provisions hereb&k not be construed as excluding Additional legtrin those provisions hereof where ¢
express mention is not made, providdwwever, that notwithstanding anything to the contrarytedmed in this Indenture or any Debt Secu
the deferral of the payment of interest during ateRsion Period pursuant to Section 2.11 shaldeé¢r the payment of any Additional Intel
that may be due and payable.

SECTION 3.07. Compliance with Consolidation Rs@mns.

The Company will not, while any of the Debt Sedastremain outstanding, consolidate with, or meéng@ any other Persc
or merge into itself, or sell or convey all or stawgially all of its property to any other Persamlass the provisions of Article XI hereof
complied with.

SECTION 3.08. Limitation on Dividends




If Debt Securities are initially issued to the Tiros a trustee of such Trust in connection with igsuance of Trust Securit
by the Trust (regardless of whether Debt Securit@#tinue to be held by such Trust) and (i) thdrallshave occurred and be continuing
Event of Default, (ii) the Company shall be in défawith respect to its payment of any obligatiamder the Capital Securities Guarante
(iii) the Company shall have given notice of iteation to defer payments of interest on the Debu8tes by extending the interest distribu
period as provided herein and such period, or atgneion thereof, shall have commenced and beragng, then the Company may not
declare or pay any dividends or distributions onredeem, purchase, acquire, or make a liquidgbt@yment with respect to, any of
Company's capital stock or (B) make any paymergrofcipal of or interest or premium, if any, on @pay, repurchase or redeem any
securities of the Company that rgpeei passu in all respects with or junior in interest to thetd Securities or (C) make any payment unde
guarantees of the Company that rgaki passu in all respects with or junior in interest to thapital Securities Guarantee (other thar
repurchases, redemptions or other acquisitionbarfes of capital stock of the Company (I) in conioecwith any employment contract, ben
plan or other similar arrangement with or for trenéfit of one or more employees, officers, dirextor consultants, (I1) in connection wit
dividend reinvestment or stockholder stock purch@aa or (111) in connection with the issuance apial stock of the Company (or securi
convertible into or exercisable for such capitatk), as consideration in an acquisition transactinotered into prior to the occurrence of (i),
or (iii) above, (b) as a result of any exchangelassification, combination or conversion of angssl or series of the Company's capital ¢
(or any capital stock of a subsidiary of the Compadir any class or series of the Company's cagit@tk or of any class or series of
Company's indebtedness for any class or seridggeaCompany's capital stock, (c) the purchase ofimal interests in shares of the Compe
capital stock pursuant to the conversion or exchagmgvisions of such capital stock or the secubigyng converted or exchanged, (d)
declaration of a dividend in connection with anpckholder's rights plan, or the issuance of rigisteck or other property under ¢
stockholder's rights plan, or the redemption ourepase of rights pursuant thereto, or (e) anydéivd in the form of stock, warrants, option
other rights where the dividend stock or the stizskiable upon exercise of such warrants, optiorater rights is the same stock as the
which the dividend is being paid or rarpari passu with or junior to such stock.

SECTION 3.09. Covenants as to the Trust

For so long as such Trust Securities remain oulgtgn the Company shall maintain 100% ownershiphaf Commo
Securities;_provided however, that any permitted successor of the Company utidgerindenture that is a U.S. Person may succeete
Company's ownership of such Common Securities. Chmpany, as owner of the Common Securities, stedl commercially reasona
efforts to cause the Trust (a) to remain a stayutarst, except in connection with a distributioh @ebt Securities to the holders of Ti
Securities in liquidation of the Trust, the redeimptof all of the Trust Securities or certain me@sgeonsolidations or amalgamations, eac
permitted by the Declaration, (b) to otherwise cure to be classified as a grantor trust for Unibeates federal income tax purposes and
cause each holder of Trust Securities to be tresgeamvning an undivided beneficial interest inErebt Securities.

ARTICLE IV

LISTS AND REPORTS BY THE COMPANY AND THE TRUSTEE

SECTION 4.01. Securityholders' Lists

The Company covenants and agrees that it will &lroir cause to be furnished to the Trustee:

(@) on each regular record date for an IntdPagiment Date, a list, in such form as the Trustag reasonably require,
of the names and addresses of the Securityholdi¢he ®ebt Securities as of such record date; and

(b) at such other times as the Trustee may squevriting, within 30 days after the receipttine Company of any
such request, a list of similar form and contendfes date not more than 15 days prior to the songh list is furnished;

except that no such lists need be furnished urideiSection 4.01 so long as the Trustee is in Esgse thereof by reason of its acting as |
Security registrar.

SECTION 4.02. Preservation and Disclosure ofslis

(@) The Trustee shall preserve, in as currdotra as is reasonably practicable, all informatisrno the names and
addresses of the holders of Debt Securities (1fagoed in the most recent list furnished to it esviled in Section 4.01 or (2) received by it in
the capacity of Debt Securities registrar (if stragy) hereunder. The Trustee may destroy anydisti$hed to it as provided in Section 4.01
upon receipt of a new list so furnished.

(b) In case three or more holders of Debt S&ear{hereinafter referred to as "applicants") gpplwriting to the



Trustee and furnish to the Trustee reasonable phadfeach such applicant has owned a Debt Sedarigy period of at least
six months preceding the date of such applicatod, such application states that the applicantsed@scommunicate with other holders of
Debt Securities with respect to their rights unttdés Indenture or under such Debt Securities amté®mpanied by a copy of the form of pre
or other communication which such applicants pregogransmit, then the Trustee shall within fivesBiess Days after the receipt of such
application, at its election either:

(1) afford such applicants access to the infoiongpreserved at the time by the Trustee in
accordance with the provisions of subsection (ahisf Section 4.02, or

(2) inform such applicants as to the approxinmateber of holders of Debt Securities whose
names and addresses appear in the informationrpeelsat the time by the Trustee in accordance thighprovisions of
subsection (a) of this Section 4.@2d as to the approximate cost of mailing to sustuBtyholders the form of proxy or otl
communication, if any, specified in such applicatio

If the Trustee shall elect not to afford such agpits access to such information, the Trustee, sh@dh the written request
such applicants, mail to each Securityholder oftCidrurities whose name and address appear imftreniation preserved at the time by
Trustee in accordance with the provisions of sulimeda) of this Section 4.02 a copy of the formpobxy or other communication whictk
specified in such request with reasonable promptaéier a tender to the Trustee of the materidetanailed and of payment, or provision
the payment, of the reasonable expenses of mailimgss within five days after such tender, thestege shall mail to such applicants and
with the Securities and Exchange Commission, ifmiied or required by applicable law, together watlcopy of the material to be mailet
written statement to the effect that, in the opinad the Trustee, such mailing would be contraryhi® best interests of the holders of all [
Securities, as the case may be, or would be iratign of applicable law. Such written statementissecify the basis of such opinion. If s
Commission, as permitted or required by applicéle after opportunity for a hearing upon the obats specified in the written statemen
filed, shall enter an order refusing to sustain ahguch objections or if, after the entry of adarsustaining one or more of such objecti
said Commission shall find, after notice and opyaity for hearing, that all the objections so simd have been met and shall enter an «
so declaring, the Trustee shall mail copies of suelterial to all such Securityholders with reasdmaivomptness after the entry of such o
and the renewal of such tender; otherwise the &eushall be relieved of any obligation or dutydolsapplicants respecting their application.

(c) Each and every holder of Debt Securities;dmngiving and holding the same, agrees with thmg2ay and the
Trustee that neither the Company nor the Trusteeamp Paying Agent shall be held accountable bgaeaf the disclosure of any such
information as to the names and addresses of tderdsoof Debt Securities in accordance with thevisions of subsection (b) of this Section
4.02, regardless of the source from which suchrin&tion was derived, and that the Trustee shalbedteld accountable by reason of mailing
any material pursuant to a request made undessaisection (b).

ARTICLE V

REMEDIES OF THE TRUSTEE AND SECURITYHOLDERS UPON AZWENT OF DEFAULT

SECTION 5.01. Events of Default

The following events shall be "Events of Defaulittwrespect to Debt Securities:

(@) the Company defaults in the payment of atgrest upon any Debt Security when it becomesaddepayable, and
continuance of such default for a period of 30 d&ysthe avoidance of doubt, an extension of antigrest distribution period by the Company
in accordance with Section 2.11 of this Indentin&@lsot constitute a default under this clausd.&@p or

(b) the Company defaults in the payment of elumy part of the principal of (or premium, if aron) any Debt
Securities as and when the same shall become dugagable either at maturity, upon redemption, églaration of acceleration pursuant to
Section 5.01 of this Indenture or otherwise; or

(c) the Company defaults in the performancephreaches, any of its covenants or agreemer8sdtions 3.06, 3.07,
3.08 or 3.09 of this Indenture and continuanceuchsdefault or breach for a period of 30 days dftere has been given, by registered or
certified mail, to the Company by the Trustee otti® Company and the Trustee by the holders ofesstthan 25% in aggregate principal
amount of the outstanding Debt Securities, a writtetice specifying such default or breach andirewyit to be remedied and stating that s
notice is a "Notice of Default" hereunder; or

(d) a court having jurisdiction in the premisball enter a decree or order for relief in respéthe Company in an



involuntary case under any applicable bankrupttgplivency or other similar law now or hereafteeffect, or appoints a
receiver, liquidator, assignee, custodian, trustequestrator (or similar official) of the Compamyfor any substantial part of its property, or
orders the winding-up or liquidation of its affaasd such decree or order shall remain unstayeéhagftect for a period of 90 consecutive
days; or

(e) the Company shall commence a voluntary case umdeaplicable bankruptcy, insolvency or other sémibw nov
or hereafter in effect, shall consent to the eofrgn order for relief in an involuntary case undey such law, or shall consent to the
appointment of or taking possession by a receliegridator, assignee, trustee, custodian, sequesifar other similar official) of the Company
or of any substantial part of its property, or shzdke any general assignment for the benefit editors, or shall fail generally to pay its debts
as they become due;

® the Trust shall have voluntarily or involanily liquidated, dissolved, wound-up its businesstherwise terminated
its existence except in connection with (1) theriiation of the Debt Securities to holders of Thest Securities in liquidation of their interests
in the Trust, (2) the redemption of all of the d¢atgling Trust Securities or (3) certain mergerssotidations or amalgamations, each as
permitted by the Declaration; or

(9) the Company shall cease to be subject tolaign or supervision by the Federal Reserve 08Cak applicable (or
any successor federal regulatory authority havimggliction over bank or savings and loan holdinmpanies).

If an Event of Default specified under clause (b), (d), (e), (f), or (g) of this Section 5.01 ¢haan "Acceleration Even
occurs and is continuing with respect to the Dedtusities, then, and in each and every such cadesaithe principal of the Debt Securi
shall have already become due and payable, eitleeTtustee or the holders of not less than 25%ggremate principal amount of the D
Securities then outstanding hereunder, by noticeriting to the Company (and to the Trustee if giv®y Securityholders), may declare
entire principal of the Debt Securities and anyngten and the interest accrued, but unpaid, theriéamy, to be due and payable immedia
and upon any such declaration the same shall becomediately due and payable. If the Company stedlse to be subject to the supervi
or regulation of the Federal Reserve, or OTS, as#se may be, then the term "Acceleration Evédrdll e defined to include clause (c) of
Section 5.01 as an Event of Default resulting ioeteration of payment of the Debt Securities toghme extent provided for clauses (a),
(d), (e), (f) and (g) of this Section 5.01.

Anything in this Section 5.01 to the contrary natwstanding, if an Event of Default specified undiuse (c) occurs and
continuing, then, and in each and every such dhseTrustee, in its own name and as trustee ofxgress trust, shall pursue all availe
remedies at law and/or equity against the Compahg. Company acknowledges and affirms that in treneef breach of such covenants
agreements referenced in clause (c) of this Se&idh, the damages to the holders of the Debt 8msuand the Capital Securities may
difficult or impossible to ascertain. Therefore, addition to any remedies available at law for breaf any or all of said covenants
agreements, the holders of the Debt Securitiedten€apital Securities shall be entitled to injivebr other equitable relief in connection v
the violation of any such covenants or agreemesiesenced in Section 5.01(c).

The foregoing provisions, however, are subjecth® ¢ondition that if, at any time after the priradipf the Debt Securiti
shall have been so declared due and payable, dock @y judgment or decree for the payment ofnio@eys due shall have been obtaine
entered as hereinafter provided, (i) the Compamjl glay or shall deposit with the Trustee a sunfigeht to pay all matured installments
interest upon all the Debt Securities and all payisien the Debt Securities which shall have becdueeotherwise than by acceleration (\
interest upon all such payments and Deferred Istete the extent permitted by law) and such amasrghall be sufficient to cover reason
compensation to the Trustee and each predecesaste®r their respective agents, attorneys and ebuasd all other amounts due to
Trustee pursuant to Section 6.06, if any, anda(lijEvents of Default under this Indenture, othert the norpayment of the payments on D
Securities which shall have become due by acc@erathall have been cured, waived or otherwiseedded as provided herein, then an
every such case the holders of a majority in aggeegrincipal amount of the Debt Securities thetstamding, by written notice to t
Company and to the Trustee, may waive all defaattd rescind and annul such declaration and itsegpresices, but no such waive
rescission and annulment shall extend to or sfff@itiaany subsequent default or shall impair agitriconsequent thereon; provided, howe
that if the Debt Securities are held by the Trusa ¢rustee of the Trust, such waiver or rescissioth annulment shall not be effective until
holders of a majority in aggregate liquidation amipof the outstanding Capital Securities of thestghall have consented to such waive
rescission and annulment.

In case the Trustee shall have proceeded to enfomgeright under this Indenture and such proceedstwpll have be:
discontinued or abandoned because of such restissiannulment or for any other reason or shallehbgen determined adversely to
Trustee, then and in every such case the ComphayTtustee and the holders of the Debt Securitiell be restored respectively to tt
several positions and rights hereunder, and dttsiggemedies and powers of the Company, the Tewstd the holders of the Debt Secur
shall continue as though no such proceeding hadl tagen.

SECTION 5.02. Payment of Debt Securities on DiEf&uit Therefor.




The Company covenants that upon the occurrencen #caeleration Event, the Company will pay to theistee, for th
benefit of the holders of the Debt Securities, Wiwle amount that then shall have become due ayabpaon all Debt Securities includ
Deferred Interest accrued on the Debt Securitiad, & addition thereto, such further amount adl ¢ke sufficient to cover the costs ¢
expenses of collection, including a reasonable @rsation to the Trustee, its agents, attorneyscandsel, and any other amounts due t
Trustee under Section 6.06. In case the Comparlfahidorthwith to pay such amounts upon such deah, the Trustee, in its own name an
trustee of an express trust, shall be entitled emgowered to institute any actions or proceeditidave or in equity for the collection of t
sums so due and unpaid, and may prosecute anyastion or proceeding to judgment or final decrew may enforce any such judgmen
final decree against the Company or any other oblign such Debt Securities and collect in the mapnevided by law out of the property
the Company or any other obligor on such Debt Sgesiwherever situated the moneys adjudged oregelcto be payable.

In case there shall be pending proceedings fobaim&ruptcy or for the reorganization of the Companwny other obligor ¢
the Debt Securities under Bankruptcy Law, or inecageceiver or trustee shall have been appoitethé property of the Company or s
other obligor, or in the case of any other similaticial proceedings relative to the Company oreotbbligor upon the Debt Securities, or to
creditors or property of the Company or such otidigor, the Trustee, irrespective of whether thagpal of the Debt Securities shall ther
due and payable as therein expressed or by decladtacceleration or otherwise and irrespectifevloether the Trustee shall have made
demand pursuant to the provisions of this Secti6,5shall be entitled and empowered, by intereenith such proceedings or otherwise, tc
and prove a claim or claims for the whole amounprafcipal and interest owing and unpaid in respét¢he Debt Securities and, in case of
judicial proceedings, to file such proofs of claémd other papers or documents as may be necessadyisable in order to have the claim
the Trustee (including any claim for reasonable gensation to the Trustee and each predecessoe@rwastd their respective agents, attor
and counsel, and for reimbursement of all other o due to the Trustee under Section 6.06) antheofSecurityholders allowed in st
judicial proceedings relative to the Company or ather obligor on the Debt Securities, or to thedaors or property of the Company or s
other obligor, unless prohibited by applicable lamd regulations, to vote on behalf of the holddrthe Debt Securities in any election ¢
trustee or a standby trustee in arrangement, ra@at#on, liquidation or other bankruptcy or insehcy proceedings or Person perforn
similar functions in comparable proceedings, andditect and receive any moneys or other propeatyaple or deliverable on any such cla
and to distribute the same after the deductiotsofharges and expenses; and any receiver, assigirestee in bankruptcy or reorganizatic
hereby authorized by each of the Securityholdemrna@e such payments to the Trustee, and, in thet élat the Trustee shall consent to
making of such payments directly to the Securitgleod, to pay to the Trustee such amounts as skaBuffficient to cover reasona
compensation to the Trustee, each predecessoreé€rasid their respective agents, attorneys and ehusrsd all other amounts due to
Trustee under Section 6.06.

Nothing herein contained shall be construed to@igh the Trustee to authorize or consent to oeptcor adopt on behalf
any Securityholder any plan of reorganization, mgeanent, adjustment or composition affecting thétC®ecurities or the rights of any hol
thereof or to authorize the Trustee to vote in eespf the claim of any Securityholder in any spcbceeding.

All rights of action and of asserting claims untles Indenture, or under any of the Debt Securitieay be enforced by t
Trustee without the possession of any of the DelguSties, or the production thereof at any triabther proceeding relative thereto, and
such suit or proceeding instituted by the Trustesl e brought in its own name as trustee of goress trust, and any recovery of judgn
shall be for the ratable benefit of the holderhef Debt Securities.

In any proceedings brought by the Trustee (and atsoproceedings involving the interpretation ofy gumovision of thi:
Indenture to which the Trustee shall be a partg) Thustee shall be held to represent all the hsldéthe Debt Securities, and it shall no

necessary to make any holders of the Debt Secupteies to any such proceedings.

SECTION 5.03. Application of Moneys Collected Bustee.

Any moneys collected by the Trustee shall be aggliethe following order, at the date or dates did®y the Trustee for tl
distribution of such moneys, upon presentationhef several Debt Securities in respect of which mereve been collected, and stam
thereon the payment, if only partially paid, an@uigurrender thereof if fully paid:

First: To the payment of costs and expenses incurredrgyyeasonable fees of, the Trustee, its agditsnays and couns
and of all other amounts due to the Trustee undeti@ 6.06;

Second : To the payment of all Senior Indebtedoésise Company if and to the extent required byicletXV;

Third : To the payment of the amounts then due and ungaich Debt Securities, in respect of which or fog benefit ¢
which money has been collected, ratably, withoeference or priority of any kind, according to #rmaounts due on such Debt Securities; and

Fourth : The balance, if any, to the Company.



SECTION 5.04. Proceedings by Securityholders

No holder of any Debt Security shall have any righinstitute any suit, action or proceeding foy aamedy hereunder, unl
such holder previously shall have given to the feeswvritten notice of an Event of Default with respto the Debt Securities and unless
holders of not less than 25% in aggregate princ@pabunt of the Debt Securities then outstandingl Baae given the Trustee a written req|
to institute such action, suit or proceeding analidmve offered to the Trustee such reasonablenimity as it may require against the c«
expenses and liabilities to be incurred thereby, thie Trustee for 60 days after its receipt of soetice, request and offer of indemnity s
have failed to institute any such action, suit mrgeeding; providedthat no holder of Debt Securities shall have iégiyt to prejudice the righ
of any other holder of Debt Securities, obtain ptyoor preference over any other such holder dome any right under this Indenture excej
the manner herein provided and for the equal, katafsd common benefit of all holders of Debt Sdmsi

Notwithstanding any other provisions in this Indest however, the right of any holder of any Dekt8ity to receiv
payment of the principal of, premium, if any, amterest on such Debt Security when due, or toturtstisuit for the enforcement of any s
payment, shall not be impaired or affected withth& consent of such holder. For the protection emfdrcement of the provisions of t
Section, each and every Securityholder and thetdeushall be entitled to such relief as can bergeither at law or in equity.

SECTION 5.05. Proceedings by Trustee

In case of an Event of Default hereunder the Trustay in its discretion proceed to protect and eefthe rights vested ir
by this Indenture by such appropriate judicial pedings as the Trustee shall deem most effectuadaiect and enforce any of such rig
either by suit in equity or by action at law or fmpceeding in bankruptcy or otherwise, whethertlier specific enforcement of any covenar
agreement contained in this Indenture or in aithefexercise of any power granted in this Indentaréo enforce any other legal or equit:
right vested in the Trustee by this Indenture ofay.

SECTION 5.06. Remedies Cumulative and Continuing

Except as otherwise provided in Section 2.06, alvgrs and remedies given by this Article V to theistee or to tt
Securityholders shall, to the extent permitteddwy,Ibe deemed cumulative and not exclusive of @ngrgpowers and remedies available tc
Trustee or the holders of the Debt Securities,ualcjal proceedings or otherwise, to enforce thégomance or observance of the coven
and agreements contained in this Indenture or wikerestablished with respect to the Debt Secaritiad no delay or omission of the Tru
or of any holder of any of the Debt Securities xereise any right or power accruing upon any Exa#riDefault occurring and continuing
aforesaid shall impair any such right or powersloall be construed to be a waiver of any such dtefaan acquiescence therein; and, subje
the provisions of Section 5.04, every power andegyngiven by this Article V or by law to the Truster to the Securityholders may
exercised from time to time, and as often as sfetleemed expedient, by the Trustee or by the Bgwiders.

SECTION 5.07. Direction of Proceedings and WiaofeDefaults by Majority of Securityholders

The holders of a majority in aggregate principaloant of the Debt Securities affected (voting as olass) at the tin
outstanding and, if the Debt Securities are helthleyTrust or a trustee of the Trust, the holdé® majority in aggregate liquidation amoun
the outstanding Capital Securities of the Trustldieve the right to direct the time, method andcpl of conducting any proceeding for
remedy available to the Trustee, or exercising giagt or power conferred on the Trustee with respecsuch Debt Securities; provided
however, that if the Debt Securities are held by the Tarsa trustee of the Trust, such time, method dadepor such exercise, as the case
be, may not be so directed until the holders ofagonity in aggregate liquidation amount of the ¢atsling Capital Securities of the Trust s
have directed such time, method and place or sxeftise, as the case may be; provided, furthet (#udbject to the provisions of Section 6.
the Trustee shall have the right to decline toofellany such direction if the Trustee being advisgaounsel shall determine that the actio
directed would be unjustly prejudicial to the hgklaot taking part in such direction or if the Tieesbeing advised by counsel determines
the action or proceeding so directed may not lawfok taken or if a Responsible Officer of the Tegsshall determine that the actior
proceedings so directed would involve the Trusteparsonal liability. Prior to any declaration afcaleration, oipso facto acceleration of tt
maturity of the Debt Securities, the holders of @ority in aggregate principal amount of the Debt&ities at the time outstanding may
behalf of the holders of all of the Debt Securitiesive (or modify any previously granted waiver afly past default or Event of Default anc
consequences, except a default (a) in the paynfgmiripal of, premium, if any, or interest on aaf/the Debt Securities, (b) in respec
covenants or provisions hereof which cannot be fremor amended without the consent of the holdexach Debt Security affected, or (c
respect of the covenants contained in Section @ ided, however, that if the Debt Securities are held by the Tarsa trustee of the Tru
such waiver or modification to such waiver shalt he effective until the holders of a majority ifglidation Amount of the Trust Securities
the Trust shall have consented to such waiver adification to such waiver; providedfurther, that if the consent of the holder of e
outstanding Debt Security is required, such waivemodification to such waiver shall not be effeetiuntil each holder of the outstanc
Capital Securities of the Trust shall have congktiesuch waiver or modification to such waiver.ddgny such waiver or modification to s
waiver, the Default or Event of Default coveredréi® shall be deemed to be cured for all purpo$eki® Indenture and the Company,




Trustee and the holders of the Debt Securitied bealestored to their former positions and rigieseunder, respectively; |
no such waiver or modification to such waiver shealtend to any subsequent or other Default or Ewénbefault or impair any rigl
consequent thereon. Whenever any Default or Eviebetault hereunder shall have been waived as by this Section 5.07, said Def:
or Event of Default shall for all purposes of theldD Securities and this Indenture be deemed to bese cured and to be not continuing.

SECTION 5.08. Notice of Defaults

The Trustee shall, within 90 days after a Respdasiifficer of the Trustee shall have actual knowkear received writte
notice of the occurrence of a Default with resgedhe Debt Securities, mail to all Securityholders the names and addresses of such h
appear upon the Debt Security Register, noticdl @efaults with respect to the Debt Securities\kndo the Trustee, unless such defaults
have been cured before the giving of such notige {¢rm "defaults” for the purpose of this Secod8 being hereby defined to be the ev
specified in subsections (a), (b), (c), (d) anddiepection 5.01, not including periods of gradeany, provided for therein); providedthat
except in the case of default in the payment ofpttiecipal of, premium, if any, or interest on aofythe Debt Securities, the Trustee sha
protected in withholding such notice if and so l@sa Responsible Officer of the Trustee in godth fdetermines that the withholding of s
notice is in the interests of the Securityholders.

SECTION 5.09. Undertaking to Pay Costs

All parties to this Indenture agree, and each hadd@ny Debt Security by such holder's acceptahnes=of shall be deemec
have agreed, that any court may in its discretéuire, in any suit for the enforcement of any trighremedy under this Indenture, or in
suit against the Trustee for any action taken oittethby it as Trustee, the filing by any partygént in such suit of an undertaking to pay
costs of such suit, and that such court may idigsretion assess reasonable costs, includingmabboattorneys' fees and expenses, again
party litigant in such suit, having due regardhe merits and good faith of the claims or defemsade by such party litigant; but the provisi
of this Section 5.09 shall not apply to any sudtituted by the Trustee, to any suit institutedaby Securityholder, or group of Securityhold
holding in the aggregate more than 10% in princgrabunt of the Debt Securities (or, if such Debtusigies are held by the Trust or a tru:
of the Trust, more than 10% in liquidation amoufthe outstanding Capital Securities) to any saéttituted by any Securityholder for
enforcement of the payment of the principal of goemium, if any) or interest on any Debt Securigaiast the Company on or after the s
shall have become due and payable, or to anyrstituited in accordance with Section 14.12.

ARTICLE VI

CONCERNING THE TRUSTEE

SECTION 6.01. Duties and Responsibilities ofskee.

With respect to the holders of Debt Securitiesdsishereunder, the Trustee, prior to the occurrefican Event of Defal
with respect to the Debt Securities and after tming or waiving of all Events of Default which magave occurred, with respect to the [
Securities, undertakes to perform such duties ahdsuch duties as are specifically set forth is thdenture. In case an Event of Default 1
respect to the Debt Securities has occurred (wiéshnot been cured or waived) the Trustee shattieseesuch of the rights and powers ve
in it by this Indenture, and use the same degreeacé and skill in their exercise, as a prudensgerwould exercise or use under
circumstances in the conduct of such person's dfaira

No provision of this Indenture shall be construeddlieve the Trustee from liability for its own gigent action, its ow
negligent failure to act or its own willful miscomct, except that:

(@) prior to the occurrence of an Event of Défauith respect to the Debt Securities and afterabring or waiving of
all Events of Default which may have occurred

(1) the duties and obligations of the Trustethwéspect to the Debt Securities shall be
determined solely by the express provisions of lidenture, and the Trustee shall not be liableepkfor the performance of
such duties and obligations with respect to thet3elurities as are specifically set forth in thdenture, and no implied
covenants or obligations shall be read into thiehture against the Trustee; and

(2) in the absence of bad faith on the parhefTrustee, the Trustee may conclusively rely,
as to the truth of the statements and the correstokthe opinions expressed therein, upon anificates or opinions
furnished to the Trustee and conforming to the irequents of this Indenture; but, in the case of sungh certificates or
opinions which by any provision hereof are spealficrequired to be furnished to the Trustee, thesiee shall be under a



duty to examine the same to determine whether bthey conform on their face to the
requirements of this Indenture;

(b) the Trustee shall not be liable for any eafjudgment made in good faith by a Responsilfficé€r or Officers of
the Trustee, unless it shall be proved that thetEriwas negligent in ascertaining the pertinesisfa

(c) the Trustee shall not be liable with resgeany action taken or omitted to be taken by ydod faith, in
accordance with the direction of the Securityhaddmursuant to Section 5.07, relating to the timethod and place of conducting any
proceeding for any remedy available to the Trusteexercising any trust or power conferred upanThustee, under this Indenture;

(d) the Trustee shall not be charged with kndgéeof any Default or Event of Default with respicthe Debt
Securities unless either (1) a Responsible Offibaill have actual knowledge of such Default or Ewéiefault or (2) written notice of such
Default or Event of Default shall have been givethie Trustee by the Company or any other obligothe Debt Securities or by any holder of
the Debt Securities, except with respect to an EeEDefault pursuant to Sections 5.01 (a) or Flf)lhereof (other than an Event of Default
resulting from the default in the payment of Adalital Interest or premium, if any, if the Truste@slmot have actual knowledge or written
notice that such payment is due and payable), aftwthe Trustee shall be deemed to have knowlemigz;

(e) in the absence of bad faith on the part of the ferjghe Trustee may seek and rely on reasonaditeiétions fror
the Company.

None of the provisions contained in this Indentsiall require the Trustee to expend or risk its dwrds or otherwise inc
personal financial liability in the performanceasfy of its duties or in the exercise of any ofiigghts or powers.

SECTION 6.02. Reliance on Documents, Opiniotts, e

Except as otherwise provided in Section 6.01:

(@) the Trustee may conclusively rely and shall beyfphotected in acting or refraining from acting a@Emny resolutior
certificate, statement, instrument, opinion, repootice, request, consent, order, bond, note,rdabeor other paper or document believed |
in good faith to be genuine and to have been signguesented by the proper party or parties;

(b) any request, direction, order or demanchef@ompany mentioned herein shall be sufficientigenced by an
Officers' Certificate (unless other evidence irpexg thereof be herein specifically prescribed§f any Board Resolution may be evidenced to
the Trustee by a copy thereof certified by the &acy or an Assistant Secretary of the Company;

(c) the Trustee may consult with counsel of its setectind any advice or Opinion of Counsel shall Beafud complet
authorization and protection in respect of anyaactaken, suffered or omitted by it hereunder indytaith and in accordance with such advice
or Opinion of Counsel,

(d) the Trustee shall be under no obligatioaxercise any of the rights or powers vested ity ithis Indenture at the
request, order or direction of any of the Secuntglers, pursuant to the provisions of this Indemtwinless such Securityholders shall have
offered to the Trustee reasonable security or imignagainst the costs, expenses and liabilitieklwmay be incurred therein or thereby;

(e) the Trustee shall not be liable for anyattaken or omitted by it in good faith and readiynhelieved by it to be
authorized or within the discretion or rights omms conferred upon it by this Indenture; nothingtained herein shall, however, relieve the
Trustee of the obligation, upon the occurrencenoEaent of Default with respect to the Debt Se@sifthat has not been cured or waived) to
exercise with respect to the Debt Securities stitheorights and powers vested in it by this Indeat and to use the same degree of care and
skill in their exercise, as a prudent person waxdrcise or use under the circumstances in theuobred such person's own affairs;

® the Trustee shall not be bound to make amgstigation into the facts or matters stated i rasolution, certificate,
statement, instrument, opinion, report, noticepesy, consent, order, approval, bond, debentutgaroor other paper or document, unless
requested in writing to do so by the holders oflass than a majority in principal amount of théstanding Debt Securities affected thereby;
provided, however, that if the payment within a reasonable timeh Trustee of the costs, expenses or liabilitiesdylito be incurred by it in
the making of such investigation is, in the opinadrthe Trustee, not reasonably assured to thetdeusy the security afforded to it by the tel
of this Indenture, the Trustee may require reaslenademnity against such expense or liability @sadition to so proceeding; and

(9) the Trustee may execute any of the truspgowrers hereunder or perform any duties hereuritteralirectly or by
or through agents (including any Authenticating Ayer attorneys, and the Trustee shall not bearsiple for any misconduct or negligence
on the part of any such agent or attorney appoibyeit with due care.



SECTION 6.03. No Responsibility for Recitals;.et

The recitals contained herein and in the Debt Siesir(except in the certificate of authenticatiohthe Trustee or tl
Authenticating Agent) shall be taken as the statémef the Company and the Trustee and the Autteinig Agent assume no responsib
for the correctness of the same. The Trustee amdAtlthenticating Agent make no representationsoathé validity or sufficiency of th
Indenture or of the Debt Securities. The Trusted e Authenticating Agent shall not be accountdblethe use or application by 1
Company of any Debt Securities or the proceedspflZebt Securities authenticated and deliveredhkyTrustee or the Authenticating Ag
in conformity with the provisions of this Indenture

SECTION 6.04. Trustee, Authenticating Agent, iRgyAgents, Transfer Agents or Registrar May OwibbO@ecurities

The Trustee or any Authenticating Agent or any Rgylgent or any transfer agent or any Debt Secustyistrar, in it
individual or any other capacity, may become theemor pledgee of Debt Securities with the sametsiit would have if it were not Trust
Authenticating Agent, Paying Agent, transfer agambebt Security registrar.

SECTION 6.05. Moneys to be Held in Trust

Subject to the provisions of Section 12.04, all eyanreceived by the Trustee or any Paying Agerit, shdil used or applie
as herein provided, be held in trust for the puepfms which they were received, but need not beeggded from other funds except to
extent required by law. The Trustee and any Pagigent shall be under no liability for interest omyanoney received by it hereunder ex
as otherwise agreed in writing with the Companyld@®g as no Event of Default shall have occurredl la@ continuing, all interest allowed
any such moneys, if any, shall be paid from timére to the Company upon the written order of @mnpany, signed by the Chairman of
Board of Directors, the President, the Chief OpegaDfficer, a Vice President, the Treasurer oAaristant Treasurer of the Company.

SECTION 6.06. Compensation and Expenses of &eust

Other than as provided in the Fee Agreement of ele¢@ herewith, the Company covenants and agregaytto the Truste
from time to time, and the Trustee shall be ertitle such compensation as shall be agreed toitmgvbetween the Company and the Tru
(which shall not be limited by any provision of lawregard to the compensation of a trustee ofxgmess trust), and the Company will pa
reimburse the Trustee upon its written requestafbdocumented reasonable expenses, disbursemmshtadvances incurred or made by
Trustee in accordance with any of the provisionghig Indenture (including the reasonable compémsaind the reasonable expenses
disbursements of its counsel and of all Personsamptlarly in its employ) except any such expedsshursement or advance that arises fro
negligence, willful misconduct or bad faith. Thermany also covenants to indemnify each of the ®rugincluding in its individual capaci
and any predecessor Trustee (and its officers,tagdinectors and employees) for, and to hold itrhess against, any and all loss, dam
claim, liability or expense including taxes (ottiban taxes based on the income of the Trusteegpéxo the extent such loss, damage, ¢
liability or expense results from the negligencd|fw misconduct or bad faith of such indemniteejsing out of or in connection with 1
acceptance or administration of this Trust, inahgdihe costs and expenses of defending itself agaitry claim or liability in the premises. 7
obligations of the Company under this Section 6t@6compensate and indemnify the Trustee and to grayeimburse the Trustee
documented expenses, disbursements and advandesaststitute additional indebtedness hereundechSadditional indebtedness shall
secured by (and the Company hereby grants and gdetdgthe Trustee) a lien prior to that of the D&bturities upon all property and fu
held or collected by the Trustee as such, exceptsineld in trust for the benefit of the holderpafticular Debt Securities.

Without prejudice to any other rights availabletb@ Trustee under applicable law, when the Trustears expenses
renders services in connection with an Event ofaDkfspecified in subsections (d), (e) or (f) ocen 5.01, the expenses (including
reasonable charges and expenses of its counsefhancbmpensation for the services are intendetbistitute expenses of administra
under any applicable federal or state bankrupteglvency or other similar law.

The provisions of this Section shall survive thgigeation or removal of the Trustee and the defezsar other terminatic
of this Indenture.

SECTION 6.07. Officers' Certificate as Evidence

Except as otherwise provided in Sections 6.01 a@d, &vhenever in the administration of the provisiof this Indenture tl
Trustee shall deem it necessary or desirable thaatéer be proved or established prior to takingmitting any action hereunder, such m:
(unless other evidence in respect thereof be hepguifically prescribed) may, in the absence gligence, willful misconduct or bad faith
the part of the Trustee, be deemed to be conclyspp@ved and established by an Officers' Certticdelivered to the Trustee, and <
certificate, in the absence of negligence, willuisconduct or bad faith on the part of the Trusgiall be full warrant to the Trustee for .
action taken or omitted by it under the provisiofishis Indenture upon the faith thereof.



SECTION 6.08. Eligibility of Trustee

The Trustee hereunder shall at all times be a BeBson that is a banking corporation or nationsbeiation organized a
doing business under the laws of the United Staftédgnerica or any state thereof or of the Dista€Columbia and authorized under such |
to exercise corporate trust powers, having a coetbitapital and surplus of at least fifty millionSJ.dollars ($50,000,000) and subjec
supervision or examination by federal, state, astiitit of Columbia authority. If such corporation mational association publishes report
condition at least annually, pursuant to law oth® requirements of the aforesaid supervising amering authority, then for the purpose:
this Section 6.08 the combined capital and surpfusuch corporation or national association shalldeemed to be its combined capital
surplus as set forth in its most recent recordsoaflition so published.

The Company may not, nor may any Person directipdirectly controlling, controlled by, or underraanon control with th
Company, serve as Trustee, notwithstanding that socporation or national association shall be wiise eligible and qualified under t

Article.

In case at any time the Trustee shall cease tdigpele in accordance with the provisions of thiscBon 6.08, the Trust
shall resign immediately in the manner and witheffect specified in Section 6.09.

If the Trustee has or shall acquire any "confligtinterest" within the meaning of § 310(b) of theudt Indenture Act, tt
Trustee shall either eliminate such interest digrego the extent and in the manner provided by, subject to this Indenture.

SECTION 6.09. Resignation or Removal of Trus@aculation Agent, Paying Agent or Debt Securiggistrar.

(@) The Trustee, or any trustee or trusteesaffiereappointed, the Calculation Agent, the Payliggnt and any Debt
Security Registrar may at any time resign by giwrrgten notice of such resignation to the Compang by mailing notice thereof, at the
Company's expense, to the holders of the Debt Biesuat their addresses as they shall appeareoDébt Security Register. Upon receiving
such notice of resignation, the Company shall prthrgppoint a successor or successors by writtetmiiment, in duplicate, executed by order
of its Board of Directors, one copy of which instrent shall be delivered to the resigning party @me copy to the successor. If no successor
shall have been so appointed and have accepteihappat within 30 days after the mailing of suchio® of resignation to the affected
Securityholders, the resigning party may petitiog eourt of competent jurisdiction for the appoietmof a successor, or any Securityholder
who has been a bona fide holder of a Debt Secaorifebt Securities for at least six months mayjextttio the provisions of Section 5.09, on
behalf of himself or herself and all others simjlagituated, petition any such court for the appoient of a successor. Such court may
thereupon, after such notice, if any, as it maympeoper and prescribe, appoint a successor.

(b) In case at any time any of the followinglsbacur -

(1) the Trustee shall fail to comply with thewpisions of the last paragraph of Section 6.08
after written request therefor by the Company oaby Securityholder who has been a bona fide halflarDebt Security or
Debt Securities for at least six months,

(2) the Trustee shall cease to be eligible in accomlarith the provisions of Section 6.08
shall fail to resign after written request therdfgrthe Company or by any such Securityholder, or

3) the Trustee shall become incapable of actinghall be adjudged bankrupt or insolvent,
or a receiver of the Trustee or of its propertylldha appointed, or any public officer shall takteaoge or control of the Trust
or of its property or affairs for the purpose diabilitation, conservation or liquidation,

then, in any such case, the Company may removértstee and appoint a successor Trustee by wiitsgrument, in duplicate, executed
order of the Board of Directors, one copy of whinktrument shall be delivered to the Trustee soored and one copy to the succe
Trustee, or, subject to the provisions of Sectid®5if no successor Trustee shall have been soirded and have accepted appointment w
30 days of the occurrence of any of (1), (2) or §Bpve, any Securityholder who has been a bonahiidider of a Debt Security or D¢
Securities for at least six months may, on behélhimself or herself and all others similarly sited, petition any court of compet
jurisdiction for the removal of the Trustee and &ppointment of a successor Trustee. Such courttheagupon, after such notice, if any,
may deem proper and prescribe, remove the Trustkagpoint a successor Trustee.

(c) Upon prior written notice to the Company and thestee, the holders of a majority in aggregate palamount o
the Debt Securities at the time outstanding mangttime remove the Trustee and nominate a suac&asstee, which shall be deemed
appointed as successor Trustee unless within tem&ss Days after such nomination the Company tsbjbereto, in which case or in the case
of a failure by such holders to nominate a sucaeEssstee, the Trustee so removed or any Secutdghoupon the terms and conditions and



otherwise as in subsection (a) of this Section f1@®ided, may petition any court of competentgdittion for an
appointment of a successor.

(d) Any resignation or removal of the Trustdes €alculation Agent, the Paying Agent and any [Bduturity Registrar
and appointment of a successor pursuant to arhyegbrovisions of this Section 6.09 shall becomeatife upon acceptance of appointment by

the successor as provided in Section 6.10.

SECTION 6.10. Acceptance by Successor

Any successor Trustee, Calculation Agent, Payingrigr Debt Security Registrar appointed as pralisheSection 6.0
shall execute, acknowledge and deliver to the Camypmnd to its predecessor an instrument accepticy sppointment hereunder, |
thereupon the resignation or removal of the rairparty shall become effective and such successithout any further act, deed
conveyance, shall become vested with all the rigbtsvers, duties and obligations with respect t® Bebt Securities of its predece:
hereunder, with like effect as if originally namleerein; but, nevertheless, on the written requetited Company or of the successor, the |
ceasing to act shall, upon payment of the amour@s tue it pursuant to the provisions of Sectid66execute and deliver an instrun
transferring to such successor all the rights aolgps of the party so ceasing to act and shall dsign, transfer and deliver to such succ
all property and money held by such retiring pdrgreunder. Upon request of any such successoCdngpany shall execute any and
instruments in writing for more fully and certainlgsting in and confirming to such successor athsights and powers. Any party ceasin
act shall, nevertheless, retain a lien upon alperty or funds held or collected to secure any artsthen due it pursuant to the provision
Section 6.06.

If a successor Trustee is appointed, the Compéameyrdtiring Trustee and the successor Trustee skallute and deliver
indenture supplemental hereto which shall contaichsprovisions as shall be deemed necessary orablesito confirm that all the righ
powers, trusts and duties of the retiring Trustéil wespect to the Debt Securities as to whichpghedecessor Trustee is not retiring <
continue to be vested in the predecessor Trustekshall add to or change any of the provisionshi Indenture as shall be necessal
provide for or facilitate the administration of tiieust hereunder by more than one Trustee, it beimderstood that nothing herein or in ¢
supplemental indenture shall constitute such Tesstetrustees of the same trust and that each suchekrgbiall be Trustee of a trust or tr
hereunder separate and apart from any trust dstheseunder administered by any other such Trustee

No successor Trustee shall accept appointment@gded in this Section 6.10 unless at the time wthsacceptance su
successor Trustee shall be eligible and qualifiedien the provisions of Section 6.08.

In no event shall a retiring Trustee, CalculatiogeAt, Paying Agent or Debt Security Registrar ladblé for the acts
omissions of any successor hereunder.

Upon acceptance of appointment by a successor €eu§talculation Agent, Paying Agent or Debt SeguRegistrar ¢
provided in this Section 6.10, the Company shalill matice of the succession to the holders of D&bturities at their addresses as they
appear on the Debt Security Register. If the Compaits to mail such notice within ten Business Bafter the acceptance of appointmer
the successor, the successor shall cause suck tmtie mailed at the expense of the Company.

SECTION 6.11. Succession by Merger, etc.

Any Person into which the Trustee may be mergetbaverted or with which it may be consolidatedany Person resultii
from any merger, conversion or consolidation tochhthe Trustee shall be a party, or any Personesudlieg to all or substantially all of 1
corporate trust business of the Trustee, shalhbeticcessor of the Trustee hereunder withoutteeuwtion or filing of any paper or any furt|
act on the part of any of the parties hereto; mred| that such Person shall be otherwise eligiblecaradified under this Article.

In case at the time such successor to the Trubtdessicceed to the trusts created by this Inderduy of the Debt Securit
shall have been authenticated but not delivereglsanh successor to the Trustee may adopt thdicatei of authentication of any predece:
Trustee, and deliver such Debt Securities so atitta#ed; and in case at that time any of the DelsuBties shall not have been authentici
any successor to the Trustee may authenticate Bebh Securities either in the name of any predecessreunder or in the name of
successor Trustee; and in all such cases sucficads shall have the full force which it is anyaré in the Debt Securities or in this Inden
provided that the certificate of the Trustee shwele; provided however, that the right to adopt the certificate of autieation of an'
predecessor Trustee or authenticate Debt Secuiitidse name of any predecessor Trustee shall apply to its successor or successor
merger, conversion or consolidation.

SECTION 6.12. Authenticating Agents

There may be one or more Authenticating Agents ey@o by the Trustee upon the request of the Compath power to ac



on its behalf and subject to its direction in théhantication and delivery of Debt Securities issugpon exchange
registration of transfer thereof as fully to altants and purposes as though any such AuthenticAtiient had been expressly authorize
authenticate and deliver Debt Securities; providedt the Trustee shall have no liability to then@any for any acts or omissions of
Authenticating Agent with respect to the authentimaand delivery of Debt Securities. Any such Aerticating Agent shall at all times b
Person organized and doing business under the dawse United States or of any state or territdrgreof or of the District of Columt
authorized under such laws to act as Authenticatiggnt, having a combined capital and surplus déast $50,000,000 and being subje:
supervision or examination by federal, state, tigtidl or District of Columbia authority. If sucheBson publishes reports of condition at |
annually pursuant to law or the requirements ohsawthority, then for the purposes of this Sectal? the combined capital and surplu
such Person shall be deemed to be its combinetatapid surplus as set forth in its most recenbntepf condition so published. If at any ti
an Authenticating Agent shall cease to be eligiblaccordance with the provisions of this Sectibahall resign immediately in the manner
with the effect herein specified in this Section.

Any Person into which any Authenticating Agent nieymerged or converted or with which it may be otidated, or an
Person resulting from any merger, consolidationaversion to which any Authenticating Agent shwla party, or any Person succeedir
all or substantially all of the corporate trust ingss of any Authenticating Agent, shall be thecsgsor of such Authenticating Ag
hereunder, if such successor Person is otherwigiblelunder this Section 6.12 without the exeautin filing of any paper or any further act
the part of the parties hereto or such Authenticgfigent.

Any Authenticating Agent may at any time resignddying written notice of resignation to the Trustssd to the Compar
The Trustee may at any time terminate the agen@ngfAuthenticating Agent with respect to the D8bturities by giving written notice
termination to such Authenticating Agent and to@mpany. Upon receiving such a notice of resigmatir upon such a termination, or in ¢
at any time any Authenticating Agent shall ceasbeeligible under this Section 6.12, the Trustes,nand upon the request of the Comj
shall, promptly appoint a successor Authenticathggnt eligible under this Section 6.12, shall giwetten notice of such appointment to
Company and shall mail notice of such appointmerdlit holders of Debt Securities as the names addeases of such holders appear o
Debt Security Register. Any successor Authenticafigent upon acceptance of its appointment heraustadl become vested with all rigt
powers, duties and responsibilities with respedth® Debt Securities of its predecessor hereurvdén, like effect as if originally named
Authenticating Agent herein.

Other than as provided in the Fee Agreement of elad@ herewith, the Company agrees to pay to artgehticating Ager
from time to time reasonable compensation for @wises. Any Authenticating Agent shall have nopassibility or liability for any actio
taken by it as such in accordance with the direstiof the Trustee and shall receive such reasoriaddennity as it may require against
costs, expenses and liabilities incurred in furdinee of its duties under this Section 6.12.

ARTICLE VII

CONCERNING THE SECURITYHOLDERS

SECTION 7.01. Action by Securityholders

Whenever in this Indenture it is provided that tiodders of a specified percentage in aggregateipahamount of the De
Securities or aggregate Liquidation Amount of thepital Securities may take any action (including thaking of any demand or request,
giving of any notice, consent or waiver or the takdf any other action), the fact that at the tmfi¢aking any such action the holders of ¢
specified percentage have joined therein may beeecied (a) by any instrument or any number of umsénts of similar tenor executed by s
Securityholders or holders of Capital Securitiesthree case may be, in person or by agent or prpggiated in writing, or (b) by the record
such holders of Debt Securities voting in favorrdioé at any meeting of such Securityholders duljedaand held in accordance with
provisions of Article VIII, or of such holders ofa@ital Securities duly called and held in accoréawith the provisions of the Declaration
(c) by a combination of such instrument or instratseand any such record of such a meeting of sechiryholders, or holders of Cap
Securities, as the case may be, or (d) by any otle¢éhhod the Trustee deems satisfactory.

If the Company shall solicit from the Securityhalelany request, demand, authorization, directiotice, consent, waiver
other action or revocation of the same, the Compmaay, at its option, as evidenced by an Officeestificate, fix in advance a record date
such Debt Securities for the determination of Sigdwlders entitled to give such request, demanthaization, direction, notice, conse
waiver or other action or revocation of the sam#,the Company shall have no obligation to do suth a record date is fixed, such reqi
demand, authorization, direction, notice, consemaiyer or other action or revocation of the same & given before or after the record ¢
but only the Securityholders of record at the clogdusiness on the record date shall be deemée t8ecurityholders for the purpose:
determining whether Securityholders of the reqeigitoportion of outstanding Debt Securities havil@ized or agreed or consented to ¢
request, demand, authorization, direction, notto@sent, waiver or other action or revocation ef$ame, and for that purpose the outstatr



Debt Securities shall be computed as of the redatd; provided however, that no such authorization, agreement or co
by such Securityholders on the record date shalldeened effective unless it shall become effeqiiwsuant to the provisions of this Inden
not later than six months after the record date.

SECTION 7.02. Proof of Execution by Securitytevkl

Subject to the provisions of Sections 6.01, 6.02 &5, proof of the execution of any instrumentb$ecurityholder or su
Securityholder's agent or proxy shall be sufficiémbade in accordance with such reasonable ruidsr@gulations as may be prescribed b
Trustee or in such manner as shall be satisfattotlye Trustee. The ownership of Debt Securitiedl &fe proved by the Debt Security Regi
or by a certificate of the Debt Security Registfne Trustee may require such additional proofrof matter referred to in this Section ¢
shall deem necessary.

The record of any Securityholders' meeting shaptoeed in the manner provided in Section 8.06.

SECTION 7.03. Who Are Deemed Absolute Owners

Prior to due presentment for registration of transf any Debt Security, the Company, the Trusteg,Authenticating Ager
any Paying Agent, any transfer agent and any Debti®ty registrar may deem the Person in whose rarole Debt Security shall be registe
upon the Debt Security Register to be, and mayt saeh Person as, the absolute owner of such Detiry (whether or not such Di
Security shall be overdue) for the purpose of rgngipayment of or on account of the principalmgmium, if any, and interest on such [
Security and for all other purposes; and neither @mpany nor the Trustee nor any Authenticatingrigior any Paying Agent nor ¢
transfer agent nor any Debt Security registrarldhalaffected by any notice to the contrary. Altlsipayments so made to any holder fol
time being or upon such holder's order shall b&lyahd, to the extent of the sum or sums so didctual to satisfy and discharge the liab
for moneys payable upon any such Debt Security.

SECTION 7.04. Debt Securities Owned by Compasagred Not Outstanding

In determining whether the holders of the requisitggregate principal amount of Debt Securities heagcurred in ar
direction, consent or waiver under this Indentldebt Securities which are owned by the Companyngraher obligor on the Debt Securi
or by any Person directly or indirectly controlling controlled by or under direct or indirect connmzontrol with the Company (other than
Trust) or any other obligor on the Debt Securitg®ll be disregarded and deemed not to be outsigrfdr the purpose of any st
determination; providedthat for the purposes of determining whetherTthestee shall be protected in relying on any suo#ction, consent
waiver, only Debt Securities which a Responsibl&def of the Trustee actually knows are so ownedlld¥e so disregarded. Debt Securitie
owned which have been pledged in good faith masebarded as outstanding for the purposes of tlide7.04 if the pledgee shall estab
to the satisfaction of the Trustee the pledgegistrio vote such Debt Securities and that the gedg not the Company or any such c
obligor or Person directly or indirectly controlijror controlled by or under direct or indirect conmmcontrol with the Company or any s
other obligor. In the case of a dispute as to sigtit, any decision by the Trustee taken upon théca of counsel shall be full protection to
Trustee.

SECTION 7.05. Revocation of Consents; FutureuSstolders Bound

At any time prior to (but not after) the evidencitogthe Trustee, as provided in Section 7.01, eftéking of any action by t
holders of the percentage in aggregate principauarnof the Debt Securities specified in this Indea in connection with such action, i
holder (in cases where no record date has beepusstant to Section 7.01) or any holder as of gliegble record date (in cases whe
record date has been set pursuant to Section Gi@LDebt Security (or any Debt Security issuediole or in part in exchange or substitu
therefor) the serial number of which is shown by @évidence to be included in the Debt Securitieshtbiders of which have consented to !
action may, by filing written notice with the Trest at the Principal Office of the Trustee and upaof of holding as provided in Section 7.
revoke such action so far as concerns such Debtri8e¢or so far as concerns the principal amoepresented by any exchanged or substi
Debt Security). Except as aforesaid any such adéken by the holder of any Debt Security shaltbeclusive and binding upon such ho
and upon all future holders and owners of such [Bdaturity, and of any Debt Security issued in ergeaor substitution therefor or
registration of transfer thereof, irrespective diather or not any notation in regard thereto is enagon such Debt Security or any C
Security issued in exchange or substitution therefo

ARTICLE VI

SECURITYHOLDERS' MEETINGS



SECTION 8.01. Purposes of Meetings

A meeting of Securityholders may be called at ametand from time to time pursuant to the provisianf this Article VI
for any of the following purposes:

(@) to give any notice to the Company or toThastee, or to give any directions to the Trustedp consent to the
waiving of any default hereunder and its consegeghar to take any other action authorized to kertdy Securityholders pursuant to any of
the provisions of Article V;

(b) to remove the Trustee and nominate a suocéssstee pursuant to the provisions of Article VI

(c) to consent to the execution of an indenturimdentures supplemental hereto pursuant tothgions of Section
9.02; or

(d) to take any other action authorized to lkeaby or on behalf of the holders of any specifigdregate principal

amount of such Debt Securities under any otherigiav of this Indenture or under applicable law.

SECTION 8.02. Call of Meetings by Trustee

The Trustee may at any time call a meeting of Sgtwiders to take any action specified in Secodl, to be held at su
time and at such place in New York or Wilmingtorel&@ware, as the Trustee shall determine. Noticevefy meeting of the Securityholdt
setting forth the time and the place of such mee#ind in general terms the action proposed to kentat such meeting, shall be maile
holders of Debt Securities affected at their adskesas they shall appear on the Debt SecuritiesteegSuch notice shall be mailed not
than 20 nor more than 180 days prior to the dasffor the meeting.

SECTION 8.03. Call of Meetings by Company or@8#gholders.

In case at any time the Company pursuant to a BRasblution, or the holders of at least 10% in eggte principal amou
of the Debt Securities, as the case may be, th&stamdling, shall have requested the Trustee toacalkeeting of Securityholders, by writ
request setting forth in reasonable detail theoaghroposed to be taken at the meeting, and th&t@eishall not have mailed the notice of
meeting within 20 days after receipt of such reguésn the Company or such Securityholders magrdehe the time and the place in for s
meeting and may call such meeting to take any metighorized in Section 8.01, by mailing noticerélod as provided in Section 8.02.

SECTION 8.04. Qualifications for Voting

To be entitled to vote at any meeting of Securitgfes a Person shall be (a) a holder of one or rbaiet Securities wit
respect to which the meeting is being held or (Beeson appointed by an instrument in writing axyby a holder of one or more such C
Securities. The only Persons who shall be entttidake present or to speak at any meeting of Sgbwotiders shall be the Persons entitled to
at such meeting and their counsel and any repratbezg of the Trustee and its counsel and any septatives of the Company and its counsel.

SECTION 8.05. Regulations

Notwithstanding any other provisions of this Indeet the Trustee may make such reasonable regudatis it may dee
advisable for any meeting of Securityholders, igarel to proof of the holding of Debt Securities aridhe appointment of proxies, anc
regard to the appointment and duties of inspeatbreotes, the submission and examination of proxgestificates and other evidence of
right to vote, and such other matters concerniegctinduct of the meeting as it shall deem apprtgria

The Trustee shall, by an instrument in writing, @pp a temporary chairman of the meeting, unlessntteeting shall ha
been called by the Company or by Securityholderprasided in Section 8.03, in which case the Corgpanthe Securityholders calling 1
meeting, as the case may be, shall in like manppoiat a temporary chairman. A permanent chairmash @ permanent secretary of
meeting shall be elected by majority vote at theting.

Subject to the provisions of Section 7.04, at ametimg each holder of Debt Securities with respeethich such meeting
being held or proxy therefor shall be entitled t® wote for each $1,000 principal amount of Deltu@iges held or represented by such ho
provided, however, that no vote shall be cast or counted at any imgét respect of any Debt Security challenged @sonitstanding and rul
by the chairman of the meeting to be not outstandithe chairman of the meeting shall have no rtghtote other than by virtue of D¢
Securities held by such chairman or instrumentsriting as aforesaid duly designating such chairmanhe Person to vote on behalf of c
Securityholders. Any meeting of Securityholdersydealled pursuant to the provisions of Section 8038.03 may be adjourned from time
time by a majority of those present, whether oraoststituting a quorum, and the meeting may be aglso adjourned without further notice.




SECTION 8.06. Voting

The vote upon any resolution submitted to any megetif holders of Debt Securities with respect tdaclwhsuch meeting
being held shall be by written ballots on whichlsba subscribed the signatures of such holdersf dheir representatives by proxy and
serial number or numbers of the Debt Securitiesl logl represented by them. The permanent chairmatheoimeeting shall appoint b
inspectors of votes who shall count all votes eashe meeting for or against any resolution and sll make and file with the secretar
the meeting their verified written reports in tigalte of all votes cast at the meeting. A recorduplicate of the proceedings of each meetir
Securityholders shall be prepared by the secrethilye meeting and there shall be attached torsaiokd the original reports of the inspec
of votes on any vote by ballot taken thereat arfidiafits by one or more Persons having knowledg¢heffacts setting forth a copy of
notice of the meeting and showing that said notias mailed as provided in Section 8.02. The resbadl show the serial numbers of the [
Securities voting in favor of or against any retiolu The record shall be signed and verified by dffidavits of the permanent chairman
secretary of the meeting and one of the duplicsttedl be delivered to the Company and the othénddlrustee to be preserved by the Tru
the latter to have attached thereto the ballotedsat the meeting. Any record so signed and vergiall be conclusive evidence of the ma
therein stated.

SECTION 8.07. Quorum; Actions

The Persons entitled to vote a majority in outsitagqngbrincipal amount of the Debt Securities shalhstitute a quorum for
meeting of Securityholders; providedhowever, that if any action is to be taken at such meetifiy respect to a consent, waiver, reqt
demand, notice, authorization, direction or othatioam which may be given by the holders of not I a specified percentage in outstan
principal amount of the Debt Securities, the Pesdoolding or representing such specified percentagmitstanding principal amount of -
Debt Securities will constitute a quorum. In theetce of a quorum within 30 minutes of the timecamied for any such meeting, the mee
shall, if convened at the request of Securityhaldbe dissolved. In any other case the meetingbeadjourned for a period of not less tha
days as determined by the permanent chairman oh#weting prior to the adjournment of such meetinghe absence of a quorum at any ¢
adjourned meeting, such adjourned meeting may ftibefuadjourned for a period of not less than 19sdas determined by the permai
chairman of the meeting prior to the adjournmerdwafh adjourned meeting. Notice of the reconveoingny adjourned meeting shall be gi
as provided in Section 8.02, except that such aat®ed be given only once not less than five daigs to the date on which the meetin
scheduled to be reconvened. Notice of the recongeoi an adjourned meeting shall state expresgyptrcentage, as provided above, o
outstanding principal amount of the Debt Securitaéch shall constitute a quorum.

Except as limited by the proviso in the first paggah of Section 9.02, any resolution presented toeating or adjourne
meeting duly reconvened at which a quorum is piteaeraforesaid may be adopted by the affirmativie wd the holders of not less tha
majority in outstanding principal amount of the D&ecurities; providedhowever, that, except as limited by the proviso in thstfparagrag
of Section 9.02, any resolution with respect to angpsent, waiver, request, demand, notice, authtioiz, direction or other action that 1
Indenture expressly provides may be given by thders of not less than a specified percentage tatauding principal amount of the D
Securities may be adopted at a meeting or an atgdumeeting duly reconvened and at which a quosiprésent as aforesaid only by
affirmative vote of the holders of not less thantsapecified percentage in outstanding principabdamh of the Debt Securities.

Any resolution passed or decision taken at any imgeff holders of Debt Securities duly held in adamce with this Sectic
shall be binding on all the Securityholders, whetirenot present or represented at the meeting.

SECTION 8.08. Written Consent Without a Meeting

Whenever under this Indenture, Securityholdersegeired or permitted to take any action by votehsaction may be tak
without a meeting on written consent, setting fdhé action so taken, signed by the Securityholdéel outstanding Debt Securities entit
to vote thereon. No consent shall be effectivake the action referred to therein unless, withityslays of the earliest dated consent deliv
in the manner required by this paragraph to thest€gj written consents signed by a sufficient nunabeSecurityholders to take action
delivered to the Trustee at its Principal Officeeli®ery made to the Trustee at its Principal Offistall be by hand or by certificated
registered mail, return receipt requested. Writtensent thus given by the Securityholders of suambrer of Debt Securities as is requ
hereunder, shall have the same effect as a val@ofdSecurityholders of such number of Debt Seiesti

ARTICLE IX

SUPPLEMENTAL INDENTURES

SECTION 9.01. Supplemental Indentures without€gmt of Securityholders




The Company, when authorized by a Board Resoluiod, the Trustee may from time to time and at émg enter into 8
indenture or indentures supplemental hereto, witttweiconsent of the Securityholders, for one orenas the following purposes:

(@) to evidence the succession of another Pdostire Company, or successive successions, arasfuenption by the
successor Person of the covenants, agreementdhgations of the Company, pursuant to Article Xlréof;

(b) to add to the covenants of the Company $uither covenants, restrictions or conditions fog protection of the
holders of Debt Securities as the Board of Directirall consider to be for the protection of thiels of such Debt Securities, and to make
occurrence, or the occurrence and continuancePafault in any of such additional covenants, festms or conditions a Default or an Event
of Default permitting the enforcement of all or asfythe several remedies provided in this Indenagr@erein set forth; providedhowever,
that in respect of any such additional covenaistricion or condition such supplemental indentmagy provide for a particular period of grace
after default (which period may be shorter or lanpan that allowed in the case of other defawtshay provide for an immediate
enforcement upon such default or may limit the reiege available to the Trustee upon such default;

(c) to cure any ambiguity or to correct or sigppént any provision contained herein or in any Bmpntal indenture
which may be defective or inconsistent with anyeotbrovision contained herein or in any supplemeant®nture, or to make or amend such
other provisions in regard to matters or questansng under this Indenture; providethat any such action shall not adversely affieet t
interests of the holders of the Debt Securities;

(d) to add to, delete from, or revise the teahBebt Securities, including, without limitatioany terms relating to the
issuance, exchange, registration or transfer ot Beburities, including to provide for transfer edures and restrictions substantially similar
to those applicable to the Capital Securitiesegsired by Section 2.05 (for purposes of assutiagino registration of Debt Securities is
required under the Securities Act of 1933, as améjprovided, that any such action shall not asklgraffect the interests of the holders of
the Debt Securities then outstanding (it being ustded, for purposes of this proviso, that transéstrictions on Debt Securities substantially
similar to those applicable to Capital Securitiealsnot be deemed to adversely affect the holdétise Debt Securities);

(e) to evidence and provide for the acceptafeppointment hereunder by a successor Trusteeresftect to the Debt
Securities and to add to or change any of the pimvs of this Indenture as shall be necessaryawige for or facilitate the administration of
the trusts hereunder by more than one Trusteeyaots$o the requirements of Section 6.10;

® to make any change (other than as elsewprengded in this paragraph) that does not advera#ct the rights of
any Securityholder in any material respect; or

(9) to provide for the issuance of and estalilighform and terms and conditions of the Debt 8tes, to establish the
form of any certifications required to be furnishmdsuant to the terms of this Indenture or thet[Bdeurities, or to add to the rights of the
holders of Debt Securities.

The Trustee is hereby authorized to join with tlwmPany in the execution of any such supplementigriture, to make a
further appropriate agreements and stipulationshvimay be therein contained and to accept the gamee, transfer and assignment of
property thereunder, but the Trustee shall notligated to, but may in its discretion, enter iatty such supplemental indenture which af
the Trustee's own rights, duties or immunities unlis Indenture or otherwise.

Any supplemental indenture authorized by the piowis of this Section 9.01 may be executed by theng@my and tt
Trustee without the consent of the holders of drthe Debt Securities at the time outstanding, itbstanding any of the provisions of Sec
9.02.

SECTION 9.02. Supplemental Indentures with Coheé Securityholders

With the consent (evidenced as provided in Secti@®1) of the holders of not less than a majorityaggregate princip
amount of the Debt Securities at the time outstamdiffected by such supplemental indenture, the gamy, when authorized by a Bo
Resolution, and the Trustee may from time to timd at any time enter into an indenture or inderstigepplemental hereto (which sl
conform to the provisions of the Trust Indenture,Aleen in effect, applicable to indentures quetifthereunder) for the purpose of adding
provisions to or changing in any manner or elinimg@ny of the provisions of this Indenture or afaupplemental indenture or of modify
in any manner the rights of the holders of the D@&éturities; provided however, that no such supplemental indenture shall witrsuat
consent of the holders of each Debt Security thestanding and affected thereby (i) extend the MgtiDate of any Debt Security, or redi
the principal amount thereof or any premium theremrreduce the rate (or manner of calculatiorhefrate) or extend the time of paymer
interest thereon, or reduce (other than as a rekthie maturity or earlier redemption of any sidbt Security in accordance with the term
this Indenture and such Debt Security) or increhgeaggregate principal amount of Debt Securities toutstanding, or change any of




redemption provisions, or make the principal thégaany interest or premium thereon payable in @iy or currency oth
than United States Dollars, or impair or affect tight of any Securityholder to institute suit fpayment thereof or impair the right
repayment, if any, at the option of the holder(igrreduce the aforesaid percentage of Debt Seesrthe holders of which are requiret
consent to any such supplemental indenture; andd®d, further, that if the Debt Securities are held by the Trsa trustee of such tru
such supplemental indenture shall not be effeativi the holders of a majority in Liquidation Amiuof the outstanding Capital Securi
shall have consented to such supplemental indenpuozided, further, that if the consent of the Securityholder of eacitstanding Del
Security is required, such supplemental indentinal snot be effective until each holder of the tamsling Capital Securities shall h
consented to such supplemental indenture.

Upon the request of the Company accompanied byadBResolution authorizing the execution of anyhssgpplement
indenture, and upon the filing with the Trusteesuidence of the consent of Securityholders (anddrsl of Capital Securities, if required,
aforesaid, the Trustee shall join with the Companthe execution of such supplemental indenturesskuch supplemental indenture aff
the Trustee's own rights, duties or immunities urtdis Indenture or otherwise, in which case thestee may in its discretion, but shall no
obligated to, enter into such supplemental indentur

Promptly after the execution by the Company andTthustee of any supplemental indenture pursuatttegrovisions of th
Section, the Trustee shall transmit by mail, fokstss postage prepaid, a notice, prepared by tmep@ay, setting forth in general terms
substance of such supplemental indenture, to tleartBgholders as their names and addresses appearthe Debt Security Register. /
failure of the Trustee to mail such notice, or afefect therein, shall not, however, in any way impma affect the validity of any su
supplemental indenture.

It shall not be necessary for the consent of trmuftgholders under this Section 9.02 to approwe ghrticular form of ar
proposed supplemental indenture, but it shall ligcgent if such consent shall approve the substathereof.

SECTION 9.03. Effect of Supplemental Indentures

Upon the execution of any supplemental indentursyant to the provisions of this Article IX, thisdenture shall be and
deemed to be modified dramended in accordance therewith and the respetitjlats, limitations of rights, obligations, dwgiand immunitie
under this Indenture of the Trustee, the Compard the holders of Debt Securities shall thereafeerdbtermined, exercised and enfo
hereunder subject in all respects to such modifinatand amendments and all the terms and consglittbrany such supplemental inden
shall be and be deemed to be part of the termsamditions of this Indenture for any and all purgms

SECTION 9.04. Notation on Debt Securities

Debt Securities authenticated and delivered dfieekecution of any supplemental indenture purstaatiite provisions of th
Article IX may bear a notation as to any matterved for in such supplemental indenture. If thexfpany or the Trustee shall so deterrr
new Debt Securities so modified as to conform him dpinion of the Board of Directors of the Compamyany modification of this Indentt
contained in any such supplemental indenture magyrégared and executed by the Company, autherdibgténe Trustee or the Authentical
Agent and delivered in exchange for the Debt Séesrthen outstanding.

SECTION 9.05. Evidence of Compliance of Suppletakelndenture to be furnished to Trustee

The Trustee, subject to the provisions of Sectthf4 and 6.02, shall, in addition to the documeatgiired by Section 14.(
receive an Officers' Certificate and an OpinionGafunsel as conclusive evidence that any supplemiatanture executed pursuant he
complies with the requirements of this Article [Khe Trustee shall receive an Opinion of Counseloaslusive evidence that any suppleme
indenture executed pursuant to this Article IXusherized or permitted by, and conforms to, thenteof this Article IX and that it is proper-
the Trustee under the provisions of this Articlettqoin in the execution thereof.

ARTICLE X

REDEMPTION OF SECURITIES

SECTION 10.01. Optional Redemption

At any time the Company shall have the right, scibje the receipt by the Company of prior apprdvam any regulator
authority with jurisdiction over the Company if $uapproval is then required under applicable chpitaelines or policies of such regulat
authority, to redeem the Debt Securities, in whmiéprovided that all accrued and unpaid interest bheen paid on all Debt Securities fo



Interest Periods terminating on or prior to sucteflfom time to time in part, on any January 7riAp, July 7 or October
on or after April 7, 2011 (the "Redemption Datel})the Redemption Price.

SECTION 10.02. Special Event Redemption

If a Special Event shall occur and be continuihg, €Company shall have the right, subject to theiptdy the Company
prior approval from any regulatory authority withrisdiction over the Company if such approval isnttrequired under applicable cay
guidelines or policies of such regulatory authgrityredeem the Debt Securities, in whole or irt,pagrany time within 90 days following t
occurrence of such Special Event (the "Special Redien Date"), at the Special Redemption Price.

SECTION 10.03. Notice of Redemption; Selectibebt Securities

In case the Company shall desire to exercise tig to redeem all, or, as the case may be, anyopaine Debt Securities,
shall fix a date for redemption and shall mailcause the Trustee to mail (at the expense of tiep@ny) a notice of such redemption at |
30 and not more than 60 days prior to the datedffee redemption to the holders of Debt Securieso be redeemed as a whole or in p:
their last addresses as the same appear on theSeebtity Register. Such mailing shall be by fitktss mail. The notice if mailed in 1
manner herein provided shall be conclusively presito have been duly given, whether or not the drotdceives such notice. In any ¢
failure to give such notice by mail or any defetthe notice to the holder of any Debt Securityiglested for redemption as a whole or in
shall not affect the validity of the proceedingsttoe redemption of any other Debt Security.

Each such notice of redemption shall specify thesBUnumber, if any, of the Debt Securities to @desmed, the date fix
for redemption, the redemption price (or mannecai€ulation of the price) at which Debt Securitées to be redeemed, the place or plac
payment, that payment will be made upon presemtatiod surrender of such Debt Securities, that esteaccrued to the date fixed
redemption will be paid as specified in said nqotened that on and after said date interest theoe@m the portions thereof to be redeemed
cease to accrue. If less than all the Debt Seesritre to be redeemed the notice of redemptioh gtedify the numbers of the Debt Secur
to be redeemed. In case the Debt Securities abe t@deemed in part only, the notice of redempsioall state the portion of the princi
amount thereof to be redeemed and shall statethahd after the date fixed for redemption, upamesuder of such Debt Security, a new [
Security or Debt Securities in principal amountado the unredeemed portion thereof will be issued

Prior to 10:00 a.m. New York City time on the Reghtion Date or the Special Redemption Date specifiethe notice ¢
redemption given as provided in this Section, tlen@any will deposit with the Trustee or with onemore Paying Agents an amoun
money sufficient to redeem on the redemption ditihe Debt Securities so called for redemptiothat appropriate redemption price, toge
with unpaid interest accrued to such date.

The Company will give the Trustee notice not ldsant45 nor more than 60 days prior to the redemptimte as to tl
redemption price at which the Debt Securities arbe redeemed and the aggregate principal amoubélof Securities to be redeemed anc
Trustee shall select, in such manner as in itsdiglzetion it shall deem appropriate and fair, Bredt Securities or portions thereof (in inte
multiples of $1,000) to be redeemed.

SECTION 10.04. Payment of Debt Securities CdibedRedemption

If notice of redemption has been given as provite8ection 10.03, the Debt Securities or portioh®ebt Securities wit
respect to which such notice has been given skabine due and payable on the Redemption Date @pbeial Redemption Date (as the
may be) and at the place or places stated in sotibenat the applicable redemption price, togethigh interest accrued to the date fixed
redemption, and on and after said Redemption DatkeoSpecial Redemption Date (unless the Comphaly default in the payment of st
Debt Securities at the redemption price, togethiér unpaid interest accrued thereon to said dateyest on the Debt Securities or portior
Debt Securities so called for redemption shall egasaccrue. On presentation and surrender of Batit Securities at a place of payn
specified in said notice, such Debt Securitiesher specified portions thereof shall be paid ancdeeted by the Company at the applic
redemption price, together with unpaid interesraed thereon to the Redemption Date or the SpBademption Date (as the case may be).

Upon presentation of any Debt Security redeemguhai only, the Company shall execute and the Teuskall authentica
and make available for delivery to the holder tbérat the expense of the Company, a new Debt &gaur Debt Securities of authoriz

denominations in principal amount equal to the daezned portion of the Debt Security so presented.

ARTICLE XI

CONSOLIDATION, MERGER, SALE, CONVEYANCE AND LEASE



SECTION 11.01. Company May Consolidate, etc.Cerntain Terms

Nothing contained in this Indenture or in the D8bturities shall prevent any consolidation or meajeéhe Company with
into any other corporation or corporations (whetbenot affiliated with the Company) or successbamsolidations or mergers in which
Company or its successor or successors shall laety qr parties, or shall prevent any sale, conmegatransfer or other disposition of al
substantially all of the property or capital stafkhe Company or its successor or successorsitother corporation (whether or not affilia
with the Company, or its successor or successaoittpezed to acquire and operate the same; providedvever, that the Company here
covenants and agrees that, (i) upon any such ddasioh, merger (where the Company is not the simgi corporation), sale, conveyar
transfer or other disposition, the successor estigil be a corporation organized and existing utioke laws of the United States or any ¢
thereof or the District of Columbia (unless suchporation has (1) agreed to make all payments dugspect of the Debt Securities o
outstanding, the Capital Securities and Capitau8ges Guarantee without withholding or deductfon, or on account of, any taxes, dut
assessments or other governmental charges undé@whleor regulations of the jurisdiction of orgaation or residence (for tax purposes
such corporation or any political subdivision okitey authority thereof or therein unless requirgd applicable law, in which case si
corporation shall have agreed to pay such addit@maunts as shall be required so that the net atagaceived and retained by the holde
such Debt Securities or Capital Securities, ascte® may be, after payment of all taxes (includiitpholding taxes), duties, assessmen
other governmental charges, will be equal to thewts that such holders would have received araned had no such taxes (incluc
withholding taxes), duties, assessments or otheemonental charges been imposed, (2) irrevocably @mconditionally consented &
submitted to the jurisdiction of any United Stafiederal court or New York state court, in each dasated in The City of New York, Borou
of Manhattan, in respect of any action, suit orcgexling against it arising out of or in connectiath this Indenture, the Debt Securities,
Capital Securities Guarantee or the Declarationiaadocably and unconditionally waived, to thelést extent permitted by law, any objec
to the laying of venue in any such court or that such action, suit or proceeding has been brogdnt inconvenient forum and (3) irrevoce
appointed an agent in The City of New York for $ezvof process in any action, suit or proceedirfgrred to in clause (2) above) and <
corporation expressly assumes all of the obligatioihthe Company under the Debt Securities, thrdemture, the Capital Securities Guara
and the Declaration and (ii) after giving effectaioy such consolidation, merger, sale, conveyanaesfer or other disposition, no Defaul
Event of Default shall have occurred and be coiigu

SECTION 11.02. Successor Entity to be Substitute

In case of any such consolidation, merger, saleye&gance, transfer or other disposition contemglateSection 11.01 a
upon the assumption by the successor entity, bplsopental indenture, executed and delivered toTthustee and reasonably satisfactor
form to the Trustee, of the due and punctual payroéthe principal of and premium, if any, and irtst on all of the Debt Securities and
due and punctual performance and observance aff dhe covenants and conditions of this Indentardé performed or observed by
Company, such successor entity shall succeed tarsdbstituted for the Company, with the samecetis if it had been named herein as
Company, and thereupon the predecessor entity bbalelieved of any further liability or obligatidrereunder or upon the Debt Securi
Such successor entity thereupon may cause to hedsignd may issue either in its own name or imtdmae of the Company, any or all of
Debt Securities issuable hereunder which theretdo&irall not have been signed by the Company andededl to the Trustee or t
Authenticating Agent; and, upon the order of suabhcessor entity instead of the Company and sulifecll the terms, conditions a
limitations in this Indenture prescribed, the Tagstor the Authenticating Agent shall authenticatd deliver any Debt Securities wh
previously shall have been signed and deliverethbyofficers of the Company, to the Trustee orAl¢henticating Agent for authenticatit
and any Debt Securities which such successor ehgteafter shall cause to be signed and delivierglde Trustee or the Authenticating Ac
for that purpose. All the Debt Securities so issakdll in all respects have the same legal rankkemefit under this Indenture as the [
Securities theretofore or thereafter issued in atmowce with the terms of this Indenture as thoubbfasuch Debt Securities had been issut
the date of the execution hereof.

SECTION 11.03. Opinion of Counsel to be Givef tostee.

The Trustee, subject to the provisions of Sect@&@4d and 6.02, shall receive, in addition to thén@m of Counsel require
by Section 9.05, an Opinion of Counsel as conctugwvidence that any consolidation, merger, saleyeyance, transfer or other disposit
and any assumption, permitted or required by thagef this Article XI complies with the provisions this Article XI.

ARTICLE Xl

SATISFACTION AND DISCHARGE OF INDENTURE

SECTION 12.01. Discharge of Indenture




When (a) the Company shall deliver to the Trusteecéncellation all Debt Securities theretoforehauticated (other than &
Debt Securities which shall have been destroyed,dostolen and which shall have been replacqshimt as provided in Section 2.06) and
theretofore canceled, or (b) all the Debt Secuwritiet theretofore canceled or delivered to the t€ruor cancellation shall have become
and payable, or are by their terms to become daepayable within one year or are to be called ftemption within one year uni
arrangements satisfactory to the Trustee for thimgiof notice of redemption, and the Company staposit with the Trustee, in trust, fur
which shall be immediately due and payable, sudfitito pay at maturity or upon redemption all ¢ thebt Securities (other than any C
Securities which shall have been destroyed, lostalen and which shall have been replaced or g&iorovided in Section 2.06) not thereto
canceled or delivered to the Trustee for cancelatincluding principal and premium, if any, andeirest due or to become due to such de
maturity or redemption date, as the case may begkeluding, however, the amount of any moneystlfie payment of principal of, a
premium, if any, or interest on the Debt SecurifiEstheretofore repaid to the Company in accordamith the provisions of Section 12.04
(2) paid to any state or to the District of Columlpiursuant to its unclaimed property or similardaand if in the case of either clause (¢
clause (b) the Company shall also pay or cause fwall all other sums payable hereunder by the @agghen this Indenture shall cease t
of further effect except for the provisions of Seas 2.05, 2.06, 3.01, 3.02, 3.04, 6.06, 6.09 ah@4l hereof, which shall survive until s
Debt Securities shall mature or are redeemed,easdbe may be, and are paid in full. Thereafterti@es 6.06, 6.09 and 12.04 shall surv
and the Trustee, on demand of the Company accoegpayi an Officers' Certificate and an Opinion ofu@gel, each stating that all conditi
precedent herein provided for relating to the &atiton and discharge of this Indenture have beenptied with, and at the cost and expens
the Company, shall execute proper instruments aglauging satisfaction of and discharging this Inde®, the Company, however, her
agreeing to reimburse the Trustee for any cosexpenses thereafter reasonably and properly intunyethe Trustee in connection with 1
Indenture or the Debt Securities.

SECTION 12.02. Deposited Moneys to be Held inst by Trustee

Subject to the provisions of Section 12.04, all ;yandeposited with the Trustee pursuant to Sedtfl shall be held
trust and applied by it to the payment, eitheralyeor through any Paying Agent (including the Gmany if acting as its own Paying Agent)
the holders of the particular Debt Securities Far payment of which such moneys have been depositedhe Trustee, of all sums due an
become due thereon for principal, and premiumnyf, @and interest.

SECTION 12.03. Paying Agent to Repay Moneys Held

Upon the satisfaction and discharge of this Indentall moneys then held by any Paying Agent ofedt Securities (oth
than the Trustee) shall, upon demand of the Compamyepaid to the Company or paid to the Trustad,thereupon such Paying Agent ¢
be released from all further liability with respéatsuch moneys.

SECTION 12.04. Return of Unclaimed Moneys

Any moneys deposited with or paid to the Trusteargr Paying Agent for payment of the principalarid premium, if any,
interest on Debt Securities and not applied butaiaing unclaimed by the holders of Debt Securitigstwo years after the date upon which
principal of, and premium, if any, or interest arcs Debt Securities, as the case may be, shall eseme due and payable, shall be repe
the Company by the Trustee or such Paying Agemwritten demand; and the holder of any of the DedtuBities shall thereafter look only
the Company for any payment which such holder negttitled to collect and all liability of the Tieg or such Paying Agent with respec
such moneys shall thereupon cease.

ARTICLE Xl

IMMUNITY OF INCORPORATORS, STOCKHOLDERS, OFFICERS\® DIRECTORS

SECTION 13.01. Indenture and Debt SecuritieelgdCorporate Obligations

No recourse for the payment of the principal ofppeemium, if any, or interest on any Debt Securityfor any claim bas¢
thereon or otherwise in respect thereof, and nourse under or upon any obligation, covenant ceement of the Company in this Inden
or in any supplemental indenture, or in any sucht[Becurity, or because of the creation of anyliteldness represented thereby, shall b
against any incorporator, stockholder, officergdior, employee or agent, as such, past, preséatuve, of the Company or of any predece
or successor corporation of the Company, eithexctly or through the Company or any successor catjpm of the Company, whether
virtue of any constitution, statute or rule of laav,by the enforcement of any assessment or peaaliyherwise; it being expressly undersi
that all such liability is hereby expressly waiwattl released as a condition of, and as a consioerfat, the execution of this Indenture and
issue of the Debt Securities.



ARTICLE XIV

MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS
SECTION 14.01. Successors

All the covenants, stipulations, promises and agesgs of the Company contained in this Indentuedl &ind its successc
and assigns whether so expressed or not.

SECTION 14.02. Official Acts by Successor Entity

Any act or proceeding by any provision of this Intlee authorized or required to be done or perfdring any boar
committee or officer of the Company shall and maydone and performed with like force and effecthwy like board, committee, officer
other authorized Person of any entity that shatatime be the lawful successor of the Company.

SECTION 14.03. Surrender of Company Powers

The Company by instrument in writing executed bthatity of 2/3 (twothirds) of its Board of Directors and deliveredtha
Trustee may surrender any of the powers reservatletdCompany and thereupon such power so surrehdéal terminate both as to
Company and as to any permitted successor.

SECTION 14.04. Addresses for Notices, etc.

Any notice or demand which by any provision of tlridenture is required or permitted to be givesemwed by the Trustee
by the Securityholders on the Company may be goreserved in writing by being deposited postageaick by registered or certified mail i
post office letter box addressed (until anotherasislis filed by the Company with the Trustee fartspurpose) to the Company at:

Heartland Financial USA, Inc.
1398 Central Avenue
Dubuque, lowa 52001

Attention: John K. Schmidt

Any notice, direction, request or demand by anyusigdolder or the Company to or upon the Trusteallshe deemed
have been sufficiently given or made, for all pugs if given or made in writing at the office oEl¢ Fargo Bank, National Association at:

919 Market Street
Suite 700
Wilmington, DE 19801
Attention: Corporate Trust Division

SECTION 14.05. Governing Law
This Indenture and each Debt Security shall be @eetm be a contract made under the law of the $fdtiew York, and fc
all purposes shall be governed by and construedt@ordance with the law of said State, without rédga conflict of laws principles of se

State other than Section 5 1401 of the New YorkegarObligations Law.

SECTION 14.06. Evidence of Compliance with Caiods Precedent

Upon any application or demand by the Company & Thustee to take any action under any of the prons of thi
Indenture, the Company shall furnish to the Trusteefficers' Certificate stating that in the opimiof the signers all conditions preceder
any, provided for in this Indenture relating to fireposed action have been complied with and ani@piof Counsel stating that, in the opir
of such counsel, all such conditions precedent leeen complied with (except that no such Opinioi€otinsel is required to be furnishe:
the Trustee in connection with the authenticatiod msuance of Debt Securities issued on the datésoindenture).

Each certificate or opinion provided for in thisdemture and delivered to the Trustee with respeatompliance with
condition or covenant provided for in this Indertexcept certificates delivered pursuant to Sacdi®5) shall include (a) a statement tha
person making such certificate or opinion has axh covenant or condition; (b) a brief statemeartbahe nature and scope of the examin



or investigation upon which the statements or apisicontained in such certificate or opinion argelia (c) a statement tt
in the opinion of such person, he or she has made examination or investigation as is necessagntible him or her to express an infori
opinion as to whether or not such covenant or ¢@rdhas been complied with; and (d) a statememho aghether or not, in the opinion of si
person, such condition or covenant has been codhpdii.

SECTION 14.07. NotBusiness Days

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary contaimedein, if any Interest Payment Date, other thathenMaturity Date, ar
Redemption Date or the Special Redemption Datks, éa a day that is not a Business Day, then ateydst payable will be paid on, and s
Interest Payment Date will be moved to, the negteading Business Day, and additional interestaeitirue for each day that such payme
delayed as a result thereof. If the Maturity Datey Redemption Date or the Special Redemption faditeon a day that is not a Business [
then the principal, premium, if any, and/or inténesyable on such date will be paid on the nextguiang Business Day.

SECTION 14.08. Table of Contents, Headings, etc.

The table of contents and the titles and headirfgth® articles and sections of this Indenture haeen inserted fi
convenience of reference only, are not to be cemnsitla part hereof, and shall in no way modify estrict any of the terms or provisic
hereof.

SECTION 14.09. Execution in Counterparts

This Indenture may be executed in any number oftasparts, each of which shall be an original, dugh counterparts sh
together constitute but one and the same instrument

SECTION 14.10. Severability

In case any one or more of the provisions containekis Indenture or in the Debt Securities sfailany reason be held to
invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respeaicts invalidity, illegality or unenforceability shahot affect any other provisions of t
Indenture or of such Debt Securities, but this imdee and such Debt Securities shall be constraeflsaich invalid or illegal or unenforcea
provision had never been contained herein or therei

SECTION 14.11. Assignment
Subiject to Article XI, the Company will have thght at all times to assign any of its rights origdfions under this Indentt
to a direct or indirect wholly owned Subsidiarytbé Company, providedhowever, that, in the event of any such assigybka Compan
will remain liable for all such obligations. Subjgo the foregoing, this Indenture is binding uord inures to the benefit of the parties he

and their respective successors and assigns. Adeniure may not otherwise be assigned by theegatiereto.

SECTION 14.12. Acknowledgment of Rights

The Company acknowledges that, with respect toletyt Securities held by the Trust or the InstitoéibTrustee of the Tru:
if the Institutional Trustee of the Trust fails ¢énforce its rights under this Indenture as the drotif Debt Securities held as the assets ¢
Trust after the holders of a majority in Liquidatidémount of the Capital Securities of the Trusté@e directed in writing such Institutio
Trustee, a holder of record of such Capital Seiegritnay to the fullest extent permitted by law itast¢ legal proceedings directly against
Company to enforce such Institutional Trustee'sitsgunder this Indenture without first institutiramy legal proceedings against s
Institutional Trustee or any other Person. Notwéhging the foregoing, if an Event of Default haswrred and is continuing and such eve
attributable to the failure of the Company to pateiest (or premium, if any) or principal on thebD&ecurities on the date such interes
premium, if any) or principal is otherwise due grayable (or in the case of redemption, on the rediem date), the Company acknowlec
that a holder of record of Capital Securities @& Trust may directly institute a proceeding agaihstCompany for enforcement of paymet
such holder directly of the principal of (or premmipif any) or interest on the Debt Securities hgwém aggregate principal amount equal tc
aggregate Liquidation Amount of the Capital Sedesibf such holder on or after the respective date dpecified in the Debt Securities.

ARTICLE XV

SUBORDINATION OF DEBT SECURITIES

SECTION 15.01. Agreement to Subordinate




The Company covenants and agrees, and each hdideeli Securities issued hereunder and under applement:
indenture (the "Additional Provisions") by such Getyholder's acceptance thereof likewise covenantsagrees, that all Debt Securities ¢
be issued subject to the provisions of this Arti¥¥; and each holder of a Debt Security, whetheorupriginal issue or upon transfer
assignment thereof, accepts and agrees to be lyusuch provisions.

The payment by the Company of the payments duellobebt Securities issued hereunder and under adgitiona
Provisions shall, to the extent and in the maneeeihafter set forth, be subordinated and juniaight of payment to the prior payment in
of all Senior Indebtedness of the Company, whethgstanding at the date of this Indenture or tHeseacurred.

No provision of this Article XV shall prevent theaurrence of any Default or Event of Default hedam

SECTION 15.02. Default on Senior Indebtedness

In the event and during the continuation of anyadkifby the Company in the payment of principagrpium, interest or al
other payment due on any Senior Indebtedness dEtimepany following any applicable grace periodjrothe event that the maturity of ¢
Senior Indebtedness of the Company has been aatldbecause of a default, and such accelerat®mdtabeen rescinded or canceled
such Senior Indebtedness has not been paid irthalh, in either case, no payment shall be madééd¥ompany with respect to the paym
due on the Debt Securities.

In the event that, notwithstanding the foregoingy @ayment shall be received by the Trustee whe fuayment i
prohibited by the preceding paragraph of this $@acti5.02, such payment shall, subject to Sectio@6lBe held in trust for the benefit of,
shall be paid over or delivered to, the holderSenior Indebtedness or their respective represeasator to the trustee or trustees undel
indenture pursuant to which any of such Senior itglgness may have been issued, as their respau@rests may appear, but only to
extent that the holders of the Senior Indebtedfastheir representative or representatives oustée) notify the Trustee in writing within
days of such payment of the amounts then due aridgoan the Senior Indebtedness and only the amap#sified in such notice to |
Trustee shall be paid to the holders of Senior bhhelgness.

SECTION 15.03. Liquidation; Dissolution; Banktoy.

Upon any payment by the Company or distributionas$ets of the Company of any kind or character tivelnen cast
property or securities, to creditors upon any diggmn or winding-up or liquidation or reorganization of the Compampether voluntary «
involuntary or in bankruptcy, insolvency, receivépsor other proceedings, all amounts due upoeatiior Indebtedness of the Company :
first be paid in full, or payment thereof providid in money in accordance with its terms, befamg payment is made by the Company or
Debt Securities; and upon any such dissolution iadimg-up or liquidation or reorganization, any paymenttiy Company, or distribution
assets of the Company of any kind or character tlveinén cash, property or securities, to which 8®eurityholders or the Trustee woulc
entitled to receive from the Company, except fer pnovisions of this Article XV, shall be paid ByetCompany, or by any receiver, truste
bankruptcy, liquidating trustee, agent or othersBamaking such payment or distribution, or by$eeurityholders or by the Trustee under
Indenture if received by them or it, directly tetholders of Senior Indebtedness of the Company rgta to such holders on the basis o
respective amounts of Senior Indebtedness heldibly kolders, as calculated by the Company) or tlegiresentative or representatives, ¢
the trustee or trustees under any indenture purgoamhich any instruments evidencing such Seniglebtedness may have been issue
their respective interests may appear, to the eéxtecessary to pay such Senior Indebtedness inifiuthoney or money's worth, after giv
effect to any concurrent payment or distributiorotdor the holders of such Senior Indebtednes®réeany payment or distribution is mad:
the Securityholders.

In the event that, notwithstanding the foregoingy gayment or distribution of assets of the Compahyany kind o
character, whether in cash, property or securifieghibited by the foregoing, shall be receivedhuy Trustee before all Senior Indebtedne:
the Company is paid in full, or provision is made $uch payment in money in accordance with itsisersuch payment or distribution shal
held in trust for the benefit of and shall be paier or delivered to the holders of such Seniorebtddness or their representativi
representatives, or to the trustee or trusteesruaue indenture pursuant to which any instrumentdencing such Senior Indebtedness
have been issued, as their respective interests appgar, as calculated by the Company, for appicato the payment of all Sen
Indebtedness of the Company remaining unpaid te@ttent necessary to pay such Senior Indebtedndsl in money in accordance with
terms, after giving effect to any concurrent paytrardistribution to or for the benefit of the held of such Senior Indebtedness.

For purposes of this Article XV, the words "cashpperty or securities” shall not be deemed to ielghares of stock of t
Company as reorganized or readjusted, or secunfiche Company or any other corporation provided By a plan of reorganization
readjustment, the payment of which is subordinateléast to the extent provided in this Article Xdth respect to the Debt Securities to
payment of all Senior Indebtedness of the Comptirat,may at the time be outstanding, provigétht (a) such Senior Indebtedness is ass
by the new corporation, if any, resulting from asych reorganization or readjustment, and (b) thbtsi of the holders of such Set



Indebtedness are not, without the consent of sottebs, altered by such reorganization or readjastniThe consolidation
the Company with, or the merger of the Company,iatwther corporation or the liquidation or dissioln of the Company following tl
conveyance or transfer or other disposition opitgperty as an entirety, or substantially as aireggt to another corporation upon the terms
conditions provided for in Article XI of this Indame shall not be deemed a dissolution, windipg-liquidation or reorganization for f
purposes of this Section 15.03 if such other cafion shall, as a part of such consolidation, mergenveyance or transfer, comply with
conditions stated in Article Xl of this Indentufdothing in Section 15.02 or in this Section 15.0&lkapply to claims of, or payments to,
Trustee under or pursuant to Section 6.06 of tidemture.

SECTION 15.04. Subrogation

Subject to the payment in full of all Senior Indedness of the Company, the Securityholders shalbeogated to the rigt
of the holders of such Senior Indebtedness to vegeyments or distributions of cash, propertyemusities of the Company applicable to <
Senior Indebtedness until all payments due on #iat Securities shall be paid in full; and, for theposes of such subrogation, no paymer
distributions to the holders of such Senior Inddb&ss of any cash, property or securities to witiehSecurityholders or the Trustee wouls
entitled except for the provisions of this Artict®/, and no payment over pursuant to the provisiohthis Article XV to or for the benefit |
the holders of such Senior Indebtedness by Sebotigrs or the Trustee, shall, as between the Cowpts creditors other than holders
Senior Indebtedness of the Company, and the hotdelse Debt Securities be deemed to be a paynrattistibution by the Company to or
account of such Senior Indebtedness. It is undedstbat the provisions of this Article XV are andk antended solely for the purpose:
defining the relative rights of the holders of ebt Securities, on the one hand, and the holdessalh Senior Indebtedness, on the other h

Nothing contained in this Article XV or elsewhere this Indenture, any Additional Provisions or fretDebt Securities
intended to or shall impair, as between the Compisgreditors other than the holders of Senidebtedness of the Company, and the ho
of the Debt Securities, the obligation of the Compawhich is absolute and unconditional, to payhe holders of the Debt Securities
payments on the Debt Securities as and when the shall become due and payable in accordance hgihterms, or is intended to or sl
affect the relative rights of the holders of thebD8ecurities and creditors of the Company, othanthe holders of Senior Indebtedness ¢
Company, nor shall anything herein or therein pnéthe Trustee or the holder of any Debt Securitynf exercising all remedies otherw
permitted by applicable law upon default under thidenture, subject to the rights, if any, undes trticle XV of the holders of such Sen
Indebtedness in respect of cash, property or dezudf the Company received upon the exercisepfach remedy.

Upon any payment or distribution of assets of ttmm@any referred to in this Article XV, the Trustemybject to th
provisions of Article VI of this Indenture, and tiSecurityholders shall be entitled to conclusivedly upon any order or decree made by
court of competent jurisdiction in which such dission, windingup, liquidation or reorganization proceedings agading, or a certificate
the receiver, trustee in bankruptcy, liquidatiamstee, agent or other Person making such paymetistoibution, delivered to the Trustee o
the Securityholders, for the purposes of ascertgitiie Persons entitled to participate in suctritigion, the holders of Senior Indebtedr
and other indebtedness of the Company, the ambargdf or payable thereon, the amount or amouritsquadistributed thereon and all ot
facts pertinent thereto or to this Article XV.

SECTION 15.05. Trustee to Effectuate Subordamati

Each Securityholder by such Securityholder's aeoest thereof authorizes and directs the Trustesuoh Securityholdel
behalf to take such action as may be necessarpmopriate to effectuate the subordination providedhis Article XV and appoints tl
Trustee such Securityholder's attorney-in-factafoy and all such purposes.

SECTION 15.06. Notice by the Company

The Company shall give prompt written notice toesponsible Officer of the Trustee at the Principtice of the Trustee
any fact known to the Company that would prohibé& making of any payment of moneys to or by theste®i in respect of the Debt Secur
pursuant to the provisions of this Article XV. Nadtlastanding the provisions of this Article Xdf any other provision of this Indenture or
Additional Provisions, the Trustee shall not berged with knowledge of the existence of any fab&@t twould prohibit the making of a
payment of moneys to or by the Trustee in respédh@ Debt Securities pursuant to the provisionghi$ Article XV, unless and until
Responsible Officer of the Trustee at the Princ@tiice of the Trustee shall have received writbetice thereof from the Company or a ho
or holders of Senior Indebtedness or from any éeisherefor; and before the receipt of any suclteminotice, the Trustee, subject to
provisions of Article VI of this Indenture, shaletentitled in all respects to assume that no sacts fexist; provided however, that if the
Trustee shall not have received the notice provideih this Section 15.06 at least two BusinesgDarior to the date upon which by the te
hereof any money may become payable for any purfinskiding, without limitation, the payment of tipgincipal of (or premium, if any)
interest on any Debt Security), then, anything imecentained to the contrary notwithstanding, tmestee shall have full power and authorit
receive such money and to apply the same to thgopas for which they were received, and shall roaffiected by any notice to the conti
that may be received by it within two Business Dgpsier to such date.




The Trustee, subject to the provisions of Articlleo¥ this Indenture, shall be entitled to concl@jvrely on the delivery to
of a written notice by a Person representing himeelherself to be a holder of Senior Indebtednesshe Company (or a trustee
representative on behalf of such holder) to esthltiat such notice has been given by a holdeudf Senior Indebtedness or a truste
representative on behalf of any such holder ordrsldin the event that the Trustee determines addaith that further evidence is requi
with respect to the right of any Person as a hotdesuch Senior Indebtedness to participate in @ayment or distribution pursuant to 1
Article XV, the Trustee may request such Persdiuoish evidence to the reasonable satisfactich®fTrustee as to the amount of such S
Indebtedness held by such Person, the extent tchwghich Person is entitled to participate in sueynent or distribution and any other f:
pertinent to the rights of such Person under thiscke XV, and, if such evidence is not furnishétte Trustee may defer any payment to :
Person pending judicial determination as to thbtraf such Person to receive such payment.

SECTION 15.07. Rights of the Trustee, HolderSehior Indebtedness

The Trustee in its individual capacity shall beitted to all the rights set forth in this Article\Kin respect of any Seni
Indebtedness at any time held by it, to the santené»as any other holder of Senior Indebtednesd, renthing in this Indenture or a
Additional Provisions shall deprive the Trusteean§ of its rights as such holder.

With respect to the holders of Senior Indebtedinésbe Company, the Trustee undertakes to perfarto observe only su
of its covenants and obligations as are specificadlt forth in this Article XV, and no implied cavants or obligations with respect to
holders of such Senior Indebtedness shall be readhis Indenture or any Additional Provisions iagathe Trustee. The Trustee shall not
or be deemed to owe any fiduciary duty to the haladé such Senior Indebtedness and, subject tprihdsions of Article VI of this Indentur
the Trustee shall not be liable to any holder ahs8enior Indebtedness if it shall pay over orvdelio Securityholders, the Company or
other Person money or assets to which any holdsunaf Senior Indebtedness shall be entitled byeviof this Article XV or otherwise.

Nothing in this Article XV shall apply to claims,afr payments to, the Trustee under or pursua8ettion 6.06.

SECTION 15.08. Subordination May Not Be Impaired

No right of any present or future holder of any iBerindebtedness of the Company to enforce subatidin as here
provided shall at any time in any way be prejudioedmpaired by any act or failure to act on thet pa the Company, or by any act or fail
to act, in good faith, by any such holder, or by anncompliance by the Company, with the termsyigions and covenants of this Indent
regardless of any knowledge thereof that any sotiel may have or otherwise be charged with.

Without in any way limiting the generality of therégoing paragraph, the holders of Senior Indeletssiof the Compa
may, at any time and from time to time, without tomsent of or notice to the Trustee or the Sedwltlers, without incurring responsibility
the Securityholders and without impairing or relegghe subordination provided in this Article XV the obligations hereunder of the holc
of the Debt Securities to the holders of such Sdmidebtedness, do any one or more of the follow{ayy change the manner, place or tern
payment or extend the time of payment of, or repewlter, such Senior Indebtedness, or otherwisendnor supplement in any manner ¢
Senior Indebtedness or any instrument evidenciegsime or any agreement under which such Seniebiledness is outstanding; (b) ¢
exchange, release or otherwise deal with any ptppe#edged, mortgaged or otherwise securing suatioBéndebtedness; (c) release
Person liable in any manner for the collection wéhs Senior Indebtedness; and (d) exercise or refram exercising any rights against
Company, and any other Person.

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, in its ceipaas Trustee, hereby accepts the trusts inltidenture declared a
provided, upon the terms and conditions herein alse¢ forth.
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caubésl Indenture to be duly executed by their redgpecofficers
thereunto duly authorized, as of the day and yiestrdbove written.

Heartland Financial USA, Inc.

By:/s/ John K. Schmidt
Name:John K. Schmidt
Title:EVP, CFO & COO

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as Trustee

By: /s/ Leighton Kor
Name:Leighton Kor
Title: Vice President

(8) Heartland Financial USA, Inc. --
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EXHIBIT A

FORM OF JUNIOR SUBORDINATED DEBT SECURITY
DUE 2036

[ FORM OF FACE OF SECURITY

THIS SECURITY HAS NOT BEEN REGISTERED UNDER THE SBRITIES ACT OF 1933, AS AMENDED (TH
"SECURITIES ACT"), OR ANY STATE SECURITIES LAWS ORNY OTHER APPLICABLE SECURITIES LAWS. NEITHER TH]
SECURITY NOR ANY INTEREST OR PARTICIPATION HEREIN AY BE REOFFERED, SOLD, ASSIGNED, TRANSFERRE
PLEDGED, ENCUMBERED OR OTHERWISE DISPOSED OF IN THMBSENCE OF SUCH REGISTRATION OR UNLESS SU
TRANSACTION IS EXEMPT FROM, OR NOT SUBJECT TO, THEEGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT. E
HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOF REES TO OFFER, SELL OR OTHERWISE TRANSFER SU
SECURITY ONLY (A) TO THE COMPANY, (B) PURSUANT TO BLE 144A UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT ("RULE 144A"), T@
PERSON THE HOLDER REASONABLY BELIEVES IS A "QUALIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER" AS DEFINED IN RULE 144A THA
PURCHASES FOR ITS OWN ACCOUNT OR FOR THE ACCOUNT @FRQUALIFIED INSTITUTIONAL BUYER TO WHOM NOTICE
IS GIVEN THAT THE TRANSFER IS BEING MADE IN RELIANE ON RULE 144A, (C) PURSUANT TO AN EXEMPTION FROMHE
REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS OF THE SECURITIES ACT TAN "ACCREDITED INVESTOR" WITHIN THE MEANING Of
SUBPARAGRAPH (a) (1), (2), (3) OR (7) OF RULE 50NDER THE SECURITIES ACT THAT IS ACQUIRING THE SECURY FOR
ITS OWN ACCOUNT, OR FOR THE ACCOUNT OF SUCH AN "AREDITED INVESTOR," FOR INVESTMENT PURPOSES Al
NOT WITH A VIEW TO, OR FOR OFFER OR SALE IN CONNEGIN WITH, ANY DISTRIBUTION IN VIOLATION OF THE
SECURITIES ACT, OR (D) PURSUANT TO ANOTHER AVAILABE EXEMPTION FROM THE REGISTRATION REQUIREMENTS (
THE SECURITIES ACT, SUBJECT TO THE COMPANY'S RIGHRIOR TO ANY SUCH OFFER, SALE OR TRANSFER PURSUA
TO CLAUSES (C) OR (D) TO REQUIRE THE DELIVERY OF AMDPINION OF COUNSEL, CERTIFICATION AND/OR OTHE
INFORMATION SATISFACTORY TO IT IN ACCORDANCE WITH HE INDENTURE, A COPY OF WHICH MAY BE OBTAINEI
FROM THE COMPANY. THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY BY B ACCEPTANCE HEREOF AGREES THAT IT WILL COMPL
WITH THE FOREGOING RESTRICTIONS.

THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOAGREES, REPRESENTS AND WARRAN
THAT IT WILL NOT ENGAGE IN HEDGING TRANSACTIONS INVOLVING THIS SECURITY UNLESS SUCH TRANSACTIONS AF
IN COMPLIANCE WITH THE SECURITIES ACT.

THE HOLDER OF THIS SECURITY BY ITS ACCEPTANCE HEREOALSO AGREES, REPRESENTS Al
WARRANTS THAT IT IS NOT AN EMPLOYEE BENEFIT, INDIVDUAL RETIREMENT ACCOUNT OR OTHER PLAN O
ARRANGEMENT SUBJECT TO TITLE | OF THE EMPLOYEE REREMENT INCOME SECURITY ACT OF 1974, AS AMENDE
("ERISA™), OR SECTION 4975 OF THE INTERNAL REVENUEODE OF 1986, AS AMENDED (THE "CODE"), (EACH A "PL\), OR
AN ENTITY WHOSE UNDERLYING ASSETS INCLUDE "PLAN ASKTS" BY REASON OF ANY PLAN'S INVESTMENT IN TH
ENTITY AND NO PERSON INVESTING "PLAN ASSETS" OF ANYLAN MAY ACQUIRE OR HOLD THIS SECURITY OR AN’
INTEREST THEREIN, UNLESS SUCH PURCHASER OR HOLDERELIGIBLE FOR THE EXEMPTIVE RELIEF AVAILABLE UNDEF
U.S. DEPARTMENT OF LABOR PROHIBITED TRANSACTION CL3S EXEMPTION 96-23,95-60,91-38,90-1 OR B84-OR ANOTHEF
APPLICABLE EXEMPTION OR ITS PURCHASE AND HOLDING ORFHIS SECURITY IS NOT PROHIBITED BY SECTION 406 ¢
ERISA OR SECTION 4975 OF THE CODE WITH RESPECT TOCH PURCHASE OR HOLDING. ANY PURCHASER OR HOLDER
THIS SECURITY OR ANY INTEREST THEREIN WILL BE DEEME TO HAVE REPRESENTED BY ITS PURCHASE AND HOLDIM
THEREOF THAT EITHER (i) IT IS NOT AN EMPLOYEE BENHF PLAN WITHIN THE MEANING OF SECTION 3(3) OF ERISAOR A
PLAN TO WHICH SECTION 4975 OF THE CODE IS APPLICABI.A TRUSTEE OR OTHER PERSON ACTING ON BEHALF OF
EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN OR PLAN, OR ANY OTHER PERSOBR ENTITY USING THE ASSETS OF ANY EMPLOYEE BENEF
PLAN OR PLAN TO FINANCE SUCH PURCHASE, OR (i) SUCHPURCHASE WILL NOT RESULT IN A PROHIBITE
TRANSACTION UNDER SECTION 406 OF ERISA OR SECTION#4 OF THE CODE FOR WHICH THERE IS NO APPLICAB
STATUTORY OR ADMINISTRATIVE EXEMPTION.

IN CONNECTION WITH ANY TRANSFER, THE HOLDER OF THISSECURITY WILL DELIVER TO THE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER AGENT SUCH CERTIFICATES ANDTHER INFORMATION AS MAY BE REQUIRED BY THI
INDENTURE TO CONFIRM THAT THE TRANSFER COMPLIES WH THE FOREGOING RESTRICTIONS.



THIS SECURITY WILL BE ISSUED AND MAY BE TRANSFERREDDNLY IN BLOCKS HAVING A PRINCIPAL
AMOUNT OF NOT LESS THAN $100,000 AND MULTIPLES OFL®00 IN EXCESS THEREOF. ANY ATTEMPTED TRANSFER
THIS SECURITY IN A BLOCK HAVING A PRINCIPAL AMOUNTOF LESS THAN $100,000 SHALL BE DEEMED TO BE VOID A»
OF NO LEGAL EFFECT WHATSOEVER. ANY SUCH PURPORTEDRANSFEREE SHALL BE DEEMED NOT TO BE THE HOLDE
OF THIS SECURITY FOR ANY PURPOSE, INCLUDING, BUT NOLIMITED TO, THE RECEIPT OF DISTRIBUTIONS ON TH
SECURITY, AND SUCH PURPORTED TRANSFEREE SHALL BE BMED TO HAVE NO INTEREST WHATSOEVER IN THI
SECURITY.

THIS OBLIGATION IS NOT A DEPOSIT AND IS NOT INSUREBY THE UNITED STATES OR ANY AGENCY Ol
FUND OF THE UNITED STATES, INCLUDING THE FEDERAL DEOSIT INSURANCE CORPORATION (THE "FDIC"). TH
OBLIGATION IS SUBORDINATED TO THE CLAIMS OF DEPOSIORS AND THE CLAIMS OF GENERAL AND SECURE
CREDITORS OF THE COMPANY, IS INELIGIBLE AS COLLATERL FOR A LOAN BY THE COMPANY OR ANY OF IT¢
SUBSIDIARIES AND IS NOT SECURED.

AUV4173590.1
358494-1




Form of Junior Subordinated Debt Security due 2036
of
Heartland Financial USA, Inc.

Heartland Financial USA, Inc., a bank holding compancorporated in Delaware (the "Company"), folueareceive
promises to pay to Wells Fargo Bank, National Agstian, not in its individual capacity but solelg @nstitutional Trustee for Heartla
Statutory Trust V, a Delaware statutory trust (tHelder"), or registered assigns, the principal soifTwenty Million Six Hundred Ninetet
Thousand Dollars on April 7, 2036 and to pay intdei@n said principal sum from January 31, 2006r@n the most recent interest paymn
date (each such date, an "Interest Payment Datethich interest has been paid or duly provided doiarterly (subject to deferral as set f
herein) in arrears on January 7, April 7, July d &ctober 7 of each year commencing April 7, 20i6a variable per annum rate equz
LIBOR (as defined in the Indenture) plus 1.33% (timterest Rate™) (provided, however that the leg¢rRate for any Interest Payment Pe
may not exceed the highest rate permitted by Nevk Yaw, as the same may be modified by United Stier of general applicability) ur
the principal hereof shall have become due andligayand on any overdue principal and (without thapion and to the extent that paymer
such interest is enforceable under applicable mwany overdue installment of interest at an anratgl equal to the Interest Rate in effec
each such Extension Period compounded quarterky.aftount of interest payable on any Interest Paybate shall be computed on the b
of a 360day year and the actual number of days elapsedeirrelevant interest period. Notwithstanding amghio the contrary contain
herein, if any Interest Payment Date, other thathenMaturity Date, any Redemption Date or the &pddedemption Date, falls on a day !
is not a Business Day, then any interest payalleébwipaid on, and such Interest Payment Dateheilmoved to, the next succeeding Busi
Day, and additional interest will accrue for eaely that such payment is delayed as a result thelfabfe Maturity Date, any Redemption D
or the Special Redemption Date falls on a day ithabt a Business Day, then the principal, premiifirany, and/or interest payable on s
date will be paid on the immediately preceding Bass Day. The interest installment so payable,pamdtually paid or duly provided for,
any Interest Payment Date will, as provided in thdenture, be paid to the Person in whose nameDhist Security (or one or mc
Predecessor Securities, as defined in said Indenisiregistered at the close of business on thelaerecord date for such interest installr
except that interest and any Deferred Interest layan the Maturity Date shall be paid to the Persbwhom principal is paid. Any su
interest installment not punctually paid or dulpyided for shall forthwith cease to be payableht® tegistered holders on such regular re
date and may be paid to the Person in whose naisi®ébt Security (or one or more Predecessor Debtiigies) is registered at the clos:
business on a special record date to be fixed byTtlustee for the payment of such defaulted interestice whereof shall be given to
registered holders of the Debt Securities notieas 10 days prior to such special record dategsathore fully provided in the Indenture.
principal of and interest on this Debt Securitylsba payable at the office or agency of the Tregter other Paying Agent appointed by
Company) maintained for that purpose in any coirworency of the United States of America thathat time of payment is legal tender
payment of public and private debts; providdtbwever, that payment of interest may be made at the ogifadhe Company by check mai
to the registered holder at such address as ghdlaa in the Debt Security Register or by wire ¢fanof immediately available funds to
account appropriately designated by the holder diefdotwithstanding the foregoing, so long as ttadbar of this Debt Security is t
Institutional Trustee, the payment of the princip&land premium, if any, and interest on this D8bturity shall be made in immedial
available funds when due at such place and to aocbunt as may be designated by the Institutionast€e. All payments in respect of -
Debt Security shall be payable in any coin or quryeof the United States of America that at theetiof payment is legal tender for paymer
public and private debts.

Upon submission of Notice (as defined in the Indesjtand so long as no Event of Default has ocdwarel is continuing, ti
Company shall have the right, from time to time anithout causing an Event of Default, to defer payts of interest on the Debt Securitie:
extending the interest distribution period on thebDSecurities at any time and from time to timerduthe term of the Debt Securities, for
to 20 consecutive quarterly periods (each suchneei interest distribution period, an "Extensiomid¥), during which Extension Period
interest shall be due and payable (except any gt Interest that may be due and payable). Duang Extension Period, interest \
continue to accrue on the Debt Securities, anddnteon such accrued interest (such accrued intengsinterest thereon referred to herei
"Deferred Interest") will accrue at an annual regeial to the Interest Rate applicable during sudkrsion Period, compounded quarterly f
the date such Deferred Interest would have beeabpaywere it not for the Extension Period, to tieelet permitted by law. No Extens
Period may end on a date other than an Interesh®atyDate. At the end of any such Extension PetiedCompany shall pay all Defer
Interest then accrued and unpaid on the Debt Smsjrprovided, however, that no Extension Period may extend beyond theuig Date
Redemption Date or Special Redemption Date, asdie may be, and providedurther, however, during any such Extension Period
Company may not (i) declare or pay any dividenddisiributions on, or redeem, purchase, acquireake a liquidation payment with resg
to, any of the Company's capital stock or (ii) makg payment of principal of or premium, if any,ioterest on or repay, repurchase or rec
any debt securities of the Company that rpal{ passu in all respects with or junior in interest to theli? Securities or (iii) make any paym
under any guarantees of the Company that ranK nesppectgari passu with or junior in respect to the Capital Securiti@garantee (other th
(a) repurchases, redemptions or other acquisitidrshares of capital stock of the Company (A) imroection with any employment contr:
benefit plan or other similar arrangement with ar the benefit of one or more employees, officdigctors or consultants, (B) in connec
with a dividend reinvestment or stockholder stockchase plan or (C) in connection with the issuamiceapital stock of the Company




securities convertible into or exercisable for saahital stock), as consideration in an acquisitransaction entered into pr
to the applicable Extension Period, (b) as a resuliny exchange, reclassification, combinatiorcenversion of any class or series of
Company's capital stock (or any capital stock stibsidiary of the Company) for any class or sesiethe Company's capital stock or of .
class or series of the Company's indebtednessnfockass or series of the Company's capital st@@kthe purchase of fractional interest
shares of the Company's capital stock pursuarite@onversion or exchange provisions of such dagtitek or the security being convertet
exchanged, (d) any declaration of a dividend innemtion with any stockholder's rights plan, or bs&iance of rights, stock or other prop
under any stockholder's rights plan, or the redemgir repurchase of rights pursuant thereto, pafg dividend in the form of stock, warrai
options or other rights where the dividend stockher stock issuable upon exercise of such warraptgns or other rights is the same stoc
that on which the dividend is being paid or rapks passu with or junior to such stock). Prior to the terntioa of any Extension Period, 1
Company may further extend such period, providiédht such period together with all such previand further consecutive extensions the
shall not exceed 20 consecutive quarterly periodextend beyond the Maturity Date. Upon the teation of any Extension Period and u
the payment of all Deferred Interest, the Compamay commence a new Extension Period, subject téotlegoing requirements. No interes
Deferred Interest shall be due and payable dunmgdension Period, except at the end thereof Daiérred Interest shall accrue upon ¢
installment of interest that would otherwise hawerb due and payable during such Extension Peri¢itl such installment is paid. T
Company must give the Trustee notice of its electm begin or extend an Extension Period at leiast Business Days prior to the n
succeeding Interest Payment Date on which intevasthe Debt Securities would have been payableptxXoe the election to begin st
Extension Period.

The indebtedness evidenced by this Debt Security ithe extent provided in the Indenture, subattirand junior in right «
payment to the prior payment in full of all Senlodebtedness, and this Debt Security is issuedestil the provisions of the Indenture v
respect thereto. Each holder of this Debt Secunigyaccepting the same, (a) agrees to and shalbbed by such provisions, (b) authorizes
directs the Trustee on such holder's behalf to saloh action as may be necessary or appropriatekimowledge or effectuate the subordine
so provided and (c) appoints the Trustee such hel@d¢torney-infact for any and all such purposes. Each holdeedfetby such holde
acceptance hereof, hereby waives all notice ofatteeptance of the subordination provisions conthimerein and in the Indenture by e
holder of Senior Indebtedness, whether now outstgnat hereafter incurred, and waives reliance dghesuch holder upon said provisions.

The Company waives diligence, presentment, demangdyment, notice of nonpayment, notice of protasd all othe
demands and notices.

This Debt Security shall not be entitled to any dfé¢runder the Indenture hereinafter referred td ahall not be valid
become obligatory for any purpose until the cexdife of authentication hereon shall have been dipger on behalf of the Trustee.

The provisions of this Debt Security are continwedthe reverse side hereof and such continued giomé shall for a
purposes have the same effect as though fullyostt &t this place.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Company has duly executéxidertificate.
Heartland Financial USA, Inc.
By:/s/ John K. Schmidt
Name:John K. Schmidt
Title:EVP, CFO & COO

Dated: March 10, 2006

CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION

This is one of the Debt Securities referred tchim within-mentioned Indenture.

Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, not iniitdividual capacity but solely as the
Trustee

By: /s/ Leighton Kor



Authorized Officer

Dated: March 10, 2006

[FORM OF REVERSE OF SECURITY]

This Debt Security is one of a duly authorizedesenf Debt Securities of the Company, all issuetbdre issued pursuant
an Indenture (the "Indenture”), dated as of Jan@&r2006, duly executed and delivered betweerCtirapany and Wells Fargo Bank, Natic
Association, as Trustee (the "Trustee"), to whiatieinture and all indentures supplemental therdévenece is hereby made for a descriptic
the rights, limitations of rights, obligations, és and immunities thereunder of the Trustee, th@iany and the holders of the Debt Secu
(referred to herein as the "Debt Securities") ofclhhthis Debt Security is a part. The summary & tbrms of this Debt Security contail
herein does not purport to be complete and is figdlby reference to the Indenture.

Upon the occurrence and continuation of a Tax Evamtinvestment Company Event or a Capital Treatrisent (each
"Special Event"), this Debt Security may become dné payable, in whole or in part, at any time hmitd0 days following the occurrence
such Tax Event, Investment Company Event or Capitehtment Event (the "Special Redemption Dates)th& case may be, at the Spe
Redemption Price. In the event that the SpeciakRgdion Date falls on a day prior to the LIBOR Detation Date for any Interest Paym
Period, then the Company shall be required to pa$ecurityholders, on the Business Day followinghstIBOR Determination Date, a
additional amount of interest that would have bpagable on the Special Redemption Date had the mirafuinterest determined on sl
LIBOR Determination Date been known on the firsy @& such Interest Payment Period. The Company alsd have the right to redeem -
Debt Security at the option of the Company, in whot in part, on any January 7, April 7, July 7Qutober 7 on or after April 7, 2011
"Redemption Date"), at the Redemption Price.

Any redemption pursuant to the preceding paragmiihbe made, subject to the receipt by the Compahprior approve
from any regulatory authority with jurisdiction avihe Company if such approval is then requiredeuragplicable capital guidelines or polic
of such regulatory authority, upon not less thard&@s' nor more than 60 days' notice. If the DedmiuBities are only partially redeemed by
Company, the Debt Securities will be redeemed ataar by lot or by any other method utilized by theiStee.

"Redemption Price" means 100% of the principal amiaf the Debt Securities being redeemed plus accand unpa
interest on such Debt Securities to the Redemiiate or, in the case of a redemption due to theroence of a Special Event, to the Spe
Redemption Date if such Special Redemption Dabtaier after April 7, 2011.

"Special Redemption Price" means (1) if the SpeRiedlemption Date is before April 7, 2011, One HeddFive Perce
(105%) of the principal amount to be redeemed physaccrued and unpaid interest thereon to theadatach redemption and (2) if the Spe
Redemption Date is on or after April 7, 2011, tresiBmption Price for such Special Redemption Date.

In the event of redemption of this Debt Securitypart only, a new Debt Security or Debt Securif@sthe unredeem:
portion hereof will be issued in the name of th&deohereof upon the cancellation hereof.

Upon the occurrence of an Acceleration Event, tiecpal of all of the Debt Securities may be deethdue and payable, ¢
upon such acceleration shall become due and payatitee manner, with the effect and subject todtweditions provided in the Indenture.

The Indenture contains provisions permitting thenpany and the Trustee, with the consent of thedrsldf not less thar
majority in aggregate principal amount of the D8bturities at the time outstanding affected therabyspecified in the Indenture, to exe
supplemental indentures for the purpose of addmgmovisions to or changing in any manner or eliating any of the provisions of 1
Indenture or of any supplemental indenture or oflifying in any manner the rights of the holdergted Debt Securities; providechowever,
that no such supplemental indenture shall, amohgrdhings, without the consent of the holdersafheDebt Security then outstanding
affected thereby (i) change the Maturity Date of Brebt Security, or reduce the principal amountegb&or any premium thereon, or reduce
rate or manner of calculation of the rate or extdratime of payment of interest thereon, or red{otker than as a result of the maturit
earlier redemption of any such Debt Security inoagance with the terms of the Indenture and sudbt Becurity) or increase the aggre:
principal amount of Debt Securities then outstagdor change any of the redemption provisions, akerthe principal thereof or any intel
or premium thereon payable in any coin or curreather than United States Dollars, or impair or etffdhe right of any holder of De
Securities to institute suit for the payment théreo (ii) reduce the aforesaid percentage of Ddxturities, the holders of which are require
consent to any such supplemental indenture. Thenllode also contains provisions permitting the addf a majority in aggregate princi
amount of the Debt Securities at the time outstadon behalf of all of the holders of the Debt Béies, to waive any past default in
performance of any of the covenants contained énliitlenture, or established pursuant to the Indenand its consequences, except
default in payments due in respect of any of thétC®ecurities; (b) in respect of covenants or miovis of the Indenture which cannot
modified or amended without the consent of the &olif each Debt Security affected, or (c) in respéthe covenants of the Company rela




to its ownership of Common Securities of the Tridsty such consent or waiver by the registered hobdi¢his Debt Securi
(unless revoked as provided in the Indenture) dfekkonclusive and binding upon such holder andhwgbfuture holders and owners of 1
Debt Security and of any Debt Security issued inhexige herefor or in place hereof (whether by tegien of transfer or otherwis
irrespective of whether or not any notation of sachsent or waiver is made upon this Debt Security.

No reference herein to the Indenture and no prowisif this Debt Security or of the Indenture stadter or impair th
obligation of the Company, which is absolute andamnditional, to pay all payments due on this Dedt8ity at the time and place and at
rate and in the money herein prescribed.

As provided in the Indenture and subject to cetiaiitations herein and therein set forth, this D8bcurity is transferable
the registered holder hereof on the Debt Securitgifter of the Company, upon surrender of this Bsaturity for registration of transfer at
office or agency of the Trustee in Wilmington, Detae accompanied by a written instrument or inseuts of transfer in form satisfactory
the Company or the Trustee duly executed by thistexgd holder hereof or such holder's attorney duthorized in writing, and thereupon
or more new Debt Securities of authorized denorionatand for the same aggregate principal amouhbeissued to the designated transf
or transferees. No service charge will be madeaiffiyrsuch registration of transfer, but the Compaay require payment of a sum sufficier
cover any tax or other governmental charge payialielation thereto.

Prior to due presentment for registration of transf this Debt Security, the Company, the Trusaes, Authenticating Ager
any Paying Agent, any transfer agent and the Debti®y Registrar may deem and treat the registadder hereof as the absolute ov
hereof (whether or not this Debt Security shalloberdue and notwithstanding any notice of ownershigvriting hereon) for the purpose
receiving payment of the principal of and premiiihany, and interest on this Debt Security anddibother purposes, and neither the Com;
nor the Trustee nor any Authenticating Agent nor Baying Agent nor any transfer agent nor any [Bsaturity Registrar shall be affectec
any notice to the contrary.

No recourse shall be had for the payment of thecjpal of or the interest on this Debt Security,far any claim base
hereon, or otherwise in respect hereof, or basear am respect of the Indenture, against any ine@tor, stockholder, officer or director, p.
present or future, as such, of the Company or gfpgadecessor or successor corporation, whetheirtue of any constitution, statute or r
of law, or by the enforcement of any assessmemeoalty or otherwise, all such liability being, the acceptance hereof and as part @
consideration for the issuance hereof, expresslyetlaand released.

The Debt Securities are issuable only in registestificated form without coupons. As providedfie Indenture and subji
to certain limitations herein and therein set fpBlebt Securities are exchangeable for a like aggeeprincipal amount of Debt Securities
different authorized denomination, as requestethbyholder surrendering the same.

All terms used in this Debt Security that are dedinn the Indenture shall have the meanings assigmehem in th
Indenture.

THE LAW OF THE STATE OF NEW YORK SHALL GOVERN THENDENTURE AND THE DEBT SECURITIE
WITHOUT REGARD TO CONFLICT OF LAWS PRINCIPLES THERR-.



Heartland Financial USA, Inc.
2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Performance Restricted Stock Agreement

THIS PERFORMANCE RESTRICTED STOCK AGREEMENT (this “ Agreement”), entered into as of the Grant Date
defined inSection 1(b)), by and between the Participant and Heartlandriial USA, Inc., a Delaware corporation (thedmpany ”);

WITNESSETH THAT:
WHEREAS, the Company maintains the Heartland Financial UB&, 2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan (thePtan "), which is
incorporated into and forms a part of this Agreethand the Participant has been selected by themitbee administering the Plan (the “

Committee”) to receive a Restricted Stock Award under thenPI

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS AGREED, by and between the Company and the Participarfi/lasvs:

Section 1. Terms of Award . The following terms used in this Agreement shalldhthe meanings set forth in ttf8gction 1.
(@) The “Participant " is
(b) The “Grant Date " is
(c) The number of “Covered Shares” awarded utiderAgreementis ____ shares. ‘Covered Shares’ are shares of

Stock granted under this Agreement and are sutgjebe terms and conditions of this Agreement &edRlan.

Except where the context clearly implies to thetmmy, any capitalized term in this Agreement sinale the meaning ascribed to that 1
underSection 9of this Agreement or the Plan.

Section 2. Award . The Participant is hereby granted the number ofe@ay Shares set forth 8ection 1(c), subject to the
terms and conditions of this Agreement and the .Plan

Section 3. Dividends and Voting Rights.

(@) No dividends shall be payable to or fortieaefit of the Participant for Covered Shares wépect to record dates
occurring prior to the Vesting Date of such shares.

(b) The Participant shall be entitled to vote @overed Shares during the Restricted Periodetsdime extent as would
have been applicable to the Participant if thei€lpent was then vested in the shamsyided, however, that the Participant shall not be
entitled to vote the shares with respect to redaites for such voting rights arising prior to theu@ Date, or with respect to record dates
occurring on or after the date, if any, on whicé Barticipant has forfeited those Covered Shares.

Section 4. Retention of Covered Shares Each share of Stock issued with respect to the dv8hares granted under this
Agreement shall be registered in the name of tliédEant and shall be retained by the Companyrdutihe applicable Restricted Period (as
defined inSection 5(a)).

Section 5. Vesting and Forfeiture of Shares

(@) Covered Shares may not be sold, assigreetsfarred, pledged or otherwise encumberdgietrictions”) until the
expiration of the Restricted Period or, if earlientil the Participant is vested in the shares.epkas otherwise provided in ti8ection 5, the
Participant shall forfeit the unvested Covered 8bdwhether or not earned) as of a Date of Terioimgas defined irSection 9(i)) that occurs
during the Restricted Period. All Covered Sharesdl i forfeited as of December 31, 2009, to thermbxnot earned as of such date. A
Participant shall earn and later vest in the Cav&ieares and then own the shares free and cledirRéstrictions pursuant to this Section 5.
With respect to all Covered Shares, theeSstricted Period” shall begin on the Grant Date and shall end en‘tiesting Date” applicable to
such shares (subject to the “Slip-Back” exceptimvged in paragraph (ghelow).

(b) Portions of the Covered Shares shall belddigo be earned upon on the attainment of Pedoca Measures
(provided inExhibit A ) based on the following allocations:



PERCENTAGE OF COVERED SHARES -

FOR COMPANY EMPLOYEES

COVERED SHARES EARNINGS GROWTH ASSET GROWTH
100% BASED ON COMPANY 70% 30%
PERFORMANCE
(* Company Earnings Shares) (* Company Asset Share$)

PERCENTAGE OF COVERED SHARES -

FOR BANK EMPLOYEES

COVERED SHARES EARNINGS GROWTH ASSET GROWTH
50 % BASED ON COMPANY 35% 15%
PERFORMANCE
(* Company Earnings Shares) (* Company Asset Shares$)
50 % BASED ON BANK PERFORMANC 35% 15%
(“ Bank Earnings Shares’) (* Bank Asset Shares)
(c) As of each December 31 during the Restrietedod (a ‘Measurement Date”), the Company will determine the

actual growth in the earnings and the assets AtthetCompany and Bank level and calculate the mummbCovered Shares earned as of such
date.

(d) The “Earned Shares’ for any Measurement Date shall be the sum ofdHewing products:
0] Company Earnings Shares times the Companyifigs Percentage;
(i) Company Asset Shares times the Company tARsentage;
(i) Bank Earnings Shares times the Bank EaysiRercentage; plus

(iv) Bank Asset Shares times the Bank Assetdteage.



(e) Subject to paragrap)(iii) , as of each Measurement Date, the excess of timed&hares for such Measurement
Date over the number of Earned Shares as of th&lkeasurement Date areNewly Earned Shares”

® Only Earned Shares will be eligible for viagt Newly Earned Shares will vest, and beconvested Shares upon
the two-year anniversary of the Measurement Datelinh they became Newly Earned Shares (such arsaime the “Vesting Date”) if the
Participant has remained continually employed throsuch two-year periodorovided, however, if as of the scheduled Vesting Date there is a
“Slip-Back” (as defined irBection 9(0)), then such Earned Shares shall not vest on sateh i there is a Slip-Back, the applicable Vegtin
Date for such Earned Shares shall be delayed adl iflever, occur on the first Measurement Datibofving the Slip-Back, on which the
Performance Measures applicable to such sharesetret which time the Earned Shares shall becoested Shares and the Participant shall
own the shares free of all Restrictions otherwispdsed by this Agreementrovided, however , that no such Vesting Date may occur, if at all,
later than December 31, 2011.

(9) Not withstanding the foregoing provisionstlois Section 5:

0] Upon a Date of Termination, which occurs do¢he Participant’s death, Disability (as define&ection 9
(1) ) or due to the termination of the Participant’spbmgment for reasons other than Cause (as defm8édtion 9(h)), prior to the end of the
Restricted Period, the Participant shall becoméedeis the Earned Shares, become owner of alldf Slovered Shares free of all Restrictions
otherwise imposed by this Agreement and all uneh@mvered Shares shall be immediately forfeitedfasich Date of Termination.

(i) Upon a Date of Termination, which occursedo the Participant’s Retirement (as define@éction 9
(m) ), prior to the end of the Restricted Period anidrahe Participant has at least 10 years of serad has attained the age of 55; (A) alll
unearned Covered Shares shall continue to be $ubjéte earning provisions of th&ection 5as if Participant’s employment continued
throughout the original Restriction Period and ssichres will become Vested Shares if, and whew,lilkeome Earned Shares, and (B) alll
Earned Shares at the time of Retirement shall inietelgt become Vested Shargsovided, however, that all unearned Covered Shares shall be
immediately forfeited if the Participant violatesyaapplicable confidentiality, non-solicitation mon-competition agreement in effect between
the Participant and the Company or Subsidiaryt tfie time of the Participant’s Retirement, thetiegrant does not have least 10 years of
service with the Company or has not attained tlecdd5, then the provisions of (A) in the immedigtpreceding sentence will not apply and
all unearned Covered Shares shall be immediatelgifed as of such Date of Termination.

(i) Upon a Change in Control of the Compang) &ll Earned Shares shall immediately become \éeste
Shares, and (B) all unearned shares shall becorsted/8hares if the Plan and this Agreement aréufiptassumed in such Change in Control
transactionprovided, however , that after a Change in Control, to the extentRlam and this Agreement are assumed, the une@uwesred
Shares will become Vested Shares upon the Panigggermination of employment by the Company (or egsor entity) for reasons other t
Cause or by the Participant for Good Reason (deatkfnSection 9(m)), where either termination occurs within twelv@)inonths f
ollowing the Change in Control.

Section 6. Adjustments . In addition to any adjustments to this Agreenparmitted under the Plan, the Committee may, in its
sole discretion, make any reasonable adjustmertketBerformance Measures and targets that it depprspriate to reflect effects of the
following items, to the extent identified in thedited financial statements of the Company, inclgdimotnotes, or in the Management
Discussion and Analysis section of the Companyisiahreport: (i) extraordinary, unusual, and/or reaarring items of gain or loss; (ii) gains
or losses on the disposition of a business; (figrges in tax or accounting principles, regulatienkaws; or (iv) mergers or acquisitions . The
foregoing adjustments shall only be permissiblengyCommittee, as determined in the sole discretfadhe Committee, to the extent such
adjustments do not unfairly benefit or penalize Plagticipant.

Section 7. Circuit Breaker . As of any Measurement Date, no unearned CovereteShaay become Earned Shares if as of
date there exists a material weakness in safetjydseess, and compliance (e.g., a regulatory merdararof understanding), at the Company
level or the Bank level, as determined in the slideretion of the Committee (aCircuit Breaker "), such that a Circuit Breaker at the Bank
level will prevent the earning of Covered SharasHarticipants employed by that Bank and that autiBreaker at the Company level shall
prevent the earning of Covered Shares by all Rpatits as of such Measurement Date.

Section 8. Withholding . The grant and vesting of shares of Stock underAbgreement are subject to withholding of all
applicable taxes. At the election of the Partictpand subject to such rules and limitations as begstablished by the Committee from tim
time, such withholding obligations may be satisfilebugh the surrender of shares of Stock whichHPicipant already owns, or to which the
Participant is otherwise entitled under the Plan.

Section 9. Definitions . For purposes of this Agreement, words and phrdsasise defined as follows:

(@) “Actual Bank Asset Growth” shall mean the actual bank asset growth as détethby the Committee, but in no
event greater than the Target Bank Asset Growth.



(b) “ Actual Cumulative Bank Earnings” shall mean the actual bank earnings growth asrdened by the
Committee, but in no event greater than the Tabgehulative Bank Earnings.

(c) “Actual Company Asset Growth” shall mean the actual company asset growth asméaied by the Committee,
but in no event greater than the Target CompangtASsowth.

(d) “Actual Cumulative Company Earnings” shall mean the actual company earnings growtthedsrmined by the
Committee, but in no event greater than the Tabgmhulative Company Earnings.

(e) “Bank " shall mean the Participant’'s employer, as magglicable.

® “ Bank Asset Percentagé shall mean the Actual Bank Asset Growth as o&gipular Measurement Date divided
by the Target Bank Asset Growth.

(9) “Bank Earnings Percentage shall mean the Annual Cumulative Bank Earningsfas particular Measurement
Date divided by the Target Cumulative Bank Earnings

(h) “Cause” shall mean: (i) a material violation by Pantiaint of any applicable material law or regulatieapecting
the business of Company or Subsidiary; ( ii ) legréint being found guilty of a felony or an actdighonesty in connection with the
performance of his duties as an employee or offiféne Company or Subsidiary, or which disquadifitarticipant from serving as an officel
director of the Company or Subsidiary; (iii ) twélful or negligent failure of Participant to perim his duties hereunder in any material
respect; (iv ) Participant engages in one or nooisafe or unsound banking practices that have eriabadverse effect on the Company or
Subsidiary; or (v ) Participant is removed or rgged from banking pursuant to Section 8(e) ofFbderal Deposit Insurance Act, as
amended, or any other applicable state or fedaval |

M “ Company Asset Percentagé shall mean the Actual Company Asset Growth aa pérticular Measurement Date
divided by the Target Company Asset Growth.

()] “ Company Earnings Percentagé shall mean the Annual Cumulative Company Earniagef a particular
Measurement Date divided by the Target Cumulatien@any Earnings.

(k) “ Date of Termination ” shall mean the first day occurring on or aftex tarant Date on which the Participant is not
employed by the Company or any Subsidiary, regasdié the reason for the termination of employmprrdyided that a termination of
employment shall not be deemed to occur by reatanransfer of the Participant between the Company/a Subsidiary or between two
Subsidiaries; and furth@rovided that the Participant’s employment shall not be @ered terminated while the Participant is on adeaf
absence from the Company or a Subsidiary approyetebParticipant’s employer. If, as a result abe or other transaction, the Participant’s
employer ceases to be a Subsidiary (and the Retits employer is or becomes an entity that isssp from the Company), and the
Participant is not, at the end of the @8y period following the transaction, employed by Company or an entity that is then a Subsidiaen

the occurrence of such transaction shall be trezdatie Participant’s Date of Termination causethbyParticipant being discharged by the
employer.

)] “ Disability ” shall mean a physical or mental disability (withhe meaning of Section 22(e)(3) of the Code) Wwhic
impairs the individuab ability to substantially perform his or her cuntrduties for a period of at least six (6) conseeutnonths, as determin
by the Committee.

(m) “Good Reasort shall mean upon the occurrence of any one ofdhewing events:

0] Participant is not re-elected or is remo¥mn the position with the Company or Subsidiarhes than as a
result of Participant’s election or appointmenatposition or positions of equal or superior scape responsibility;

(i) Participant shall fail to be vested by Company wbsdiary with the powers, authority and supporvises
of any of said position or positions;

(iii) The Participant is subjected to objectivelifficult or unpleasant working conditions to teetent that a
reasonable employee would feel compelled to regigpyided the Company has been given at leasefiffd5) days notice of such conditions

and Participant's intent to resign and the Comfaity/to remedy such conditions within such fiftg@s) days;

(iv) Participant is subjected to conditions dg@nsng constructive discharge, as defined by I®tatute or



common law.

(n) “Retirement” of the Participant means, the occurrence of theti€pant’s Date of Termination on or after theeda
(i) the Participant reaches the age of fifty-fi&) and has ten (10) years of combined service th#ghCompany or Subsidiary (as determined
by the Committee), or (ii) the Participant retipggsuant to the provisions of any defined benefitement plan sponsored by the Company or
its subsidiaries that is then applicable to thei€lpant, all of the foregoing as approved by tharnittee.

(0) “Slip-Back " shall mean where, as of any Vesting Date, thédPmance Measures utilized to determine whether
such Covered Shares became Earned Shares aramottigumet or exceeded. The Slip-Back shall carginntil such Performance Measures
are attained.

(p) “Target Bank Asset Growth” shall mean the set dollar amount reflecteceahibit A with respect to the
Participant’s employer.

(@) “Target Company Asset Growth” shall mean the set dollar amount reflectedsxhibit A .

(9] “ Target Cumulative Bank Earnings” shall mean the set dollar amount reflectedesxhibit A with respect to the
Participant’s employer.

(s) “Target Cumulative Company Earnings” shall mean the set dollar amount reflecteceahibit A .

Section 10. Heirs and SuccessorsThis Agreement shall be binding upon, and inurth&obenefit of, the Company and its
successors and assigns, and upon any person agquitiether by merger, consolidation, purchasessét or otherwise, all or substantially all
of the Company’s assets and business. If any rigiitse Participant or benefits distributable te farticipant under this Agreement have not
been exercised or distributed, respectively, atithe of the Participant’s death, such rights shalexercisable by the Designated Beneficiary,
and such benefits shall be distributed to the Dedigd Beneficiary, in accordance with the provisiofthis Agreement and the Plan. The “
Designated Beneficiary’ shall be the beneficiary or beneficiaries destgday the Participant in a writing filed with t@®mmittee in such
form and at such time as the Committee shall reqlfia deceased Participant fails to designatereficiary, or if the Designated Beneficiary
does not survive the Participant, any rights thatild have been exercisable by the Participant agdanefits distributable to the Participant
shall be exercised by or distributed to the legpresentative of the estate of the Participart.déceased Participant designates a beneficiary
and the Designated Beneficiary survives the Paditi but dies before the Designated Beneficiang&ase of all rights under this Agreement
or before the complete distribution of benefitéhtle Designated Beneficiary under this Agreemeren tiny rights that would have been
exercisable by the Designated Beneficiary shaéercised by the legal representative of the esfdfee Designated Beneficiary, and any
benefits distributable to the Designated Beneficirall be distributed to the legal representadivithe estate of the Designated Beneficiary.

Section 11. Administration . The authority to manage and control the operatimhadministration of this Agreement shall be
vested in the Committee, and the Committee shak ladl powers with respect to this Agreement &&a# with respect to the Plan. Any
interpretation of the Agreement by the Committeé any decision made by it with respect to the Agreet is final and binding.

Section 12. Plan Governs. Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to tloatrary, the terms of this Agreement shall be
subject to the terms of the Plan, a copy of whigy e obtained by the Participant from the offit¢he Secretary of the Company.

Section 13. Amendment. This Agreement may be amended in accordance wétlptthvisions of the Plan, and may otherwis
amended by written agreement of the ParticipanttheadCompany without the consent of any other perso

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Participant has executed this Agreement, am€timpany has caused these presents to be exat
its name and on its behalf, all as of the GraneDat

PARTICIPANT

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.



By:

Its:




Heartland Financial USA, Inc.
2005 Long-Term Incentive Plan

Exhibit A
Performance Targets for January 2005

Performance-Based Restricted Stock Awards

ENTITY

TARGET CUMULATIVE EARNINGS

TARGET ASSET GROWTH

Heartland Financial USA, Inc.

Arizona Bank & Trust

Dubuque Bank & Trust

First Community Bank

Galena State Bank & Trust

Heartland Business Bank

New Mexico Bank & Trus

Riverside Community Bank

Rocky Mountain Bank

\Wisconsin Community Bank




SIXTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS SIXTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this "Amedment*)dated as or February 28, 2006 is among
HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC., a Delaware corporatin (the "Borrower")each of the banks party hereto (individually, ariBaand
collectively, the "Banks"and THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY, as agent for thexBa(in such capacity, together with its successors
such capacity, the "Agent").

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Banks leatered into a Credit Agreement dated as of Jgr&lgr2004 (as heretofore
amended, the "Credit Agreementdnd

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Banks wasextend the maturity of the Credit Agreement;

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, theeipttand sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledigihe parties hereto
agree as follows:

1. DefinitionsTerms defined in the Credit Agreement and not etisr defined herein shall have the respective nmggni
given to them in the Credit Agreement and terméeefin the introductory paragraphs or other priovis of this Amendment shdibve the
respective meanings attributed to them thereimaditition, the following terms shall have the foliogg meanings (terms defined in the singular
having a correlative meaning when used in the phmd vice versa):

"Effective Date" shall mean February 28, 2006i)if{is Amendment shall have been executed andeteld by the Borrower, the
Agent and the Banks and (ii) the Borrower shallehpgrformed its obligations under Sectioheteof;

2. Revolving Credit Commitment Terminationt®d he definition of "Revolving Credit Commitment Termation Date"
in Section 9,1of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to @tats entirety as follows

"Revolving Credit Commitment Terminatidvate" shall mean March 10, 200.6, as such datebmaxtended pursuant to Section

1.1.0.

3. Conditions to Effective Dat€he occurrence of the Effective Date shall be sutlifethe delivery of the
following documents satisfactory to the Agent:

(a) $HAmendment.
(b) TBensent of each of the Guarantors in the forntchéd
hereto.
4. Effective Date Notice Promptly following the occurrence of the Effectbate, the Agent shall give notice to the

parties of the occurence of the Effective Date, which notice shall beatusive, and the parties may rely thereon; pedjdhat such notice
shall not waive or otherwise limit any right or redy of the Agent or the Banks arising out of arijufa of any condition precedent set forth
in Section 3o be satisfied,

5. RatificationThe parties agree that the Credit Agreement, asndetkhereby, has not lapsed or terminated, islin fu
force and effect, and is and from and after thedi¥e Date shall remain binding in accordance wWitkir terms.

6. Representations and WarrantjéEhe Borrower represents and warrants to the Agestize Banks

that:

(@) No BreachThe execution, delivery and performance of this Adment will no
conflict with or result in a breach. of, or cauke treation of a Lien or require any consent uritterarticles of incorporation
or bylaws of the Borrower, or any applicable lawre@gulation, or any order, inj unction or decre@ny court or
governmental authority or agency, or any agreeroeimstrument to which, the Borrower is a partypbgrwhich it or its
property is bound.

(b) Power and Action, Binding Effedthe Borrower has been duly incorporated
is validly existing as a corporation under the lafthe State of Delaware and has all necessargpand authority to
execute, deliver and perform its obligations urtiesr Amendment and the Credit Agreement, as amebyelis
Amendment; the execution, delivery and performdncehe Borrower of this Amendment and the Credite®gnent, as




amended by this Amendment, have been duly authbhiyeall necessary action on its
part; and this Amendment and the Credit Agreenssamended by this Amendment, have been duly dittiywvexecuted
and delivered by the Borrower and constitute legaid and binding obligations, enforceable in ademce with their
respective terms.

(c) ApprovalsNo authorizations, approvals or consents of, anfilings or
registrations with, any governmental or regulat@auyhority or agency or any other person are necg$siathe execution or
delivery by the Borrower of this Amendment, or tlegformance by the Borrower of the Credit Agreemastamended by
this Amendment, or for the validity or enforcealilihereof.

7. Successors and Assigithis Amendment shall be binding upon and inuréelenefit of the
Borrower, the Agent and the Banks and their resypgsuccessors and assigns, except that the Barmoase not transfer or assign any of its
rights or interest hereunder.

8. Governing Law.This Amendment shall be governed by, and construeaind interpreted in
accordance with, the internal laws of the State dflinois.

9. Counterparts This Amendment may be executed in any number oftesparts and each party hereto
may execute any one or more of such counterpdrtsf, @hich shall constitute one and the same ursnt. Delivery of an executed
counterpart of a signature page to this Amendmenelecopy shall be as effective as delivery ofantally executed counterpart of this
amendment.

10. Expense§Vhether or not the effective date shall occur, witthimiting the obligations of the Borrower undbe Credit
Agreement, the Borrower agrees to pay, or to remsion demand, all reasonable costs and exper@esed by the Agent in connection with
the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivempdification, amendment or enforcement of this Advaent and the other agreements,
documents and instruments referred to herein, dictuthe reasonable fees and expenses of MayenrBiRowe & Maw LLP, special counsel
to the Agent, and any other counsel engaged bjgeait.

[Signature Page Follows]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been execaseof the date first above written.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
By: /s/ John K. Schmidt

Name: John K. Schmidt

Title: EVP, CFO, COO

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY,
As Agent

By: /s/ Lisa McDermott
Name: Lisa McDermott
Title: Vice President

BANKS:

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY
By: /s/ Lisa McDermott

Name: Lisa McDermott

Title: Vice President

HARRIS N.A. (successor by merger with Harris Trust and
Savings Bank)

By: /s/ Thomas J. Wilson

Name: Thomas J. Wilson

Title: Vice President

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
By: /s/ Neil J. Havlik

Name: Neil J. Havlik

Title: Correspondent Officer




GUARANTOR ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Each of the undersigned Guarantors hereby ackngetednd consents to the Borrower’s execution efAnnendment.

CITIZENS FINANCE CO. ULTEA, INC.

By: /s/ John K. Schmidt By: /s/ John K. Butit
Title: Treasurer Title: Treasurer




CERTIFICATE

The undersigned as Executive Vice President, Ghirefncial Officer and Chief Operating Officer of &tdand Financial
USA, Inc., hereby certifies as follows:

1. No Default, as defined in the Credit Agreetreanong Heartland Financial USA, Inc. (the "BorroWecertain banks and The
Northern Trust Company as agent, as amended ("{Ckgdeement") has occurred and is continu

2. The representations and warranties of thedda@r in Section 6 of the Credit Agreement andect®n 7 of the Fourth
Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreement dated &aoch 1, 2005, are true and correct on and dseotiate hereof.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned has executsdQGhbrtificate as of March 1, 2005.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
By: /s/ John K. Schmidt

Name: John K. Schmi

Title: EVP, CFO, COO



SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT

THIS SEVENTH AMENDMENT TO CREDIT AGREEMENT (this Amendment) dated as of March 10, 2006 is among
HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC., a Delaware corporath (the “ Borrower’), each of the banks party hereto (individually, Bank”
and collectively, the “ Bank§ and THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY, as agent for B&nks (in such capacity, together with its
successors in such capacity, the “ Aggnt

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Banks leatered into a Credit Agreement dated as of Jgr&lgr2004 (as heretofore
amended, the “ Credit Agreeméintand

WHEREAS, the Borrower, the Agent and the Banks wismake certain amendments to the Credit Agreement

NOW, THEREFORE, for valuable consideration, theeiptand sufficiency of which is hereby acknowledigidne parties hereto agree
as follows:

1. Definitions. Terms defined in the Credit Agreement and no¢wtiise defined herein shall have the respectiveninga givet
to them in the Credit Agreement and terms defimetthé introductory paragraphs or other provisioithis Amendment shall have the
respective meanings attributed to them thereimaditition, the following terms shall have the foliogg meanings (terms defined in the singular
having a correlative meaning when used in the phmd vice versa) :

“Effective Date” shall mean March 10, 2006, iftfijs Amendment shall have been executed and detivay the Borrower, the Agent
and the Banks and (ii) the Borrower shall havegrengd its obligations under Sectioméreof.

2. US Bank IndebtednesSection 7.2(d) of the Credit Agreement is herébleted and intentionally left blank.

3. IndebtednessSection 2of the Fifth Amendment and Waiver to Credit Agreemgrovided for the amendment of Section 7.5
(a) of the Credit Agreement. Said Sectiomstakenly stated that it amended Sectionof the Credit Agreement in its entirety, rathentha
amending only Section 7.5(aJhe parties acknowledge that only said SectidfaJwas so amended and the other subsections of S&ckon
remained in full force and effect.

4. Revolving Credit Commitment Termination Dafthe definition of “Revolving Credit Commitment fieination Date” in
Section 9.1of the Credit Agreement is hereby amended to #téts entirety as follows

“ Revolving Credit Commitment Terminatiddate” shall mean April 30, 2007, as such date negtiended pursuant to Section 1.10

5. Schedule 1Schedule 1 of the Credit Agreement is hereby al®éo state as set forth as Schedule 1 hereto.

6. Additional Bank Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. is hereby added to thed@regreement as a Bank and shall be bound byetres
of the Credit Agreement as a Bank.

7. Conditions to Effective DateThe occurrence of the Effective Date shall bgestttio the delivery of the following documents
satisfactory to the Agent:

(@) This Amendment.

(b) A Guaranty from each Guarantor in substéptihe form attached as Exhibit A
hereto.

(c) A Note payable to Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

(d) The certificate of incorporation (certifiegl the Secretary of State of Delaware

dated no earlier than 30 days prior to this Agrestinend by-laws of the Borrower and all corporattéom taken by the
Borrower authorizing this Amendment (including tlesolutions of the Board of Directors of the Boremvauthorizing the
transactions contemplated hereby), in each casdfjestby the secretary or assistant secretatheBorrower.

(e) A certificate of the secretary or assistatretary of the Borrower naming and
setting forth the specimen signature of each obffieers of the Borrower (i) who is authorizedsign on its behalf this
Amendment and (ii) who is (A) an Authorized Offiaar(B) who will, until replaced by another officer officers duly



authorized for that purpose, act as its represgatédr the purposes of signing documents
and giving notices and other communications (cthan notices required to be given by an Authori@éiter) in connection
with this Agreement and the transactions conteraglaereby.

® A certificate of a senior officer of the Borroweatdd the date of this Amendm
to the effect that on and as of such date: (i) réaDit shall have occurred and be continuing; dihthe representations and
warranties made by the Borrower in Sectioof he Credit Agreement and Sectiohéreof are true and correct with the same
force and effect as if made on and as of such date.

(9) An opinion of internal counsel of the Bormnysubstantially in the form of
Exhibit B hereto.

(h) A good standing certificate from (i) the Bower’s Federal Reserve Bank, and
(i) the Secretary of State of the Borrower’s staiténcorporation shall have been delivered (inheafcthe foregoing cases,
dated no earlier than 30 days prior to this Agregine

® The articles of incorporation (also certifiby the Secretary of State of each
Guarantor’s state of organization dated no eattian 30 days prior to this Agreement) and by-lafwsaeh Guarantor and all
corporate action taken by each Guarantor authgritinGuaranty Agreement and the performance dftitgations
thereunder (including the resolutions of the BaafrDirectors of such Guarantor authorizing the $eriions contemplated by
its respective Guaranty Agreement), in each caséfied by the secretary or assistant secretaguoh Guarantor.

) A certificate of the secretary or assista@tretary of each Guarantor naming and
setting forth the specimen signature of each obffieers of such Guarantor who is authorized gmsts Guaranty Agreeme
on its behalf (the Agent and each Bank may conedlygirely on such certificate until formally advikby a like certificate of
any changes therein).

(k) A good standing certificate from the Secngtaf State of each Guarantor’s state
of incorporation, dated no earlier than 30 dayerio this Agreement.

)] An opinion of internal counsel to each Gudaa in the form of Exhibit C
attached hereto.
(m) Such other documents as the Agent may reddpnequest.
8. Effective Date NoticePromptly following the occurrence of the EffeetiDate, the Agent shall give notice to the panies

the occurrence of the Effective Date, which nosiball be conclusive, and the parties may rely therprovided, that such notice shall not
waive or otherwise limit any right or remedy of thgent or the Banks arising out of any failure oy @ondition precedent set forth @ection ¢
to be satisfied.

9. Ratification The parties agree that the Credit Agreementirended hereby, has not lapsed or terminated figliforce and
effect, and is and from and after the EffectiveeDgtiall remain binding in accordance with theimer

10. Representations and Warranti&he Borrower represents and warrants to the Agedtthe Banks that:

(@) No Breach The execution, delivery and performance of thiseldment will
not conflict with or result in a breach of, or cauke creation of a Lien or require any consenturithe articles of
incorporation or bylaws of the Borrower, or any kggble law or regulation, or any order, injunctiondecree of any court or
governmental authority or agency, or any agreeroeimstrument to which the Borrower is a party grihich it or its
property is bound.

(b) Power and Action, Binding EffecThe Borrower has been duly incorporated
and is validly existing as a corporation underltives of the State of Delaware and has all necegsamgr and authority to
execute, deliver and perform its obligations urtiesr Amendment and the Credit Agreement, as amebygelis
Amendment; the execution, delivery and performdncthe Borrower of this Amendment and the Credite®gnent, as
amended by this Amendment, have been duly authbkiyeall necessary action on its part; and this Admeent and the
Credit Agreement, as amended by this Amendmeng haen duly and validly executed and deliverechkeyBorrower and
constitute legal, valid and binding obligationsfagneable in accordance with their respective terms




(c) Approvals No authorizations, approvals or consents of,raméllings or
registrations with, any governmental or regulat@auyhority or agency or any other person are necgfsiathe execution or
delivery by the Borrower of this Amendment, or tlegformance by the Borrower of the Credit Agreemastamended by
this Amendment, or for the validity or enforcealilihereof.

11. Successors and Assigrighis Amendment shall be binding upon and inurth&benefit of the Borrower, the Agent and the
Banks and their respective successors and assigrept that the Borrower may not transfer or asaignof its rights or interest hereunder.

12. Governing Law This Amendment shall be governed by, and construegind interpreted in accordance with, the
internal laws of the State of Illinois.

13. CounterpartsThis Amendment may be executed in any numbeoofiterparts and each party hereto may executeray o
or more of such counterparts, all of which shafistdute one and the same instrument. Deliverynagxecuted counterpart of a signature page
to this Amendment by telecopy shall be as effectivelelivery of a manually executed counterpathisfamendment.

14. ExpensesWhether or not the effective date shall occuthwiit limiting the obligations of the Borrower umdbke Credit
Agreement, the Borrower agrees to pay, or to remsion demand, all reasonable costs and exper@esed by the Agent in connection with
the negotiation, preparation, execution, delivemgpdification, amendment or enforcement of this Adraant and the other agreements,
documents and instruments referred to herein, dictuthe reasonable fees and expenses of MayenrBiRowe & Maw LLP, special counsel
to the Agent, and any other counsel engaged bjgeait.

[Signature Page Follows]




IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Amendment has been execaseof the date first above written.

HEARTLAND FINANCIAL USA, INC.
By: /s/ John K. Schmidt

Name: John K. Schmidt

Title: EVP, CFO, COO

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY,
As Agent

By: /s/ Lisa McDermott
Name: Lisa McDermott
Title: Vice President

BANKS:

THE NORTHERN TRUST COMPANY
By: /s/ Lisa McDermott

Name: Lisa McDermott

Title: Vice President

HARRIS N.A. (successor by merger with Harris Trust
and Savings Bank)

By: /s/ Thomas J. Wilson

Name: Thomas J. Wilson

Title: Vice President

WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A.

By: /s/ Leighton Kor

Name: Leighton Kor

Title: Vice President

U.S. BANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION
By: /s/ Neil J. Havlik

Name: Neil J. Havlik

Title: Correspondent Officer




Name of Bank

Schedule 1

INFORMATION CONCERNING BANKS

Commitment

Applicable
Lending Offices

The Northern Trust Company

Harris N.A.

Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.

U.S. Bank National Association

Total Commitments

$25,000,000

$20,000,000

$20,000,000

$10,000,000

$75,000,000

For all Loans:
50 South LaSalle Street
Chicago, lllinois 60675

For all Loans:
111 West Monroe
Chicago, lllinois 60603

For all Loans:

For all Loans:
222nd Avenue
Cedar Rapids, lowa 52401




EXHIBIT A

GUARANTY

1. Guaranty of Payment~or value received, and in consideration of aanlor other financial accommodation heretofo
hereafter at any time made or granted to Heartkéindncial USA, Inc., a Delaware corporation (heaétier called the “Debtor’py any Ban
and the Agent under that certain Credit Agreemaigdlas of January 31, 2004 among the Debtor, Tnmhé&Fn Trust Company, as Agent,
the Banks party thereto (as amended, restated,fiewdir supplemented from time to time the “Credlgreement”; capitalized terms n
otherwise defined herein have the same meaningnhasen the Credit Agreement; the Agent and thekBatogether with their successors
assigns, are herein collectively referred to as'Banks”), the undersigned hereby unconditionally guaranteesull and prompt payment wk
due, whether by acceleration or otherwise, andl ginges thereafter, of all obligations of the Debto the Banks under the Credit Agreen
and the Notes, howsoever created, arising or eg&terwhether direct or indirect, absolute or caygimt, or now or hereafter existing, or du
to become due (all such obligations, together with extensions or renewals thereof, being heranatillectively called the “Liabilities”)anc
the undersigned further agrees to pay all expefiselsiding attorneys’ and legal assistarfes2s (which attorneys and legal assistants m
employees of any Bank) and legal expenses) paidcarred by the Banks in endeavoring to collect ltiebilities, or any part thereof, and
enforcing this guaranty. The right of recovery agaithe undersigned under this guaranty is, howeweited to the amount of SEVENTY-
FIVE MILLION DOLLARS ($75,000,000) plus (a) interesnd fees on such amount and (b) all expensesnfafregng this guarant
Notwithstanding anything herein to the contrarysithe desire and intent of the undersigned aadtmks that this guaranty shall be enfo
against the undersigned to the fullest extent pegilie under the laws and public policies applie@ach jurisdiction in which enforcemen
sought. If, however, and to the extent that, thégations of the undersigned under this guarantgllshe adjudicated to be invalid
unenforceable for any reason (including, withomtitation, because of any applicable state or fddawarelating to fraudulent conveyance:!
transfers), then the amount of the Liabilities o€ls undersigned shall be deemed to be reducedumidusidersigned shall pay the maxin
amount of the Liabilities which would be permissilbinder applicable law.

2. Acceleration of the Time of Payment of Amo®atyable Under GuarantyThe undersigned agrees that, in the event
dissolution or insolvency of the Debtor or the usigned, or the inability of the Debtor or the ursigned to pay debts as they mature, ¢
assignment by the Debtor or the undersigned fob#reefit of creditors, or the institution of anyopeeding by or against the Debtor or
undersigned alleging that the Debtor or the undeesi is insolvent or unable to pay debts as theaymaand if such event shall occur at a-
when any of the Liabilities may not then be due pagable, the undersigned will pay to the Agenttii@ account of the Banks, forthwith
full amount which would be payable hereunder byhsuredersigned if all of the Liabilities were themedand payable.

3. Credit Agreement The undersigned agrees to be bound by all ofdtras and provisions in the Credit Agreement ag
are applicable to the undersigned as a Subsidfahedebtor.

4. Continuing Guaranty This guaranty shall in all respects be a contiguiabsolute and unconditional guaranty, and
remain in full force and effect (notwithstandingthout limitation, the dissolution of the undersgghor that at any time or from time to time
of the Liabilities may have been paid in full) drtil the Liabilities have been paid in full and @ommitments of the Banks to extend cred
the Debtor have expired or terminated.

5. Rescission or Return of Payment on Liabilitiéshe undersigned further agrees that, if at ametall or any part of al
payment theretofore applied by the Agent, for tbeoant of the Banks, to any of the Liabilities isnoust be rescinded or returned by the A
or any Bank for any reason whatsoever (includinghout limitation, the insolvency, bankruptcy ororganization of the Debtor), st
Liabilities shall, for the purposes of this guasarib the extent that such payment is or must Iseimded or returned, be deemed to |
continued in existence, notwithstanding such apfiin by the Agent or such Bank, and this guarafgll continue to be effective or
reinstated, as the case may be, as to such Liebijléll as though such application by the Agewntsuch Bank had not been made.

6. Bank Permitted to Take Certain Actiarithe Banks may, from time to time (but shall netdbligated to), whether before
after any discontinuance of this guaranty, at teele discretion and without notice to the undersiy take any or all of the following actio
(a) retain or obtain a security interest in anypemy to secure any of the Liabilities or any ohtign hereunder; (b) retain or obtain the prin
or secondary obligation of any obligor or obligdrsaddition to the undersigned, with respect tp ahthe Liabilities; (c) extend or renew
one or more periods (whether or not longer thanattiginal period), alter or exchange any of theblliies, or release or compromise
obligation of the undersigned hereunder or anygaltilbn of any nature of any other obligor with resipto any of the Liabilities; (d) rele:
their security interest in, or surrender, releas@ermit any substitution or exchange for, all ay gart of any property securing any of
Liabilities or any obligation hereunder, or extesrdrenew for one or more periods (whether or nagéy than the original period) or rele:
compromise, alter or exchange any obligations gfrature of any obligor with respect to any suabperty; and (e) resort to the undersic
for payment of any of the Liabilities, whether astrthe Banks (i) shall have resorted to any prgpsecuring any of the Liabilities or &
obligation hereunder or (ii) shall have proceededirst any other obligor primarily or secondarilgligated with respect to any of




Liabilities (all of the actions referred to in pesling clauses (i) and (ii) being hereby waivedh®y undersigned).

7. Application of PaymentsAny amounts received by the Banks from whatsosweerce on account of the Liabilities may
applied by the Banks toward the payment of sudh®Liabilities, and in such order of applicatias,the Agent may from time to time direct.

8. Subrogation Until such time as this guaranty shall have beisnontinued as to the undersigned and the Bardds sfve
received payment of the full amount of all of thiakilities and of all obligations of the undersigneereunder, no payment made by or fo
account of the undersigned pursuant to this guprstmll entitle the undersigned by subrogationtbewise to any payment by the Debto
from or out of any property of the Debtor, and timelersigned shall not exercise any right or remaghinst the Debtor or any property of
Debtor by reason of any performance by such ungieesi of this guaranty.

9. Waiver of Notice and Other Matter3he undersigned waives: (a) notice of the accegtdy the Agent, on behalf of
Banks, of this guaranty; (b) notice of the existenc creation or nopayment of all or any of the Liabilities; (c) presment, demand, notice
dishonor, protest, and all other notices whatsqeaad (d) all diligence in collection or protectiofi or realization upon the Liabilities or &
thereof, any obligation hereunder, or any sectioityor guaranty of any of the foregoing.

10. Additional Liabilities of the Debtor Authogd. The creation or existence from time to time ddlilities in excess of tl
amount to which the right of recovery under thisugunty is limited is hereby authorized, withouticetto the undersigned, and shall in no
affect or impair the rights of the Banks and thégaltions of the undersigned under this guaranty.

11. Assignment of Liabilities Any Bank may, from time to time, whether beforeafter any discontinuance of this guara
without notice to the undersigned, assign or tramnahy or all of the Liabilities or any interesethin; and, notwithstanding any such assign
or transfer or any subsequent assignment or tratisfecof, such Liabilities shall be and remainbilities for the purposes of this guaranty,
each and every immediate and successive assigneangferee of any of the Liabilities or of anyergst therein shall, to the extent of
interest of such assignee or transferee in theilitiab, be entitled to the benefits of this gudsan

12. Information Concerning Debtor; No RelianceRepresentations by Bank3he undersigned hereby warrants to the B
that such undersigned now has and will continueatce independent means of obtaining informatiorcemming the affairs, financial conditi
and business of the Debtor. The Banks shall no¢ laany duty or responsibility to provide the undgmsid with any credit or other informat
concerning the affairs, financial condition or mess of the Debtor which may come into any of t@k& possession. The undersigned
executed and delivered this guaranty without relanpon any representation by any Bank with resmec¢h) the due execution, validi
effectiveness or enforceability of any instrumeatdcument or agreement evidencing or relating to afnthe Liabilities or any loan or otf
financial accommodation made or granted to the @relib) the validity, genuineness, enforceabiligxjstence, value or sufficiency or ¢
property securing any of the Liabilities or theatfen, perfection or priority of any lien or sedyrinterest in such property; or (c) the existe
number, financial condition or creditworthinessottier guarantors or sureties with respect to artheLiabilities.

13. Waiver and Modifications No delay on the part of any Bank in the exeragany right or remedy shall operate ¢
waiver thereof, and no single or partial exercigeany Bank of any right or remedy shall precludeeotor further exercise thereof or
exercise of any right or remedy; nor shall any rficdiion or waiver of any of the provisions of tlggaranty be binding upon the Agent ex
as expressly set forth in a writing duly signed detivered by the Agent, on behalf of the Banks.

14. Obligations Under GuarantyNo action of the Banks permitted hereunder shadny way affect or impair the rights of
Banks and the obligations of the undersigned utideguaranty. For the purposes of this guaranghilities shall include all obligations of t
Debtor to the Banks, notwithstanding any right owpr of the Debtor or anyone else to assert anyncta defense as to the invalidity
unenforceability of any such obligation, and notsataim or defense shall affect or impair the ofigns of the undersigned hereunder.
obligations of the undersigned under this guarahgll be absolute and unconditional irrespectivargf circumstance whatsoever which m
constitute a legal or equitable discharge or defesfsthe undersigned. The undersigned acknowletlggsthere are no conditions to
effectiveness of this guaranty.

15. SuccessorsThis guaranty shall be binding upon the undersigand upon the successors and assigns of thesigrol.

16. Law. THIS GUARANTY HAS BEEN DELIVERED AT CHICAGO, ILLNOIS, AND SHALL BE CONSTRUED II
ACCORDANCE WITH AND GOVERNED BY THE INTERNAL LAWS ®& THE STATE OF ILLINOIS.

17. Severability Wherever possible, each provision of this gugrahill be interpreted in such manner as to bectffe ant
valid under applicable law, but if any provision this guaranty shall be prohibited by or invalidden such law, such provision shall
ineffective to the extent of such prohibition ovafidity, without invalidating the remainder of $uprovision or the remaining provisions of
guaranty.



18. Captions Section captions used in this guaranty are fawenience only, and shall not affect the constonctf this
guaranty.

19. Waiver of Jury Trial THE UNDERSIGNED WAIVES, AND, BY ACCEPTING THIS GARANTY, THE AGENT, ON
BEHALF OF THE BANKS, SHALL BE DEEMED TO WAIVE, ANYRIGHT TO A TRIAL BY JURY IN ANY ACTION OR PROCEEDI
TO ENFORCE OR DEFEND ANY RIGHTS (A) UNDER THIS GUARITY OR UNDER ANY AMENDMENT, INSTRUMENT
DOCUMENT OR AGREEMENT DELIVERED OR WHICH MAY IN THEFUTURE BE DELIVERED IN CONNECTION HEREWITH C
(B) ARISING FROM ANY BANKING RELATIONSHIP EXISTING IN CONNECTION WITH THIS GUARANTY, AND THE
UNDERSIGNED AGREES, AND, BY ACCEPTING THIS GUARANTYTHE AGENT, ON BEHALF OF THE BANKS, SHALL B
DEEMED TO AGREE, THAT ANY SUCH ACTION OR PROCEEDINGHALL BE TRIED BEFORE A COURT AND NOT BEFORE
JURY.

20. Submission to JurisdictionThe undersigned hereby irrevocably agrees thdtjest to the Agen$ sole and absolt
election, all suits, actions or other proceedingh wespect to, arising out of or in connectionhatitis guaranty or any document or instrur
executed in connection herewith shall be subjeditigation in courts having situs within or juristion over Cook County, lllinois. Tl
undersigned hereby consents and submits to thedjation of any local, state or federal court lechin or having jurisdiction over st
country, and hereby irrevocably waives any righthdy have to request or demand trial by jury, &msfer or change the venue of any
action or other proceeding brought by the Agerddoordance with this paragraph, or to claim thgtsrch proceeding has been brought i
inconvenient forum.

21. Substitution This guaranty is delivered in substitution fogwaranty of the undersigned dated January 31, 26@4sha
continue to evidence the indebtedness thereunder.

SIGNED AND DELIVERED AS OF THIS 18" day of March, 2006.
ULTEA Inc.
By: /s/ Kenneth J. Erickson
Its: Vice Chairman of the Board

Address for Notices:

1398 Central Ave.
Dubuque, IA 52004-0778




EXHIBIT B

FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL OF BORROWER

March 10, 2006

The Northern Trust Company, as Agent

The Banks (as defined in the Credit Agreement
referred to below), and their respective
successors and assigns

50 South LaSalle Street

Chicago, lllinois 60675

Gentlemen/Ladies:

I am counsel for Heartland Financial USA, Inc. (tf@ompany”), and have represented the Company in conneutitinits
execution and delivery of a Seventh Amendment‘{(thmendment’) dated March 10, 2006 to a Credit Agreement dateaf danuary 31, 20(
(as heretofore amended, the “ Credit Agreemipaimong the Company, the Banks party thereto amel Northern Trust Company, as Agent,
and providing for Loans in an aggregate principabant not exceeding $75,000,000 at any one timgtanding. All capitalized terms used in
this opinion and not otherwise defined herein shalle the meanings attributed to them in the Ageegm

In so acting, I, as counsel for the Company, haadersuch factual inquiries, and | have examinezhased to be examined such
guestions of law, as | have considered necessappnopriate for the purposes of this opinion ammhn the basis of such inquiries and
examination, advise you that, in my opinion:

1. The Company is a corporation duly incorporatedidiakexisting and in good standing under the lafvthe State of Delawal
and has the necessary corporate power to exectitgedimer the Amendment and perform the Credit A&grent, as so amended, and to borrow
under the Credit Agreement, as so amended. The @oyrip duly qualified to transact business in gadsdiction where such qualification is
necessary in view of the property owned or busigesslucted by the Company and where the failusotqualify would have a material
adverse effect on the Company. The Company is k balding company duly registered with the Boards@ivernors of the Federal Reserve
System under the Bank Holding Company Act of 1@s6amended.

2. The execution and delivery of the Amendmenrtt the performance by the Company of the Credie&grent, as so amended,
and the borrowings thereunder have been duly aattbby all necessary corporate action, and dandtwill not violate any provision of law
or regulation, writ, order or judgment, or any peson of the Company’s articles of incorporatiorbgrlaws and do not and will not result in
the breach of, or constitute a default or requing @nsent under, or result in the creation of laiey upon any of its properties, revenues or
assets pursuant to, any indenture or other agraemn@mstrument to which the Company or any Sulasidis a party or by which the Company
or any Subsidiary or its properties may be bound.

3. The Amendment has been duly executed andedeti on behalf of the Company and the Credit Agere, as so amended,
constitutes the legal, valid and binding obligatadrthe Company which is enforceable in accordamitie its terms, except as such
enforceability may be limited by (a) bankruptcysatvency, reorganization, moratorium or other samidaws of general applicability affecting
the enforcement of creditors’ rights and (b) thplagation of general principles of equity (regasifieof whether such enforceability is
considered in a proceeding in equity or at law).

4, No authorizations, consents, approvals, §eenfilings or registrations from or with any govaental or regulatory authority
or agency are required in connection with the etienwand delivery of the Amendment and the perforceaby the Company of the Credit
Agreement, as so amended.

5. There are no legal or arbitral proceedingd, o proceedings by or before any governmentedgulatory authority or
agency, pending or threatened against or affettiegcompany or any of its Subsidiaries, or any ertigs or rights of the Company or any of
its Subsidiaries, which, if adversely determineduld have a material adverse effect on the cors@aifinancial condition, operations,



business or prospects taken as a whole of the Qongpad its Subsidiaries.

6. The Company is in compliance in all matergspects with all rules and regulations of the Bidolding Company Act, as
amended, and with all existing regulations of tleafl of Governors of the Federal Reserve Systemtinglto bank holding companies.

7. The Company is not an “investment companyd oompany “controlled” by any “investment compdmithin the meaning
of the Investment Company Act of 1940, as amended.

8. The Company is not under investigation byoerating under any restrictions (applicable dpedly to the Company)
imposed by, any regulatory authority.

The Opinions set forth herein are intended solehtlie benefit of the addressees hereof in cororeetith the transactions
contemplated herein and assignees and participader the Credit Agreement and shall not be religah by any other person or for any other

purpose without our prior written consent.

Very truly yours,




EXHIBIT C
FORM OF OPINION OF COUNSEL OF GUARANTOR

March 10, 2006

The Northern Trust Company, as Agent

The Banks (as defined in the

Credit Agreement referred to

below), and their respective successors and assigns
50 South LaSalle Street

Chicago, lllinois 60675

Gentlemen/Ladies:

| have acted as counsel to Citizens Finance CoAEA, Inc. (each a “ Guarantd) and | am delivering to you this opinion
counsel upon which you may relay, in connectiorhv@uaranties dated as of March 10, 2006 (the “ &uas”) of the Guarantors in favor
The Northern Trust Company, as Agent covering idgilities of Heartland Financial USA, Inc. (theBorrower”) to the Agent and the Bar
under that certain Credit Agreement dated as afiaign31, 2004 among the Borrower, The Northern ff@mnpany, as Agent and the Ba
party thereto, as amended.

In so acting, |, as counsel for the Guarantorsehaade or caused to be made such factual inquénies| have examined or cau
to be examined such questions of law, as | haveidered necessary or appropriate for the purpdsessoopinion and, upon the basis of s
inquiries and examinations, advise you that, inapiion:

9. Each Guarantor is a corporation duly orgahizalidly existing and in good standing under léngs of the State of
and is duly qualified (liegf)go transact business in all places where failodo so might have a material adve
effect on the financial condition, prospects oribess of such Guarantor.

10. Each Guarantor has full corporate poweraarttority to execute and deliver its Guaranty aadgwm its obligations
thereunder.
11. The execution and delivery of its Guaramtgt the performance by each Guarantor of its obtigatthereunder have been

duly authorized by all necessary corporate acton, each Guaranty has been duly executed and glioe behalf of the applicable Guarar
and constitutes the valid and binding obligatioswéh Guarantor, enforceable in accordance witieiitas, except as enforceability may be
limited by bankruptcy, insolvency or other similaws of general application affecting the enforcet# creditors’ rights or by general
principles of equity limiting the availability ofggitable remedies.

12. There is no provision in either Guarantaritcles of incorporation or by-laws, nor any psign in any indenture, mortgage,
contract or agreement to which said Guarantormiargy or by which it or its properties may be boumor any law, statute, rule or regulation, or
any writ, order or decision of any court or goveamtal instrumentality binding on said Guarantorahhivould be contravened by the execu
and delivery of its Guaranty, nor do any of thesfiwing prohibit said Guarantor’s performance of temn, provision, condition, covenant or
any other obligation of said Guarantor containestdm.

13. No authorizations, consents, approvals, licendl@sggd or registrations from or with any governmerdr regulatory authori
or agency are required in connection with the etieoudelivery and performance by either Guaraofdts Guaranty.

14. There are no legal or arbitral proceediags, no proceedings by or before any governmentadgulatory authority or
agency, pending or threatened against or affedtihgr Guarantor or any properties or rights ofl ilarantor which, if adversely determined,
would have a material adverse effect on the codatad financial condition, operations, businesgrospects of said Guarantor.

The opinions set forth herein are intended solely the benefit of the addressees hereof in cororeatiith the transactio
contemplated herein and assignees and participadesr the Credit Agreement and shall not be raljgah by any other person or for any o

purpose without our prior written consent.

Very truly yours,






Exhibit 11

EARNINGS PER SHARE

Net income for the year ended December 31, ©

Weighted average common shares outstanding

Assumed incremental common shares issued uponisxefcstock
options

Weighted average common shares for diluted earmgagshare
Earnings per common share - basic

Earnings per common share - diluted

$22,726,00

16,415,182

286,96

16,702,14

$1.3¢

$1.3¢




Exhibit 21.1

Subsidiaries of the Registrant

1.

2 a.

2b.

7 a.

7b.

8 a.

10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

Galena State Bank and Trust Company, an lllingigedbank with its main office located in Galenkndlis
Dubuque Bank and Trust Company, an lowa state hathkits main office located in Dubuque, lowa
DB&T Insurance, Inc.

DB&T Community Development Corp.

Keokuk Bancshares, Inc.

First Community Bank, an lowa state bank with i@imoffice located in Keokuk, lowa

Riverside Community Bank, an lllinois state bankhwits main office located in Rockford, Illinois
Citizens Finance Co.

ULTEA, Inc.

Autorent Wisconsin, Inc.

Econo Lease, Inc

Wisconsin Community Bank, a Wisconsin state bartk it$ main office located in Cottage Grove, Wission
DBT Investment Corporation

New Mexico Bank & Trust, a New Mexico state bankhaits main office located in Albuquerque, New Mex
Arizona Bank & Trust, an Arizona state bank withntain office located in Chandler, Arizona

Rocky Mountain Bank, a Montana state bank witmitgn office located in Billings, Montana

HTLF Capital Corp.

Heartland Financial Statutory Trust Il

Heartland Financial Capital Trust Il

Heartland Financial Statutory Trust Il|

Heartland Financial Statutory Trust IV

Rocky Mountain Statutory Trust |

Heartland Community Development, Inc.

Heartland Financial Statutory Trust V



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors
Heartland Financial USA, Inc.:

We consent to incorporation by reference in theifegion Statements (Nos. 333-06233, 333-8137d,383-06219) on Form 8-of Heartlan
Financial USA, Inc. of our reports dated March 80@&, with respect to the consolidated balance sheddeartland Financial USA, Inc. and
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2005 and 2004thenklated consolidated statements of income,gaggaim stockholders' equity and
comprehensive income, and cash flows for eacheof#ars in the three-year period ended Decemb&0Bb, managemeistassessment of t
effectiveness of internal control over financighoeting as of December 31, 2005 and the effectisgid internal control over financial

reporting as of December 31, 2005, which reporfgeapin the December 31, 2005 annual report on A@+ of Heartland Financial USA,
Inc. and subsidiaries.

/s/ KPMG LLP

Des Moines, lowa
March 8, 2006



Exhibit 31.1

I, Lynn B. Fuller, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FornKl@-Heartland Financial USA, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or om#ttie a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statesngate made, not misleading with respect to thmgexovered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aginer financial information included in this repdairly present in a
material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registeentf, and for, the periods presented in this tepor

4, The registrant’ other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contrahs
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over ficiahreporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules-18(f) and 15dt5(f)) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregaosed such disclosure controls and procedurds
designed under our supervision, to ensure thatrinhte
information relating to the registrant, inclngiits consolidated subsidiaries, is made knowastby others within tho
entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipg; or caused such internal control over finahec#gporting to b
designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the religbilifinancial reporting and the preparation ofafitial statements for exter
purpose in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regigis disclosure controls and procedures and presémténis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures aseénd of the period covered by this report basesguch evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change i tbgistran® internal control over financial reporting thatooed durin
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that ha
materially affected, or is reasonabkely to materially affect, the registrastinternal control over financial reportil
and;

5. The registrang’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdvel
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditorsla
the audit committee of registrant’s board ioéctors (or persons performing the equivalent fiomg:

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controlerdfinancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to recppdocess, summarize, and report financial infoiomatand

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéatir

the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.

Date: March 10, 2006



__Is/ Lynn B. Fuller
Lynn B. Fuller
Chief Executive Officer




Exhibit 31.2
I, John K. Schmidt, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FornKl@-Heartland Financial USA, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not corgainuntrue statement of a material fact or omsteie a material fe
necessary to make the statements made, in light
of the circumstances under which such statesngate made, not misleading with respect to thmgexovered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements,aginer financial information included in this repdairly present in a
material respects the financial condition, results
of operations and cash flows of the registeantf, and for, the periods presented in this itepor

4, The registrant’ other certifying officer and | are responsible &stablishing and maintaining disclosure contrahs
procedures (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-14
and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over finahceporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules-18#) and 15dt5(f) for the
registrant and have:

a) Designed such disclosure controls and proceduregaosed such disclosure controls and procedurdse
designed under our supervision, to ensure thatriahte
information relating to the registrant, indlugl its consolidated subsidiaries, is made knowngdy others within tho
entities, particularly during the period in
which this report is being prepared;

b) Designed such internal control over financial réipgr, or caused such internal control over finah@gorting tc
be designed under our supervision, to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the relialififinancial reporting and the preparation of fiokal statements for exter!
purpose in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles;

c) Evaluated the effectiveness of the regigis disclosure controls and procedures and presémténis report oL
conclusions about the effectiveness of the
disclosure controls and procedures aB@gthd of the period covered by this report basesuch evaluation; and

d) Disclosed in this report any change @ ithgistrans internal control over financial reporting thatooed durin
the registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter that ha
materially affected, or is reasonabkely to materially affect, the registrastinternal control over financial reportil
and;

5. The registrang’ other certifying officer and | have disclosedsdxh on our most recent evaluation of internal abrdvel
financial reporting, to the registrant’s auditors
and the audit committee of registrant’s bazrdirectors (or persons performing the equivafanttion):

a) All significant deficiencies and material weaknesgethe design or operation of internal controlerdfinancia
reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely
affect the registrant’s ability to recoptpcess, summarize, and report financial inforamgtand

b) Any fraud, whether or not material, that involveamagement or other employees who have a significéatir
the registrant’s internal control over financial
reporting.
Date: March 10, 2006

[s/ John K. Schmidt
John K. Schmidt




Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Heartlandancial USA, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form X0for the year ending December 31, 2(
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissin the date hereof (thé&éport), I, Lynn B. Fuller, Chief Executive Officef the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135G dapted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleypA2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with theguirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Sé&iesrExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faigsesents, in all material respects, the financtaldition and result
operations of the Company.

/s/ Lynn B. Fuller

Lynn B. Fuller

Chief Executive Officer
March 10, 2006




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Heartlandancial USA, Inc. (the “Company”) on Form X0for the year ending December 31, 2(
as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commissin the date hereof (th&éport), I, John K. Schmidt, Chief Financial Officaf the
Company, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 135G dapted pursuant to § 906 of the Sarbanes-OxleypA2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with theguirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Sé&iesrExchange Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faigsesents, in all material respects, the financtaldition and result
operations of the Company.

/s/ John K. Schmidt
John K. Schmidt
Chief Financial Officer
March 10, 2006




